w0

10.
11.

TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

o

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting
Marion County — Growth Services Building Training Room
2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd., Ocala, FL 34470

October 14, 2025
2:30 PM
AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PROOF OF PUBLICATION
CONSENT AGENDA

A. September 9, 2025 Meeting Minutes

ACTION ITEMS
A. Draft Active Transportation Plan

PRESENTATIONS

A. Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Office of Safety

Presentation
B. Draft 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)

DISCUSSION
A. Marion County Public Schools Safety Planning

COMMENTS BY FDOT
A. FDOT Five-Year Tentative Work Program
B. FDOT Construction Report

COMMENTS BY TPO STAFF
A. FDOT Office of Policy Planning Safety Briefing Sheets
B. November Committee Meetings

COMMENTS BY TAC MEMBERS
PUBLIC COMMENT (Limited to 2 minutes)



12. ADJOURNMENT

All meetings are open to the public. The TPO does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, religion, disability and
family status. Anyone requiring special assistance under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), or requiring language assistance (free of
charge) should contact Liz Mitchell, Title VI/Nondiscrimination Coordinator at (352) 438-2634 or liz.mitchell@marionfl.org forty-eight (48) hours
in advance, so proper accommodations can be made.

Pursuant to Chapter 286.0105, Florida Statutes, please be advised that if any person wishes to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to
any matter considered at the above meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, they may need to ensure that a
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The next regular meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee will be held on
November 4, 2025 at 2:30 p.m.



mailto:liz.mitchell@marionfl.org

TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting
Marion County — Growth Services Training Room
2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd., Ocala, FL 34470
2:30 PM

MINUTES

Members Present:

Steven Cohoon

Noel Cooper

Tom Duncan

Kia Powell

Jeff Shrum (alternate Matt Leibfried)
Bob Titterington

Chuck Varadin

Chad Ward (arrived 2:39pm)

Members Not Present:

Casey Griffith
Loretta Shaffer

Others Present:

Rob Balmes, Ocala Marion TPO
Shakayla Irby, Ocala Marion TPO
Liz Mitchell, Ocala Marion TPO
Matthew Richardson, FDOT
William Roll, Kimley-Horn
Christopher Zeigler, Marion County
Ken Odom, Marion County



TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Item 1. Call to Order

Chairman Steven Cohoon called the meeting to order at 2:32pm.

Item 2. Roll Call

Administrative Assistant Shakayla Irby called the roll, and a quorum was present.

Item 3. Proof of Publication

Administrative Assistant Shakayla Irby stated the meeting had been published online to the
TPO’s website, as well as the City of Ocala, Belleview, Marion County, and Dunnellon’s

websites on September 2, 2025. The meeting had also been published to the TPO’s Facebook
and X pages.

Item 4. Consent Agenda

Mpr. Titterington made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Mr. Varadin seconded, and the

motion passed unanimously.

Item Sa. Committee Rules and Procedures

TPO Director Rob Balmes provided a general reminder regarding recent meetings. He noted that
there had been some confusion due to attendance by alternates and participation by individuals
who were not formal committee members.

Director Balmes reminded everyone that the committee operated under formal bylaws, which
called for following Robert’s Rules of Order. This meant that the chair ran the meeting and
facilitated discussion, while committee members and their assigned alternates participated in
dialogue for agenda items.

He emphasized that individuals who were not committee members or designated alternates
should respect these rules, and that the chair could, at their discretion, call on non-members to
provide input or address the committee.

Mr. Balmes explained that some confusion in previous meetings had made documenting minutes
and following discussions more difficult. He reiterated that committee members were the
primary participants in dialogue and thanked everyone for their attention, noting that the
reminder was intended to help maintain orderly and efficient meetings.

Chairman Cohoon stated that he would address the topic more thoroughly in line with proper
meeting procedures. He also mentioned that he would refresh on the list of members and
expressed appreciation for Mr. Balmes addressing the issue.



TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Item 6a. Fiscal Years (FY) 2026 to 2030 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
Amendment #1 with Roll Forward

Mr. Balmes reported that the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) had requested that
two projects be amended into the Fiscal Years (FY) 2026-2030 Transportation Improvement
Program (TIP).

In addition, the annual Roll Forward TIP report was also part of the amendment request. He
explained that the details of the proposed changes were included in the memo attachments
provided to the members.

The first project, FM# 435209-1: I-75 at NW 49th Street, extended from the end of NW 49th
Street to the end of NW 35th Street, involved the development of a new interchange. The
amendment added the Right-of-Way (ROW) phase, with funding allocated across FY 2026, FY
2027, and FY 2028. Mr. Balmes noted that the amendment reflected revised project funding for
the ROW phase. The total project funding was $49,739,654, representing an increase of
$28,421,444. He added that the project would undergo further changes, so endorsement of this
particular amendment would not be requested until the following month, as the update had just
been received.

The second project, FM# 457015-1: Marion Oaks Manor Extension and Widening, covered
the area from SW 47th Avenue Road to CR 475 and included a roadway extension and widening
component. The amendment added the Preliminary Engineering (PE) phase, with funding
programmed in FY 2026. Mr. Balmes noted that this was a new project in the TIP, with a total
funding amount of $5,000. He added that this project would also undergo some changes,
providing the committee with a heads-up for future updates.

In addition to the two projects, Mr. Balmes presented the Roll Forward TIP Report, which
identified 43 projects that had been rolled forward into the FY 20262030 TIP. The total roll
forward funding amounted to $123,198,667 in FY 2026.

Chairman Cohoon asked about the Marion Oaks Manor Extension and Widening project, noting
that the PE phase was listed at $5,000. He questioned whether the next iteration of the project
would reflect a higher amount, given that the total project cost would be significantly more than
$5,000.

FDOT Liaison Kia Powell responded that she did not have a definitive answer at that time,
acknowledging that changes could occur, but the specifics were not yet available. She explained
that each milestone provides insight into funding changes. She also noted that the project was
being tracked to ensure consistency across all planning documents.

Mr. Cooper made a motion to approve the Roll Forward report. Mr. Titterington seconded, and

the motion passed unanimously.




TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Item 7a. 2050 L.ong Range Transportation Plan (I.LRTP) Cost Feasible Element

Mr. William Roll with Kimley-Horn provided an update on the Long Range Transportation Plan,
focusing on the final major component, the cost-feasible plan. He emphasized that inclusion in
the cost-feasible plan is critical, as it allows projects to move forward, from planning through
construction, and ensures eligibility for state and federal funding by establishing planning
consistency. He noted that while funding is constrained, projects shown in the plan for later
years, such as 2041-2050, could still be implemented sooner if necessary, potentially requiring
plan modifications or amendments.

Mr. Roll explained that the plan accounts for projected federal and state revenues, totaling
approximately $616.5 million, and local revenues, including sales tax, impact fees, and fuel
taxes, amounting to about $2.4 billion. However, after adjusting for purchasing power in today’s
dollars, the effective funding for projects is closer to $390 million. He stressed the importance of
documenting both existing and committed projects as a foundation for identifying cost-feasible
projects beyond 2030.

A map presented illustrated the scope of existing and planned projects, with state highway
projects highlighted. Mr. Roll described ongoing collaboration with county and municipal staff
through steering committee meetings to align local funding decisions with the long-range plan.
He highlighted studies for potential new connections, including completing the SR 326 Beltway
and evaluating a contiguous East-West connector from US 441 to I-75, emphasizing the need for
a detailed alignment study rather than predefining corridors.

On the west side of the county, Mr. Roll noted increasing regional traffic into Ocala along US 41
and SR 200, as well as constraints on SR 40 and SR 200, pointing out that limited funding
prevents full construction of all corridors. He described bottlenecks along US 41 at the river and
capacity challenges on SR 200, suggesting three options for addressing transportation needs: an
East-West connector on the south side through Marion Oaks, a western beltway connector, or
more substantial improvements to SR 200 extending toward I-75. He framed these as initial
considerations for further study to determine the most effective solutions for traffic flow and
long-term regional planning.

Mr. Roll continued his presentation, emphasizing that some potential improvements, including
options within medians or other unconventional locations, remain conceptual and have not been
widely studied for this area of the county. He noted that delaying the identification of appropriate
facilities or improvements could make implementation more difficult and costly. He addressed
concerns about regional traffic, highlighting that high volumes from southwestern areas feed
onto constrained four-lane corridors such as SR 40 and US 41, with low-speed local streets and
traffic signals creating additional congestion.

He explained that while options such as elevating parts of SR 200 in the median have been
discussed, these remain conceptual and financially challenging, potentially requiring tolling to
support construction costs. Mr. Roll pointed out that existing right-of-way and prior plans,
including connections through 80th Avenue to CR 484, provide opportunities to improve traffic
flow locally but would not fully resolve the magnitude of long-term regional needs along SR
200. He emphasized that these studies are intended to position the plan to move forward
strategically.



TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Mr. Roll then discussed the documentation of transportation needs within the plan, including
identifying unfunded segments, multimodal elements, public transportation services, bicycle
infrastructure, and sidewalks. He clarified that prioritization and funding decisions are informed
by annual lists of projects but acknowledged the difficulty in projecting precise implementation
timing for specific elements, noting that some needs may not be constructed for decades.

He described updates to the plan, including the integration of the cost-feasible plan, goals,
objectives, performance targets, planning assumptions, demographic forecasts, scenario
planning, and revenue forecasts. Mr. Roll outlined the upcoming adoption schedule, noting that
the draft plan would be released to the public on September 29th, followed by a public open
house on September 30th at the Mary Sue Rich Center. The adoption package would be
presented at the board meeting on October 28th, closing a 30-day public comment period. He
emphasized that the board’s action of the adoption package is critical for finalizing the cost-
feasible plan and guiding any potential adjustments before implementation.

Mr. Roll clarified that following the board meeting on the September 23rd, there would be a
short window of a few days before the public release of the plan to make any necessary
adjustments. He stressed that the board’s adoption on the 28th is mandatory and cannot be
delayed, and that only minor, non-substantive changes could be made at that stage. Major
modifications would not be allowed unless prompted by significant public input. Mr. Roll
emphasized the importance of preserving the public’s opportunity to comment before final
adoption.

Mr. Roll explained that the cost-feasible plan reflects current project revenue and cost estimates
and identifies projects anticipated to be constructed by 2050, focusing primarily on projects
already committed or under construction. He noted that local revenues may allow acceleration of
some projects within a seven-year timeframe and emphasized that constructing projects sooner is
generally more cost-effective than delaying due to inflation in labor and materials costs. He
concluded by acknowledging the complexity of multibillion-dollar transportation projects and
expressed appreciation for the feedback provided, affirming that the plan will incorporate
relevant considerations and local input as it moves toward adoption.

Adoption Schedule

e Draft LRTP release: September 29, 2025

e Public Open House: September 30, 2025 (Mary Sue Rich Community Center)
e Public comment period closes: October 28, 2025

e TPO Board adoption: November 13, 2025

Chairman Cohoon inquired about the SW 66th Street project, located east of I-75 and west of
27th Avenue, asking why the widening to four lanes appeared on the unfunded needs list and
whether it was intended to be listed there.

Mr. Roll clarified that the project had been included as a cost-feasible project. He explained that
the maps functioned like an MRI, showing different layers of information: committed projects,
cost-feasible projects, partially funded projects, and unfunded needs, with each layer highlighting
a specific category to illustrate project status.



TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Mr. Roll inquired about the Marion Oaks extension, noting that it was currently shown as a
committed project. He expressed concern that it did not appear to be fully funded and requested
guidance from those with more knowledge regarding the project’s current status.

Chairman Cohoon explained that, in the currently adopted Marion County Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP), the Marion Oaks project was not fully funded but was dependent
on bond funding. He noted that it was included in the TIP and associated with a bond of nearly
$100 million expected to be available before the end of the calendar year. He added that through
the bond’s accounting and balancing by January of the following year, it would be determined
whether the project remained unfunded or needed to be spread over subsequent years in the five-
year program.

Mr. Roll said that the change was going to be reflected on the maps. He explained that, before it
went to the TPO Board, the project would be moved from being shown as a committed project to
a cost-feasible project. He noted that this adjustment would likely require changes elsewhere to
maintain a balanced plan, and he confirmed that he would make those adjustments.

Chairman Cohoon inquired about the 49th Street interchange and the north-south extension of
35th Street. He noted that the extension was originally envisioned to continue all the way to SR
326, whereas the map showed its terminus and listed an unfunded need for the segment north of
the new interchange.

Chairman Cohoon and Mr. Roll discussed the 49th Street interchanges and the north-south
extension of 35th Street. They noted that the extension was originally planned to reach SR 326,
but the current map showed a shorter terminus, with the segment north of the new interchange
listed as an unfunded need. It was clarified that no parallel corridor existed north of this segment,
and the map reflected only a partial section. The discussion included references to prior planning
timelines and legislative processes, and it was noted that these adjustments did not impact the
current budget.

Mr. Cooper inquired about road limits and segments, including 37th Street from Northeast 36th
Avenue to 740. Mr. Roll indicated he would follow up with staff for additional clarification.

Item 7b. 2025 Commitment to Zero Safetv Report

TPO Director Rob Balmes provided a comprehensive overview of the annual Safety Report,
which has been prepared by staff over the past three years as part of the Commitment to Zero
action plan adopted in 2022. The report presents data from the past five years on fatal and serious
injury crashes to help officials and the public understand trends and identify priority areas for
safety improvements. This year, a new highlights section was added, showcasing notable safety
initiatives and community engagement efforts. Mr. Balmes explained that these highlights were
developed in collaboration with local staff, FDOT, first responders, and other partners to
illustrate practical safety activities over the past year. Among the programs featured were the
Safety Matters series, the bike lane design contest for elementary schools coordinated with
FDOT, Stop on Red, the Community Traffic Safety Team, and Target Zero initiatives, including
efforts along SR 200 and projects within the City of Ocala.



TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Mr. Balmes also noted infrastructure projects, including paved shoulders on CR 475, a recently
kicked-off local road safety plan in Ocala, Belleview to Greenway connection providing a safe
connection to the new sidewalk shared-use path along US 441 to the Santos Trailhead, and the
City of Dunnellon improvements to the Rainbow River Bridge and shared-use path connection
on the south side to Blue Run Park. Law enforcement efforts were highlighted as well, including
the STEER enforcement campaign led by the Marion County Sheriff’s office and Ocala Police
Department, emphasizing the role of leadership from the Mayor and Chief Balken in supporting
community safety. The report emphasized crash trends, noting that while serious injuries spiked
in 2022, the past two years have shown a decline. The High Injury Network was highlighted as a
key focus area, with nearly 30% of fatal and serious injury crashes occurring within this network.
Intersection-related crashes were identified as another significant contributor, comprising 36% of
serious injury crashes. Run-off-the-road incidents were noted as a leading cause of fatal and
serious crashes, reinforcing the importance of ongoing shoulder and infrastructure
improvements.

Item 8. Comments by FDOT

Ms. Kia Powell introduced Matthew Richardson, Deputy Communications Administrator, as a
new team member attending meetings to support communications and share information with the
group. She provided an update on recent events, noting that in August, community meetings
were held where residents met with construction teams and contractors to ask questions about
specific projects, including the US 41 resurfacing project in Dunnellon. Ms. Powell reported a
good turnout and indicated that future community events would be announced as projects
progress.

She highlighted upcoming events, including Rail Safety Week from September 15-19,
emphasizing the “See Tracks? Think Train!” safety campaign to raise awareness of railroad
safety. She also noted that Loreen Bobo from the FDOT Safety Office will provide a
presentation at the October meeting focused on zero-injury goals and current safety initiatives.

Regarding the Work Program, she explained that online hearings are scheduled from October
20-24, with an in-person hearing on October 21 at the district office in Deland from 3—-5 PM,
followed by the Work Program presentation at the November meeting.

Item 9. Comments by TPO Staff

Mr. Balmes noted that the Active Transportation Plan was made available for public review on
September 22nd, beginning a 30-day comment period. He explained that the plan would be
highlighted at a public open house on September 30th, which would also feature the Long Range
Transportation Plan, allowing the public to provide input on both initiatives. He encouraged
anyone interested in submitting comments to do so and mentioned that the consulting team
would present the full plan for review and discussion at the October meeting.

The open house would run from 4:00 to 6:30 p.m. in an open-house style format at the Mary Sue
Rich Center.



TAC Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Approved —

Item 10. Comments by TAC Members

There were no comments by TAC members.

Item 11. Public Comment

There was no public comment.

Item 12. Adjournment

Chairman Cohoon adjourned the meeting at 3:12pm.

Respectfully Submitted By:

Shakayla Irby, TPO Administrative Assistant



TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

TO: Committee Members
FROM: Rob Balmes, Director

RE: Draft Active Transportation Plan

The TPO released a draft Active Transportation Plan on September 26, 2025. The draft Plan is
available for public review and comment through October 28. The TPO Board will be requested

to adopt the Active Transportation Plan at the October 28 meeting.

The Kittelson and Associates team will provide a full presentation of the draft Plan at the CAC
and TAC meetings on October 14. Attached to this memo is a reduced file size version of the
draft Active Transportation Plan and presentation. Also included is a one-page infographic on the
community health and economic benefits of Active Transportation produced by Kittelson and
Associates. The full-sized version of the draft Plan and Appendix are located on the project page:

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/aa237ac93733438e8190d47593ce6530

Attachment(s)

e Presentation
e Community and Health Benefits Infographic
e Draft Active Transportation Plan (reduced size)

Recommended Action

Endorse the Active Transportation Plan and recommend adoption by the TPO Board.

If you have any questions, please contact me at: 352-438-2631.

A transportation system that supports growth, mobility, and safety through leadership and planning

2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd. « Ocala, Florida 34470
Telephone: (352) 438 - 2630 « www.ocalamariontpo.org


https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/aa237ac93733438e8190d47593ce6530

AGENDA

*  Active Transportation Plan (ATP) Chapters
*  Resources

Feedback & Questions



ATP CHAPTERS

Introductions

Vision, Goals and
Objectives

Public and Partner
Engagement

Existing Conditions

Bicycle and Pedestrian Level
of Traffic Stress Analysis

Bicycle and Pedestrian
Accessibility Analysis

Needs Assessment

Proposed Improvements
Project Prioritization

Next Steps




INTRODUCTION

What is Active Transportation?

[ 2 L e ]
Active Transportation is human-powered mobility, such walking, cycling, using = > g
whe 1d other types o =5, A 78] 5" ) - @ @ ‘
. 5 L L]

supports more transportation options, economic opportunity, and a healthy lifestyle.

* Purpose: guide investments in safe and connected nonmotorized networks.
* Developed concurrently with the 2050 LRTP for consistency.

* Highlights Marion County’s equestrian heritage and extensive trail system as unique
assets.

* Active Transportation Benefits: mobility, health, safety, economic vitality.



VISION & GOALS

Vision
Marion County will Improve safety for all active transportation users
have a safe, accessible,

and well-connected

active transportation ) )
Create a well-connected and accessible active

transportation network

network, which
contributes to a high
quality of life and

economic opportunity
for people of all ages Protect and enhance quality of life, economy, and

recognition as the Horse Capital of the World

and abilities.




PUBLIC AND PARTNER ENGAGEMENT

Input from stakeholders

* Local governments

* Schools

* Tourism

* Cycling and horse farm community
Engagement activities:

* 2 workshops

* | open house

* 2 pop-ups at gyms

* Online survey & comment map
Survey captured preferences for
walking, biking, equestrian use, and
spending habits

éé

Ocala/Marion County is blessed with amazing people and a
high quality of life. The development of our bicycle, pedestrian
and trail facilities will contribute to a vibrant, healthy and
accessible community.

The TPQO's Active Transportation Plan provides a framework

for completing new and existing facilities. The Plan also
highlights the importance of active transportation to the local
economy, and our social and physical wellbeing. | endorse the
Active Transportation Plan as a catalyst to building a more
connected multimodal network in Marion County. 9%

— Mayor Ben Marciano, City of Ocala



EXISTING CONDITIONS

County overview:
e 5th largest FL county, rich in parks, springs,
Ocala Nat’l Forest, Cross Florida Greenway.

Population:
* 419k (2024), projected 526k (2050).

The county's population is projected
to grow over 100K by 2050.

Marion County Population

* Roadways:
* 54% of miles posted 250 mph — safety 2024 419,510 —» 2050: 526,500
challenges.

* Transit:
* SunTran serves 7 routes,
* 239k annual trips,
* Highest ridership at Downtown Transfer
Station.



EXISTING CONDITIONS

Sidewalks: 66 £rom 2019 to 2023, there were a total of
e Concentrated in Ocala, Belleview,

Dunnellon, Marion Oaks;
¢ Bike lanes: ﬁ 105 fatalities
* Mainly near Ocala. e & \
* Trails: [| 157 serious
* Strong regional asset (Cross ﬁLF injuries l \
Florida Greenway, SUNTrail).

oon
Iving bicyclists and pedestrians. 9%
¢ 2019-23 — 49| fatalities (18% ped, Ik R Al e

3% bike), 1,857 serious injuries (5%
ped, 2.7% bike).



LEVEL OF TRAFFIC STRESS (LTS) ANALYSIS

*  Evaluate the quality of travel =i 3 g e
. s LTS 1 LTS 2 LTS 3 LTS 4
for people walking and biking. y 2 2 |

«  Considers facility type, width,

. 4 . . The level where all The level where some The facility is difficult or

an Contl Nnu |t venicular users are able t users are willing touse  impassible by a wheeled
9 the facility and most this facility, but others maobility device or users

us are willing to use may only use the with other limitations in

the facility. facility when there are their movemeant and most

posted speeds; vehicular T D
volumes; and separation from .o s 3. i stres
traffic

LTS 1 LTS 2 LTS 3

* Scale is defined by the type of
user that finds the facility

The level that most children The level that will be The level tolerated by confident The level tolerated only by those

COI I l o rta e can use confidently. tolerated by most adults. cyclists who still prefer having their with limited route or mode choice
° own dedicated space for riding. or cycling enthusiasts that choose

to ride under stressful conditions.



FDOT LTS METHODOLOGY EXAMPLE

FDOT Multimodal Quality/Level of Service Handbook will be referenced

Key Inputs:
for LTS methodology

Posted Speed

What is the posted speed? Number Of Lanes
| |
25 or 30 mph 35 mph or greater AADT
! !
How many vehicular travel Is tL‘IE Aaﬂggdgss Land Use
| total)? than 3,000: . ope
e el | | Bike Facility Presence
up to 3 4 or more Yes No . ope
| Bike Facility Types
and usq m m ﬁ On-Street Parking
| | o o
Residential Commercial or Wldth Of Blke Lane

Industrial

m m & Separation
Continuous Sidewalk Presence




PEDESTRIAN LTS RESULTS

Key Findings:

* Most of the roadways in
the study network are
LTS3 and LTS 4

Lower-stress roadways
(LTS 1 and LTS 2) are
mostly located in:

City of Ocala

Part of US 301 in the
City of Belleview,

Dunnellon

—“\ W Pennsylvania Ave
in the City of

Dunnellon

—-— ]
2
3

—-—




BICYCLE LTS RESULTS

]
T
'
4 5
|
1
La )
' = g 4
] FoLE
Ira e . |
.
5
Ly

Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress
—1
2
3

-—

Key Findings:

Most of the
roadways in the
study network
are LTS 3 and LTS
4

Lower stress
roadways in
downtown Ocala
and Dunnellon

More low-stress
roadways (LTS 2)
in the rural areas
where vehicle
AADT is lower




ACCESSIBILITY OF KEY DESTINATIONS

Population Accessibility by Biking
@ Lessthan 25%
25% to 50%
® Greater than 50%

Methodology

Evaluated pedestrian & bicycle
accessibility to bus stops, schools,
hospitals, parks, community centers, etc.

Reviewed LTS within 1/2 mile of
destinations for walking and | mile for
biking

Compared the number of people and
jobs that can access each destination
with a low stress route (LTS | or 2)
compared to the full street network

Visualize accessibility by percentage




NEEDS ASSESSMENT

* High-stress corridors (SR 200, SR 40, US 301) overlap with crash hot spots and low accessibility.
» Sidewalks/bike facilities concentrated in urban areas; rural areas lack coverage.

* l|dentified need for lower-stress, better connected facilities near jobs and population centers.

Areas with a higher-stress roadway network and lower accessibility

== = = destinations also coincide with where fatal and serious injury
T crashes occur more frequently for people walking and biking.




PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

The proposed improvements were organized into three

, i » *Improvements identified via technical analysis,
categories to reflect the primary mode or facility type

stakeholder/local input.

addressed:
T e e *Maps show where gaps will be filled, enhancing safety
' & connectivity.

2. Bicycle Improvements *Includes Marion Oaks Trail Plan concept for future

connectivity.

3. Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Improvements

G



TRAIL PROJECTS

Improvement Category

s s
P A

(] o ey 20
Ocala y U
 ; o
3
. g b v
Y e
s & -
1 4 L = ot
\d 2T e 34 5T ) G
e Hiy v
Lo i i \ i
5T nmasmouass -] i
- e ; i i 1 i T
H u r
- B i B H i L
H t e H
3 g u s Fi 1 55
E H = : \
F ;i
-y
3 =
i =
% b, 5 £ s
IRt e b
R % : & H S x 4
EREE 8 - e 2 z
o B 5 s o it 'l
s v g ¥
- 4~ ¥ e
: omor & — —
i u?mu= . f ‘ﬁ
4 3 .
z s
i
£ 2
PO
=
®
b | "3
s é
= ’ B
s - ~
L »
e PPNl Lo oo bl £




SIDEWALK/SHARED USE PATH PROJECTS

gy sz 1
B
» A g
- | o PR S
R Tenans 1 o »
) 1
o 7
r
-
H ~
H : '
: = ' =
: et H o
LW b % i £ e 15 -
[k W 2 ¥ 5
= 4 %, & £
I o b ; 2 =
o 213 % B g i iR 3 wlz
i n Y g i
g i 1
-] E = 2 75 vensr %
= el wET i
o f— 3 . -
2% 8 i
b - = ‘s
5
i 3 w®
n 3 . g - .w{‘
H g : i H
= W 3 e y
-] a B i = 3 e 18133
t 5 % 5 5 ! \d
i ; - LR
o 1 & & & 32 I e
] & : 3 ¥ 2]
£ § v e e 1
3 e ig »
i : ; - » £l g0
£ 30u) oy o a | b
. 8 e i BA A
3 O R B e = G |
o Bow b og ) W Tl e % e, ¥
al B i 1 i L | £ o,
R i T a
et | e = e S L WPt B ) o oz s
& raraZ i P 3232 g
" s G i, Sarg
H owgoe [t & s 4 2 L)
Bl ) ST S ne s i U
Pt g seos . S E 3 % H
i 5 - 44 £ pan o 7 ; Y S -
E - %
w 3 o -
T J e 5 - =
1 ( E 1
4 # chymar 1
: 2 o i
1 &
E" ) i o 1 o
1 warn & 1
) e g it g & 1
Vi o A SR e i r L) 1
e dh.. i £ § mma )
= 2 - x
g st
\l— .
2 i ] =
i, R ! e
" ey s L
- i...\ \Z 2 w4z "} !
. ! 1
% a: Al g 1
T s - om0 1 e e e o i
P i i o i o e



BIKE PROJECTS

N
R
H H A

.
1 ATl A = ':
- 8
i Ter 1
e e p— !
Ocala @ :r e
i AU A2 :
L i F iy 1
i i - :
E " 1
& ~ o il A
v : . : ~ometeatd L3 ey
= ; wesman [T !
3 “) 1
- % )
- A =
s kT - 1z, =] = 1
z 7 : e Envaze o
A T % e =
ol 1% 1 \
i L 2 ] | _ 0y
s : HE S - i :
] it 2 - 2 -
oLt 5 : o
= o 3 - E o 1
! 2 A}
: : Y
5 H o b o
& ; \
H i s J ot .
L i ¥ i = . H
H i : = i i
3 % % i 1
fr 2 : AR g i ! H
£ e 5 e s e 1
l___..,,_’________. ¥ <] gl 2 3 s wemae :
H LT e X
i Py B i 2 -
1 w s H r e om st 1
' b . Frtend, £ 1
§ 2 smsaoun e smest 1 = O 1
: i g i
. P o !
| 1 et R Y 1
. 1 «, % I
: 3 % % 1
1 & f
H T
! P oum 1
H Ca-as2/w 07 e 1
4 = b 1
b . i
; i < i
L“w wnwvm'% G ¥ T STE ] ,“‘ '
P A T . i e i
im0 i 2 oy i 1
% : He
s 3 X
' % - 1
ey i i
= '
'
'
stwwr ax !
'
" '
e e s m e m e e ———————————— : H
e et I R e s

= e ————




INITIAL PRIORITIZATION FACTORS

User Comfort
* High Stress (Level of Traffic Stress 3 or
4)
Safety
* On or Cross High Injury Network
Local Priority
* On the List of Priority Projects
Accessibility
* Top 30th Percentile Population Density
* Accessibility (High number of
destinations (top 30th percentile) within

| mile & Average accessibility score
under 25%)

Projects get | point if the
criterion is met

Projects are categorized into 3
Tiers based on the total points
The purpose of the scoring is to
provide more information for the
prioritization discussion. It is not
intended to be used as the final
ranking criteria



NEXT STEPS

* Advance Tier | projects into TIP & local programs
* Pursue state/federal/local/private funding

* Integrate ATP into roadway projects

* Continue stakeholder & public engagement

* Monitor & update regularly



RESOURCES

* Community and Economic Benefits
* Active Transportation Strategies



COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC BENEFITS

. ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION:
Building a Stronger, Healthier Marion County

Economic, Health, and Safety Impacts

ECONOMIC BENEFITS .

STATE PARKS & TRAILS IMPACT TRAILS BOOST HOME VALUE
Rainbow Springs State Park, Silver : +4-T% near trails

Springs State Park
. a S e O n O C a ata The Cross Florida Greenway gener-
9 atec! $531M In statewide economic EQUESTRIAN ECONOMY

Impact and supported 7,400 jobs $43B annually,
in 2024 28,500 jobs,

statewide/national research e

14M visltors LOCAL BUSINESSES
$1.057B in spending 24 bikeftrail shops

e Summarizes benefits of active s axrenus etven CETE T
transportation in:

HEALTH BENEFITS

* Economic vitality i G) e

* Health
* Safety

SAFETY BENEFITS

SAFER WALKING

Sidewalks:
up to 89% pedestrian
crash reduction

High-visibility crosswalks:

40% pedestrian crash reduction . increase driver yielding by 9

SAFER BIKING

Separated bike lanes reduce deaths by 44%
& serious injuries by 50%




ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIES

Shared Lane Marking

* Three Types of Treatments
* Bicycle
* Pedestrian
* Speed Management

* Summary table highlights:
* Cost
* Implementation timeline
* Applicable roadway

characteristics

Description

Shared lane markings indicate a shared space for
bicycles and vehicles, guiding bicyclists to use
the full lane and discouraging unsafe passing.

Bicycle Lane

i e

AR AT L

Bicyele lane in Ocala, FL

Description

Exclusive one-way space on the roadway
designated for bicyclists, traveling in the same
direction as traffic.

Typical Application
« Posted speed = 35 mph
« Residential or commercial local roads

Design Considerations
« Should be centered in the lane
» Best used where bike lanes are not
feasible and vehicles speeds are low

Resource
FDOT Design Man

Typical Application
« Design speeds £ 45 mph
(ideal £ 30 mph)
» Local roads and collectors with relatively
low traffic volumes and speeds

Design Considerations

¢ Include single white longitudinal
pavement marking and bicycle lane
symbol

« Option for green paint at conflict points
with vehicles

« Additional buffer and/or separation
desirable at speeds > 30 mph

Benefits
« Raises driver awareness of bicyclists
» Guides bicyclists to safe lane
positioning

Constraints
» Limited effectiveness on higher-
speed
(=45 mph) roads
» May feel uncomfortable for less
experienced riders

Benefits
» Provides predictable, dedicated
space for bicyclists
« Supports everyday bicycle travel in
residential and commercial areas

Constraints
» Less comfortable on higher-speed or
multilane roads
« No physical separation from traffic
encroachment

Resources

FDOT Design Manual (FDM] Section 223.2.1




FEEDBACK &
QUESTIONS




‘ ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION:
Building a Stronger, Healthier Marion County

Economic, Health, and Safety Impacts

1 ECONOMIC BENEFITS S

STATE PARKS & TRAILS IMPACT g TRAILS BOOST HOME VALUE

Rainbow Springs State Park, Silver +4-7% near trails
Springs State Park
The Cross Florida Greenway gener-

ated $531M in statewide economic EQUESTRIAN ECONOMY
impact and supported 7,400 jobs $4.3B annually, .
in 2024 28,500 jobs,

20% of county land
TOURISM IN MARION COUNTY

1.4M visitors LOCAL BUSINESSES
$1.057B in spending 24 bike/trail shops
$6.6M tax revenue between $87.3M in sales

April 2023 and March 2024 employ ~245 people

2 HEALTH BENEFITS

e HEALTHIER LIVES @ HEALTHCARE SAVIGNS

Walking & biking \e $1invested in trails = $3 in
reduce risk of early medical savings
death by 10-11%

ACTIVE COMMUTERS

h Walking & biking reduce risk
e of early death by 10-11%

3 SAFETY BENEFITS —

7 N
s AN
7/ N v
SAFER WALKING Ve =
Sidewalks: Street lighting : P 4
e Up to 89% pedestrian ‘ 42% pedestrian crash reduction \ , =~
crash reduction 40% pedestrian crash reduction < ) ¢

A High-visibility crosswalks: 0 RRFBs:
40% pedestrian crash reduction =ra~ increase driver yielding by 98%

SAFER BIKING
' Separated bike lanes reduce deaths by 44%
l & serious injuries by 50%




ACTIVE
TRANSPORTATION
PLAN

Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization

Draft-September 2025



Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO)
Governing Board Members

Commissioner Carl Zalak, Ill, Marion County District 4, Chair
Councilmember James Hilty, City of Ocala District 5, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Ire Bethea, Sr., City of Ocala District 2
Commissioner Kathy Bryant, Marion County District 2
Commissioner Craig Curry, Marion County District 1
Councilmember Kristen Dreyer, City of Ocala District 4
Commissioner Ray Dwyer, City of Belleview Seat 2
Vice-Mayor Tim Inskeep, City of Dunnellon Seat 3
Councilmember Barry Mansfield, City of Ocala District 1
Mayor Ben Marciano, City of Ocala
Commissioner Matt McClain, Marion County District 3
Commissioner Michelle Stone, Marion County District 5
John E. Tyler, P.E., FDOT District Five Secretary, Non-Voting

Ocalamariontpo.org
2710 East Silver Springs Boulevard,
Ocala, FL 34470
352-438-2630

The Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) is committed to ensuring that no person is excluded from the
transportation planning process and welcomes input from all interested parties, regardless of background, income level or cultural
identity. The TPO does not tolerate discrimination in any of its programs, services, activities or employment practices. Pursuant

to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990 (ADA), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 13898 (Environmental Justice) and 13166 (Limited English
Proficiency), and other federal and state authorities. The TPO will not exclude from participation in, deny the benefits of, or subject
to discrimination, anyone on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, income or family status. The
TPO welcomes and actively seeks input from the public, to help guide decisions and establish a vision that encompasses all area

communities and ensure that no one person(s) or sesgment(s) of the population bears a disproportionate share of adverse impacts.
Persons wishing to express their may do so by contacting the TPO.



http://Ocalamariontpo.org

Acknowledgements

The development of the Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO)
Active Transportation Plan would not have been possible without the collaboration and
assistance by many partners and stakeholders, including the following groups:

Citizens of Marion County

Participation at community workshops and public open house, and feedback through the
public survey and online comment map.

Active Transportation Plan Stakeholder Committee
Review, recommendations and guidance on ensuring the plan is aligned with local goals
and community-wide needs.

TPO Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
Review and feedback on the plan development process, including priority projects.

Prepared by:

KITTELSON
& ASSOCIATES
400 North Tampa Street,

Suite 1360
Tampa, FL 33602




Table of Contents

INErOUCTION. . e 7

Vision, Goals, and Objectives ... .. ... 9

Public and Partner Engagement. . ... 12
EXisting CoNditioNs. . ... 14
Bicycle and Pedestrian Level of Traffic Stress Analysis...................... 31
Bicycle and Pedestrian Accessibility Analysis.......... ... ... ... ........ 36
Needs ASSESSMENT . . ..ot 45
Proposed ImprovemeNnts. .. ... o 47
Project Prioritization ... ... 52
Conclusion and NeXt STEPS. . . ..ottt e e ol

List of Tables

Table 1. Goals, Objectives and Performmance Measures ...................... 10
Table 2. ATP Roadway Network . ... .. e 16
Table 3. Posted Speed Limit Distribution ........... ... ... . ... 16
Table 4. Number of Lanes Distribution ......... . ... .. . i 18
Table 5. Top 19 Bus Stop Ridership. ... e 19
Table 6. Five-Year Pedestrian and Bicycle Fatalities and Serious Injuries. .. .27
Table 7. Accessibility Scoring Categories ............. .. 38
Table 8. Accessibility of Key Destinations by Facility Types.................. 39
Table 9. Proposed Trail Projects. . ... e 53
Table 10. Proposed Bike Projects . ... 54

Table 11. Proposed Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Projects. ..................... 55



List of Figures

Figure 1. Population Density ... e 15

Figure 2. ATP Roadway Network. ... ... e 17

Figure 3. Transit Stops and Ridership in Marion County..................... 20
Figure 4. Existing and Committed Sidewalks .............................. 23
Figure 5. Existing and Committed Bicycle Lanes ........................... 24
Figure 6. Existing and Committed Trails.......... ... ... ... .. ... . . ... 25
Figure 7. Fatal and Serious Injury Pedestrian Crashes ...................... 28
Figure 8. Fatal and Serious Injury Bicycle Crashes .......................... 29
Figure 9. Pedestrian LTS Definition ....... ... ... . .. 31

Figure 10. Bicyclist LTS Definition. . ... i 32
Figure T1. Pedestrian LTS, ... .. e e e e e 33
Figure 12. Bicycle LTS ... e e e e 34
Figure 13. Pedestrian Low-Stress Roadway BufferArea ..................... 37
Figure 14. Pedestrian All-Roadway BufferArea ............ ... ... ........ 37
Figure 15. Pedestrian Buffer Areas Overlayed .......... ... ... ... ... ......... 37
Figure 16. Job Accessibility via Biking. ........... .. 40
Figure 17. Population Accessibility via Biking ............. ... ... ... ... ...... 4]

Figure 18. Job Accessibility via Walking........... ... . ... . . . 42
Figure 19. Population Accessibility via Walking ............ ... ... ......... 43
Figure 20. Proposed Trail Projects . ... 48
Figure 21. Proposed Bike Projects ............ i VAS)
Figure 22. Proposed Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Projects. ................... 50

List of Appendices

Appendix A: Economic and Community Benefits
Appendix B: Partner and Community Engagement
Appendix C: Existing Conditions

Appendix D: Key Destination Locations

Appendix E: Marion Oaks Trail Plan

Appendix F: Active Transportation Strategies
Appendix G: Funding Sources



.I Introduction




Introduction

The Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) developed an Active Transportation Plan (ATP) to guide investments
in walking, biking, and other nonmotorized modes throughout Marion County. While the plan primarily emphasizes improvements
for people walking and bicycling, it also recognizes the county’s unique equestrian heritage and the role of horses as part of the
local transportation and recreation system. By expanding safe and connected networks, the ATP seeks to improve mobility options
for residents, enhance access to key destinations, and support the County’s broader goals for safety, health, and economic vitality.

The ATP provides a framework for identifying and prioritizing conducted to identify gaps on the roadway network
nonmotorized improvements. The plan was developed and areas with higher needs of active transportation
concurrently with the Navigating the Future 2050 Long Range facilities. This report also highlights the economic and
Transportation Plan (LRTP) to ensure consistency across project community benefits of walking and biking facilities.
lists and investment strategies.

The ATP presents proposed sidewalks, shared use paths,

This report outlines the development of the ATP, beginning trails, and bicycle facilities, along with a prioritization
with the guiding vision, goals, and objectives, followed process that organizes projects into implementation

by an assessment of existing conditions, including tiers. The report also highlights strategies for enhancing
countywide demographics, existing and planned the safety, comfort, and connectivity of the active
facilities, safety, and land use. Analyses of pedestrian and transportation network and concludes with a review of
bicycle Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) and accessibility were available funding sources to support implementation.

What is Active Transportation?

[ ) [ J o [ J (]
Active Transportation is human-powered mobility, such walking, cycling, using ? = g
wheelchairs and other types of non-motorized devices. Active transportation pud o i @ b ‘
. [ 3

supports more transportation options, economic opportunity, and a healthy lifestyle.

Active transportation provides numerous benefits for communities, residents, and visitors while also supporting economic
vitality. Marion County is especially known for its extensive trail system, equestrian activities, and tourism. Appendix A provides a
comprehensive summary of the economic, health, and safety impacts of nonmotorized transportation, including walking, biking,
equestrian riding, and transit. The findings are based on a combination of local data as well as statewide and national research.



Vision, Goals, and
Objectives

~
N



Vision, Goals, and
Objectives

Vision, goals, and objectives establish the foundation for the ATP by defining what success looks like and how progress will

be measured. These guiding elements ensure that the plan not only reflects community priorities but also aligns with the
broader transportation and land use goals. By articulating a clear vision supported by measurable goals and objectives, this
section provides a framework that connects the data and analysis presented in the Section 4: Existing Conditions, informs the
prioritization of projects, and supports the implementation strategies outlined later in the plan.

. . To support the vision, the ATP has three main goals:
Vision

Marion County will
have a safe, accessible,
and well-connected

Improve safety for all active transportation users

= =
active transportation ‘g’-fé\. Create a well-connected and accessible active
network, which 0\.>\./ transportation network

contributes to a high
quality of life and
economic opportunity
for people of all ages

and abilities. Performance measures and objectives are listed for each goal in
Table 1.

recognition as the Horse Capital of the World

\ ' , Protect and enhance quality of life, economy, and

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 9



Table 1. Goals, Objectives and Performmance Measures

10

L

Improve safety for all
active transportation
users

p

Create a well-connected
and accessible active
transportation network

3

Protect and enhance
quality of life, economy,
and recognition as the
Horse Capital of the
World

Objectives

- Develop and implement safe crossings in high-

active transportation locations.

- Implement lighting improvements, including
areas with pedestrian/bicyclist fatal and serious
injury crashes, dark areas, and locations on the
Commitment to Zero High Injury Network (HIN).
- Make improvements to better support

vulnerable users (elderly, disabled, children).

- Educate the public on bicycle and pedestrian

safety.

- Ensure accessibility improvements in projects

(ADA compliance, user-specific needs).

- Reduce Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) on high-

stress facilities.

- Complete identified gaps in the network.
- Connect more destinations to the active

transportation network.

- Implement more trail connections (including

equestrian riders).

- Create uniform wayfinding (signage, maps,

kiosks).

- Improve connectivity and access to public

transit, including major stops/stations.

- Inform and educate the public about active

transportation facilities, including equestrian
trails.

- Improve amenities for all users along trails

(restrooms, shelters, parking).

- Identify opportunities for public/private

partnerships to support projects, events, and
activities.

- Educate the public on economic, recreational,

and health benefits of active transportation.

Performance Measures

- Number of fatalities and serious injuries

involving pedestrians and bicyclists.

- Number of safety improvement projects

completed.

- Number of safety workshops and meetings

held throughout the county.

- Number of accessibility features (curb

ramps, tactile warning panels, etc.) added to
the network.

- LTS changes on high-stress facilities.

- Number of gaps completed in the network.
- Number of new destinations/connections

added.

- Mileage and number of sidewalks, bike

lanes, and trails added.

- Number of wayfinding signs installed.
- Number of new/improved transit

connections.

- Number of new amenities funded and

completed (e.g., water stations, shelters,
restrooms).

- Number of parking spaces or facilities

added.

- Number of events/activities related to trails

and equestrian users.

- Publications, maps, and apps developed and

shared with the public.



Public and Partner
Engagement

~
N



Public and Partner
Engagement

The development of the Active Transportation Plan involved the engagement of citizens, partner agencies, and community
stakeholders. This process included the formation of an Active Transportation Plan Stakeholder Committee. This working
group was comprised of federal, state, and local government staff and leadership, along with schools, tourism, and economic
development. Stakeholders from the cycling and horse farm community also participated in the process. Additionally, project
updates and information were shared throughout the plan development process with the TPO Board, Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) and Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC).

Citizens were engaged during plan development at two community workshops and one public open house. Two pop-up public
events were also held at the Zone Fitness Center locations in Ocala. An online survey and comment map were also created to
help reach a wider audience across Marion County, and enable residents the opportunity to provide input without attending
in-person workshops. The online survey focused on gaining insights into citizen’s opinions on preferences for cycling, walking

and equestrian improvements, spending habits and impacts on quality of life. The survey was open from September 18, 2024 to
February 25, 2025. An online comment map was also made available for the public to identify specific locations in Marion County
where improvements or needs should be addressed. A summary of the engagement activities and survey responses are provided
in Appendix B.

L Ocala/Marion County is blessed with amazing people and a

high quality of life. The development of our bicycle, pedestrian
and trail facilities will contribute to a vibrant, healthy and
accessible community.

The TPO's Active Transportation Plan provides a framework

for completing new and existing facilities. The Plan also
highlights the importance of active transportation to the local
economy, and our social and physical wellbeing. | endorse the
Active Transportation Plan as a catalyst to building a more
connected multimodal network in Marion County. 'T)

— Mayor Ben Marciano, City of Ocala

12



4 Existing Conditions




Existing
Conditions

This section provides a summary of the existing conditions analysis, including demographics, existing and planned facilities and. A

detailed existing conditions analysis can be found in Appendix C.

4.1 County Overview

The TPO planning area covers all of Marion County, including
the Cities of Belleview, Dunnellon, and Ocala. Marion County
is the 5th largest county in Florida. There are over 2,000 acres
of parks and more than 40 natural springs. Marion County

is also home to the Ocala National Forest and has part of
the Cross Florida Greenway. These natural and recreational
assets highlight both the demand and opportunity for a safe
and well-connected active transportation system. By linking
neighborhoods, parks, and regional destinations, the ATP
supports the County's goals of improving safety, expanding
access, and enhancing quality of life. Investments in trails,
sidewalks, and bicycle facilities not only provide connections
to these community resources but also align with the ATP’s
broader vision of creating a healthier, more connected, and
economically vibrant county.

The 2024 county population of 419,510 is projected to reach
526,500 by 2050'. Using data from the US Census Bureau's
American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate Data for 2023,
population density across Marion County was calculated to
highlight concentrations of residents and provide insight into
where active transportation investments may have the greatest
impact. Figure 1shows the population density by census tracts
in Marion County. The highest density areas are shown in the
darker red colors, with the lowest density areas shown in the
lighter tan colors.

1 BEBR medium forecast

14

The highest concentrations of population are found in and
around the City of Ocala, particularly near the downtown
district. Other notable high-density corridors include the SR

464 corridor southeast of Ocala, the SR 27 corridor northeast of
Ocala, and the SR 200 corridor southwest of the city. These areas
reflect the urban and suburban growth centers, where demand
for walking, biking, and transit connections is greatest.

In contrast, the lower-density areas form a horseshoe around
Ocala, encompassing large portions of rural Marion County.
These include areas in eastern Marion County bordering

the Ocala National Forest, the US 27 corridor northwest

toward Williston, and the lands northeast of Ocala near the
Silver Springs Forest Conservation Area. Much of this area is
characterized by agricultural land, equestrian properties, and
preserved green space, with population densities of fewer than
130 people per square mile.

00000

The county's population is projected
to grow over 100K by 2050.

Marion County Population

2024: 419,510 — 2050: 526,500




Figure 1. Population Density

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 15



This distribution highlights the diverse contexts across

Marion County. Urban neighborhoods benefit from enhanced
pedestrian and bicycle facilities to support short trips and transit
access, while suburban and rural communities benefit from trail
systems, equestrian facilities, and safe connections to schools,
parks, and regional activity center.

4.2 Existing and Planned Facilities
4.2.1 Roadway Characteristics

The roadway network selected for the ATP is based on the
Congestion Management Plan (CMP) Roadway Network.

The CMP is a federally required, data-driven process in

large metro areas that evaluates and guides strategies to
mManage transportation congestion. The network consists of

all existing functionally classified major roadways and roads
with construction funded through 2028. This is known as an
existing-plus-committed network. Table 2 and Figure 2 display
the distribution of roadway types on the CMP network in Marion
County.

Additional roadway data such as posted speed, number of lanes,
and annual average daily traffic (AADT) were obtained from

the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Roadway
Characteristic Inventory (RCI).

Table 2. ATP Roadway Network

Roadway Type Miles of Roadway

NHS - Interstate 38.2 miles

NHS — Non-Interstate 175.8 miles
Other CMP Network Roadways 724.6 miles
Total 938.6 miles

16

4.2.1.1 Speed Limits

The ATP roadway network (existing and committed major road
network) is characterized by relatively high travel speeds, which
can have important implications for the safety and comfort of
people walking, biking, or using other active modes. As shown
in Table 3, more than half of the study roadway network consists
of roadways with posted speed limits of 50 mph or greater,
representing approximately 54% of the total system. A map of
the speed limits on the ATP roadway network can be found in
Appendix C.

These higher-speed roadways are generally found along major
arterials and state roads that serve regional travel demands
and connect Marion County to surrounding jurisdictions. While
these corridors are essential for moving vehicles efficiently, they
can present significant barriers for pedestrians and bicyclists
due to limited crossing opportunities, wider travel lanes, and
increased crash severity at higher speeds.

Understanding the distribution of posted speed limits

across the ATP network is a key step in prioritizing active
transportation projects. Areas with higher speeds may require
additional investments, such as multiuse trails, buffered bike
lanes, pedestrian crossings, or traffic calming measures to
support safe and convenient mobility options for all users.

Table 3. Posted Speed Limit Distribution

Posted Speed Limit Miles of Roadway

Under 35 mph 1.2 miles
40-45 mph 318.7 miles
50-55 mph 4521 miles

Above 60 mph 56.6 miles

Total 938.6 miles




Figure 2. ATP Roadway Network

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 17



4.2.1.2 AADT & Number of Lanes

2023 traffic volumes were collected from 360 traffic count
locations across Marion County, providing a comprehensive

picture of roadway use and demand. The highest AADT volumes

are observed along the county’s major corridors, including

[-75, SR 200, and US Highway 441. These corridors serve as
critical north-south and east-west connections, carrying both
local and regional travel demands. Traffic volumes on I-75, for
example, reflect its role as a vital freight and passenger corridor
in Florida's interstate system, while SR 200 and US 441 serve

as primary commercial and commuter routes for the Ocala
urbanized area.

As shown in Table 4, the physical design of the roadway system
is dominated by two-lane roadways, which make up 72% of
the total network. These facilities are coommon in rural and
suburban areas, where development is more dispersed and
traffic volumes are lower. Approximately 21% of the roadway
mileage consists of four-lane facilities, many of which are key
arterial routes through and around Ocala that accommodate
higher volumes of regional and commuter traffic.

A smaller but significant portion of the network (52 miles) is six
lanes wide, consisting primarily of I-75 and a portion of SR 200.

Maps of AADT and number of lanes on the ATP roadway
network can be found in Appendix C.

Table 4. Number of Lanes Distribution

Number of Lanes Miles of Roadway

Unknown 9.4 miles
2 lanes 679.5 miles
4 lanes 197.7 miles
6 lanes 52.0 miles

Total 938.6 miles

18

4.2.1.3 Existing Transit System & Transit Ridership

Marion County is served by SunTran, the fixed-route public
transportation system operating in the City of Ocala and
unincorporated Marion County. SunTran operates seven routes
and maintains 360 bus stops, providing mobility options for
residents, workers, and visitors. Between October 2023 and
September 2024, SunTran recorded a total of 238,664 passenger
trips, reflecting its importance as a transportation resource for
the community.

As shown in Figure 3, ridership levels vary across the system,
with higher concentrations of use along central corridors and
within the downtown core. The Downtown Ocala Transfer
Station serves as the system’s most active hub, facilitating
connections between routes and attracting the highest
ridership. Other high-demand stops include Walmart Silver
Springs and the Florida Department of Health, which together
demonstrate how major employers, health services, and retail
destinations shape transit travel patterns.

Table 5 provides data for the top 19 bus stops, where ridership
ranges from over 6,500 boardings at the busiest locations

to fewer than 1,000 at lower-volume stops. This distribution
indicates that while transit service is geographically dispersed,
demand is strongly clustered around key employment centers,
shopping destinations, and civic services.



Table 5. Top 19 Bus Stop Ridership

Stop Name Total Ridership

Downtown Transfer Station
Wal-Mart Silver Springs
Florida Department of Health
SW 27th Ave & SW 19th Ave Rd N
Paddock Mall
NE 14th St & NE 28th Ave W
NW 2nd St & Interfaith East
W Silver Springs Blvd & SW 33rd Ave
Marion County Public Library
NE 36th Ave & NE 35th St W
NE 55th Ave & NE 30th St
SW 27th Ave & Zaxbys S
SW 27th Ave & SW 20th St N
NE 2nd St & NE 11th Ave W
SW 15th PI & SW 1st Ave
NE 3rd St & NE 25th Ave W
SR 40 & NE 52nd Ct E
NE 3rd St & NE 22nd Ave W
SW l6th St & S Pine Ave W

39,982
6,501
6,271
2,898
1,846
1,302
1,257
1143

1133
1,073
1,070
1,002
959
948
945
94]
933
921
914

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan

19



Figure 3. Transit Stops and Ridership in Marion County

20



4.2.2 Existing and Committed Walk and Bicycle Networks

An analysis of the existing plus committed (programmed
projects) sidewalk, bicycle and trail facilities was conducted
for the development of the Active Transportation Plan.
Existing facilities, as reflected in the following maps, provide
an understanding of the coverage and types of active
transportation in Marion County.

4.2.2.1 Pedestrian Facilities

As shown in Figure 4, Marion County's existing sidewalk
network is concentrated within its urban centers, with the
most consistent and connected facilities located in the City of
Ocala. Within Ocala's downtown and adjacent neighborhoods,
sidewalks are generally well-connected and often present on
both sides of major corridors. These areas form the county’s
most walkable environment, supporting both residential
neighborhoods and commercial districts.

Outside of the City of Ocala, sidewalks are distributed more
sporadically but remain notable in several communities. Marion
Oaks and the City of Dunnellon have relatively well-connected
sidewalk systems compared to surrounding areas. Sidewalk
coverage in Dunnellon extends along primary streets near the
downtown area, while in Marion Oaks, sidewalks are integrated
within residential subdivisions, enhancing local connectivity.

In the City of Belleview, sidewalks are primarily concentrated
along main thoroughfares near the center of the community.
Facilities are present along US 301/441 (SE Abshier Boulevard),
CR 25 (SE Hames Road), SE Robinson Road, and SE 92nd Loop,
providing important connections to civic and commercial
destinations. However, coverage quickly drops off beyond these
core streets.

Elsewhere in the county, sidewalks appear intermittently
along major corridors and near newer subdivisions, particularly

in areas southeast of Ocala near SR/CR 464. While some
neighborhoods include sidewalk segments, these facilities are
not continuous along the highway itself. Rural areas across
Marion County generally lack sidewalk coverage, which limits
safe pedestrian mobility outside of urbanized or suburbanized
zones.

In addition to the existing sidewalks and shared use path,
construction of new sidewalks and shared use paths are
committed on SR 25/500/US 441 from SE 102nd Place to SR
200/SW 10th Street, Marion Oaks Manor, SW 9th Avenue, SW
38th Street, Belleview to Greenway Trail and SW 49th Street.
Section 4.2.4 Planned Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements
provides more information on the committed segments that
are included in the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).

21



22

4.2.2.2 Bicycle Facilities

As shown in Figure 5, on-street bicycle facilities in Marion County are relatively sparse
compared to the sidewalk network. The strongest presence of existing facilities is concentrated
within and around the Ocala downtown area, where marked lanes and designated routes
provide some degree of connectivity. Notable corridors include CR 255A (SW 60th Avenue),

CR 475C, SE 58th Avenue, and SR 27 (SE 10th Street). However, bicycle facilities remain limited
outside of Ocala, with most communities across the county lacking designated facilities. This
patchwork underscores the need for a more cohesive bicycle network to support safe and
continuous travel for bicyclists throughout Marion County.

In addition to the existing bike lanes, construction of new bike lanes is committed on SR
25/500/U.S. 441 from SE 102nd Place to SR 200/SW 10th Street, NE 35th Street and SW 49th
Avenue. More details on the committed segments can be found in Section 4.2.4 Planned
Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements.

4.2.2.3 Trails

Figure 6 shows the existing trails in Marion County. Within the City of Ocala, existing shared use
paths are found along NW MLK Jr. Avenue north of US 27, NE 14th Street in the North Magnolia
area, E Fort King Street, and N Magnolia Avenue, as well as CR 464A between SE 3lst Street
and SE 17th Street. These segments offer localized connectivity but remain relatively short and
discontinuous.

At the regional scale, Marion County benefits from the SUNTrail network, which is a key
statewide initiative to expand Florida's interconnected trail system. Within the county, the
SUNTrail corridor enters from the west near Dunnellon, travels south of Ocala, and extends
eastward along SR 40 toward the county boundary before turning north along Hog Valley
Road. Portions of this network are already in place, while others remain in the planning or
funding stages. The most notable completed segment is the Cross Florida Greenway Paved
Trail, extending between SR 200 and east of CR 484, which offers a high-quality facility for both
recreational users and honmotorized commuters.

New trails were committed to be constructed on The Cross Florida Greenway. More details
on the committed segments can be found in Section 4.2.4 Planned Bicycle and Pedestrian
Improvements.



Figure 4. Existing and Committed Sidewalks

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 23



Figure 5. Existing and Committed Bicycle Lanes

24



Figure 6. Existing and Committed Trails

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 25



4.2.4 Planned Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements

The Ocala Marion TPO's FY 2025-FY 2029 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) includes three major bicycle and pedestrian
projects, each intended to strengthen the county's nonmotorized transportation network and improve regional connectivity.
These projects are strategically located to connect residential neighborhoods, commercial corridors, and regional trail systems.

1 Cross Florida Greenway (Baseline Road to Santos Paved Trail):

Funded for construction in FY 2026, this project will close a key gap in the regional trail network by
connecting residential areas to the Santos Trailhead, one of the state's premier off-road biking destinations.

2  Pruitt Trail (SR 200 to Pruitt Trailhead Multi-Use Trail):

Also funded for FY 2026, this project will create a paved trail from Pruitt Trailhead across SR 200, serving
both recreational users and commuters in a high-growth area of southwest Marion County.

3 SR 25/500/US 441 (SE 102nd Place to SR 200/SW 10th Street):

Scheduled for construction in FY 2027, this project will add a trail and sidewalk, improving multimodal access
and safety on one of the county’s most heavily traveled corridors.

Additional Planned Improvements

In addition to the TIP-funded projects, Marion County and its municipalities have identified several locally
planned bicycle and pedestrian improvements that complement the regional system:

- NW/SW 44th Avenue - Install bicycle lanes to improve north-south connectivity west of Ocala.

- Emerald Road Extension — Add new sidewalks and bicycle lanes serving neighborhoods east of
Ocala.

- Belleview to Greenway Trail — Construct a shared use path linking the City of Belleview with the
Cross Florida Greenway, providing a regional recreation and commuting option.

- SW 49th Street — Construct sidewalks and a shared use path to serve residential areas and enhance
east-west connectivity.

- CR 484/Pennsylvania Avenue - Construction of two new crosswalks, bridge pedestrian barriers on
the Rainbow River bridge and shared use path connection to Blue Run Park in Dunnellon

26



4.3 Safety

Safety is a high priority in Marion County due to the significant number of crashes occurring on its roadway network. Between
2019 and 2023, there were 44,938 reported crashes in the county. These crashes resulted in 491 fatalities, of which 18% involved
pedestrians and 3% involved bicyclists. Additionally, there were 1,857 serious injuries during this period, with pedestrians
accounting for 5% and bicyclists for 2.7% of those injuries. These statistics highlight the vulnerability of nonmotorized travelers
and underscore the importance of improving walking and bicycling facilities. Table 6 shows the five-year statistics of fatal and
serious injury crashes in Marion County.

Table 6. Five-Year Pedestrian and Bicycle Fatalities and Serious Injuries

2019-2023 2019 pLloyle] ploya ployi ployii
# of Pedestrian Fatalities 90 20 22 18 17 13
# of Pedestrian Serious Injuries 100 24 16 16 16 28
# of Bicycle Fatalities 15 1 2 3 5 4
# of Bicycle Serious Injuries 51 8 12 14 9

As shown in Figure 7 and Figure 8, fatal and serious injury
bicycle crashes are heavily concentrated in and around the
City of Ocala, particularly along major roadways such as SR
200, SR 40, and US 301. A smaller cluster is also visible near
Summerfield along US 27, where higher traffic volumes

and limited bicycle facilities create conflict points. Fatal
pedestrian crashes, on the other hand, are more widespread
across the county compared to bicycle crashes. In addition
to the overlap along Ocala’s core corridors and highways,
higher concentrations of pedestrian crashes are observed in
the City of Belleview and Summerfield, particularly along US
27. Other critical hotspots include SR 464 near Silver Springs
Shores, US 41 north of Dunnellon, and Highway 318 west of
Irvine.

¢ From 2019 to 2023, there were a total of

4,

involving bicyclists and pedestrians. 99

105 fatalities

&
151 serious

injuries

O
[l

These crash patterns reveal the need for targeted safety
interventions in both urbanized areas with higher activity
and rural corridors where roadway speeds are greater and
facilities for vulnerable users are limited.

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan

27



Figure 7. Fatal and Serious Injury Pedestrian Crashes

28



Figure 8. Fatal and Serious Injury Bicycle Crashes

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 29



Bicycle and Pedestrian
Level of Traffic Stress
Analysis




Bicycle and Pedestrian Level
of Traffic Stress Analysis

For the ATP, Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) was used in the assessment of bicycle and pedestrian facilities in Marion County. The LTS
methodology is based on Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT)'s 2023 Multimodal Quality/Level of Stress Handbook.
There are four LTS levels that range from LTS 1(the most comfortable) to LTS 4 (the least comfortable). How each of these levels are
determined differs slightly between walking and biking.

5.1 Methodology

Pedestrian LTS evaluates the quality of travel and level of comfort for people walking. This metric is determined by the presence
of a sidewalk, its width and continuity, whether it is separated from the roadway, and the speed limit of the roadway. For example,
a roadway with a higher speed limit (30 mph or more) requires more separation between the sidewalk and cars to be considered
comfortable for pedestrians compared to a roadway with a lower speed limit (25 mph or less). This separation could be anything
from a strip of grass between the sidewalk and the roadway to concrete dividers that create a vertical buffer between cars and
pedestrians. Figure 9 shows what type of users would be comfortable on each LTS.

Figure 9. Pedestrian LTS Definition

Low Stress High Stress :
Tolerance — Tolerance 66 Level of Traffic
Stress (LTS)

> 2 LTS 3 LTS 4 evaluates the

quality of travel
and level of comfort
for people walking

and biking. 00
This level suitable for all users The level where The level where most The facility is difficult or
including teenagers traveling alone, all users are able users are willing to use impossible by a wheeled
the elderly, and people using to use the facility the facility, but others mobility device or users with
wheeled mobility devices. People and most users may only use the facility other limitations in their
feel safe and comfortable on the are willing to use when there are limited movement and most likely
Pedestrian facility and all users are the facility. route and mode used by users with limited
willing to use the pedestrian facility. choices available. route and mode choice.

31



Bicycle LTS evaluates the quality of travel and level of comfort
for people biking. This metric is similar to that used for walking
in how it is determined, based on the presence of a bicycle
facility, its width and continuity, whether it is separated from
the roadway, and the speed limit of the roadway. Bicycle

LTS, however, also considers the traffic volume along a
roadway. A high-traffic roadway requires more separation to
be comfortable for biking compared to a roadway with low
vehicle activity. Generally, the higher the speed limit and traffic
volumes on a roadway, the greater the need for more separation
between bicyclists and cars. Trails and shared use paths, fully
separated from the roadway, are recommended for the busiest
roadways to achieve a bicycle LTS of 1 or 2. The types of cyclists
that would be comfortable in each level of bicycle LTS are
included below in Figure 10.

An objective of the ATP is to develop a low-stress network
throughout Marion County to serve pedestrians and bicyclists of
all skill and confidence levels.

Using the methodology described above, this includes
roadways with the following characteristics:

- Local roadways with posted speed < 30 mph
- Collectors or arterials with posted speed < 25 mph

- Collectors or arterials with posted speed < 30 mph with an
on-street bike lane

- Separated sidewalk, bicycle facilities, and trails

This analysis evaluated the pedestrian and bicycle LTS of the
study network (the major road network) using the methodology
described in the 2023 FDOT Multimodal Quality/Level of Service
Handbook. Roadway characteristic data from FDOT Roadway
Characteristic Inventory (RCl), along with data on existing and
planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities received from the

local governments in the TPO area, were used as inputs (see
Section 3: Existing Conditions).

5.2 Results

The results are shown in Figure 11 and Figure 12. Most of the
roadways in the study network are categorized as LTS 3 and

LTS 4. For pedestrian LTS, lower-stress roadways (LTS 1and LTS 2)
are mostly located in the City of Ocala, part of US 301 in the City
of Belleview, and W Pennsylvania Ave in the City of Dunnellon.
Most of the roadways in the rural areas are categorized as LTS 4.

For bicycle LTS, there are more low-stress roadways (LTS 2) in the
rural areas where vehicle AADT is lower, such as the roadways in
the northern area of the county.

Figure 10. Bicyclist LTS Definition

Low Stress
Tolerance

High Stress

— Tolerance

IS 2

LTS3 LTS 4

Interested but concerned

Non-Bicycle

32

Somewhat Confident Highly Confident



Figure 11. Pedestrian LTS

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 33



Figure 12. Bicycle LTS

34



Bicycle and Pedestrian
Accessibility Analysis




Bicycle and Pedestrian
Accessibility Analysis

66 Accessibility" refers to how easily a destination

can be reached on the roadway network. 99

The quality of the pedestrian and bicycle network was evaluated around key destinations to determine how easy or difficult a
destination is to access. Destinations included schools, hospitals, parks, government buildings, SNAP retailers?, shopping centers,
transit stops, and community centers. The purpose of this analysis is to identify areas that could benefit from more low-stress
walking and biking routes to connect people to key destinations.

6.1 Network Accessibility Methodology

Pedestrian accessibility was evaluated within a half mile of destinations, and bicycle accessibility was evaluated within one mile
of destinations. These thresholds represent an approximately 10 minute walk or bike trip. Using the LTS analysis described in
Section 5, the population and jobs accessible within these buffers areas using only low-stress facilities (LTS 1-2) was compared to
the population and jobs accessible using the full roadway network?.

Figure 13 to Figure 15 illustrate how buffer areas differ between low-stress and all-roadway networks, with high-stress roadways
(LTS 3-4) acting as barriers. Accessibility scores were calculated as the ratio of population and jobs within the low-stress buffer to
those within the all-roadway buffer. Higher scores indicate destinations well connected to low-stress routes, while lower scores,
such as the example in Figure 15, reflect destinations surrounded by high-stress roadways with limited low-stress access.

2 SNAP retailers are businesses or stores that are authorized by the US Department of Agriculture (USDA) to accept SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) benefits
as payment for eligible food items. These retailers must apply and be approved by the USDA's Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) to participate in the program.
3 Population data is from the US Census and job data is from the Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (LEHD) data.

36



Figure 13. Pedestrian Low-Stress Roadway Buffer Area

The pedestrian
buffer area
(represented in
blue) created from
a single destination
(represented by
the dot) along the
low-stress roadways
(represented in
dark green). The
dark red areas,
representing the
LTS 3 or 4 roadways,
act as a barrier.

Figure 14. Pedestrian All-Roadway Buffer Area

The pedestrian buffer area (represented in light pink)
created from a single destination (represented by the
dot) along all the surrounding roadways (represented
in dark green).

Figure 15. Pedestrian Buffer Areas Overlayed

Overlays of the two buffer areas described
above. The accessibility score for the destination
is the ratio of population and jobs covered by the
low-stress roadway buffer to the population/jobs
covered by the all-roadway buffer.

37



6.2 Bicycle and Pedestrian Accessibility Results

This section summarizes the results of the accessibility analysis.
Figure 16 and Figure 17 map the bicycle accessibility scores,
while Figure 18 and Figure 19 map pedestrian accessibility
scores. The color code and categorization of the scores are
explained in Table 7.

As shown in Figure 16 to Figure 19 most of the destinations

in Marion County have lower accessibility (0-25%) via existing
low stress walking and biking facilities from population and
jobs. Destinations on major roadways have lower accessibility
percentages, primarily because these roadways have higher
speed (35+ mph), and therefore, higher stress for walking and
biking.

The concentration of the destinations with higher accessibility
scores (greater than 50%) is within the downtown Ocala area,
City of Belleview, and downtown Dunnellon. Many destinations

Table 7. Accessibility Scoring Categories

50% or more of the
population/jobs within
a mile can access the
destination via a low-
stress bicycle facility

Travel Mode

Bicycle
Accessibility

50% or more of the
population/jobs within
a 2 mile can access the
destination via a low-
stress pedestrian facility

Pedestrian
Accessibility

38

Yellow

20% to 50% of the
population/jobs within
a mile can access the
destination via a low-
stress bicycle facility

20% to 50% of the
population/jobs within
a ¥2 mile can access the
destination via a low-
stress pedestrian facility

in rural areas have higher accessibility scores for population,
despite the LTS analysis indicating higher-stress roadways in
these areas. This is due to the low overall roadway connectivity
in rural areas. These destinations are typically located within a
small concentration of local roadways (usually LTS 1 or 2) while
being farther from major roadways (usually LTS 3 or 4). Maps
showing the locations of each type of destination are included
in Appendix D.

This analysis also examined the average accessibility scores

of each type of destination. Table 8 lists the population and

job accessibility by walking and biking for the ten types of
destinations analyzed. In addition, the top 15 transit stops by
ridership category are listed to highlight the accessibility scores
of the stops that require greater focus due to higher usage.

Overall, ER, urgent care facilities, and shopping centers have the
lowest average accessibility scores, while parks have the highest
average accessibility score.

25% or less of the
population/jobs within
a mile can access the
destination via a low-
stress bicycle facility

No jobs within a mile can
access the destination via
a low-stress bicycle facility

25% or less of the
population/jobs within
a ¥2 mile can access the
destination via a low-
stress pedestrian facility

No jobs within ¥2 miles
can access the destination
via a low-stress pedestrian

facility




Table 8. Accessibility of Key Destinations by Facility Types

Destination Type Jol:):«;cl::ls ksii:;Iity Jobtf;/ c;?;isrzzi"ty Ac?:Zspsl: :;'I:ilt?ynby Ac?::s:i :;‘I:ilt?ynby Acﬁ\éig?gifi ty
Walking Biking
Community Centers 41% 31% 56% 40% 42%
ERs and Urgent Cares 41% 24% 39% 14% 30%
Government Offices 47% 24% 48% 24% 36%
Hospitals 71% 27% 50% 18% 41%
Libraries 42% 45% 53% 36% 44%
Parks 30% 30% 66% 58% 46%
Schools 36% 30% 56% 41% 41%
Shopping Center 31% 21% 44% 24% 30%
SNAP Retailers 35% 27% 43% 32% 34%
Transit Stops 42% 21% 45% 27% 34%
Top 15 Transit Stops 29% 17% 32% 15% 24%

Hospitals, ERs, and urgent care facilities have
higher accessibility to jobs than to population,
while parks, schools, and community centers have
higher accessibility to population than to jobs.

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 39



Figure 16. Job Accessibility via Biking

40



Figure 17. Population Accessibility via Biking

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 41



Figure 18. Job Accessibility via Walking

42



Figure 19. Population Accessibility via Walking

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 43



7 Needs Assessment

~
N



Needs Assessment

Sections 5 and 6 inform the pedestrian and bicycle needs across Marion County. These analyses supported the identification
of projects for future prioritization. This includes roadways that are high-stress for pedestrians and bicyclists and areas where
accessibility to destinations is low, indicating a need for more low-stress roadways.

As shown in the LTS analysis (Section 5. Bicycle and Pedestrian  The bicycle LTS analysis shows more low-stress biking roadways

Level of Traffic Stress Analysis), most roadways in the study in rural areas due to lower traffic volumes. However, building

network are LTS 3 or 4 for pedestrians and bicyclists, especially a lower-speed or more separated biking network in these

in rural areas. These higher-stress roadways coincide with areas could make the roadways safer and more comfortable

locations lacking a well-connected walking and biking facility for bicyclists. Additionally, areas near the low-stress bicycle

network (4.2.2 Existing Walk and Bicycle Networks), as most roadways could see increased accessibility to jobs with the

sidewalks and designated bike lanes are concentrated in City of  addition of low-stress roadways. Some of these areas include CR

Ocala, City of Belleview, and the City of Dunnellon. 329 near Sparr and the intersection of Hwy 316 and CR 25A near
Reddick.

Based on the accessibility scores of the key destinations

(Section 6 Bicycle and Pedestrian Accessibility Analysis), (Section 6: Bicycle and Pedestrian Accessibility Analysis).

many destinations in rural areas have low accessibility scores, Therefore, providing more low-stress walking and biking

particularly for job accessibility. However, since most of these facilities in these areas could enhance both community safety

low-accessibility destinations in rural areas are not surrounded and accessibility.

by a large number of jobs or population, low-accessibility

destinations within or near the urban areas, such as the City Additionally, the projects identified by Marion County and the

of Ocala, may benefit more when lower-stress walking and municipalities were also included in the project prioritization

biking facilities are provided. These destinations are more process.

concentrated along major roadways, such as SR 200, SR 40, and

UsS 301.

Areas with a higher-stress roadway network and lower accessibility
B = destinations also coincide with where fatal and serious injury

»  crashes occur more frequently for people walking and biking.

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 45




8 Proposed
Improvements




Proposed Improvements

Proposed active transportation improvements were identified through a combination of technical analysis and stakeholder input.

Local agencies provided project lists and plans, which were supplemented by locations identified as network gaps through the LTS

and accessibility analyses (see Section 5 and 6). Additional input was gathered through outreach to local stakeholders, advisory

committees, and the TPO Board. This collaborative approach ensured that the identified improvements reflect both data-driven
needs and community and agency priorities.

The proposed improvements were organized into three This organization supported a clear understanding of the
categories to reflect the primary mode or facility type range of projects identified and highlights how each type of
T — improvement contributes to advancing the overall goals of
the ATP. Figure 20 through Figure 22 illustrate the locations
. of the proposed improvements by category, providing a
Z\%Z% 1. Trail Improvements visual overview of the opportunities for enhancing safety,

connectivity, and accessibility across the network.

@“ov® 2. Bicycle Improvements Marion County is assessing future plans for trail connectivity in

the Marion Oaks area. Appendix E contains a map of a concept
for public and preservation lands for future trail connections.

o

Odb

3. Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Improvements

47



Figure 20. Proposed Trail Projects

48



Figure 21. Proposed Bike Projects

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan 49



Figure 22. Proposed Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Projects

50



9 Project Prioritization




Project Prioritization

The project prioritization process is intended to provide a structured, data-informed approach to identifying priority projects.
This process was informed by previous analyses, including measures such as LTS, accessibility to key destinations, and the TPO
commitment to the Zero High Injury Network (HIN). It considers the potential impact on safety and accessibility. In addition, the
TPO's Priority Project list and stakeholder input regarding feasibility were incorporated to reflect the perspectives and on-the-
ground knowledge of local partners.

The criteria used for the prioritization process are: input.Table 9 to Table 11 show the proposed projects
- Located on high stress (LTS 3 or 4) in each category and their corresponding tiers.
pedestrian or bicycle roadways
. Located on or crossing the HIN Itis im_po_rtant to note that the prioritization tiers are not
) o o ) prescriptive. Instead, they are a tool to support decision-
- Included in the TPO' List of Priority Projects making by local governments, partner agencies, and
- Located in the census block group with top community stakeholders. Funding availability, commmunity
30th percentile population density preferences, and implementation considerations will

- The number of key destinations within 1 mile is within continue to play a critical role in determining which

the top 30th percentile and average accessibility score projects advance in the. near angl Ierg t.erm. By providing
under 25% a transparent and consistent prioritization process, the

plan offers a foundation to guide future investments

_ _ ) while maintaining flexibility for local decision-making.
Each project received one point for each of

the criteria if the conditions are met.

The resulting prioritization framework organizes projects
into three tiers that highlight relative opportunities for
advancing safety, connectivity, and accessibility within
the transportation system. In addition to assighing

tiers according to the prioritization criteria listed above,
adjustments were made based on local stakeholder

52



Table 9. Proposed Trail Projects

Improvement

Type Tier

Facility Name

SW 27th Ave / SW 42nd St / SW

1 43rd Street Rd SW 19th Ave SW 40th Ave Trail 1

2 NE 8th Ave NE 10th St E Silver Springs Blvd Trail 1

3 Wataula and NE 8th Avenue Trail Tuscawilla Park ESaZdOOA/SE Jeeeemlle New Trail 1

4 E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail Silver Springs State West of NW 102nd Avenue Trail ]
Park Rd

5 Pruitt Gap Pruitt Trailhead Dunnellon Trail Trail 1

6 Indian Lake Trail SR 40/Silver Springs Indian Lake Trail Park Trail 2
State Park

7 SE Maricamp Rd East of SW 58th Ave SE 110th Ave Trail 2

8 SR 40 NE 60th Ct East of NE 58th Ave Trail 2

9 Withlacochee Bay Trail Dunnellon Levy County Trail 2

10 E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail SE 183rd Avenue Rd SR19 Trail 2

n E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail tiest @i Ny eZne SE 183rd Avenue Rd Trail 2
Avenue Rd

12 Ocala to Silver Springs Trail SE Osceola Ave NE 58th Ave Trail 2

. . . East Silver Springs Marjorie Harris Carr Cross .
13 Silver Springs Bikeway Bivd Florida Greenway Park Trail 2
14 Lake Wauburg to Price's Scrub Lake Wauburg Price's Scrub State Park Trail 2
State Park Trail
15 49th Ave NW Blichton Rd NW 44th Ave Trail 2
16 Nature Coast Trail (Chiefland to Dunnellon Levy County Line Trail 2
Dunnellon) Il

17 E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail SR19 Volusia County Line Trail 2

18 Chiefland to Dunnellon SW 215th Court Rd SW Highway 484 Trail 2

19 Ocala Rail Trail SE 3rd St Oak Rd Trail

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan

53



Improvement

Facility Name

Type
20 Cross Flgrlda Greenway SE Highway 314 Marshall Greenway Trail 2
Connection
51 SR 200 Cross Florida Gradg separated 5
Greenway Ccrossing
22 Silver Springs Trail Lake County Silver Springs State Park Trail 3
23 Silver Springs to Hawthorne Trail ig\;ir SRS SIS Alachua County Trail 3
24 Dunnellon Trail Connection St Patrick Dr Cross Florida Greenway Trail 3
25 NW 21st Ave NW 35th St NW 21st St Trail
26 Nature Coast Trail (Chiefland to SW Highway 484 S Bridges Rd Trail 3
Dunnellon)
27 North Lake Trail SR 40 Lake County Line Trail 3
o8 Crpss Florida G.reenway Land Over |-75 Trail 3
Bridge Expansion

Note: The ID numbers are for identification only, and do not correspond to specific rankings of projects.

Table 10. Proposed Bike Projects

ID Facility Name Improvement Type

1 E Fort King St SE 16th Ave SE 22nd Ave Potential buffered bike lane 2
2 NE TIst Ave SE Broadway St NE 2nd St Potential Bike Lane 2
3 S Magnolia Ave SW 10th St NE 2nd St Potential Bike Lane 2
4 | sSrR200 Bridge over Withlacoochee Bi.cycle-Pedes.trian Accommodations 2

River with future bridge replacement

5 SW 43rd Ct NW Blitchton Rd SR 200 Potential Bike Lane 3
6 | SW20th St [-75 SR 200 Potential Bike Lane 3
7 SW 66th St SR 200 SW 27th Ave Potential Bike Lane 3

Note: The ID numbers are for identification only, and do not correspond to specific rankings of projects.

54



Table 11. Proposed Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Projects

Facility Name

Improvement Type

1 | SW103rd Street Road | SR 200 SW 38th Multi-Use E-W Path 1
connection
2 NE 55th Ave NE 3lst St E Silver Springs Blvd Sidewalk (on west side) 1
2 SR 40/Silver Springs U.S. 301/441 Pine SW 7th Avenue S|dgwalks both sides of street ]
Blvd to fill gap.
Sidewalk to fill in gap - SR
200 to SW 12th south side;
4 SR 464 SRS 200 SW 12th Avenue SW 18th Avenue to SW 12th 1
Avenue on north side
5 U.S.. 301/441/27 S/O Rail Line Bridge SE 3rd Avenue S|o!ewglk both sides under 1
sidewalk ends Rail Bridge
6 | SW 20th Street SW 34th Avenue SW 38th Avenue stwa'ks both sides tofillin |
7 SW 19th Avenue SR 464 Existing sidewalk Sidewalk to fill in gap on ]
Road 9 north side of road
North side of SR 40 to Sidewalk connection across
8 SR 40 south side NE 30th Avenue SR 40 to connect to NE 30th 1
9 | NE 7th Street SR 35-Baseline SE 36th Avenue sideselie ool dole @isiioet | -
to complete gap
10 | SW 34th Street SW 27th Avenue SW 34th Circle Z‘Sj""a'k tofillin gaps both |,
11 SW 95th St SW 48th Ave SW 40th Ter Shared Use Path 1
12 NW 110th Ave SR 40 NW 21st St Shared Use Path 1
13 NE 7th St NE 36th Ave Baseline Rd Shared Use Path 1
14 NE 7th Street NE 36th Avenue NE 46th Court Sidewalk 1
15 NE 35th St NE 36th Ave NE 36th Ln Sidewalk (on North side) 2
16 SE Maricamp Rd East of SE 58th Ave SE 110th Ave Sidewalk 2

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan

55



Facility Name

Improvement Type

17 U.S. 301 both sides of SE 115th Lane N/O SE.62no'I Avenue connect Sidewalk both sides 5
roadway to existing sidewalk
Sidewalk to fill in gap for
access between north side
. . of SR 40 to south side and
18 SR 40 E Silver Springs Blvd Sun Tran Bus Stop at Marion 2
County Veteran Services and
Public Library
Xonnection from north .
19 SR 40 side to south side at NE slelewel < to'cormect TUIER 2
and south side of SR 40
40th Avenue
Sidewalk to fill in gap end of
20 | SR 40 West of NE 49th Ter NE 49th Ter existing to NE 49th at Wal- 2
Mart
Sidewalk both sides to fill in
21 SW 13th Street SW 37th Avenue SW 27th Avenue gap and serve elementary 2
school
22 | SW 32nd Avenue SW 34th St SW 33rd Rd Sidewalk to fill in gap 2
23 | SW 80th Ave SR 40 SW 38th St Sidewalk 2
24 | NE 25th Ave NE 28th St NE 49th St Sidewalk 2
25 | NW 17th Avenue Silver Springs Boulevard NW 4th Street Sidewalk 2
26 | NW leth Terrace Silver Springs Boulevard NW 1st Street Sidewalk 2
27 | NW 3rd Avenue NW 21st Street NW 28th Street Sidewalk 2
28 | NE 4th Avenue NE 25th Street NE 28th Street Sidewalk 2
29 | NW 4th Avenue NW 28th Street NW 3ilst Street Sidewalk 2
30 | SW 7th St SW 24th Ave SW MLK Jr Ave Sidewalk (on both sides) 2
31 NE 2nd St NE 15th Ave NE 19th Ave Sidewalk (on both sides) 2
32 | NE2nd St NE 11th Ave NE 12th Ter Sidewalk (on both sides) 2
33 | NE35th St Lindale Mobile Home NE 55th Ave Sidewalk (on North side) 2
Park West Entrance
56




Facility Name

Improvement Type

34 | NE 8th Ave NE 10th St E Silver Springs Blvd Sidewalk 2
35 | U.S.301 SE 120th Place SE 115th Lane Sidewalk both sides 2
36 | SR40 rond connection conmoct across SR 40 2
37 | NE 36th Avenue NE 14th St NE 19th Place Sidewalk to complete gap 2
38 | SW 20th Street SW 60th Avenue SW 57th Avenue Zfswa'k both sidestofillin |
39 | Fort King Street SR 35-Baseline Se 36th Avenue f(i)dciv;/r?:)ﬁtzo;z;isde ersteet 2
40 | SW 34th Street SW 27th Avenue SW 26th Avenue Sidewalk to complete gap 2
41 SW 34th St East of SW 34th Cir East of SW 27th Ave Sidewalk gap 2
42 | SR 35/Baseline Road | SE 110th/Hames SE of 92nd Loop Sidewalk/Multi-Use Path 2
43 | SW 27th Ave SW 42nd St SW 66th St Sidewalk 2
44 | SW o6th St SR 200 SW 27th Ave Sidewalk 2
45 | U.S. 441 Avenue | Dollar General Sidewalk 2
46 | Town of Reddick glciljzv)\//itéihared Use Path 2
47 | Pine Road Spring Rd SE Maricamp Rd Sidewalk 2
48 | Almond Rd SE 58th Ave SE 58th Ave Sidewalk 2
49 | Oak Road Emerald Road ;%u;csgrgrlnnetrear%e;téon o llvE Sidewalk 2
50 | NE 95 Street NE 16th Ter West side of Railroad RW Shared Use Path 2
51 Dogwood Road SR 35 Pine Road Shared Use Path 2
52 | SW 2lIst Avenue SW 7th Street SW 8th Place Sidewalk 2
53 | SW 20th Avenue SW 7th Street SW 8th Place Sidewalk 2
54 | SW 19th Avenue SW 7th Street SW 8th Place Sidewalk 2
55 | SW 5th Place SW 20th Avenue SW 24th Avenue Sidewalk 2
56 | SW 6th Street SW 20th Avenue SW 24th Avenue Sidewalk 2

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan

57



Facility Name

Improvement Type

57 | SW 6th Street SW MLK Avenue SW 19th Avenue Sidewalk 2
58 | NW 2nd Street NW 24th Avenue NW 27th Avenue Sidewalk 2
59 | SE 44th Avenue E Fort King Street SE 8th Avenue Sidewalk 2
60 | SE 6th Street SE 32nd Avenue SE 36th Avenue Sidewalk 2
ol SE 32nd Avenue E Fort King Street SE 6th Street Sidewalk 2
62 | NE10th Avenue NE 3rd Street NE 5th Street Sidewalk 2
63 | NW 5th Avenue NW 25th Street NW 28th Street Sidewalk 2
64 | NE 39th Avenue NE 17th Place NE 21st Street Sidewalk 2
65 | NW 2nd Avenue NW 28th Street NW 3lst Street Sidewalk 2
66 | SE17th Street SE 25th Avenue SE 29th Terrace Sidewalk 2
67 | SE 9th Street SE 3rd Avenue SE Alvarez Avenue Sidewalk 2
68 | SE 22nd Street SE 4th Terrace SE 8th Avenue Sidewalk 2
69 | SE 5th Street SE 11th Avenue SE 15th Avenue Sidewalk 2
70 | SE 8th Street SE 11th Avenue SE 17th Avenue Sidewalk 2
71 SE 12th Street SE 9th Avenue SE 11th Avenue Sidewalk 2
72 | SW 2nd Street SW 24 Avenue SW 23rd Avenue Sidewalk 2
73 | NE 14th Avenue NE 35th Street NE 28th Street Sidewalk 2
74 | NE 24th Street NE 19th Avenue NE 21st Terrace Sidewalk 2
75 | NW 17th PI NW 21st Ave NW Martin Luther King Jr Ave Sidewalk (on north side) 3
Sidewalks both sides to
76 | NW 21st Avenue MLK Avenue Ocala Recharge Park connect MLK sidewalks to 3
Park

77 | SW 80th Ave SW 90th St SW 80th St Shared Use Path

78 | SE 55th Avenue Rd U.S. 441 CR 484 Sidewalk 3
79 | Bahia Road Midway Road ,’c\lhoerweesr? S?gz’g?gasﬂae\gilak don Shared Use Path 3
80 | SE 30th Avenue SE 14th Street SE 17th Street Sidewalk

81 SE 7th Street SE 36th Avenue SE 38th Avenue Sidewalk 3

58



Facility Name

Improvement Type

82 | SE 8th Street SE 36th Avenue SE 39th Avenue Sidewalk 3
83 | NE 10th Avenue NE 10th Street NE 14th Street Sidewalk 3
84 | NW 25th Street NW 1st Avenue NW 6th Avenue Sidewalk 3
85 | NW 24th Place NW Magnolia Avenue NW 25th Street Sidewalk 3
86 | NW 24th Road NW 21st Avenue NW 21st Street Sidewalk 3
87 | NW 2ist Court NW 24th Road NW 23rd Road Sidewalk 3
88 | NE 20th Avenue NE 10th Street NE 14th Street Sidewalk 3
89 | NW 2ist Street NW 24th Road NW 21st Avenue Sidewalk 3
90 | NW 4th Avenue NW 8th Street NW 10th Street Sidewalk 3
91 SE 41st Avenue SE 8th Street SE 11th Place Sidewalk 3
92 | SW 26th Avenue SW 34th Avenue SW 35th Avenue Sidewalk 3
93 | SW 30th Street SW 38 Avenue 2470 ft West Sidewalk 3
93 | SW 29th Avenue SW 38 Avenue 1777 ft West Sidewalk 3
95 | SW 28th Place SW 38 Avenue 986 ft West Sidewalk 3
96 | SW 4lst Court SW 29 Place SW 30th Street Sidewalk 3
97 | SW 39th Court SW 28 Place SW 30th Street Sidewalk 3
98 | SE 39th Avenue SE 7th Street SE 3rd Street Sidewalk 3
99 | SW 49th Ave Marion Oaks Trl SW 135th St SUP 3

Note: The ID numbers are for identification only, and do not correspond to specific rankings of projects.

Ocala Marion TPO Active Transportation Plan

59



'I Conclusion and
Next Steps




Conclusion and Next Steps

The ATP establishes a framework for enhancing safety, connectivity, and quality of life through strategic investments in walking,
bicycling, equestrian, and other nonmotorized modes. By identifying existing conditions, gaps, and opportunities, and by
developing prioritized project lists and supportive strategies, this plan provides Marion County and its partners with a roadmap for

creating a safer and more accessible network for all users.

Moving forward, successful implementation of the ATP will depend on close coordination among local governments, the TPO,
FDOT, community partners, and residents. The prioritized projects and strategies outlined in this plan are intended to guide
decisions on funding, programming, and design, while remaining flexible enough to adapt to emerging needs and opportunities.

Next steps include:

v Advancing high-priority projects into the TIP and local
capital improvement programs.

v Pursuing available state, federal, and local funding sources
to support plan implementation.

v Integrating ATP strategies and design guidance into
ongoing roadway projects to ensure consistent support for
all modes.

v Continuing engagement with community members,
stakeholders, and advocacy groups to maintain momentum
and build support.

v Regularly monitoring progress through the performance
measures identified in this plan and updating the ATP as
needed to reflect changing conditions and goals.

Through these actions, the ATP will serve as a living document
that not only informs project decisions today but also guides
long-term investments in a safe, connected, and equitable
active transportation system for Marion County’s residents and
visitors.

61

10.1 Active Transportation Strategies

Appendix F provides a toolbox of treatments that can be applied
to improve safety, comfort, and connectivity for all road users

in Marion County. These tools are intended to provide planners,
engineers, and community partners with practical strategies to
address specific needs identified through the ATP. Treatments
are not intended to function in isolation; rather, they are most
effective when combined with and tailored to the surrounding
context.

By incorporating bicycle, pedestrian, and speed management
treatments, the toolbox supports the TPO's broader goals of
creating safer, more accessible, and more comfortable travel
options for people of all ages and abilities. These treatments
complement the street

typologies described earlier (4. Existing Conditions) and help
establish priorities for multimodal facilities across the network.



10.2 Funding Sources

Funding for the implementation of active transportation projects
may be derived from a variety of sources, including federal and
state grants, local contributions, and private-public investments.
The pursuit of funding for a project may involve multiple sources
to ensure flexibility and timely implementation. Projects can

be planned and developed as standalone improvements or in
conjunction with a new roadway, roadway extension, resurfacing,
or widening. Appendix G summarizes key funding sources for
active transportation projects.

62



TRANSPORTATION

PLANNING
ORGANIZATION
TO: Committee Members
FROM: Rob Balmes, Director
RE: Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Office of Safety

Presentation

Loreen Bobo, FDOT District Five Office of Safety Administrator, will deliver a presentation on
safety initiatives in the Central Florida region.

If you have any questions, please contact me at: 352-438-2631.

A transportation system that supports growth, mobility, and safety through leadership and planning

2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd. « Ocala, Florida 34470
Telephone: (352) 438 - 2630 < www.ocalamariontpo.org



TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

TO: Committee Members
FROM: Rob Balmes, Director

RE: Draft 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP)

The TPO released a draft of Navigating the Future 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan on
September 29, 2025. The draft Plan is available for a 30-day public review and comment through
October 28. The draft 2050 LRTP will be presented to the TPO Board at a Public Hearing meeting
on October 28.

The Kimley-Horn and Associates team will provide a presentation of the draft 2050 LRTP at the
CAC and TAC meetings on November 4. TPO staff will request committee endorsements of the
2050 LRTP. Attached to this memo are the draft 2050 LRTP document and corresponding
appendix. The documents may also be accessed at the 2050 LRTP project page:

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/c88b20f1d8e74c5196dd7{dc9198a5c3

Attachment(s)

e 2050 LRTP Review and Adoption Schedule
e Draft Navigating the Future 2050 LRTP
e Draft 2050 LRTP Appendix

If you have any questions, please contact me at: 352-438-2631.

A transportation system that supports growth, mobility, and safety through leadership and planning

2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd. « Ocala, Florida 34470
Telephone: (352) 438 - 2630 < www.ocalamariontpo.org


https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/c88b20f1d8e74c5f96dd7fdc9f98a5c3

Upcoming 2050 LRTPO Meetings & Events

* October 28 — TPO Board LRTP Public Hearing

* November 4 — CAC/TAC Endorsements Q

* November 14 — TPO Board (Adopt 2050 LRTP) ®




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization . S5

DRAFT: September 29, 2025

5
ANy b

5 -\?:‘"j(’,,‘*‘?; ” il
Qi

TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING

ORGANIZATION



[Resolution Text Here]

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




Ocala Marion TPO Governing Board

Commissioner Carl Zalak lll, Chair — Marion County, District 4
Councilmember James Hilty, Vice-Chair — City of Ocala, District 5
Councilmember Ire Bethea, Sr. — City of Ocala, District 2
Commissioner Kathy Bryant — Marion County, District 2
Commissioner Craig Curry — Marion County, District 1
Councilmember Kristen Dreyer — City of Ocala, District 4
Commissioner Ray Dwyer — City of Belleview, Seat 2
Councilman Tim Inskeep — City of Dunnellon, Seat 3
Councilman Barry Mansfield — City of Ocala, District 1

Mayor Ben Marciano — City of Ocala

Commissioner Matt McClain — Marion County, District 3

Commissioner Michelle Stone — Marion County, District 5

Non-Voting
John Tyle, P.E. — District Five Secretary

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




2050 LRTP Steering Committee

A Steering Committee was assembled to provide input and guide the development of the 2050 LRTP. The Steering Committee was
comprised of a diverse group of professionals and stakeholders across Marion County. Committee members included:

City of Belleview Public Works, Bob Titterington

City of Dunnellon, Chad Ward

City of Ocala Growth Management, Jeff Shrum, Endira Madraveren, Aubrey Hale
City of Ocala Engineering, Noel Cooper

City of Ocala SunTran, Ji Li, Tom Duncan

East-Central Florida Regional Planning Council, Parker Hines

Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Kelly Conley

Marion County Growth Services, Ken Odom, Chuck Varadin

Marion County Administration, Tracy Straub

Marion County Office of County Engineer, Steven Cohoon, Doug Hinton, Chris Zeigler
Marion County Parks and Recreation, Jim Couillard

Marion County School District, Casey Griffith

Marion County Tourism Development, Loretta Shaffer

Ocala Marion TPO, Rob Balmes

Ocala Metro Chamber and Economic Partnership, Tamara Fleischhaker

U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service, Carrie Sekerak

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




Title VI / Non-Discrimination Statement

The Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) is committed to ensuring that no person is excluded from the
transportation planning process and welcomes input from all interested parties, regardless of background, income level or cultural
identity. The Ocala Marion TPO does not tolerate discrimination in any of its programs, services, activities or employment practices.
Pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 13898 (Environmental Justice) and 13166 (Limited
English Proficiency), and other federal and state authorities. The Ocala Marion TPO will not exclude from participation in, deny the
benefits of, or subject to discrimination, anyone on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, income or
family status. The Ocala Marion TPO welcomes and actively seeks input from the public, to help guide decisions and establish a vision
that encompasses all area communities and ensure that no one person(s) or segment(s) of the population bears a disproportionate
share of adverse impacts.

The preparation of this report has been financed in part through grant(s) from the Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit
Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, under the State Planning and Research Program, Section 505 [or Metropolitan
Planning Program, Section 104(f)] of Title 23, U.S. Code. The contents of this report do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy
of the U.S. Department of Transportation.

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




Acknowledgements

The development of the Navigating the Future 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan would not have been possible without the
collaboration and assistance by many partners and stakeholders, including the following groups:

Citizens of Marion County
Participation at community workshops and public open house, stakeholder events and feedback through two public surveys and an
online comment map.

2050 LRTP Steering Committee
Review, recommendations and guidance throughout the entire plan development process, and ensuring the plan is aligned with local
goals and community-wide needs.

TPO Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
Review and feedback on the plan development process, including scenario/growth planning, project needs and cost-feasible projects.

This document was prepared in cooperation with the Cities of Belleview, Dunnellon, Ocala and Marion County. Financial assistance is
from the Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration of the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) through
the Florida Department of Transportation. The contents of this Plan do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of the U.S. DOT.

Prepared by:

Kimley»Horn

Kimley-Horn and Associates
1700 SE 17th Street, Suite 200
Ocala, FL 34471

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




S S 15 o Yo L1 o3 4 'Y o X 1-1

1.1 What is the OCala-Marion TPO? ... .o oottt e ettt e e e e e s sttt eeeeeeeeaaa s a b ettt eeeeeeeeeannnseeeeeeeeeeeeasannnnnneeeaeens 1-1
L2 N o o UL 8 {1 T PSS PPERR 1-2
2 \Vision, Goals, Objectives, and Performance ...........cciimccciiinniirrrrrresssssss s 21
2.1 VAT (o) TR € o =1 LT T To @ o] 1Yo {177 USRS 2-2
2.2 Performance-Based PIAnniNg............ooooiiiiiiiiii ettt et —te———————————————————————————————————————————————————————— 2-14
3 Planning ASSUMPLIONS...... oo i irre s rrre s s rns s s s s s e e na s s e nn s s e masssssmssssremssssrnnssssrnnssssnnnnsnrnnnns 3-1
3.1 (oo U] = To] I @ o] o1 o] B o] r= | < PP PPPPPPR 3-1
K = 4T o] o)V a =Y o O 0T a i) N K] ¢= | SRS EERP 3-2
K R N € 101171 B T =T g = 01 PSP EEEPR 3-3
4 The Transportation Plan - Needs & Cost Feasible ... 4-1
4.1 PrOJECIEA REVENUES ...ttt e e oo oottt et e e e e 4o oo h bttt ettt e e e e 4o e s bb ettt e e e e e e e e e anbbbeneeeaeeeeeannnnes 4-1
4.2  Transportation IMProvVEeMENt PrOGIam ...... ... . e i ettt £ 1 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaeeeaaaaaaeeaaeeas 4-3
4.1 ROGAWAY PlaN ...t — e e ——————————————————————————————————————————————— 4-6
N U | o)1 o I =T =] Yo o = £ ) o 4-17
S T o 1)Y= T I =T 0T L = £ ) o T 4-22
4.4  Operations and Management Strat@IES .........uu i e et e et e e e e e e et it e e e e e e e s e beeeeees 4-32
R IS T o 1= ol = |l o (o] (=T PSP PPP PRI 4-33
T - | =) Y PR 4-35

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




5 Public and Partner Engagement ........... ..o 5-1

5.1 [aLi oo [0 Tex1 o] o [P PTPSPOPRRR 5-1
5.2 Public PartiCipation Plan ...ttt et e eeeetaeeaeeeaeeaaeeannnes 5-3
5.3  Summary of PUblic COMMENLES ... 5-3
5.4  Plan Successes and UNMEt ASPIFAtIONS ........ooiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e e sttt e e e e e e e s s bbbttt e e e e e e e e s aabbbeeeeeeeeeeaaanas 5-4
TR T GV I 1= 41T PSPPSR PPRPPPPRPN 5-4

6 Environmental Consideration ... e e e 6-1
6.1 RESHIENCY ... e ——————————————————————————————————————————————————————— 6-2

7 Plan Implementation ... s s r s s s s e s nm s s s e e nma s a s e rnnnan s e e nnnnnnn 71
A B N0 1T g To [T g To IR g 1= o F= T o TP SO PP PPPPPPRIN 7-1
7.2 THE NEXE FIVE YEAIS ...ttt e et e ettt e e e eeee ettt ta e eeeeee et s ttaa e aaeeeeestaaa e aeeseesssaannaaaeseeesssnnnnaaaeeennsnnnnn 7-2

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A  Performance Measures and Targets

APPENDIX B  Federal and State Consistency

APPENDIX C  Socioeconomic Forecast

APPENDIX D  Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint

APPENDIX E Revenue Forecast Guidance

APPENDIX F Selection from FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Transportation Improvement Program

APPENDIX G Roadway Cost Feasible Plan (Present Day Value)

APPENDIX H Roadway Cost Feasible Plan (Year of Expenditure)

APPENDIX | Transit Needs

APPENDIX J Active Transportation Needs

APPENDIX K  Summary of Public and Partner Engagement

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




Figure 1-1. Ocala Marion TPO PIanmINg AFBa..........cuui i ittt e et ettt e e e e e o e bbbt ettt e e e e e e e s e bbb e e et e e e e e e e sannbbbaneeeeaeeeaannns 1-1
Figure 3-1. Marion County Trend Population GrOWLN ............ueiiiiiiii e e et e e e e e e e e s s e e e e e e e e e e annssreeeeeeeeeeaaannns 3-5
Figure 3-2. Scenario 2 Population Growth ... 3-7
Figure 3-3. Scenario 3 POPUIAtION GIrOWLN ...........u et e e e et oo e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s brnneeeeeeeeaanas 3-9
FIQUIE 4-1: PrOJECE PRaSEs ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et eetteseeseneennnnnnnnnnnnnnnne 4-6
Figure 4-2: Tier 1 - Existing and Committed Roadways (Constructed by 2030) .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4-7
Figure 4-3: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible Projects (2031 - 2050).......coiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aannes 4-9
Figure 4-4: Tier 4 - Partially FUNAEd PrOJECES ......ccoo oottt ee e e e eaessaaassasssasssssssssranssrsnnnnes 4-13
Figure 4-5: Tier 5 - UNfUNAEA NEEAS .......cooiiiiiieei ettt e et e e e et e e e e e e e e et e et e e e e e e e e e sbbe e e e e e e e e e e aanne 4-15
Figure 4-6: SunTran TDP Short-Term Service Concept (from FY2023-2032 TDP) ......uuiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie e 4-18
Figure 4-7: SunTran TDP Long-Term Service Concept (from FY2023-2032 TDP) ....uueiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee et 4-19
Figure 4-8: 2050 Bicycle Projects (from Draft 2028 ATP) ...t e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annnes 4-25
Figure 4-9: 2050 Sidewalk and Shared Use Path Projects (from Draft 2025 ATP) ..., 4-27
Figure 4-10: 2050 Trail Needs (from Draft 2025 ATP)..... ... e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e s bbb ee e e e e e e e e e aannnes 4-29
Figure 4-11: Moving I-75 Forward Info Sheets (SOUICE: FDOT) ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e 4-33
Figure 4-12:West Marion StUAY Area (2023)........coo oottt ettt et e et eeeeeeeeeeaaaeaaaaa——a——aa—r——————————————————_ 4-34

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




Table 3-1. BEBR POPUIALION DALA...... ...ttt et e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaaeaaaaaaaaaaes 3-1

Table 3-2: BEBR EMPIOYMENT D@ .......coiiiiieiiiiie ettt e e e oo ettt et e e e oo e e bbbttt e e e e e e e e s bbb e et e e e e e e e e annnbneneeeas 3-2
Table 3-3: Marion County Dwelling Unit Growth (SCENAIO 1).....ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiie e e et e s atee e e e 3-4
Table 3-4. Scenario 2 Dwelling Unit Growth ... 3-6
Table 3-5. Scenario 3 DWelliNG UNit GIrOWEN ... ..ooi it e e e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennnneees 3-8
Table 4-1. Revenue Summary in Year of Expenditure (YOE) COStS ...cccooiiiiiiiiiiii 4-2
Table 4-2. TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Revenues in Year of Expenditure (YOE) COSES ......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 4-3
Table 4-3. TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Roadway Projects (TIEF 1)......uiuuiiiiiiieeeeiiieee ettt e e s e e e e 4-4
Table 4-4. TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects ... 4-4
Table 4-5: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible Roadway Capacity PrOJECES .........ccui i 4-10
Table 4-6: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible INterseCtion ProjECES ...t e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnees 4-12
Table 4-7: Tier 4 - Partially FUNAEA PrOJECES ......cooo ittt e e et ettt e e e e e e e e e bbbt e e e e e e e e e s e snebeeeeas 4-14
Table 4-8: Tier 5 - Unfunded Roadway Capacity PrOJECES .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e s s eeeeaeeeeeennnnnnees 4-16
Table 4-9: SunTran TDP Short Term ARErNatives (2023-2027) ... ... e a e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeaaeeaaaeaaeeas 4-20
Table 4-10: SunTran TDP Long Term Aernatives (2028-2033) ........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiitie et e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e s aanneeees 4-21
Table 4-11: 2050 Bicycle Projects (from DIaft ATP) ......... oottt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e s e eeeeeeaeeeaaannneseeeaaaeeeesannnnsseeeees 4-26
Table 4-12: Selected 2050 Sidewalk and Shared Use Path Projects (from Draft ATP)..........oeeiiiiiiiiii e 4-28
Table 4-13: 2050 Trail Projects (from Draft ATP).....c et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annneneeeas 4-30

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION







NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

1 INTRODUCTION
1.1 What is the Ocala-Marion TPO?

Established in 1981, the Ocala Marion Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) is a federally mandated agency responsible for
allocating state and federal funds to roadway, freight, transit, bicycle and pedestrian projects within Marion County. The TPO serves
the cities of Belleview, Dunnellon, Ocala and Marion County, and works to ensure improvements to the transportation system reflect
the needs of both stakeholders and the public. Improvements to the transportation system are determined through a long-term visioning
process. This process combined with short-term action steps necessary to implement the vision are developed in the TPO'’s core plans

and programs.

The TPO is comprised of five staff and is governed by
a 12-member Board of locally elected officials. The
expertise of TPO staff and leadership of the TPO
Board are supplemented by the Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC), Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC)
and Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating
Board (TDLCB). Collectively, these boards and
committees provide guidance and policy-making

System (NHS) <
decisions for the organization. The work of the TPO is I 8 £ &
i . i ) . @ Airports H H g z 9%9 &, Ocala National Forest

guided by state and federal legislation, including I D\s B L
Florida Statute 339 and U.S. Code Title 23 and 49. d

V o SR Qealad] —
Throughout the United States, there are over 400 ¢ * (NN \ "]
MPO/TPOs and are represented in all 50 states. i [ L S
Florida is home to 27, the most of any state. S5 N . %, &

]’E g Sy

MPO/TPOs are required by federal and state laws in
areas with a population greater than 50,000.

Legend

[ Planning Aea
[ OcalaUrbanArea

[ The Villages-Lady Lake
Urban Area
Beverly Hills-Homesassa
[ Springs-Pine Ridge
Urban Area

National Highway

w CRI8

W CRI1S

X
3

RD

NE JACKSONVILLE'

n
"
o

RaBL
CRETS!

S CR4TS

A

S US30]

Belleview

@
@

@
k=

T20

Putnam County

5
5 5

OCALA MARION
TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORCANIZATION

Volusia County

Lake County
Approved on October 24, 2023

Sumter County

The core requirements of the TPO are the regular

update and adoption of a Long Range Transportation
Plan; short term Transportation Improvement
Program; a Public Involvement Plan; and a two-year budget known as the Unified Planning Work Program.

Figure 1-1. Ocala Marion TPO Planning Area

OCALA MARION TPO




1.2 About the LRTP

The TPO is responsible for developing and maintaining the federally required Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) for Marion
County and the municipalities of Ocala, Belleview, and Dunnellon. This LRTP, titled Navigating the Future, provides a 25-year blueprint
for multimodal investments that balance mobility, economic vitality, and quality of life for the Marion County and its communities.

The plan is built around four high-level priorities that define the path forward for Marion County’s transportation system:

o Growth and Development — Managing rapid population and employment growth by focusing investments where they best
support local land use and community goals.

¢ Congestion — Monitoring and improving congestion on the major roadway network.

¢ Sustainable Funding — Ensuring that system preservation, operations, and expansion are guided by realistic financial
forecasts and a cost-feasible investment strategy.

o Safety — Placing safety at the core of all projects and policies with the aim of reducing severe crashes and protecting all
roadway users.

Together, these priorities provide the framework for Navigating the Future and guide how the
Ocala Marion TPO will plan, prioritize, and invest in the county’s transportation system
through 2050.

The 2050 LRTP is developed through a collaborative process that brings together input from
local governments, partner agencies, community stakeholders, and the public. Navigating the
Future provides a comprehensive look at Marion County’s current transportation system,
identifies anticipated growth in population and employment, and evaluates the impacts of that
growth on future mobility needs.

The plan establishes a long-term vision supported by goals, objectives, and financial
assumptions. To ensure fiscal responsibility, every recommended project is linked to specific
federal, state, or local funding sources. In compliance with federal requirements, the LRTP is
updated every five years to reflect new data, updated forecasts, and evolving community
priorities.

OCALA MARION TPO




Two core elements guide the plan: the Needs Plan and the Cost Feasible Plan. The Needs Plan identifies projects that respond to
community priorities, reflect local and regional planning efforts, and address future transportation demands. From there, projects are
prioritized based on available funding and their ability to advance the TPO’s vision and goals. Those that can be reasonably funded
within the 25-year horizon are advanced into the Cost Feasible Plan, positioning them for implementation.

The overarching purpose of the LRTP is to define the highest-priority improvements within realistic financial constraints and to submit
these priorities annually to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) through the TPO’s List of Priority Projects (LOPP). The
chapters that follow detail the planning process undertaken to develop Navigating the Future, while appendices provide additional
technical documentation and supporting analyses.

“Navigating the Future provides a comprehensive
look at Marion County’s current transportation
system, identifies anticipated growth in population
and employment, and evaluates the impacts of that

growth on future mobility needs.”

OCALA MARION TPO







2 VISION, GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE

This chapter outlines the strategy for Marion County to develop a plan that maintains and enhances the transportation system in
compliance with federal and state regulations. The TPO has established a primary Vision that is supported by Goals and Objectives.
There are identified Performance Measures and Performance Indicators that set up a basis for performance-based planning that will
best serve the community and environment now and in the future. The Performance Targets and Performance Measures established
by the TPO are provided in Appendix A.

The LRTP Vision, Goals, Objectives, and Performance Measures align with the current federal transportation planning requirements,
including those set forth in the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and the Florida Transportation Plan.

OCALA MARION TPO




B
=
S
El
H
o
=l
T
m
n
c
=l
c
£
m

N
O
"
O

4
i
g
g
H
o
g
H

2.1 Vision, Goals, and Objectives

The 2050 LRTP Vision serves as the guiding principle for shaping the region's transportation future. This Vision provides the foundation
for the plan’s Goals and Objectives.

2050 LRTP VISION

O
NAVIGATING THE FUTURE /(j;\!\
Develop a SAFE, ACCESSIBLE, and EFFICIENT A ?i g

MULTIMODAL transportation system to best /
serve the COMMUNITY and ENVIRONMENT E!

OCALA MARION TPO




Navigating the Future 2050 LRTP Goals

Promote accessible
Multimodal Travel choices

Prioritizing Safety and Security
for all users

Supporting local and regional

Economic Development by

connecting communities and
businesses

Promoting
System Preservation and Resiliency
to adapt to future challenges

Safeguarding the environment with a

getE e Rmmunity Needs focus on Environmental Protection

Creating Quality of Life and Places
through accessible transportation

Emphasizing Implementation to turn
plans into outcomes

®

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

Each Goal of the 2050 LRTP is designed to reflect the community's priorities and guide the development of a safe, efficient, and
sustainable transportation network. By setting Objectives the TPO can assess progress and track outcomes of the plan through the
use of federally required Performance Measures (PM) and TPO-developed Performance Indicators (PIl). The Goals and supporting
Objectives, Performance Measures, and Performance Indicators are listed as follows:

~\

Goal 1

Safety and Security

Objective 1.1. Increase safety to and from school
Objective 1.2. Enhance evacuation routes
Objective 1.3. Reduce fatal and severe crashes
PM 1.1 Number of fatalities
PM 1.2  Fatality Rate per Million Vehicle Miles Traveled
(MVMT)
PM 1.3  Number of Serious Injuries
PM 1.4  Serious Injury Rate per MVMT
PM 1.5 Bicycle and Pedestrian Fatalities and Serious Injuries
PM 1.6  Performance Indicator (Pl): Presence of schools within
a half mile of facilities

PI1.1. Levels of congestion on existing evacuation routes
simulated against future population and employment
P11.2. Historical crash rates stratified by seriousness of
\ initiriae and fatalitiac

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

\

Goal 2

Accessible Multimodal

Travel Choices

Objective 2.1. Increase frequent and convenient transit service
Objective 2.2. Increase bicycle and pedestrian travel
Objective 2.3. Increase facility access used by disadvantaged
population
Objective 2.4. Increase desired user-friendly transportation
PM 2.1 National Highway System (NHS) Interstate Level of Travel
Time Reliability (LOTTR) in Person Miles Traveled (PMT)
PM 2.2 Non-NHS Interstate Level of Travel Time Reliability
(LOTTR) in Person Miles Traveled (PMT)
PM 2.3 Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR)
PI2.1. The plan will increase travel choices in areas with greater
transit-dependent populations
P12.2. The plan will decrease the amount of sidewalk and/or
bicycle facility gaps

OCALA MARION TPO




PM 3.1

PM 3.2

PM 3.3

PM 3.4

PM 3.5

PI3.1.

Pl 3.2.

Goal 3
System Preservation

Objective 3.1. Emphasize the preservation of the existing

transportation system

Objective 3.2.  Maintain the transportation network by identifying

and prioritizing infrastructure preservation and
rehabilitation projects such as asset management
and signal system upgrades

Objective 3.3. Improve the resiliency of the transportation system

through mitigation and adaptation strategies to
deal with catastrophic events
Percentage of pavements on the Interstate System
in Good condition
Percentage of pavements on the Interstate System
in Poor condition
Percentage of pavements on the non-Interstate NHS
in Good condition
Percentage of pavements on the non-Interstate NHS
in Poor condition
Percent of NHS bridges (by deck area)
in Good condition
Percent of NHS bridges (by deck area)
in Poor condition
The plan will prioritize operational improvements

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

Goal 4

Economic Development

Objective 4.1. Increase transportation access to developing areas
Objective 4.2. Increase efficiency of freight movement
Objective 4.3.  Plan for emerging transportation technologies
Objective 4.4. Increase reliability and management strategies
Objective 4.5. Increase transportation system performance

PM 4.1 The plan will consider the use of emerging transportation

technology

PM 4.2 The plan will consider freight movement as a critical

component of the local and regional transportation network

Goal 5
Community Needs

Objective 5.1. Increase citizen engagement and integration
Objective 5.2. Increase community transportation education
Objective 5.3. Increase public participation with future projects
Objective 5.4. Increase organizational outreach and collaboration
PI5.1. The plan will engage the community and incorporate input
provided by stakeholders

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Objective 6.1.
Objective 6.2. Reduce impacts to residential areas
Objective 6.3. Increase access to natural tourist destinations

Long Range Transportation Plan

Goal 6
Environmental Protection

Reduce impacts to existing natural resources

PI6.1. The plan will minimize potential impacts to
environmentally sensitive areas

PI6.2. The plan will consider improvements that enhance
resiliency of the network and mitigate potential negative
impacts of natural disasters on the system

Goal 7
Quality Places

Objective 7.1. Minimize adverse impacts to residential
areas

P17.1. The plan will expand availability of sidewalk
infrastructure within urbanized areas

P17.2. The plan will focus on enhancing the network of
bicycle facilities

P17.3. The plan will prioritize improving connectivity to
public transportation

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

Goal 8
Implementation

Objective 8.1. ldentify projects that can be funded for
implementation within a 5-10 year time band
Objective 8.2. ldentify planning studies to prepare future
projects for funding and implementation
P18.1. The plan will prioritize projects that are eligible for
funding and implementation within a 5-10 year
time band
P18.2. The plan will identify planning studies to advance

the readiness of future projects

OCALA MARION TPO




2050
The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
(IIJA) expands on long-standing national goals 2.1.1 Federal and State Goals and
anfi reaffirms the federal planning factors that Plann ,'ng Factors
guide every LRTP. Together, they ensure
Marion County’s transportation system > 7 7 7 |nfrastructure Investment and Jobs (IlJA)
supports people, the economy, and the
environment. Signed into law on November 15, 2021, the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
(IIJA) provides long-term funding for infrastructure planning and investment in surface
Safety & Security — Protect all users and reduce transportation. The IIJA builds upon and expands programs included in prior surface
severe crashes. transportation legislation such as the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST)
Act.
Infrastructure Condition & Preservation — Maintain
and extend the life of roads, bridges, and transit. 2.1.1.2 IlJA (Federal) Goals
Mobility & Accessibility — Improve options for The IIJA maintains and expands upon the national goals established in previous
moving people and freight efficiently. legislation. These goals are as follows:
System Reliability & Management — Keep travel o  Safety N
predictable through efficient operations. o Infrastructure Condition
o  Congestion Reduction
Freight & Economic Vitality — Support jobs, o System Reliability
commerce, and g|oba| Competitiveness_ o Freight Movement and Economic Vitality
o  Environmental Sustainability
Environment & Resiliency — Conserve resources, o Reduced Project Delivery Delays

prepare for disasters, and enhance quality of life.

Connectivity & Tourism — Strengthen links across
modes, communities, and destinations.

Project Delivery — Streamline improvements to
bring benefits faster.

OCALA MARION TPO 2-10



2.1.1.3 IlJA Planning Factors

Related to goals of the IIJA, the act has reestablished the FAST Act planning factors that recognize and address the relationships
between transportation, economic development, people of the community, land use, and the natural environment. The federal planning
factors once again form the cornerstone for the 2050 LRTP and include:

o Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency

o Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users

o Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users

o Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight

o Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve quality of life, and promote consistency between
transportation improvements and state and local growth and economic development patterns

o Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between modes, for people and freight

o Promote efficient system management and operation

o Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system

o Improve resiliency and reliability to improve preparedness and response to natural disasters and other emergencies

o Enhance travel and tourism

OCALA MARION TPO 2-11



2.1.14 State Goals — Florida Transportation Plan (FTP)

The Florida Transportation Plan (FTP) is the single overarching statewide plan guiding Florida’s transportation future. FDOT has begun
the process of updating the FTP with a new horizon year of 2055, and it is anticipated to adopt the plan in late 2025. This update will
continue to provide direction to FDOT and all organizations involved in planning and managing Florida's transportation system,
including statewide, regional, and local partners such as the Ocala Marion TPO.

While the specific goals for the 2055 FTP are still in development, Five Focus Groups have been determined around the major topic
areas of Safety, Resilient Infrastructure, Economic Development/Supply Chain, Technology, and Workforce Development. The FTP is
expected to be adopted in November 2025. For the purposes of the Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP, the 2045 FTP was used for guidance.

The existing 2045 FTP follows similar topic areas, requiring TPOs to address the following goals:

e Safety and security for residents, visitors, and businesses

o Agile, resilient, and quality infrastructure

o Connected, efficient, and reliable mobility for people and freight
e Transportation choices that improve equity and accessibility

o Transportation solutions that strengthen Florida’s economy

e Transportation solutions that enhance Florida's communities

e Transportation solutions that enhance Florida’s environment

A matrix showing consistency between the LRTP Goals and the Florida
Transportation Plan is shown in Appendix B.

FLORIDA

Transportation Plan

POLICY ELEMENT

DECEMBER 2020

OCALA MARION TPO




2.1.2 Local Plans

Local agencies involved in planning and managing Florida’s transportation system follow guidelines set forth by the FTP. Local agencies
establish goals and objectives as part of the long-range transportation planning process, representing the desired vision of how the
statewide transportation system should evolve over the next 20 years with actionable guidelines on how to achieve them within each
community.

Performance measures and targets are established to provide measurable guidelines focusing the plans on outcomes rather than just
on activities and policies. The following is a list of the documents developed by partner agencies with which this document will be
coordinated:

FDOT Strategic Highway Safety Plan

Florida Transportation Plan

Comprehensive Plans for Ocala Marion County and Municipalities
Ocala Marion TPO Public Participation Plan (PPP)

Ocala Marion TPO Congestion Management Process (CMP)
Ocala Marion TPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)

O O O O O O

OCALA MARION TPO 2-13



Long Range Tr:

ansportation Plan

o

2.2 Performance-Based Planning

Federally established laws have set the requirements for performance-based planning and programming (PBPP) in the TPO planning
process. Key components of PBPP include:

Tracking specific performance measures
Setting data-driven targets

Selecting projects to meet these targets
Developing plans

Monitoring, evaluating, and reporting progress

o O O O O

Under this framework, FDOT is required to develop appropriate performance targets and monitor progress. The IlJA has further
reinforced PBPP by increasing federal transportation funding and introducing new requirements emphasizing multimodal
transportation, climate resilience, equity, and innovative funding approaches, thereby efficiently investing transportation funds by linking
decisions to key outcomes related to national goals.

“This performance-based approach aims to improve
transparency, accountability, and the efficient allocation
of transportation resources.”

OCALA MARION TPO




* —i i:l!ijlﬁlr-r‘ﬁ

£8
& !
=)
1
=]
5
-]




3 PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS

The LRTP’s purpose is to identify transportation improvements needed in the county and to establish a cost feasible plan for funding
the highest-priority projects. An early step in this process is developing forecasts of population and employment over the LRTP planning
horizon. These forecasts are allocated geographically in a way that aligns with existing and future land uses identified in local and
regional comprehensive plans.

Socioeconomic data are analyzed at the traffic analysis zone (TAZ) level, which provides the basis for forecasting future travel patterns.
The forecast data reflect a collaborative effort among the TPO, FDOT District Five, and local governments in Marion County. Efforts
were also made to ensure consistency between the 2050 forecasts and the 2045 forecasts prepared five years earlier.

3.1 Population Control Totals

The development of population control totals was one of the first steps in the 2050 socioeconomic data forecast for Marion County.
Normally, population control totals used by Florida counties have been based on the University of Florida Bureau of Economic and
Business Research (BEBR) population forecasts, which are illustrated in Table 3-1. The LRTP assumed the average of the BEBR
Medium and High scenarios.

Table 3-1. BEBR Population Data

2015 | 2022 | 2025 | 2030 | 2035 | 2080 | 2085 | 2050 |
BEBR Low 341,205 403,966 392,100 401,800 406,300 406,800 405,600 402,800
BEBR Medium 341,205 403,966 417,100 446,400 471,100 491,700 510,200 526,500
BEBR High 341,205 403,966 442,100 491,000 535,900 576,500 614,800 650,300
BEBR Average of 341,205 403,966 429,600 468,700 503,500 534,100 562,500 588,400

Medium and High

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

3.2 Employment Control Totals

The development of employment control totals was one of the first steps in the 2050 socioeconomic data forecast for Marion County.
Normally, population control totals used by Florida counties have been based on the University of Florida Bureau of Economic and
Business Research (BEBR) population forecasts, which are illustrated in Table 3-2. The LRTP assumed the average of the BEBR
Medium and High scenarios.

Table 3-2: BEBR Employment Data

s | wm | s | o | s | o | s | o
Employees 111,482 164,421 140,363 153,138 164,509 174,507 183,786 192,248
Industrial 16,695 25,171 21,020 23,239 25,294 27,180 28,993 30,713
Commercial 23,390 28.208 29,450 31,364 32,870 33,996 34,884 35,529
Service 71,397 111,042 89,893 98,535 106,345 113,331 119,909 126,006

O=0

OCALA MARION TPO




3.3 Growth Scenarios

To evaluate how the community may grow in the future, the LRTP incorporates scenario planning. Each scenario offers a different
perspective for assessing potential future conditions and outcomes.

o Trend Forecast (Scenario 1) — A baseline scenario based on adopted local land use plans and existing development patterns
or current trend.

e Scenario 2 — A variation that concentrates growth in Downtown Ocala and other targeted areas identified by the county’s high
growth areas.

e Scenario 3 — A variation that shifts a greater share of growth toward multi family housing, particularly along key corridors such
as a higher density along SR 200.

3.3.1 Trend Forecast (Scenario 1)

The Trend Forecast was developed by the process shown in Appendix C. Future land use densities and intensities adopted by Marion
County and its municipalities were combined with parcel-level land use data to estimate vacant, and developable land within each
Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)'. A gravity model distributed growth based on the “mass” (or attractiveness) of each TAZ and
activity center, weighted by distance. Preliminary results were reviewed in coordination with staff from the TPO and local municipalities,
and adjustments were made to individual TAZs where appropriate to reflect local knowledge and planning priorities.

*A Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ) is a geographical area within a city or region that urban planners and transport officials use to study and manage
traffic patterns, vehicle movements, and transportation needs.

' A Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ) is a geographical area within a city or region that urban planners and transport officials use to study and manage
traffic patterns, vehicle movements, and transportation needs.

OCALA MARION TPO




2050

The Dwelling Unit analysis used 2015 base year data and incorporated considerations from the FDOT District 5 Central Florida
Regional Planning Model (CFRPM) that was under development at the time. Forecasted 2050 dwelling units are summarized in Table
3-3 while Figure 3-1 shows the difference between the base year and the forecast year for single and multifamily dwelling units.

Table 3-3: Marion County Dwelling Unit Growth (Scenario 1)
Trend Forecast
Base Year :
(Scenario 1)

Single Family 177,804 224,032 46,228

Dwelling Units

Multi Family 29,256 55,212 25,956

Scenario 1 Bottom Line:
By 2050, Scenario 1 projects more than 72,000 new homes in Marion County—
35% over the next 25 years.

OCALA MARION TPO




Figure 3-1. Marion County Trend Population Growth

widridyernneni

Caravel nch
Wiltnid
Management
Area

ahd — o4 Area 301
2050 Trend Growth : icanopy ;
Total N b 4 .3
Dwelling Units R |
Bronson
[ ] 0-150
[ ] 151-300
N L 301-500 301
= B s01-900
B o0+ i
Mort
2 301
4 27 ~— 326
Scenario 1 ifd // g
ht 40
'accasassa Bay }\ 40 2 T
‘reserve State +, I
Park 64
N
Gulf Hammock H_ 301 35
wildlife
Management 1
Area
27
-~ Inglis -
-~ e N773ﬁ _ Cith\gs Sprin
0 375 75 15 Miles

; 83 ft ‘_\Beverly i

/

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

I

1

|

|
@ Crescent

Lake
N
N
\
\

_Georgetown

/"\

I~

301
| b

\ 4

T
}Qe\Villages

Jgmatilla

In addition to the Trend Forecast, two alternative scenarios were developed to evaluate different prospective growth patterns.

OCALA MARION TPO




3.3.2 Scenario 2

This scenario reduces overall growth in most areas while concentrating additional population within the Downtown Ocala area and
along areas specified by Marion County staff. These areas include Liberty Triangle, Marion Oaks, Equestrian Center, the airport, and
Belleview bypass. This scenario supports redevelopment, maximizes existing infrastructure, and helps preserve rural character
elsewhere in the county. It enhances access to jobs, services, and amenities, while reducing pressures on the transportation system
associated with more dispersed growth. The differences from the Trend Forecast are summarized in Table 3-4, and Figure 3-2 illustrates
the distribution of growth for this scenario.

Table 3-4. Scenario 2 Dwelling Unit Growth

Base Year Reduced Growth Forecast Difference From Trend
(Scenario 2) (Growth)

Dwelling Units

Single Family 177,804 223,899 38,478 -133 -0.06%
Multi Family 29,256 55,415 22,894 0.37%

Scenario 2 Bottom Line:
Population makes dramatic increases along key regional corridors
such as SR 200 and SR 35, while also contributing to key newly developed
residential areas like Marion Oaks.

OCALA MARION TPO




Figure 3-2. Scenario 2 Population Growth

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

. . .
2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

ﬁn:d

Trend - Scenario

Change

2B

Total Dwelling Units

<= (-50)
<=0
0-50
51 - 150
150+

TAZ

N BLLER

Greenway
Areas

[onson

1SaSSTBAY
arve State
Park

Gulf Hammock
wildlife
Management
Area

P LQ_Ingl|s

/ -~

=

~

15 Miles

-
=

.773ﬂ OCi s Spring

N

Aft OBeverIy m

m icanopy Goi)

v A
A==

Hernandn
B

l

o Qe Villages

i
|
EB Crescent
Lake
N
R
\
\
I
1
\
I
OGeorgetown O
d
~
"\
\L
S Lake C
. State
N
I
\
e
La
Wi
matilla

OCALA MARION TPO




3.3.3 Scenario 3

In this scenario a portion of projected single family housing was changed to multifamily housing, with an emphasis on specific high-
growth areas as identified by Marion County staff. These areas include the SR 200 corridor, the northwest US 27 corridor, and central
Ocala. This shift signifies anticipated market trends and also responds to community priorities for improving housing affordability by
emphasizing options other than single-family development. Differences from the Trend Forecast are summarized in Table 3-5, and
Figure 3-3 illustrates the distribution of growth.

Table 3-5. Scenario 3 Dwelling Unit Growth

Base Year Reduced Growth Forecast Difference From Trend
(Scenario 3) (Growth)

Single Family 177,804 217,217 39,413 -6,815 -3.04%

Dwelling Units

Multi Family 29,256 63,338 34,082 8,126 14.72%

Scenario 3 Bottom Line:
Population is distributed to show large increases along
SR 200 (southwest Marion County) and US 27 (near the Equestrian Center)

OCALA MARION TPO




Figure 3-3. Scenario 3 Population Growth

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

ﬁn:d

Trend - Scenario 3
Total Dwelling Units
Change

<= (-50)
<=0
1-50
51-150
150+

TAZ

| BUUEN

Greenway
Areas

Dnson

asLMy

arve State
Park

Gulf Hammock
wildlife
Management
Area

g \LQ_Inghs
4 -~ I

5 S

=

-
=

15 Miles

.773ﬂ C‘Ci NIs Spring

N

Aft OBeverIy m

Hernandn
B

&3

@ icanopy

il

@I.
\ o &

e, 7

1
4

Qe Villages

o

matilla

i
1
Crescent
Lake

OCALA MARION TPO




or
= P i
e g -
- - - B o
o~ - - -
i L]
: % :_. c e =
X i L
=Y gk b s d B
X b Com wy, i, L=
I-l.. L. —
o ! s I
1 y = . b
I & =
x W
I'—l‘_."
L
b o
& —
b
/ ! II .. —
'- ==
= T
U %

-~ Needs and Cost Feas:lole

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

<V Transportation Piai-

e

o ey
| 3

e =

Ny

5




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

4 THE TRANSPORTATION PLAN - NEEDS & COST FEASIBLE

The Transportation Plan provides the foundation of the 2050 LRTP, presenting a fiscally constrained and forward-thinking approach to
meet mobility needs through the planning horizon. The plan builds on the Existing and Committed Roadway Needs for future investment
opportunities. The plan incorporates multimodal strategies, Transit Development Plan coordination, and the Active Transportation Plan.
Regional Projects, Operations and Management Strategies, congestion management, and safety-focused measures further strengthen
system performance. Safety, resilience, and efficiency remain guiding principles throughout the plan to ensure a comprehensive

transportation system for all users.

4.1 Projected Revenues

Existing revenues are insufficient to fully address the county’s future mobility
needs that will result from future growth in population and employment
expected by 2050. In 2024, voters in Marion County approved a twenty-year
extension of a one-penny sales tax that was first enacted in 2016. The
projected revenues through 2050 are shown in Table 4-1.

The table provides a summary of the roadway revenue totals by revenue
source available for capital projects by timeframe through the year 2050.
The revenues are provided in Present-Day Value (PDV), which is the value
of the dollars at the time of the estimate (2024 Dollars), and Year of
Expenditure (YOE), which is the estimated cost at the time of spending in
the future, including inflation. Additional information regarding the LRTP’s
demonstration of fiscal constraint is provided in Appendix D. The revenue
forecast was prepared consistent with guidance from FDOT and the Central
Florida MPO Alliance, as documented in Appendix E.

OCALA MARION TPO

$624.2 million $2.42 billion

Federal/State, Local,
$624,200,000 $2,420,000,000




Table 4-1. Revenue Summary in Year of Expenditure (YOE) Costs

Revenue Source 2031-2035 2036-2040 2041-2050 2031-2050 Total
Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) $49,403,000 $20,134,000 $106,991,000 $176,528,000
State Highway System (Non-SIS) — Non-TMA $26,245,407 $27,014,567 $54,544,069 $107,804,043
SHS (non-SIS) Product Support $5,773,990 $5,943,205 $11,999,695 $23,716,889
Other Roads (Non-SIS, Non-SHS) “Off-System” $7,290,000 $7,580,000 $15,440,000 $30,310,000
Other Roads (Non-SIS, Non-NHS) Product Support $1,603,800 $1,667,600 $3,396,800 $6,668,200
Surface Transportation Block Grant — Any Area (SA) $25,404,926 $25,336,224 $50,669,857 $101,411,007
Surface Transportation Block Grant — Non-TMA (SN, SM, SL) $36,621,126 $36,061,452 $71,387,758 $144,070,336
Transportation Alternatives — Any Area (TALT) $3,092,912 $3,084,548 $6,168,781 $12,346,242
Transportation Alternatives — Non-TMA (TALN, TALM, TALL) $5,421,943 $5,339,081 $10,576,542 $21,337,566
Subtotal Federal/State Revenues $160,857,104 $132,160,677 $331,174,502 $624,192,283

Infrastructure Sales Tax $237,360,000 $287,040,000 $616,920,000 $1,141,320,000
Impact Fees $106,710,000 $119,940,000 $273,270,000 $499,920,000
) Ninth Cent Fuel Tax $15,718,650 $19,008,600 $47,277,800 $82,005,050

#ggsgy Levied Fuel " oI Option Fuel Tax $65,319,150 | $78,990,600  $196,463,800 $340,773,550
Second Local Option Gas Tax $14,647,950 $17,713,800 $44,057,400 $76,419,150

State Levied Fuel Constitutional Fuel Tax $33,817,350 $40,895,400 $101,714,200 $176,426,950
Taxes County Fuel Tax $16,901,580 $21,896,160 $59,899,440 $98,697,180
Subtotal Local Revenues $490,474,680 $585,484,560 $1,339,602,640 $2,415,561,880

Grand Total $651,331,784 | $717,645,237 | $1,670,777,142 | $3,039,754,163

Sources: Florida Department of Transportation 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook and Central Florida MPO Alliance

Note: Carbon Reduction Program revenues (CAR-N, CAR-M, CAR-L) were forecasted to total $18,437,226

*Estimated Ocala Marion TPO allocation of funding eligible anywhere in District Five

** Estimated Ocala Marion TPO allocation of funding eligible for non-TMA MPOs in District Five (Ocala Marion and Lake-Sumter)
***According to the FDOT 2050 Revenue Forecast. MPOs can also assume that an additional 22 percent of estimated SHS (non-SIS) funds
are available from the statewide “Product Support” program to support PD&E and PE activities.

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

o

05

Long Range Transportation Plan

4.2 Transportation Improvement Program

The Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) covers the first five years of the Long Range Transportation Plan. Federal regulations
require a TIP to include four years of improvements; however Florida requires that a TIP includes improvements covering a five-year
period. Major changes to the TIP go through a formal review process, including a public hearing.

Revenue sources for the TIP projects are listed below in Table 4-2. The full table can be found in the Ocala Marion TIP FY 2025/2026-
2029/2030 available in Appendix F.

Table 4-2. TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Revenues in Year of Expenditure (YOE) Costs

e | wm | aw | am | awe | _
ource

Federal $34,325,023 $33,093,978 $62,111,813 $1,524,583 $61,553,727 $192,609,124
State $78,942,745 $37,264,929 $33,236,377 $12,453,930 $186,082,632 $347,980,613
Local $5,160,476 $3,850,840 $2,204,693 $1,027,258 $1,093,276 $13,336,543
Total $118,428,244 $74,209,747 $97,552,883 $15,005,771 $248,729,635 $553,926,280

Source: Ocala Marion TIP 2025/2026-2029/2030

The current TIP includes several projects which are scheduled to be at least partially funded, as listed below in Table 4-3 and Table
4-4. Additional project information including scheduled phases and costs can be found in the Ocala Marion TIP FY 2025/2026-
2029/2030 available in Appendix F. Costs shown in the TIP five-year program are shown as year of expenditure (YOE), which are
considered equivalent to present day value (PDV). Additionally, the map on Figure 4-2illustrates projects that are fully funded through
construction by 2030, the final year of the TIP. Figure 4-2 show fully funded projects based on the TPO TIP, Marion County TIP, and
City of Ocala Capital Improvement Program (CIP).

OCALA MARION TPO




Table 4-3. TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Roadway Projects (Tier 1)

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

205C

O

FuIIy

I-75 at N\W 49 St End of 49" St

I-75 at SR 326

I-75 at SR 326

I-75 SR 200

UsS 41 SW 110 St

US 441 at SR 464

SR 40 End of 4-
Lanes

SR 40 E of CR 314

SR 40 at SW 27 Ave

SR 40 US 441

SW SR 200 at SW 60 Ave

SR 200 Qitrus County
Line

CR 42 atCR 25

CR 42 atCR 25

CR 475A

NE 8 Ave SR 40

SE 100 Ave

OCALA MARION TPO

End of NW 35 St Interchange improvements CST, ROW
Interchange modifications PE
Interchange improvements CST
SR 326 Add auxiliary lanes S
N of SR 40 Capacity CST
Operations CST
E of CR 314 Capacity CST
E of CR 314A Capacity ROW
Safety CST
25 Ave Intersection improvements CST
Safety CST
CR 484 Capacity PE
Intersection improvements CST
Intersection improvements CST
Paved shoulders PE, CST
SR 492 Roundabout CST
Paved Shoulders PE, CST

Table 4-4. TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
No

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

$21,318,210
$12,546,000
$1,055,000
$20,886,098
$112,358,984
$4,537,846
$129,751,356
$42,713,393
$1,822,492
$716,993
$1,161,885
$5,000,000
$782,910
$125,185
$1,915,028
$5,222,469
$1,259,028




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

05

Long Range Transportation Plan

o

To Street Improvement Type FanlﬂLyd? Total Cost
Belleview Greenway Trail Bike Path and Trail CST Yes $868,700
Belleview Greenway Trail Bike Path and Trail PE Yes $265,000
g;‘;fjwf/'a";i?.fa” paseine | Santos Paved Bike Path and Trail csT Yes $5,600,000
Pruitt Trail SR 200 Pruitt Trailhead Bike Path and Trail CST Yes $2,909,626
Pruitt Trail SR 200 Pruitt Trailhead Bike Path and Trail CST Yes $203,007
usS 441 SE102PL SR 200 Sidewalk and Path CST Yes $5,240,567

OCALA MARION TPO




4.1 Roadway Plan
4.1.1 Phasing of Projects

Roadway and highway projects included in Navigating the Future are organized into five tiers that reflect their priority and funding
status, as illustrated in Figure 4-1. Tier 1 consists of committed improvements that are scheduled for construction within the next five
years. Tier 1 projects are highlighted in Figure 4-2, and include fully funded projects as listed in Table 4-3 above. Tiers 2 and 3 include
projects that are part of the Cost Feasible Plan and are expected to move forward within the 2050 planning horizon. Tier 4 identifies
high-priority projects that are not currently cost feasible but may be advanced if additional funding becomes available. Tier 5 represents
broader unfunded needs across the network.

Existing and . .
Committed costeasible costieasiie Partially Funded | Other Unfunded
Projects Projects .
Projects Needs

(2031-2040) (2041-2050)

Roadway
Improvements

Needs Assessment Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

High Priority Yes Yes Yes Yes

Should additional
Cost Feasible Yes Yes Yes funds become

available

Figure 4-1: Project Phases

OCALA MARION TPO




Long Range Transportation Plan

N
O
"
O

N |
T =
. ALACHUA |
A 0 1 2 4 Miles - I :
, _‘ |
R \ .,
— R CRE T
b ] L
|| } _ i
& T Hwy 318 L |
| ! | | .
14 - ! :
T [ EpE 5 P - i
= Hwy, 316 [RERDIC =7 1
LEVY | il
tHwy 329 /
1ooth S{ I ‘ '
Burbank Rd
I VOLUSIA
7. SILVER
\. SPRINGS = :

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

ka2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

2030 Existing+Committed Roadways

a3 1 ‘| —— 2lane Committed
CITRUS i - #Lane |:|‘:":| Intersections
4 r B G Lane

w8 Lane

SUMTER

LAKE

Figure 4-2: Tier 1 - Existing and Committed Roadways (Constructed by 2030)

OCALA MARION TPO




4.1.2 Prioritization Considerations

Navigating the Future approached project prioritization with the understanding that there is no one-size-fits-all prioritization process.
Rather than applying a rigid scoring system, a variety of factors we’ve considered to help guide investment decisions. Additional
prioritization was often given to projects “in the pipeline” that already have had phases funded or programmed. Conversely, projects
that presented a fatal flaw, such as significant environmental or community impacts, were not considered to be priorities.

Other important considerations included public support, projects anticipated to improve safety, addressing future congestion,
particularly on corridors forecast to experience heavy demand, and supporting regional freight by improving designated freight
corridors. Projects that provide connectivity, especially between major roadways and key activity centers, were also valued, along with
those that demonstrate potential to stimulate economic development, particularly through freight and goods movement. In addition,
projects that enhance travel and tourism by improving access to Marion County’s parks, natural springs, and equestrian facilities were
recognized as supporting both the local economy and quality of life.

Finally, local funding commitments played an important role in shaping priorities. Marion County maintains a list of projects to be funded
through the infrastructure surtax, a revenue source reaffirmed by voters in November 2024. This surtax provides a flexible tool for
advancing safety, roadway, and connectivity improvements that align with community needs and complement state and federal funding.

A detailed summary of the cost feasible projects is provided in Appendices G and H of this report. Appendix G presents project costs
in terms of Year of Expenditure (YOE) and Appendix H presents project costs in terms of the present day cost (PDV), or 2025 dollars.
The total plan includes over $4.3 billion of PDV roadway costs, over half of which are comprised of unfunded phases at over $4.4 billion
in present day costs.

The following pages include the maps of roadway capacity improvements (Figure 4-3 - Figure 4-5) and associated tables (Table 4-5 -
Table 4-8) listing the projects per the tiers listed on the previous page, covering Cost Feasible projects, Partially Funded projects, and
Unfunded Needs.

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

N

Long Range Transportation Plan

N
[rrrrTrTT] L
A 0 1 2 4 Miles Ataciua \
— T
.Kl ) - ".
v 1 L
L
| L nidl) i = N
— LT " I .
. . - f E |7 N ‘ i
—f T v
I — Hwy 318 r F . g z
T 7 | = | T
(o s : |
—— . \ .
= Hwy 316 2 i T i
p i =
] — [ . - > e
| — R | W Silver,Springs Blvd —
LEVY e —— e
- Hwy 329 /5 o IESSSE=
I g - A\ ’ B |5 =
g - J N -— ==
127 ’ B & L L . S T .
E Tooth st. N b f7th st '
| \ ! » \ sotnke | 200 — ; > - ‘ :
! . Burbank/Rd o 7 S JI | |,J N \% - 7er| \
| N T Z v T ) VOLUSIA
K | S SRS — ———1
| =L | v g Y
( . Fi WSHIP .
| [ SILVER vl -
. SPRINGS, ¥
m [ ROMEO
:ring_‘s B\ ]
-~
pd 1 @] 1, £
‘ Z 38tr‘| St 3 ‘
i 5} ) L - ~
.:/_/:
=1
3
| ©
T |
— | §
NAVIGATING THE FUTURE
‘ A Long Range Transportation Plan
T " Cost Feasible Projects
— ‘ s ! — 2lane Operational
CITRUS @ el 1 — 4lane Cost Feasible
‘ L= [TT] e g lane d‘:":. Intersections
’ === 8 Lane
SUMTER LAKE

OCALA MARION TPO

Figure 4-3: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible Projects (2031 - 2050)




Table 4-5: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible Roadway Capacity Projects

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

205C

CD

NE 35 St

NE 55 Ave

Shores East
Extension

SE 92 Loop
Extension

SW 20 St

SR 40

CR 475A

CR 484

CR 42

NW 37 Ave

CR 42

CR 475

Banyan Rd
Extension

NE 36 Ave

SR 40

SE 156 Place Rd

SE 95 St

[-75

End of Four Lanes

SW 66 St

Marion Oaks Blvd

SE 58 Ave

SR 40

SE 36 Ave

SE 59 St

Banyan Rd

OCALA MARION TPO

SR 40

NE 35 St

Maple Lane

US 441

SR 200

E of CR 314

SW 42 St

CR 475A

uUS 301

us 27

SE 58 Ave

SE 32 St

Pecan Pass

0.42

0.60

0.61

1.08

5.36

1.76

1.80

0.75

1.39

2.01

2.15

0.53

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

New 2 Lanes

New 2 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 4 to 6 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

New 2 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

New 2 Lanes

2031 -2035

2031 - 2035

2031 -2035

2031 - 2035

2031 - 2035

2031 - 2035

2031 - 2035

2031 - 2035

2036 — 2040

2036 — 2040

2036 — 2040

2036 — 2040

2041 — 2050




NE 36 Ave

CR 484

NE 36 Ave

SW 66 St

SW 80 St

CR 484

SE 92 Place Rd

SR 464

Marion Oaks Manor
Extension

Marion Oaks Manor

SR 40

NW 60 Ave

Table 9: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible Roadway Capacity Projects (Continued)

NE 14 St

Marion Oaks Course

NE 25 St

SW 49 Ave

SW 80 Ave

CR 475A

US 441

SE 31 St

SW 18 Ave Rd

SW 49 Ave

E of CR 314A

us 27

OCALA MARION TPO

NE 21 St

Marion Oaks Blvd

NE 35 St

SW 27 Ave

SR 200

CR 475

SR 35

Midway Rd

CR 475

Marion Oaks Lane

Levy Hammock Rd

NW 49 St

0.87

0.77

1.25

1.54

1.99

1.68

4.41

2.15

3.22

2.48

0.98

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 4 to 6 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 4 to 6 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 4 to 6 Lanes

New 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes

New 4 Lanes

2041 —

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2041

2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

— 2050

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

205C

O




Table 4-6: Tiers 2 & 3 - Cost Feasible Intersection Projects

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

05

Long Range Transportation Pl

o

SR/CR 464/Maricamp Rd
SW 42 St

SW SR 200

West Oak Spine Rd
West Oak Spine Rd

NW Martin Luther King Av
SW 27 Av

SE 31 St

SE 31 St

SR 35

SW 31 St

SW 32 St

SW 60 Av

SR 40

SR 40

usS 41

SW 95 St

OCALA MARION TPO

at SR 35

at CR 475A
at SW 60 Av
at NW 35 St
at NW 21 St
at NW 21 St
at SW 19 Av
at SE 24 Rd
at SE 19 Av
at SR 25

at SW 7 Av
at CR 475
at US 27

at Sw67 Av/NW 68 Av

at SR 35
at SR 40
at |-75

Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection
Modify Intersection

Flyover

2031 - 2035
2031 - 2035
2031 - 2035
2031 - 2035
2031 -2035
2036 — 2040
2036 — 2040
2036 — 2040
2036 — 2040
2036 — 2040
2041 — 2050
2041 — 2050
2041 — 2050
2041 - 2050
2041 — 2050
2041 — 2050
2041 - 2050




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

CITRUS

N 2 =
J y ALACHUA
A (@ k] 4 Miles
< = s
1 <
f onesi Y =
i : . :
$ : | 5 = 3 -
; k g 2 w H
= Hwy 318 : i i Y £ .F
=1 i i
T 7 IE T ] sgih e[ B
i : — 301 5 ‘ = = =
. r e - a2l | |
| ‘ : REBDICRN ™ || | AN '
| Hwy, 316 oy | b | % |
T ] ‘ . ﬁ WS‘iI_va'l‘5P
LEVY | T . 7 :
S (e | —— } @ |
LS N v BT ‘ in DHES: e
‘ ! | = = / =t v Sin
g A1 > il -4 5 <]
27| 3 Y ANTHDNY E 2 = . 18 i AN i ST
3 _ iooth S| l ] B E_} W ((rense \ Tl | Q‘l.’;:, B = P
I 200 — A R + :
) BurbankRd | _.‘/,Ji I N ,:,,\7‘,' T % \ |
| L = - . .. Ii VOLUSIA
[ FETmQWSHIP : { . st
; \ S e, g # 5-Nat all Forest
o SILVER S T Ocalg-National Forest
2 SPRINGS, i
: E
N2 | /
= ] ;
¥ 1]
o
W Silver Springs Blvd j
% 38th st
Loe L -
YORK = =
@ 2 -
] < - - =
=
5
-3
— NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

SUMTER LAKE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan
2050 Partially Funded Needs
[ Study Areas

Partially Funded
ED:I Intersections
[T Corridor Study

— 2 Llane
m— 4 | ane
6 Lane

= 8 lane

OCALA MARION TPO

Figure 4-4: Tier 4 - Partially Funded Projects




Table 4-7: Tier 4 - Partially Funded Projects

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

05

Long Range Transportation Plan

o

SR 200 Sumter County Line CR 484 6.00 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
UsS 41 SW 110 St SR 40 3.40 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
SR 35 at Robinson Rd Modify Intersection PE/DES/ROW
[-75 at SR 200 Modify Interchange PE/DES/ROW
[-75 at CR 318 Modify Interchange PE/DES/ROW
UsS 301 CR 42 SE 147 St 2.23 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
UsS 301 SE 147 St 143 Place 0.13 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
SR 40 us 41 CR 328 9.73 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
SR 40 E Of CR 314 E Of CR 314A 5.04 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
SR 40 Levy Hammock Rd SR 19 12.78 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
US 441 Lake County Line CR 42 2.02 Widen 4 to 6 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
CR 42 CR 475 SE 36 Av 2.01 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
SR 326 US 441 SR 40 8.46 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
CR 484 SW 180 Ave Rd SR 200 8.22 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES/ROW
SW To NE Corridor (West Beltway) Corridor Study PE/ROW
I-75 CR 318 Alachua County Line 5.94 Aux Lanes PE/DES
CR 484 SR 200 (“ézg‘t’)“ Raks Pass 5.50 Widen 2 to 4 Lanes PE/DES
I-75 SR 326 CR 318 10.23 Aux Lanes PE/DES
[-75 at SW 20 St New Interchange PE
East-West Corridor Corridor Study PE

OCALA MARION TPO




N -
T ¥
’ ALACHUA
A 0o 1 2 4 Miles —
)
T SNVSF
..o Jaimi iy
) ;
A
i
1. 47SliNg
i Lo L ;
- | B
.‘,"‘II‘\’
LEVY | o T Ui i :
Hwy 329 /T ! - 7 =
f Al . /)
ANTHONY. [Tt

1o00th 5t

Tir:.g‘s Blvd |

Burbank/Rd

i SILVER

\.SPRINGS,

i

th Ave

N6

CITRUS

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

N

Long Range Transportation Plan

—
T .
LT * -\,
%
1
9
>
<
= [
o) 4N}
By ~@)
9
E
|- g ¢
e
N =
iRy I =
- T
3
2 y27 s
=
£ T
=
=

~8th.-Ave

[[]2ath Ay,

2t
\
I

W

ard

Ocal

National Forest’

VOLUSIA

OCALA MARION TPO

SUMTER

Figure 4-5: Tier 5 - Unfunded Needs

LAKE

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan
2050 Unfunded Needs Projects
— 2Llane

Unfunded Needs
4 Lane Intersections
= § Lane

= 3 Lane




Table 4-8: Tier 5 - Unfunded Roadway Capacity Projects

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

05

Long Range Transportation Plan

o

CR 200A
CR 25

CR 316
CR 318
CR 42

CR 484
CR 484
I-75

I-75

NE 25 Ave
NW 35 Ave
SE 110 St
SE 24 St
SE 44 Ave
SR 200
SR 35

SR 35
SW 66 St
us 27

usS 441

NE 35 St

SR 35

NE 152 Place
Levy County Line
UsS 441

Marion Oaks Course
UsS 41

at CR 484

at SR 200

SR 492

NW 49/35 St

SE 36 Ave/CR 467
SE 36 Ave

SE 52 St

at SW 43 St

NE 35 St

SR 25

SR 200

NW 44 Ave

CR 42

SR 326

SE 108 Terrace Rd
NE 152 St

[-75

CR 25

Marion Oaks Blvd
Lake Shore Dr

NE 35 St
NW 63 St
usS 441

SE 28 St
SE 38 St

SR 326

SE 92 Place Loop
SW 49 Ave

NW 27 Ave

SE 132 St Rd/SE 92 Place

Loop

2.58
4.47
8.71

10.01
3.82
0.87
0.24

1.60
1.1
1.23
1.34
1.13

1.38
1.77
1.51
1.85

3.99

Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 4 to 6 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Modify Interchange
Modify Interchange
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
New 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Modify Intersection
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 2 to 4 Lanes
Widen 4 to 6 Lanes

Widen 4 to 6 Lanes

OCALA MARION TPO 4-16



4.2 Public Transportation

SunTran is the transit provider for Marion County. In 2023, the agency developed Riding into the Future, the 2023-2032 Transportation
Development Plan (TDP) that evaluates the existing conditions of the operations and service and identifies needs and improvements.
In developing the LRTP, the transit needs and improvements identified in the adopted TDP were carried forward as the foundation for
the cost-feasible and needs assessment analyses. The TDP provides a 10-year horizon of fiscally constrained and unconstrained
projects that reflect operational, service coverage, and capital priorities for the SunTran system. These improvements are incorporated
into the LRTP to ensure consistency with FDOT and federal requirements for transit planning.

Beyond the TDP horizon, additional aspirational improvements are identified and included in the later years of the LRTP. These
aspirational projects represent long-term service expansions and innovative mobility strategies that extend the system vision beyond
the constrained TDP, ensuring that the LRTP captures both immediate priorities and the region’s broader transit mobility aspirations.

Figure 4-6 and Figure 4-7 illustrate where these needs and improvements will be located. The short-term improvements in Table 4-9
includes those needs and improvements anticipated to be initiated within the first five years of the plan, which includes 2023-2027.
Some of these improvements have been made; others will roll over into the next five years or later. Table 4-10 includes longer term
needs and improvements that are anticipated to be initiated from 2028 onward.

Additional information can be found in Appendix |.

fiil|

s
1)

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE




Ocala/farion Coanty, Flarida

Find yourr plice

e =a o= o= ow wr ea as

jMarion Countyl Alachua Putnam County
— County
) Mecintosh

75

Citrus
County
\ Sumter County \ Lake County
Short-term
Service Concept
—— Pink

= Blue
= Green
= Orange
== Purple
e Red
= Silver

Silver
Express

Yellow A
== Yellow B
| Microtransit

Belleview

“
Y
~
N

Figure 4-6: SunTran TDP Short-Term Service Concept (from FY2023-2032 TDP)

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan




Serrs Trom O>CA A

Ocala/Mfarion Coany, Flarida

\ . |Marion County|

Citrus
County

Alachua Putnam County

County

\\\ Sumter County \

Lake County )

Belleview

~
LY
x

Long-term
Service Concept

== Pink
&= Blue
> Green
== Qrange
= Purple
e Red
&= Silver
= Teal
Yellow A
= = YelowB
" Microtransit

Figure 4-7: SunTran TDP Long-Term Service Concept (from FY2023-2032 TDP)

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan




Table 4-9: SunTran TDP Short Term Alternatives (2023-2027)

Blue-Green-Orange-Purple interline Increase frequency to every 52 minutes; serve the Florida Center for the Blind;
improvements incorporate electric vehicles

Yellow Route improvements Increase peak frequency on the Yellow A route to 70 minutes; streamline route
Marion Oaks service Run a new route to Marion Oaks

Silver Route revamping with microtransit Reroutings on Silver and Silver Express routes; northwest microtransit zone
Red Route streamlining Simplify route to focus on west part of route on SE 24th St

Belleview service Run a new route to Belleview

Microtransit — Sunday A Run microtransit in northeast part of Ocala on Sundays

Microtransit — Sunday B Run microtransit in western part of Ocala on Sundays

Microtransit — Sunday C Run microtransit in Downtown and southeast part of Ocala

Run microtransit along SR 200, in the vicinity of the Walmart near CR 484 and
neighborhoods to the east

Run microtransit along SR 200, in the vicinity of On Top of the World
Communities and west of SW 60th Ave

Run microtransit along SR 200, between SW 60th Ave and the College of
Central Florida / Paddock Mall

Microtransit — SR 200 South
Microtransit — SR 200 Central

Microtransit — SR 200 North

OCALA MARION TPO 4-20



___________________________________________________________________ LUl
2050

Table 4-10: SunTran TDP Long Term Alternatives (2028-2033)

NEED/ALTERNATIVE DESCRIPTION

Green-Blue-Orange-Purple interline frequency
increase

Increase frequency to 35 minutes

Yellow A Route improvement Increase frequency and span

Yellow B and Marion Oaks Routes — Consolidate Yellow B and Marion Oaks service into a single Marion Oaks route

consolidate

Silver Route — consolidate Consolidate the Silver and Silver Express routes into a single streamlined route
Red Route shortening + microtransit Shorten the Red Route. Add microtransit in Silver Springs Shores

Belleview Route shortening + microtransit Shorten the new Belleview Route. Add microtransit in Belleview.

Run a new crosstown route between the Silver Springs Shores and Belleview

Southeast Crosstown ; .
microtransit areas

OCALA MARION TPO




ﬂjf ACTIVE

TRANSPORTATION

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

050

Long Range Transportation Plan

4.3 Active Transportation

The TPO has developed an Active Transportation Plan (ATP) to serve as a
comprehensive framework for bicycle, pedestrian, equestrian, and other non-
motorized transportation modes. The plan will be incorporated into the LRTP as
the foundation for identifying active transportation needs and projects. By directly
integrating the recommendations of the Active Transportation Plan, the LRTP
ensures consistency between local multimodal planning efforts and the regional
long-range vision, while providing a clear path for funding and implementation of
facilities that enhance safety, connectivity, and accessibility for all users.

OCALA MARION TPO

Why the ATP Matters

The Active Transportation Plan positions Marion
County to take advantage of a wide range of
funding opportunities by aligning with state,
regional, and local priorities. By coordinating with
neighboring MPOs and advancing regional trail
connections, the ATP provides a direct link from
vision to implementation. These strategies also
highlight the role of active transportation in
tourism, economic development, public health,
and quality of life, ensuring that investments
deliver benefits well beyond mobility.




4.3.1 ATP Process

The ATP was developed in coordination with the 2050 LRTP to ensure consistency across strategies and investments. The plan was
built on a comprehensive process that included an assessment of existing conditions, a detailed analysis of safety patterns, and
evaluations of pedestrian and bicycle Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) and accessibility. Local project lists, committed improvements from
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), and technical gap analyses were all integrated into the project development process.
To guide implementation, the ATP applied a structured, tiered prioritization framework that helps identify projects with the greatest
potential to improve safety, connectivity, and access.

4.3.2 ATP Key Considerations

Several considerations shaped the development of the ATP. Safety was a central focus, as Marion County experiences a high
concentration of fatal and serious injury crashes involving pedestrians and bicyclists, particularly along major corridors such as SR
200, SR 40, and U.S. 301/441/27. Connectivity challenges were another concern, since sidewalks and bike lanes are largely
concentrated in the cities of Ocala, Belleview, and Dunnellon, leaving much of the unincorporated areas of the county with limited
facilities. Growth and land use trends, including suburban expansion, tourism, and the county’s equestrian heritage, also influence

; demand for multimodal connections. Finally, the plan highlights the broader benefits
of active transportation, enhancing property values, boosting tourism, supporting
economic vitality, and improving public health.

4.3.3 ATP Outreach and Stakeholder Efforts

The plan reflects extensive input from local partners and the community. An Active
Transportation Plan Stakeholder Committee, the TPO Board and Committees, and
local agencies provided guidance throughout the process to ensure alignment with
community priorities. Public engagement included an online survey and interactive
comment map, conducted from September 2024 through February 2025, which
- gathered feedback on participation in active transportation, facility needs, and
¢ spending habits. Stakeholder feedback also informed adjustments to the prioritization
tiers to account for project feasibility and on-the-ground conditions. The Active
% Transportation Plan was also part of the 2050 LRTP community workshops in

% September 2024, February 2025 and September 2025.

OCALA MARION TPO




___________________________________________________________________ LUl
2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

4.3.4 ATP Priorities

The ATP identifies Tier 1 projects as the highest priorities for near-term investment. These include trail projects such as the SW 27th
Avenue/SW 42nd Street corridor, connections between Ocala and Silver Springs, and the Pruitt Gap. Sidewalk and shared use path
projects were also prioritized to close major gaps along corridors like SR 40, SR 464, and US 301/441. Bicycle improvements focused
on buffered bike lanes and key north—south connectors within Ocala to enhance citywide mobility. Taken together, these priorities
emphasize closing sidewalk gaps, addressing safety hotspots on major corridors, and expanding regional trail connections, especially
in areas with higher population density, greater need, and a history of crashes involving people walking and biking.

Bicycle projects included in the current draft of the ATP are shown on Figure 4-8 and listed in Table 4-11.

A selection of Sidewalk and Shared-Use Path (SUP) projects (Tier 1 only) included in the current draft of the ATP are shown on Figure
4-9 and listed in Table 4-12.

Trail projects included in the current draft of the ATP are shown on Figure 4-10 and listed in Table 4-13.

OCALA MARION TPO 4L4-24



NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

= 1) 7
o AVENUE G ~ [} 1
z L4
Central Marion County 2 ! W) |
z s o ] 4 1
& § = N LE Y
3 ? = ~ s b S .
% £ G ~— b=/
3 2, 3189 ECR3¥
Z w
= x
2 £
e 2
) .
o .
“ %
o —
NW 35 ST NE 35 ST 5 w
22 £ <% NE 55 AVE
Ae ub 51 & W HWY 316 EHWY 316
& L NE2BST i
NW 2B ST o e £ =
WA NEzast NE24ST 5
Stz 3
M2 Z i o
£ 2 P
: ST = N maNoUARD' W' NEERD e @ =
53) ¥ 8 g2 8 3
=z * o 2
: o ;
—— g H H S
— B wi g
B & z 5 : G s
= z z Z x
H o o ner NE 7TH ST z 3 o
< s LE (a0 2 - =
=i o = b o = z 5
Sl =5 I w2 NE 35T ;’ i
Bt z NE 1 AVE|
g o o o 1 A s 2
i ans > E FT KING ST 2 w! o
(a0) S S — = L Bopy
s L] sessr PRl pmhy et
WSy 2swe S8t SE7 (2l
msE e swaomstbess prmballflLd we Wy 31
w = g L SE 12 5T = = = =
= e, Tong,, g Gl 4 @ i
= v e o El
5 | <, ey se1zsy z G £
B 2 G450 searst H Y
B s H #
- ¥ 2
5 TG % % =
2 % z ) =
2 = %5 E P = ME 55 AVE RD
£ . . o ) w NW 35 5T NE 35 5T NE 55 AVE
swpo 3 eonn W ) ?
pLoig oy S 3 z N MAGNOLIA RD NE 28 5T i
5 2 c % W28 ST BRD kS
EIE ﬂs'* 5 = g w20 NE23ST 2
e < SE 38 ST L w
= % w wl Z z
& 3 NgaacnOLAAvE ¥ E 1 (GsD
SIMAGNOLIA AVE. 5 = A e
i ~N o w
¥ I e L
w W FT KING s 1 an
1 (a0) 2 E on JE T AEETRNG ST el L
2 w S MAGNOLIA EXT S\ 107H ST BZe (40)
1 ot se 17 st
Z Lo ST
1 o »;i (a64)
I PP )
02 o ®  SE38ST
1 sw & ] )
o~ © CR-464A
] a1} a () &
2 %, %
1 % %
7 w 3
1 — g
1 = 5
z b
1 2 & st 80 sT
I CR-312/5W 7 PL
I 53t
{27
m: L (27)
k @ A
Gl ) -
1 SW 107 PL &
fA'I T &
1 WHWY 40 & . oy se1s &
5 H
o~ E ENN AVE WUy 484 - s @ € & ¥
1 WIPENN AVE: _BENNSYLVANIA AVE z 4 Wr g =
“"f"” \. g 2 z SE 135 AVE
~ z - &
5 @ 2 %
% SE HWY 484
=
§ Py i e
\. SW 145 5T fz01)
= 30

OCALA MARION TPO

Figure 4-8: 2050 Bicycle Projects (from Draft 2025 ATP)




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

O

Table 4-11: 2050 Bicycle Projects (from Draft ATP)

Potential buffered

Bicycle E Fort King St SE 16th Ave SE 22nd Ave
bike lane
Bicycle 2 NE 1st Ave SE Broadway St NE 2nd St Potential Bike Lane 2
Bicycle 3 S Magnolia Ave SW 10th St NE 2nd St Potential Bike Lane 2
Bicycle-Pedestrian
Bicycle 4 SR 200 Bridge over Withlacoochee River Accommodat_lons el 3
future bridge
replacement
Bicycle 5 SW 43rd Ct NW Blitchton Rd SR 200 Potential Bike Lane 3
Bicycle 6 SW 20th St [-75 SR 200 Potential Bike Lane 3
Bicycle 7 SW 66th St SR 200 SW 27th Ave Potential Bike Lane 3

OCALA MARION TPO




ATING THE FUTURE

___________________________________________________________________ LUl
2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

N
o e—x
B : s
Improvement Category
1 Sdenak/Share Use Pt
.’w‘g"’a Faeme? 1
—— - e
L 1
o 1
g
L4
T
B w320 “"‘-_ ]
5 AveguEG [ . el
5 EIN ] o £ e
E t Nyttt < 8 & s
~ ’, A L3 e 5
& N —ar = ”»,’ K % 2
e achas? ol % & g 4 z
it T E Ll & N
@ 4 ke & F
i 72 i N MAGNOLIA KD ME3RET
oy 74 e o ar o 3,
w ) 4 W i 2 3
57 s Eiwr sie A o
wn " Eroger 5
=
H 5
21 H = & i "
H z £ A m
iy g = & g W e
e 2 = 5 3 ik Ol L=
% 2 5 g 2 = 2
P u £ z z I8 = 2 H LS 14 13 9
L:] i 2 i 2 E :
H % s0 £ s
1 b i |
2z L] 32 31
6 = = 39
= . o i s st :
i 2 = S e
T s 9 6. B -} =8
p T 81 4
zp By
7 82
MICISAVERC TR e
wifss o 3 15 3 MR z 5 71 £
m NeSTEY 5 % & 5
nmagnous i BAW N ST 24 P L < “on,
£ 98l LM LT e s S el e iz
93 JE=sif, o 4 S a 3 = S6 9% suw
e o 0 sl o g = s
T s bim32esae et Bl e
u T A
H 21 67 20, nii82 g &
Zag (3 T Elii 66, .5 2 ] o E’, 9
2 3 A i T
10 93 93 ATk e wen ave E3 3 N % E
1 2 & 2 % =
5 5 e =N\ % =
e G 7 cnann % l
s 3 L. s
wl@ H gl 2
a4 = 3 swazst g
T 3 g T
1 § Z o
! 3 caaw 8 b :
; o !
k. 1 R 1
1 sw 107 6L o 1
- b o %
. PR 0 s £ N i
1 iy oA s 2 H ;
~apn SR = # 5 susave 1
& 3 , =
] ] i it ° VIGATING THE FUTURE
4% swaesar | &
o il
= &
- &
&
- o
by & ”
L . Long Range Transportation Plan
e e i
Improvement Category
Sidewalk/Shared Use Path

Figure 4-9: 2050 Sidewalk and Shared Use Path Projects (from Draft 2025 ATP)

OCALA MARION TPO




Note that Table 4-12 lists only Tier 1 sidewalk/shared use path projects. A table of the full list is included in Appendix J.

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk
Sidewalk
SUP
SUP
SUP
Sidewalk

10
11
12
13
14

Table 4-12: Selected 2050 Sidewalk and Shared Use Path Projects (from Draft ATP)

R N N e

SW 103rd St Road

NE 55th Avenue

SR 40/
Silver Springs Blvd

SR 464

US 301/441/27

SW 20th St

SW 19th Avenue
Road

SR 40

NE 7th St

SW 34th St
SW 95th St
NW 110th Ave
NE 7th St

NE 7th St

SR 200
NE 31st St

US 301/441 Pine

SR 200

S/0O Rail Line
Bridge sidewalk
ends

SW 34th Avenue

SR 464

north side of SR 40
to south side

SR 35-Baseline
SW 27th Avenue
SW 48th Avenue
SR 40

NE 36th Avenue
NE 36th Avenue

SW 38th

E Silver Springs
Blvd

SW 7th Avenue

SW 12th Avenue

SE 3rd Avenue

SW 38th Avenue

Existing sidewalk
NE 30th Avenue

SE 36th Avenue
SW 34th Circle
SW 40th Ter
NW 21st St
Baseline Rd

NE 46th Court

Multi-Use E-W Path connection

Sidewalk (on west side)

Sidewalks both sides of street to fill
gap.

Sidewalk to fill in gap - SR 200 to
SW 12th south side; SW 18th
Avenue
to SW 12th Avenue on north side

Sidewalk both sides under Rail
Bridge
Sidewalks both sides to fill in gap.

Sidewalk to fill in gap on north side
of road
Sidewalk connection across SR 40
to connect to NE 30th
Sidewalks both side of street to
complete gap

Sidewalk to fill in gaps both side
Shared Use Path
Shared Use Path
Shared Use Path

Sidewalk

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

205C

O

OCALA MARION TPO 4-28



ATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

= p— ”
E avigur s ™ ‘ ;
Central Marion County 4 : - '
S - 7 ! e
X ] { ~ PPl TR T [ :
e g : )
? i = ‘ by / ; v 4
\ : - &
15 ﬁ; ¢ 2 LR-MB‘ £ CR- 34"
i =
G "]
E
% -
3
fes
-
B
NE 35 5T I
304
%0 Z e W HWY 316 £ HWY 316
b iy G MEZ8 ST i
w g -
2057 wsisT WE T ST E
: N
W E 2 ]
52 = g% = -
B % g a g
® z — 5 B §
e : : x < 5
% = z 2 : . ;
L5 1glls 2 : s ! : :
: % : : E % <
; = fi = NE 3 5T 2 :
x W 3= iATae 12 ’a ;
;} ~ .tE EFT KING ST = = =
. i WRTING ST r e ] = -
swiersr i e AR ng o 3sE
- L ]
= G :
] SE 17 57 3 <
2= r : ik
540 z [TET 7 : i
5 ~ 2 1 . 3
: : ® T3t o
‘A g ‘ - = NE 55 AVE RD
* "]
B w “! NW 35 ST NE 35 §T NS ANEL g o
| oLt L N MANILARD  NE 28 57 v _______--\
: : : wn NW 2 ST -
i : ; NE B RD, NEZAST ®
= > B % 56 IKST Nk i
< 3 z £ ave (@99 = "
SMAGNOLIAAVE % : _ i’ i
- A
T RL7TH ST
: (ao) . z
2 e :
1 3 i3
E ]
l W T AVE )
i 2
i Yy & =
! s ¥
' =
1 I :
s s
~ <
3
l 1‘ 3 - SE 80 5T
' CR-312/5W &7 M1
' 9
L]
i 23)
B’ I >
l' ey w107 PL X g
; : - oyl SE 110 5T &
B s ‘h.pEL MNSTLVEG A SW HWY 284 - » ) 3 : : g
I 'mm\ frc el Y A 2 : K. :
; 4 A i 4 S 135 AVE
o & : :
L 2 - z
% -
S s..... % suwnese
3 @
‘ 3 SW 145 5T
e

Figure 4-10: 2050 Trail Needs (from Draft 2025 ATP)

OCALA MARION TPO




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

SW 27th Ave / SW 42nd St/
SW 43rd St Rd

NE 8th Ave

Wataula and NE 8th Avenue Trail
E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail
Pruitt Gap

Indian Lake Trail

SE Maricamp Rd

SR 40

Withlacoochee Bay Trail

E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail
E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail
Ocala to Silver Springs Trail

Silver Springs Bikeway

Lake Wauburg to Price's Scrub State
Park Trail

49th Ave

Nature Coast Trail (Chiefland to
Dunnellon) li

OCALA MARION TPO

Table 4-13: 2050 Trail Projects (from Draft ATP)

SW 19th Ave

NE 10th St

Tuscawilla Park

Silver Springs State Park

Pruitt Trailhead

SR 40/Silver Springs
State Park

East of SW 58th Ave
NE 60th Ct
Dunnellon

SE 183rd Avenue Rd

West of NW 102nd
Avenue Rd

SE Osceola Ave

East Silver Springs Blvd
Lake Wauburg

NW Blichton Rd

Dunnellon

SW 40th Ave

E Silver Springs Blvd

CR 200A/SE Jacksonville Rd

West of NW 102nd Avenue Rd

Dunnellon Trail

Indian Lake Trail Park
SE 110th Ave

East of NE 58th Ave
Levy County

SR 19

SE 183rd Avenue Rd

NE 58th Ave

Marjorie Harris Carr Cross
Florida Greenway Park

Price's Scrub State Park
NW 44th Ave

Levy County Line

Trail

Trail

New Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

Trail

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

205C

O




Table 17: 2050 Trail Projects (from Draft ATP) (Continued)

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

205C

O

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail
Chiefland to Dunnellon
Ocala Rail Trail

Cross Florida Greenway Connection

SR 200

Silver Springs Trail
Silver Springs to Hawthorne Trail
Dunnellon Trail Connection

NW 21st Ave

Nature Coast Trail (Chiefland to
Dunnellon) |

North Lake Trail

Cross Florida Greenway Land Bridge
Expansion

OCALA MARION TPO

SR 19
SW 215th Court Rd
SE 3rd St

SE Highway 314

Cross Florida Greenway

Lake County

Silver Springs State Park
St Patrick Dr

NW 35th St

SW Highway 484

SR 40

Over I-75

Volusia County Line Trail
SW Highway 484 Trail
Oak Rd Trail
Marshall Greenway Trail
Grade

separated

crossing
Silver Springs State Park Trail
Alachua County Trail
Cross Florida Greenway Trail
NW 21st St Trail
S Bridges Rd Trail
Lake County Line Trail
Trail




Transportation Innovation in Marion County

As part of its TSM&O program, FDOT District 5 is
advancing technology projects in Marion County
Two notable examples are:

I-75 FRAME

Florida’s Regional Advanced Mobility Elements
(FRAME) project will deploy new technologies to
improve corridor operations. Tools include
Automated Traffic Signal Performance Measures
(ATSPM), Connected Vehicle roadside and on-
board units, and both Transit and Freight Signal
Priority. FRAME will create an integrated corridor
management  system, providing real-time
information to motorists during incidents and
enhancing freight and transit reliability.

SR 40 ITS Safety Deployment
(Wildlife Detection and Warning)

This project will use wildlife detection sensors and
warning beacons to alert drivers when animals are
present on or near the roadway. Data collected will
be stored for performance evaluation and
integrated with FDOT’s statewide Connected
and Automated Vehicle services. This system
aims to reduce animal-vehicle collisions,
improve safety, and protect environmental
resources along a key east—west corridor.

4.4 Operations and Management Strategies

The Ocala Marion TPO maintains a Congestion Management Process (CMP) to
improve the safety, efficiency, and reliability of the county’s major roadway network.
The CMP identifies strategies to reduce travel demand at specific locations and
recommends operational and multimodal improvements to the overall transportation
system. Florida Statute (Section 339.175) requires TPOs and MPOs to prepare a
CMP as part of ongoing planning activities.

The CMP is both a plan and an ongoing process. The current CMP was adopted in
October 2021 and establishes policies, procedures, and baseline system evaluation
for Marion County. Since adoption the TPO has continued to implement the CMP
through supporting products such as the 2023 State of the System Report and hosts
an interactive congestion management map for public information.

At the regional level, the LRTP builds on innovations advanced by FDOT District 5,
including Transportation Systems Management and Operations (TSM&O) strategies
such as adaptive traffic signal control, real-time incident management, and
connected vehicle pilots.

QCALA MARION TPO

Congestlon Management Plan

State of the System Report

Congestion Management Process and

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

OCALA MARION TPO 4-32



NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

4.5 Special Projects
4.5.1 Moving I-75 Forward (.75 tmproverments

2000
ot from S.R.
FOIT)

: 1) | . 4520741
Marion CD“":‘:“,,R;,“W (ERID} Humber

jal Project
" R4 Financial
MOVING, %ﬁmb))

Through FDOT’s Moving Florida Forward initiative, the Moving I-75 Forward

) . project Descript;:::d I— &
program accelerates long-planned improvements to one of Marion County’s most e e S f\w{ s 0

e . . g . e Department of PR st 75 -
critical transportation corridors. I-75 serves as the county’s primary north—south t::;;p}ﬁhﬁn%ﬁg_gz,mpmhe:m;m:n @D b E
spine for commuters, freight, and visitors, and also functions as a designated e T oA

hurricane evacuation route. Planned improvements include widening key

segments, upgrading interchanges, and enhancing operational reliability to reduce
recurring congestion.

The awdiany
connections m:ykng duce
iy by G
'E\ia?mmi/ \?m)eﬂ Deve\opn‘gn\inm; Ay o
s orplete
dy was e

it 2?: I{s euprently 10 the ?::\p%ing nest
s Eﬁfi«m nticipated to BEO

const

.75 Typical Section

Lane N Each Direction

pmposed 1
pdd One Auxiliary

For Marion County, these investments mean safer, more reliable travel, stronger
connections to the Tampa Bay and Orlando markets, and improved freight mobility
that supports local economic development. Advancing construction ahead of
traditional schedules ensures that the corridor keeps pace with rapid growth, e

positioning Marion County for long-term prosperity while addressing near-term traffic T 1l R
and safety challenges. .

Construction for the I-75 South project (FPID 452074-2, from SR 44 in Sumter County

to SR 200) is underway, while construction for I-75 North (FPID 452074-1, from SR
200 to CR 326) is anticipated to begin in late 2025.

L angl
S Atitip e

Typic
al .
i Each Sectign

Direction

‘\":3.;}1 1'-. s s N ——————l [ e AR AR
,_\§: \ﬂ @ = ~ S 4

=T : - =

- ‘ G

Figure 4-11: Moving I-75 Forward Info Sheets
(Source: FDOT)

OCALA MARION TPO




___________________________________________________________________ LUl
2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

4.5.2 Western Beltway

Building upon the 2023 West Marion Transportation Planning Study (study area
shown as Figure 4-12), a mobility study is proposed for the southwest portion of
Marion County. The study will examine opportunities to strengthen connections
between Citrus County, southwest Marion County communities such as On Top
of the World, and central Marion County including the City of Ocala. Its focus will
be on identifying strategies to relieve congestion and improve safety along the
parallel US 41/SR 40 and SR 200 corridors, which currently serve as the area’s
primary travel routes. The study area also encompasses the World Equestrian
Center, one of the county’s premier destinations for tourism and economic activity,
underscoring the importance of reliable, multimodal access. By evaluating
multimodal options, operational improvements, and potential new alignments, the
study will provide a framework for long-term, safe, and efficient mobility in one of
the county’s fastest growing regions.

4.5.3 East-West Corridor Connection

A study is also proposed to evaluate the need for an east-west mobility corridor
between [-75 and US 301/US 441, generally located between CR 484 and
SW 42nd Street. This study will examine
opportunities to improve connectivity
across southern Marion County, reduce
pressure on existing arterial roadways,
and enhance safety and reliability for both
local and regional travel. Potential
strategies may include new roadway
connections, operational improvements,
— = and multimodal options to support
B Kimley»Horn .

] mtEmsin, i ol s omme planned growth in the area.

wommkimloghorm.com  Ragsiy Na. 35108 Mot To Soale I Frojec: Mo, 040907145 I Page 2

FIGURE 1 - PROJECT STUDY AREA

Figure 4-12:West Marion Study Area (2023)

OCALA MARION TPO 4-34



4.6 Safety

Safety is a core element of the transportation planning process
and remains the highest priority of the 2050 LRTP. Reducing
crashes, fatalities, and serious injuries is essential to many of the
plan’s goals, including protecting the people of the community and
ensuring they may confidently travel any distance by any mode.
By integrating safety considerations into projects and strategies,
the LRTP seeks to create a transportation system that not only
moves people and goods efficiently but also safeguards lives.

4.6.1 Commitment to Zero
Safety Action Plan

In 2022, the Ocala Marion TPO adopted the Commitment to
Zero—an action plan for safer streets in Ocala Marion. This plan
was developed to identify projects and strategies to help eliminate
traffic-related fatalities and serious injuries in Marion County by
2045. The plan is a public-friendly document and is supported by
the Safe System Approach, recognizing that human mistakes are
inevitable but deaths and serious injuries are not acceptable. This
requires designing roadways, setting speeds, and implementing
policies that prioritize safety for all users, including vulnerable road
users such as pedestrians, bicyclists, children, and older adults.
The Plan calls for a coordinated, data-driven, and systemwide
approach to save lives.

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

@0
COMMITMENT
TO ZERO

An Action Plan >> for Safer Streets in Ocala Marion

OCALA MARION
ﬂ/ TRANSPORTATION
Adopted November 29, 2022 H GRGANIZATION

Amended June 27, 2023




3 CHAPTER 5
Public and Partner Engagement i

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION



5 PUBLIC AND PARTNER ENGAGEMENT

5.1 Introduction

The TPO made an intentional effort to solicit and obtain a diverse set of input for the Ocala-Marion TPO 2050 LRTP. The TPO engaged
the public with several different methods, which included traditional in-person meetings, community workshops, and web-based
information updates. Traditionally underserved populations were specifically targeted as part the outreach efforts and participation in
the Plan. Valuable input was provided by a diverse range of stakeholders and interested parties to assist in the development of the
2050 LRTP.

The goals for public outreach during the development of the 2050 LRTP included the following:

o Increase awareness of the TPO and the 2050 LRTP
o Educate stakeholders about transportation issues and solutions
o Gather diverse public input to inform TPO Board decisions

The TPO built upon its successful 2045 LRTP outreach efforts for the 2050 plan, embracing lessons learned from the COVID-19
pandemic. While the primary challenge emerging from the pandemic was a temporary reduction to in-person events, this presented an
opportunity to innovate and expand engagement strategies.

For the 2050 LRTP, staff implemented a dynamic, hybrid approach that combined the strengths of both approaches:

o Enhanced digital engagement by leveraging virtual platforms to reach a broader audience while maintaining accessibility

o Revitalized in-person events by introducing face-to-face interactions with renewed enthusiasm, fostering community
connections

o Inclusive outreach with targeted efforts to engage traditionally underserved populations through diverse channels

By blending traditional methods with innovative digital approaches, staff were able to create a more resilient and inclusive public
engagement process. This adaptive strategy ensured that all voices were heard and considered in shaping our region's transportation
future, regardless of unforeseen circumstances.

Ultimately, the input received through these public outreach efforts helped guide the development of the 2050 LRTP and validate the
projects that were recommended in the Plan. Appendix K shows the completed and scheduled public involvement activities.

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

Long Range Transportation Plan

Attendees
Surveys Comments

_ Community
Community Events

Responses

Attendees Attendees

LRTP Public Regularly Scheduled/
Meetings Partner/Agency
Meetings

OCALA MARION TPO
. VUTTOTETETEGEGEHHHHSSSESSEEESEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEN. 0000000



5.2 Public Participation Plan

The TPO'’s Public Participation Plan (PPP) was adopted by the TPO Board on
March 26, 2024, and is available under separate cover. The Public Participation
Plan addresses federal requirements to provide direction for public
involvement activities to be conducted by the TPO. It includes the policies,
goals, objectives and techniques used for public involvement. Although the
PPP was not specifically developed for the 2050 LRTP, it was used to guide
public participation efforts for the 2050 LRTP given that it was developed
concurrently.

5.3 Summary of Public Comments

The transportation projects identified in the 2050 LRTP are partially based on
input received during the public involvement efforts of the TPO and LRTP team.
Some key efforts to solicit public input included the following:

Public Survey #1: April 23, 2024 — June 30, 2024

Public Comment Map: April 23, 2024 — September 2, 2024
Community Workshop #1: September 18, 2024

Public Survey #2: February 18, 2025 — March 31, 2025
Community Workshop #2: February 25, 2025

O O O 0O O O

TPO

TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

Public Participation
Plan (PPP)

2024

Adopted: March 26, 2024

LRTP, ATP Open House/Office Hours Public Event — September 30, 2025

The TPO led different activities to achieve the stated goals of the public involvement process for the 2050 LRTP. The TPO strived to
keep the process simple and convenient for participants, while providing robust information to encourage as much participation as

possible.

Throughout the development of the 2050 LRTP, public comments generally shared some common themes. Improving safety, preserving
the environmental character of the region, and providing regional transportation alternatives to highway travel were recorded as desires

of the public.

OCALA MARION TPO

NAVIGATING THE FUTURE




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

5.4 Plan Successes and Unmet Aspirations

The Ocala Marion TPO 2050 LRTP adequately meets the transportation needs that were expressed by the public. Based on public
comments, the TPO ensured existing priorities and projects currently in production were included in the Plan. However, due to the
limited availability of funding for future highway projects, some projects that were listed as cost-feasible projects in the 2045 LRTP, are
now listed as unfunded or partially funded projects in the 2050 LRTP.

[ & PR T o L e N ARG T
el el e M L e M i 2 R L 1
i

] & Ocala plat
L Marion C
18.

] |

5.5 Key Themes
Public input was collected throughout the development of the plan. Key themes included addressing safety issues, existing and

projected roadway congestion, evacuation routes, preserving existing infrastructure, and providing the community with a variety of
transportation options, including more robust local and regional transit and multi-use trails.

OCALA MARION TPO




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

i 0 w .. .'




6 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATION

The 2050 LRTP addresses potential environmental mitigation activities as required by federal regulations. Per 23 CFR 450.322, the
plan shall include at a minimum:

A discussion of types of potential environmental mitigation activities and potential areas to carry out these activities, including these
activities that may have the greatest potential to restore and maintain the environmental functions affected by the metropolitan
transportation plan. The discussion shall be developed in consultation with Federal, State, and Tribal land management, wildlife, and
regulatory agencies. The TPO may establish reasonable timeframes for performing this consultation.

Transportation projects can affect various environmental resources, including wildlife habitats, wetlands, and groundwater systems.
When impacts cannot be fully avoided, mitigation or conservation measures must be implemented. Environmental mitigation refers to
the strategies used to address ecological impacts resulting from transportation initiatives. These strategies may include enhancement,
restoration, creation, or preservation efforts that compensate for unavoidable damage.

In Florida, mitigation for transportation projects is coordinated through a partnership involving the TPO, FDOT, and state and federal
environmental agencies such as the Water Management Districts (WMDs) and the Florida Department of Environmental Protection
(FDEP). This process is governed by Section 373 of the Florida Statutes, which outlines requirements for mitigation planning,
permitting, and habitat impact mitigation, including the use of mitigation banking.

Under this statute, FDOT identifies projects requiring mitigation, estimates associated costs, and deposits funds into an escrow account
within the Florida Transportation Trust Fund. These funds are programmed in FDOT’s work program and allocated to WMDs to carry
out mitigation activities. Section 373.4137, F.S., specifically establishes the FDOT Mitigation Program, which is administered by the
WMDs in collaboration with regulatory agencies and mitigation banks. Each year, WMDs develop regional mitigation plans focused on
land acquisition and ecological restoration, updated to reflect the current FDOT work program.

This program benefits TPOs by offering a structured approach to environmental mitigation and fostering coordination among federal,
state, and local agencies. Mitigation planning follows a general hierarchy:

Avoid impacts altogether

Minimize a proposed activity/project size or its involvement

Rectify the impact by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected environment

Reduce or eliminate the impact over time by preservation and maintenance operation during the life of the action

O O O O

OCALA MARION TPO




___________________________________________________________________ LUl
2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

6.1 Resiliency

The 2050 LRTP considers the resiliency of the transportation system, recognizing the critical need to prepare for and respond to regular
and irregular closures as caused by severe weather events or other disruptions. Marion County’s roadway network plays a critical role
in regional hurricane evacuation, particularly I-75, US 301, US 441, SR 40, and SR 200. The reliability of these corridors during
emergencies is of the highest priority while also serving the daily needs of commuters, freight, and visitors.

Resiliency planning addresses risks such as flooding, storm damage, and long-term climate impacts that can compromise safety and
mobility. Strategies include incorporating redundant connections to reduce reliance on a single corridor, applying design standards that
account for flooding and stormwater management, and integrating operational tools that improve response and recovery times. Through
coordination with state and local partners, the LRTP ensures that transportation investments not only support daily mobility but also
provide a robust and adaptable system that protects residents, visitors, and the regional economy in times of crisis.

OCALA MARION TPO




| - l "
Lok #L&ﬂ:[& &7 = [q ; !

s b

L1 ]
i

I

Plan Implérﬁentation

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION




___________________________________________________________________ LUl
2050

7 PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

Implementation of the LRTP Cost Feasible Plan relies on a closely coordinated inter-agency process whereby implementing agencies
program available funding, including the resources necessary to design, acquire right of way, and construct the infrastructure
improvements. Continued collaboration between the TPO and its planning and implementation agency partners is critical to maintain
consistency between the LRTP and local priorities. There are several components of the 2050 LRTP, and the plan update process in
particular, that can facilitate ongoing collaboration and implementation of the LRTP. Chief among them is a continued focus on system
and facility performance as a primary basis for investment decisions. The TPO can leverage performance monitoring and target setting
results to support this process.

7.1 Amending the Plan

The next regularly scheduled plan update will occur in 2030, in adherence with the federal requirement to update the LRTP at least
every five years. That schedule does not, however, preclude regular updates to the plan that do not necessarily involve the full plan
update process described earlier in this document. The TPO has established a biannual LRTP amendment schedule. The two cycles
of amendments are tentatively scheduled for May and November of every year. There are two types of updates that can be made that
do not require a full plan update process:

Administrative modifications can be made to the plan to reflect marginal changes in project funding sources, project cost, or year of
implementation. These types of modifications do not require a public involvement process or a review of the entire cost feasible plan
to demonstrate cost feasibility.

Plan amendments can also be made if the TPO wants to add a new project or projects to the cost feasible plan, or if the scope and
cost of a project in the Cost Feasible Plan changes by a margin of fifty percent or greater. Such an amendment does require adherence
to the TPO’s Public Involvement Plan and analysis determining that the Cost Feasible Plan is in fact still demonstrably cost feasible,
relative to updated project costs and revenues by time band.

The LRTP can be amended at any time, provided the required process is followed, depending on the nature of the amendment. The
TPO does not have to extend the planning horizon of the LRTP for administrative modifications or amendments. Florida Statute requires
that the Ocala Marion TPO Board adopt amendments to the LRTP by a recorded call vote or hand-counted vote of the majority of the
membership present. The amended long-range plan is to be distributed in accordance with the FDOT MPO Handbook Requirements.

OCALA MARION TPO




NAVIGATING THE FUTURE

7.2 The Next Five Years

The TPO has a clear vision for the transportation system, providing connections to the rest of the region. This LRTP seeks to address
local and regional mobility needs, including an emphasis on projects to support important transportation corridors within the county.
The Ocala Marion TPO 2050 LRTP will remain in effect for five years until its update, anticipated to be completed by October 2030.

OCALA MARION TPO 7-2



TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

ocalamariontpo.org



DRAFT APPENDIX - 1



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Ocala Marion TPO Performance Targets and Measuring

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) have created highway and transit performance
measures and requirements for State DOTs, TPO/MPOs and transit operators to establish and report performance targets for each
performance measure. To determine the amount of progress made for each performance measure, the above-mentioned agencies and
organizations must establish baseline data and performance targets—benchmarks used to determine whether transportation
investments make progress in achieving national goals and performance measures.

1.1.1 Safety Performance Measures (PM 1)

As outlined in the Safe System approach promoted by FHWA, the death or serious injury of any person is unacceptable. Consequently,
the TPO and FDOT are fully committed to Vision Zero. FDOT has set a statewide target of “0” for all five safety performance measures.
Vision Zero and Target Zero are discussed in greater detail in the Strategic Highway Safety Plan and the Florida Transportation Plan.
FDOT set statewide safety (PM1) performance targets on August 31, 2023. The TPO was then required within 180 days to either adopt
FDOT'’s targets or set their own targets.

On February 27, 2018, the Ocala Marion TPO Board first adopted safety performance targets to better track progress and reflect
greater accountability to the public. In November 2022, the TPO Board adopted Commitment to Zero: An Action Plan for Safer Streets
in Ocala Marion. Integrating the adopted targets with Commitment to Zero will be a part of the planning process. By adopting its own
safety performance targets, the TPO is required to annually update targets.

On January 28, 2025, the TPO Board again adopted its own quantifiable safety targets. Error! Reference source not found. displays
the safety performance targets in 2023 and 2025 from FDOT and the TPO.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 2



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 2: Safety Performance Measure Targets and Results

TPO 2025 TPO 2024

FDOT Targets TPO 2024 TPO 2024

Target Results Targets Met?

Safety Performance Measures Targets (notto | Targets (not to
(2025)
exceed) exceed)

Number of Fatalities 0 87 92 113 No

Rate of Fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle Miles

Traveled (VM) 0 1.79 1.88 2.18 No
Number of Serious Injuries 0 373 393 317 Yes
Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 Million VMT 0 7.63 8.03 6.13 Yes

Number of Non-motorized Fatalities and Non-

motorized Serious Injuries 0 50 53 64 Yes

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 3



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

1.1.2 Pavement and Bridge Condition Performance Measures (PM 2)

Pavement condition and bridge condition are both measured as the share of Interstate and non-Interstate NHS lane-miles in “good” or
“poor” condition. FDOT established two-year and four-year statewide targets for pavement and bridge condition on December 16, 2022.
The Ocala Marion TPO Board adopted these targets on March 28, 2023, committing to plan and program projects in the TIP that
support progress toward achieving statewide goals.

Error! Reference source not found. displays the adopted two- and four-year pavement and bridge targets, with 2021 results only as a
frame of reference. The TPO will monitor and report on the 2023 and 2025 results in future reporting to the TPO Board, Committees
and public.

Table 3: Performance Measure Targets and Results — Pavement and Bridge Condition

Pavement and Bridge Condition FDOT/TPO 2023 2023 Target 2023 Taraets Met? FDOT / TPO 2025
Performance Measures (PM 2) Targets (2-Year) Results g " | Targets (4-Year)

Pavement Condition
Percent of Interstate pavements in Good condition 60% 54.3% No* 60%
Percent of Interstate pavements in Poor condition 5.0% 0.3% Yes 5.0%
Percent of non-Interstate NHS pavements in Good
condition 40% 53.7% Yes 40%
Perc_e_nt of non-Interstate NHS pavements in Poor 5.0% 0.5% Yes 5.0%
condition
Bridge Condition
Percent of NHS bridges by deck area in Good
condition 50% 59.1% Yes 50%
Percent of NHS bridges by deck area in Poor
condition 10% 0.0% Yes 5%

*Note: Resurfacing on portions of I-75 which are scheduled for widening

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 4



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

1.1.3 Highway System Performance Measures (PM 3)

There are two NHS performance measures that represent the reliability of travel times for all vehicles on the Interstate and non-
Interstate NHS. FHWA established the Level of Travel Time Reliability (LOTTR) metric to calculate reliability on both the Interstate and
non-Interstate NHS and Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) Index, comparing truck travel times.

FDOT established two-year and four-year statewide targets for system performance on December 16, 2022. The TPO was required to
adopt the state targets or set their own no later than June 14, 2023. On March 28, 2023, the TPO Board agreed to adopt the two- and
four-year state targets, agreeing to plan and program projects in the TIP that once implemented, are anticipated to make progress
toward achieving the statewide targets. The targets represent system performance at the end of both target years. Error! Reference
source not found. displays the most current System Performance measure targets and results.

Table 4: Performance Measure Targets and Results — System Performance

FDOT / TPO 2023 2023 Target FDOT / TPO 2025
7
Targets (2-Year) Results 2023 Targets Met? Targets (4-Year)

System Performance Measure (PM 3)

Percent of person-miles on the Interstate system that are

0 0 0
reliable (LOTTR) 7% 100% Yes 5%
Percent of person-miles on the non-Interstate NHS that o o 0
are reliable (Non-Interstate NHS LOTTR) 50% 97.0% ves 60%
Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) 1.75 1.72 Yes 2.00

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 5



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

1.14 Transit Asset Management and Safety

On July 26, 2016, the FTA published the final Transit Asset Management rule, which requires that public transportation providers
develop and implement transit asset management (TAM) plans, establish “state of good repair” standards, and establish performance
measures for four asset categories: rolling stock, equipment, transit infrastructure and facilities.

SunTran, the local public transit agency that operates primarily in the city of Ocala and in parts of unincorporated Marion County,
includes seven fixed bus routes contracted through a third-party company. As the administrative body to SunTran, the City of Ocala is
responsible for setting performance targets for Transit Asset Management. In January 2023, the City of Ocala set transit asset
management targets, thereby agreeing to plan and program projects in the TIP that, once implemented, will make progress toward
achieving the transit asset targets. In May 2025, SunTran updated their targets (Error! Reference source not found.).

Table 5: Performance Measure Targets and Results — Transit Asset Management

Transit Asset Class 2025 Performance 2026 Target 2027 Target 2028 Target 2029 Target 2030 Target
Rolling Stock
Buses 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Cutaways 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Equipment
Non-Revenue Vehicles 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Facilities

Administrative and Maintenance

o 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Facility

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 6



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

On July 19, 2018, the FTA published the Public Transportation Agency Safety Action Plan (PTASP) regulation, 49CFR Part 673, as
required by 49 U.S.C. 5329(d). The effective date of the regulation was July 19, 2019, but was extended to December 31, 2020 due to
the global pandemic. The PTASP regulation implements a risk-based Safety Management System approach and requires all recipients
and sub-recipients of federal transit financial assistance to establish and certify an Agency Safety Plan and corresponding safety
performance targets. A TPO then has 180 days from the adoption of the PTASP targets set by the public transit agency (SunTran) to
adopt or develop their own independent targets.

In compliance with Public Transportation Agency Safety Action Plan (PTASP) regulation, 49CFR Part 673, as required by 49 U.S.C.
5329(d), SunTran approved an update to its PTASP in January and May of 2025. The update included reaffirmed safety targets as
displayed in Error! Reference source not found. below.

Table 6: SunTran Transit Safety Targets

Performance Targets based on collected data from the previous three years

Safety Events
(per 100k
vehicle
revenue miles

System
Reliability
(VRM/

Fatalities (per Injuries (per

Mode of " 100k vehicle _— 100k vehicle | Safety Events
. . Fatalities Total : Injuries Total :
Transit Service revenue miles revenue miles

VRM) VRM) failures)
Fixed Route Bus 0 0 1 0.20 5 1.03 7,492
ADA Paratransit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 7



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

DRAFT APPENDIX - 8




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

APPENDIX B

A matrix showing consistency between the LRTP Goals and the goals from the IlJA is shown in Appendix B.

Table 1. Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP Goals and IlIJA Federal Goals

Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP Goals

= 3 S 7]
= e o = = —_ 7 (=
3 E g S o & s £ c 3 =
- 9 h—4 [ (&) =t
A Federal Goals 3 = 3 = = s .S < s
= < H c S = =BT o =
j= > © o c O i= S o = o
= o o S o = e
© oo o 2 = O = D
< 3 - b7 a S w 54 E
n o iy o
Safety °® ) °® ) o ) )
Infrastructure o . . ° °
Condition
Congestion Reduction ) ) )
System Reliability ) [ ) ) ) )
Freight Movement &
[ ° [ [

Economic Vitality
Environmental

Sustainability ¢ ° o ° o o °
Reduced Project
. [ ° o ()
Delivery Delays
Resilience and Climate
[ ° ° ) [ °
Change
Equity [ ) ) [ ) )

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 9




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

The IIJA prescribes policy requirements and programmatic framework related to performance measures and targets for the national
transportation system in the metropolitan planning process. These directly impact the Ocala Marion TPO and the planning activities of
the agency. As such, the TPO is required to establish targets and record the associated measurements to continue to develop and
assess a focused, performance-based multimodal transportation system. The Ocala Marion TPO must:

o Describe the performance measures and targets used in assessing system performance and progress in achieving the
performance targets within the LRTP

o Develop the Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) to make progress toward established performance targets and include a
description of the anticipated achievements

o Incorporate strategies to combat climate change and improve resilience into planning processes

o Ensure that planning processes address equity and barriers to opportunity

Additionally, a matrix showing consistency between the LRTP Goals and the seven IIJA planning factors is shown in Appendix #.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 10




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 2. Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP Goals and IIJA Planning Factors

Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP Goals

-“E‘ o _§ 3 — c
' 3 o © < )= 4 S ® S
IlJA Planning Factors 3 = 5 g 2 = & S 3 5
B 2 S & > £ G o c
e %] a= (5)
c o 38 = S o c s O > =
S o 2 [a S © = 2 o = S
> g E £ u @ £ g a = =
3 2 2L - 3 - ° =
D D
Economic Vitality [ ) [ ) () ) )
Safety [ [ ) [ [ )
Security o o o o ° ° °
Movement of People &
. ° [ [ o °
Freight
Environment & Quality
. o o o [
of Life
Integration /
. () [ () [ [ °
Connectivity
System Management &
; o ° o ° o [
Operation
Resiliency o ) ) o o
Tourism ) o ) ) o )

Table 3. Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP Goals and 2045 FTP Goals

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 11




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Ocala Marion 2050 LRTP Goals

2045 FDOT FTP Goals

Safety and
Security
Accessible
Multimodal Travel
Choices
System
Preservation
Economic
Development
Environmental
Protection
Quality Places
Implementation

Safety and security for residents,

businesses, and visitors = = = = . =
Agile, resilient, and quality
infrastructure ¢ ¢ ¢ e ¢
Connected, efficient, and reliable
mobility for people and freight ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
Transportation choices that
improve equity and accessibility ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
Transportation solutions that
strengthen Florida’s economy ¢ @ @ —
Transportation solutions that
enhance Florida’s communities ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
Transportation solutions that
o o o ° [

enhance Florida’s environment

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 12




ocioeconomic

4 4}\

Foreeast




Marion County Socioeconomic Data Forecast

POPULATION CONTROL TOTALS

The development of population control totals was one of the first steps in the 2050 socioeconomic
data forecast for Marion County. Normally, population control totals used by Florida counties have
been based on the University of Florida Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR)
population forecasts illustrated in Table 1. Tables 2 and 3 present the population forecast for
Marion County.

Control Totals

Table 1: BEBR Data

Base BEBR Forecast ‘

2015 2022 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050
BEBR Low 341,205 | 403,966 | 392,100 | 401,800 406,300 | 406,800 | 405,600 | 402,800
BEBR Medium 341,205 | 403,966 | 417,100 | 446,400 471,100 | 491,700 | 510,200 | 526,500
BEBR High 341,205 | 403,966 | 442,100 | 491,000 535,900 | 576,500 | 614,800 | 650,300
BEBR Average of Medium and
High 341,205 | 403,966 | 429,600 | 468,700 503,500 | 534,100 | 562,500 | 588,400

Table 2: Population Control Totals

2015 2022 2025 2030 2035 2040 ‘ 2045 2050
Preliminary Control Totals 341,205 | 403,966 | 429,600 | 468,700 | 503,500 | 534,100 | 562,500 | 588,400
Working Control Totals 341,205 | 403,966 | 429,600 | 468,700 | 503,500 | 534,100 | 562,500 | 588,400
Population to Allocate
(per time frame) 88,395 39,100 34,800 30,600 28,400 25,900

Table 3: Control Totals

2015 2022 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050 ‘ 22->50

Household Population 333,186 | 372,285 | 419,504 | 457,686 | 491,668 | 521,549 | 549,281 | 574,573 | 233,368
SF Population Ratio 0.870 0.891 0.865 0.840 0.825 0.815 0.810 0.805 N/A
MF Population Ratio 0.130 0.109 0.135 0.160 0.175 0.185 0.190 0.195 N/A
Group Quarters Percent 0.024 0.024 0.024 0.024 0.024 0.024 0.024 0.024 N/A
SF Population 296,738 | 331,738 | 362,871 | 384,456 | 405,626 | 425,062 | 444,918 | 462,531 | 165,793
MF Population 36,448 40,547 56,633 73,230 86,042 96,487 | 104,363 | 112,042 75,594
Group Quarters Population 8,019 10,096 11,014 11,832 12,551 13,219 13,827 5,808
Total Permanent

Population 341,205 429,600 | 468,700 | 503,500 | 534,100 | 562,500 | 588,400 | 247,195

TREND FORECAST



The Trend is developed by the process shown in Figure XX. By taking the densities and intensities of
the future land use for municipalities and the county with the land use for parcel we develop the
vacant developable land by TAZs. The gravity model distributes growth based on the “mass” (or
attractiveness) of a TAZ multiplied by the “mass” of an activity centroid divided by the square of the
distance between the two. The results of the TAZ distribution were reviewed in several meetings
with staff from the Marion TPO and staff from the local municipalities. Where appropriate,
adjustments were made to individual TAZs based on the feedback received from staff. This process
isillustrated in Figure 1.

Figure 1: Land Use Allocation Process

Develop
Planning
Areas and
Centroids

Develop
Invento 5% Calculate
0 Intensities

Approved S Developable

Development e Acres
P Densities

Countywide
Control
Totals

Calculate
2019 Base Vacant
Year Data Developable
Acres

Phase | - Data Preparation

Forecast 2019 Forecast 2025 Forecast 2030 Forecast 2035 Forecast 2040 Forecast 2045
t0 2025 New t0 2030 New to 2035 New to 2040 New to 2045 New to 2050 New
Development Development Development Development Development Development

School

Phase lll - Refinement Phase Il - TAZ Forecast

[
[
| Minor

i Enrollment "

L _: Nl;{evtl_ew el Adjustments
] eetings Ui and Finalize
1
1
imin

For the forecasted data we have considered the 2015 base year data with considerations from
the Department of Transportation (DOT) 2022 Model that was in development. The forecasted
2050 population and dwelling units are summarized in Table 4, while Figure 2 shows the
difference between the base year and the forecast year for single- and multi-family dwelling
units.



Table 4: Marion County Trend Population Growth

Base Reduced Growth

Year Trend Forecast
2025 2050 Growth

Dwelling Units
Single Family 177,804 | 224,032 | 46,228
Multi Family 29,256 | 55,212 | 25,956

 Total 207,060 279,244 72,184

Figure 2: Marion County Trend Population Growth

777777 y Md!l:g:lll:lu i Caravel nch B |
Bhd i 441 rea 301 i ¢
2050 Trend Growth ; icanopy ! M;ﬁ’;’ge&em l
Total AL i ' | =G
Dwelling Units | ! \
Bronson N
L1 0-1%0
[] 151-300 _Georgetown
[ 301-500 \ 301
I 501 - 900 L et
" 441 -
900
Mon (15
301 )
41 27 352 \
|
ife N
ht 40 i
\4 {
'accasassa Bay 40 422 S \v
‘reserve State e
Park 464, ,\/4
Y La
Gulf Hammock 301 35 \ St
wildlife b
Management
Area
) 27
-~ Inglis .~ 2
-7 <
< = N7 _cithgs sprin

0 375 75 15 Miles A | £ : =%
U U s | (R | Neis sy a1 L\ w q@ O\Ehgvillages i9 matilla

Trend the Trend data we then created two different population scenarios to capture other forms of
growth.



SCENARIO 2

This scenario was conducted by decreasing the amount of population except for in specific areas.
This allowed us to evaluate the volume within the Downtown Ocala area and along areas specified
by the county. In Table 5 you can see the growth and the differences in population from the Trend
Forecast. Figure 3 assists in visualizing the growth for this scenario.

Table 5: Scenario 2 Population Growth

Reduced Growth
Base Scenario 2 Difference From
Year Forecast Trend (Growth)
2025 2050 Growth Scenario 2
Dwelling Units
Single Family 177,804 | 223,899 | 38,478 | -133 -0.06%
Multi Family 29,256 | 55,415 | 22,894 203

‘ Total 207,060 279,314 61,372 70

Figure 3: Scenario 2 Population Growth

teaRaad

Trend - Scenario 2B \ sl : 3 C'f:f:im
Total Dwelling Units | s | ‘ e
Change

|

<= (-50)
<=0
0-50
51-150
150+

N 100N

Greenway
Areas i

1saSSTTAY
2rve State
Park

4, Lakec
Gulf Hammock 5\ State
Wildlife i
Management \
Area o
La
= -\erlglis 22!
L |
4

Wi

0 3750 75 15 Miles
Sy N B B B 1 \ |




SCENARIO 3

This scenario was conducted by decreasing the amount of Single Family and increasing the amount
of Multi Family. This was done by taking the single family and adding it to the multi family. We did
add more multi family from the single family. Especially from the identified by the county on the US-
200 corridor. In Table 6 you can see the growth and the differences in population from the Trend
Forecast. Figure 4 assists in visualizing the growth for this scenario.

Table 6: Scenario 3 Population Growth

Reduced Growth
Base Scenario 3 Difference From

Year Forecast Trend (Growth)
2025 2050 Growth Scenario 3

Dwelling Units
Single Family 177,804 | 217,217 | 39,413 | -6815 -3.04%
Multi Family 29,256 | 63,338 | 34,082 8126 14.72%
\ Total 207,060 280,555 73,495 1311 0.47%

Figure 4: Scenario 3 Population Growth

Road

}

Goy) 3
Trend - Scenario 3 i P ] T3 crescent
Total Dwelling Units | 75} ‘ . :
Change

Bl <50
<=0
1-50
51-150
150+

Lake
\

Y| 100N

Greenway
Areas

1sdsSaBAY
2rve State
Park

Y, Lakec

Gulf Hammock X State

Wildlife
Management
Area

La
/"\QI';'Q"S g

Wi

0 375 75 15 Miles




o - 7 S

Fiscal Constraint

13y

——

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

DRAFT APPENDIX - 19



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint

Federal law requires that the LRTP demonstrate fiscal constraint by balancing identified revenues with the cost of planned projects.
The following table summarizes anticipated revenues from federal, state, and local sources for both capital investments and operations
and maintenance (O&M) over the planning horizon. Revenues are allocated across time bands to reflect the availability of funds and
ensure that projects included in the plan are financially feasible within projected funding levels. Table 1 shows the forecasted revenues

and project costs in PDV, and Table 2 shows the same data in YOE.

The contingency and balance lines shown in the tables reflect the plan’s ability to remain fiscally constrained while also retaining
flexibility. Positive balances serve as a reserve that can be applied to address inflation, cost adjustments, or new priorities that emerge
over time. In the event of a shortfall, project schedules, scopes, or funding sources may be adjusted to maintain fiscal balance while

preserving the long-term vision of the plan.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 20



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 1: Demonstration of Fiscal Constrain (PDV)

Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint (Present Day Value

SIS Revenue $38,495,349 $12,906,410 $55,150,000 $106,551,759
Federal/State Revenue for Capital $31,715,656 $27,054,725 $44,010,600 $102,780,981
Local Revenue for Capital $270,127,430 $264,291,115 $465,673,825 $1,000,092,370
Contingency for Capital* N/A $869,961 $800,585 N/A
Subtotal for Capital Projects $340,338,435 $305,122,211 $565,635,010 $1,211,095,657
Comduetos | ovwows|  omeasw|  awizmo| st Toul
Federally/State-Funded Capital Projects $69,341,044 $40,030,511 $99,961,185 $209,332,741
Locally-Funded Capital Projects $270,127,430 $264,291,115 $465,673,825 $1,000,092,370

Federal/State Revenue for O&M $48,082,211 $39,357,485 $62,916,296 $150,355,992
Local Revenue for O&M $110,085,500 $111,019,500 $224,843,000 $445,948,000
Subtotal for O&M Projects $158,167,711 $150,376,985 $287,759,296 $596,303,992

T s
Federally/State-Funded O&M Projects $48,082,211 $39,357,485 $62,916,296 $150,355,992

Locally-Funded O&M Projects $110,085,500 $111,019,500 $224,843,000 $445,948,000

0&M Revenue Balance B ] ) D) —
Plan Balance S ssoses| S0l S

* Contingency for Capital is treated as a rollover reserve between time periods. The amount is carried forward and adjusted by inflation using the formula ContingencyT =
ContingencyT-1 x (InflationT / InflationT-1).

Contingency balances are used to absorb available surplus and are not applied to cover deficits.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 21




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 2: Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint (YOE)

Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint (Year of Expenditure

SIS Revenue $49,659,000 $20,134,000 $106,991,000 $176,784,000
Federal/State Revenue for Capital $40,913,196 $42,205,371 $85,380,564 $168,499,132
Local Revenue for Capital $348,464,385 $412,294,140 $903,407,220 $1,664,165,745
Contingency for Capital* N/A $94,094,589 $116,880,478 N/A
Subtotal for Capital Project Revenues $439,036,581 $568,728,101 $1,212,659,262 $2,220,423,944
s Toe | owaws|  omeaw|  awiamo| outaot Toul
Federally/State-Funded Capital Projects $12,763,209 $62,447,597 $193,924,699 $269,135,506
Locally-Funded Capital Projects $348,464,385 $412,294,140 $903,407,220 $1,664,165,745

Capital Revenue Balance* $77,808,087 $93,086,364 $115,327,342 m

Federal/State Revenue for O&M $62,026,052 $61,397,676 $122,057,615 $245,481,343

Local Revenue for O&M $142,010,295 $173,190,420 $436,195,420 $751,396,135

Subtotal for O&M Project Revenues $204,036,347 $234,588,096 $558,253,035 $996,877,478
Coedtwepe | mwiams|  aweaok| o] 2020w Tl

Federally/State-Funded O&M Projects $62,026,052 $61,397,676 $122,057,615 $245,481,343

Locally-Funded O&M Projects $142,010,295 $173,190,420 $436,195,420 $751,396,135

Plan Balance $77,808,987 $93,086,364 $115327342| 0|

* Contingencyfor Capitalis treated as a rollover reserve between time periods. The amountis carried forward and adjusted by inflation using the formula:
ContingencyT = ContingencyT-1 x (InflationT / InflationT-1).

Contingency balances are used to absorb available surplus and are not applied to cover deficits.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 22




Appendix E

Revenue Forecast Guidance




TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM

To: 2050 LRTP/MTP File Documents

From: CFMPOA Executive Directors CENTRAL FLORIDA
CC: FDOT District 5 M Po
Date: October 1, 2024 ALLIANCE
Subject: Agreement and Approach for Distributing Federal Districtwide Funding for 2050 Plans

This memorandum summarizes the coordination, methodology, and consensus reached by MetroPlan Orlando,
Lake-Sumter MPO, River to Sea TPO (Volusia-Flagler TPO), Space Coast TPO, Ocala/Marion TPO, and FDOT District Five
for purposes of distributing federal districtwide funding projections for 2050 Long Range Transportation Plans.

Background

Federal and state revenue forecasts for Long Range Transportation Plans are prepared by FDOT Central Office for use
by Florida’s 27 MPO/TPOs in developing Cost Feasible Plans. Traditionally, the revenue forecast distributed all federal
funds by MPO area for planning purposes, using a standardized approach. The 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook did
not distribute estimates for all federal funds by MPO, rather, the funds were distributed to each FDOT District into four
sub-categories: “any area”, for areas with population less than 5,000; for areas with population from 5,000 to 49,999;
and for areas with population from 50,000 to 200,000; and noting “MPOs should work with their FDOT District Liaison
to identify planned projects for this funding sources”. The FDOT-MPO Program Management Handbook, LRTP Chapter,
states: “MPOs should coordinate with their Districts for the funds estimated on the District Level. Through cooperative
coordination, the District and MPOs can determine how funds are distributed between the MPOs and District”.
Following a collaborative approach, the MPO/TPOs in FDOT District 5 reviewed alternatives and made a consensus-
based recommendation to FDOT District 5. FDOT District Five concurred with the methodological recommendation of
the MPO/TPOs. The method and data sources are summarized in the following sections of the memorandum.

Methodology

The methodology for distributing revenues uses the districtwide revenue estimates (STBG, TAL, CRP) provided by FDOT
Central Office as part of the 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook and population projections provided by the University
of Florida’s Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR). Tables 1, 2, and 3 show the districtwide revenue
estimates for Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG), Transportation Alternative (TA), and Carbon Reduction
Program (CRP). These districtwide revenue projections serve as control totals and are shown in Millions of Dollars.

Table 1 | Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG (Surface Transportation Block Grant), District 5

2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030/31 - 2035/36 - 2040/41 - 20T2°5t7;6 )
2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2048/50
SA $ 20.87 | $ 252.81 | $ 30219 | $ 30219 | $ 604.38 | $  1,208.76
SN $ 820 | $ 2059 | $ 30.00 | $ 30.00 | $ 60.01 | $ 120.01
SM $ 2094 | $ 551 | $ 5.56 | $ 5.56 | $ 1112 | $ 22.24
SL $ 15.82 | $ 54.46 | $ 55.96 | $ 55.96 | $ 11192 | $ 223.84
District 5 Total $ 11783 | $ 34237 | $ 39371 | $ 39371 | $ 78743 | $§  1,574.85

Note: SA (Any Area), SN (Population less than 5,000), SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999), SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000).
Only the Lake-Sumter MPO and Ocala-Marion TPO are eligible for SN, SM, and SL funds.


https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/policy/metrosupport/resources/2050-fdot-revenue-forecast-handbook-(06-05-23).pdf?sfvrsn=f3f43f8b_6

Table 2 | Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TA (Transportation Alternatives), District 5

TA 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030/31 - 2035/36 - 2040741 - 20T2‘§j‘£6 )

(District 5) 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2046/50
TALT $ 14.04 | $ 34.89 | $ 36.79 | $ 36.79 | $ 7358 | $ 147.16
TALN $ 174 | $ 441 | $ 444 | $ 444 | $ 8.89 | $ 17.77
TALM $ 032 | $ 082 | $ 082 | $ 082 | $ 165 | $ 3.29
TALL $ 324 | $ 728 | $ 829 | $ 829 | $ 16.58 | $ 33.16
District 5 Total $ 19.34 | $ 47.40 | $ 50.34 | $ 50.34 | $ 100.70 | $ 201.38

Note: TALT (Any Area), TALN (Population less than 5,000), TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999), TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000).
Only the Lake-Sumter MPO and Ocala-Marion TPO are eligible for TALN, TALM, and TALL funds.

Table 3 | Districtwide Revenue Estimate for CRP (Carbon Reduction Program), District 5

CRP 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030/31 - 2035/36 - 2040/41 - R
(District 5) 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 Soae/60
CARB $ $ s s s $
CARN $ 193 | $ 366 | $ 368 | $ 368 | $ 737 8 14.73
CARM $ 049 | $ 0.68 | $ 0.68 | $ 0.68 | $ 137 8 2.73
CARL $ 3.75 | $ 735 | $ 735 | $ 735 | $ 1469 | $ 20.39
District 5 Total $ 647 | $ 1169 | $ 1171 1171 | $ 2343 | $ 46.85

Note: CARB (Any Area), CARN (Population less than 5,000), CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999), CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000).
Only the Lake-Sumter MPO and Ocala-Marion TPO are eligible for CARN, CARM, and CARL funds.

Population related inputs were extracted from BEBR Projections of Florida Population by County 2025-2050
(Volume 57, Bulletin 198, January 2024). Funding for these projections was provided by the Florida Legislature. BEBR
provides a range including high, medium, and low population projections for each county. BEBR describes the medium
series as “the most accurate forecasts of future population change” and notes that the sum of the medium series of
county projections equals the state projection for each year (except for slight difference due to rounding) while the
sum of the low and high series does not equal the state projections. Considering these factors, for purposes of this
methodology, the medium series of population was selected. Table 4 shows the medium series of population
projections and Table 5 shows population percentage for each county in FDOT District 5.

Table 4 | County Population Estimates, 2025-2050

County 2025 2030 2035 2040 2050 AN
Orange 1,547,200 1,664,100 1,755,300 1,825,600 1,933,600 24.97%
Osceola 469,000 531,600 582,300 623,800 695,000 48.19%
Seminole 497,400 520,200 537,200 549,700 569,000 14.39%
Lake 434,900 478,500 513,600 541,700 589,200 35.48%
Sumter 166,500 190,700 210,900 227,400 256,100 53.81%
Volusia 598,900 630,900 657,200 678,600 709,900 18.53%
Brevard 658,300 694,600 724,600 748,300 784,500 19.17%
Marion 417,100 446,400 471,100 491,700 526,500 26.23%
Flagler 137,400 152,900 166,700 178,100 196,600 43.09%
District 5 Total 4,926,700 5,309,900 5,618,900 5,864,900 6,260,400 27.07%



https://bebr.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/projections_2024.pdf

Table 5 | Percentage of County Population Estimates, FDOT District 5, 2025-2050

County %2025 %2030 %2035 %2040 %2050 Tl
Orange 31.40% 31.34% 31.24% 31.13% 30.89% 31.20%
Osceola 9.52% 10.01% 10.36% 10.64% 11.10% 10.33%
Seminole 10.10% 9.80% 9.56% 9.37% 9.09% 9.58%
Lake 8.83% 9.01% 9.14% 9.24% 9.41% 9.13%
Sumter 3.38% 3.59% 3.75% 3.88% 4.09% 3.74%
Volusia 12.16% 11.88% 11.70% 1157% 11.34% 11.73%
Brevard 13.36% 13.08% 12.90% 12.76% 12.53% 12.93%
Marion 8.47% 8.41% 8.38% 8.38% 8.41% 8.41%
Flagler 2.79% 2.88% 2.97% 3.04% 3.14% 2.96%
District 5 Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% i

BEBR county population projections were then combined consistent with the Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA)
boundaries identified in each MPO/TPO’s adopted Apportionment Plans. For example, MetroPlan Orlando’s MPA
includes Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties. Table 6 shows the medium series of population projections and
Table 7 shows population percentage for each Metropolitan Planning Area in FDOT District 5.

Table 6 | Population Estimates by Metropolitan Planning Area, 2025-2050

MPO / TPO

% Growth:
2025-2050

MetroPlan Orlando 2,513,600 2,715,900 2,874,800 2,999,100 3,197,600 27.21%
Lake-Sumter MPO 601,400 669,200 724,500 769,100 845,300 40.56%
Volusia-Flagler TPO 736,300 783,800 823,900 856,700 906,500 23.12%
Space Coast TPO 658,300 694,600 724,600 748,300 784,500 19.17%
Ocala-Marion TPO 417,100 446,400 471,100 491,700 526,500 26.23%
District 5 Total 4,926,700 5,309,900 5,618,900 5,864,900 6,260,400 27.07%
Table 7 | Percentage of Metropolitan Planning Area Population Estimates, FDOT District 5, 2025-2050
MPO / TPO %2025 %2030 %2035 %2040 %2050 Tl

MetroPlan Orlando 51.02% 51.15% 51.16% 51.14% 51.08% 51.11%
Lake-Sumter MPO 12.21% 12.60% 12.89% 13.11% 13.50% 12.86%
Volusia-Flagler TPO 14.95% 14.76% 14.66% 14.61% 14.48% 14.69%
Space Coast TPO 13.36% 13.08% 12.90% 12.76% 12.53% 12.93%
Ocala-Marion TPO 8.47% 8.41% 8.38% 8.38% 8.41% 8.41%
District 5 Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% -




Due to federal funding stipulations pertaining to urban area population, not all MPO/TPOs are eligible for certain
funding types. MPO/TPOs with an urban area population greater than 200,000 are designated as Transportation
Management Areas (TMA). Based on the findings of the 2020 Census and Urban Area Boundary update process, the
Lake-Sumter MPO and the Ocala-Marion TPO are not designated as TMAs. Due to their non-TMA status, these MPOs
are eligible for federal funding for areas with a population less than 200,000. This includes SN, SM, SL, TALN, TALM,
TALL, CARN, CARM, and CARL fund types. In coordination with FDOT and the affected MPO/TPOs, it was agreed to use
a consistent approach for distributing projected revenues for all federal fund types.

Table 8 and Table 9 provide population and percentage of population breakouts for non-TMA MPO/TPOs.

Table 8 | Population Estimates for Non-TMA MPO/TPOs, District 5, 2025-2050

o)
Lake-Sumter MPO 601,400 669,200 724,500 769,100 845,300 40.56%
Ocala-Marion TPO 417,100 446,400 471,100 491,700 526,500 26.23%

District 5 Subset Total 1,018,500 1,115,600 1,195,600 1,195,600 1,260,800 23.79%

Table 9 | Percentage of Non-TMA MPO/TPO Population Estimates, FDOT District 5, 2025-2050

Lake-Sumter MPO 59.05% 59.99% 60.60% 61.00% 67.04% 61.54%
Ocala-Marion TPO 40.95% 40.01% 39.40% 39.00% 41.76% 40.22%
District 5 Subset Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

All MPO/TPOs are eligible for the districtwide “Any Area” funds. In distributing “Any Area” fund types for planning
purposes, the FDOT District 5 total for each federal districtwide fund type (SA, TALT, CARB) was multiplied by the each
MPO/TPOs population percentage, relative to the district total (sum of nine county population projection). Population
estimates utilized in distributing “Any Area” funds are shown on Table 6 and 7.

Districtwide (D5) Funds
for Any Area

MPO/TPO Percentage Proportionate Share

X of District 5 Population mll for 2050 Planning Purposes

The Lake-Sumter MPO and Ocala-Marion TPO are also eligible for federal funding for areas with population less than
5,000; population 5,000 to 49,999; and population 50,000 to 200,000 (SN, SM, SL, TALN, TALM, TALL, CARN, CARM,
CARL fund types). In distributing these funds, population estimates utilized are shown on Tables 8 and 9

Districtwide (D5) Funds for X Percentage of Eligible _ Proportionate Share
areas with pop. < 200,000 MPO/TPO Population e for 2050 Planning Purposes

See Appendix (pages 7-9) for detailed projection breakout tables for each districtwide federal fund type by MPO/TPO.




Summary of Projected Districtwide Revenues by MPO/TPO

Utilizing the methodology, control totals and parameters described above, the following tables display the revenue
summary for federal districtwide funds by MPO/TPO within FDOT District Five. The summary tables below (Table 10
- Table 15) only include SA, SN, SM, SL, TALT, TALN, TALM, TALL, CARB, CARN, CARM, and CARL federal funds.
Transportation Management Area (TMA) funds (SU, TALU, CARU) and federal/state “Other Roads” (Non-SIS, NON-SHS)
funds are excluded from the tables below as these set-asides are included for each designated MPO/TPO in the
published 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook. Projections below shown in Millions of Dollars.

Table 10 | MetroPlan Orlando (Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties)

State Attributable 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030/31 - 2035/36 - 2040/41 - 20;‘;‘?;6 )
Federal Funds 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
STBG - SA $ 46.70 | $ 12898 | $ 154.56 | $ 154.61 | $ 309.06 | $ 747.22
TALT $ 722 | $ 17.80 | $ 18.82 | $ 18.82 | $ 37.63 | $ 93.07
CAR-B $ $ $ $ $ $
MPO Subtotal $ 53.92 | $ 146.78 | $ 173.38 | $ 17343 | $ 346.68 | $ 840.28

State Attributable 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030731 - 2035/36 - 2040741 - 20;‘;‘756 )

Federal Funds 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
STBG - SA $ 1048 | $ 30.86 | $ 38.08 | $ 3896 | $ 7926 | $ 18747
STBG - SN $ 474 | $ 17.47 | $ 18.00 | $ 18.18 | $ 36.61 | $ 90.25
STBG - SM $ 170 | $ 325 | $ 334 | $ 337 | $ 678 | $ 16.74
STBG - SL $ 9.14 | $ 32.16 | $ 3357 | $ 3391 | $ 6827 | $  167.91
TALT $ 162 | $ 426 | $ 464 | $ 474 | $ 965 | $ 23.29
TAL-N $ 1.00 | $ 2.60 | $ 2.66 | $ 2.69 | $ 542 | $ 13.38
TAL-M $ 0.18 | $ 048 | $ 049 | $ 050 | $ 101 | $ 2.48
TAL-L $ 187 | $ 430 | $ 497 | $ 502 | $ 1011 | $ 24.41

CAR-B $ $ $ $ $ $

CAR-N $ 111 | $ 2.16 | $ 221 | $ 223 | $ 450 | $ 11.09
CAR-M $ 028 | $ 0.40 | $ 041 | $ 041 | $ 084 | $ 2.06
CAR-L $ 247 | $ 434 | $ 441 | $ 4.45 | $ 8.96 | $ 22.16
MPO Subtotal $ 3429 | $ 10229 | $ 112.77 | $ 11447 | $ 23140 | $  560.94

State Attributable 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030/31 - 2035/36 - 2040/41 - 20;‘;‘756 )
Federal Funds 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50
2049/50
STBG - SA $ 13.65 | $ 37.78 | $ 4461 | $ 4431 | $ 8828 | $ 21498
TALT $ 211 | $ 521 | $ 543 | $ 539 | $ 1075 | $ 26.79
CAR-B $ $ $ $ $ $
TPO Subtotal $ 15.75 | $ 4300 | $ 50.04 | $ 49.70 | $ 9903 | $ 24177




Table 13 | Space Coast TPO (Brevard County)

State Attributable 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030731 - 2035/36 - 2040741 - 20;‘;%6 )
Federal Funds 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50
2049/50
STBG - SA $ 1237 | $ 33.78 | $ 39.53 | $ 3897 | $ 7741 | $  189.39
TALT $ 191 | $ 466 | $ 481 | $ 474 | $ 939 | $ 23.61
CAR-B $ $ -3 $ $ $ -
TPO Subtotal $ 1429 | $ 3844 | $ 44.34 | $ 43.71 | $ 8650 | $§  213.00

State Attributable 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030/31- 2035/36 - 2040/41 - 202‘;‘?;6 )

Federal Funds 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
STBG - SA $ 767 | $ 2140 | $ 25.40 | $ 2534 | $ 50.67 | $ 122.81
STBG - SN $ 346 | $ 1212 | $ 12.00 | $ 1182 | $ 2340 | $ 59.35
STBG - SM $ 124 | $ 226 | $ 222 | $ 219 | $ 434 | $ 11.01
STBG - SL $ 6.68 | $ 2230 | $ 2239 | $ 2205 | $ 4365 | $ 110.39
TALT $ 118 | $ 295 | $ 3.09 | $ 3.08 | $ 6.17 | $ 15.30
TAL-N $ 074 | $ 181 | $ 178 | $ 175 | $ 347 | $ 8.80
TAL-M $ 0.14 | $ 034 | $ 033 | $ 032 | $ 064 | $ 1.63
TAL-L $ 137 | $ 298 | $ 332 | $ 327 | $ 6.47 | $ 16.03

CAR-B $ s -1 % $ $ -

CAR-N $ 082 | $ 150 | $ 147 | $ 145 | $ 287 | $ 7.30
CAR-M $ 021 | $ 028 | $ 027 | $ 027 | $ 053 | $ 1.35
CAR-L $ 158 | $ 301 | $ 294 | $ 2.90 | $ 573 | $ 14.58
TPO Subtotal $ 25.09 | $ 7094 | $ 7523 | $ 74.44 | $ 14794 | $ 36855

Table 15 | Revenue Projection Summary by MPO/TPO

State Attributable 2023/24 - 2025/26 - 2030731 - 2035/36 - 2040741 - 20;‘;‘?;6 )

Federal Funds 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
MetroPlan Orlando | $ 53.92 | $ 14678 | $ 17338 | $ 17343 | $ 34668 | $§ 84028
Lake-Sumter MPO | $ 3429 | $ 10229 | $ 11277 | $ 11447 | $ 23140 | $  560.94
River to Sea TPO $ 15.75 | $ 43.00 | $ 50.04 | $ 49.70 | $ 99.03 | $ 24177
Space Coast TPO $ 1429 | $ 3844 | $ 4434 | $ 4371 | $ 8650 | $  213.00
Ocala-Marion TPO | $ 25.09 | $ 7094 | $ 7523 | $ 7444 | $ 14794 | $ 36855
Subtotal $ 14334 | $ 40146 | $ 45576 | $ 45576 | $ 91156 | $  2,224.54

Note: Excludes federal/state “Other Roads” (Non-SIS/NON-SHS) funds and TMA funds (SU, TALU, CARU); these set-asides are included for each
designated MPO/TPO in the FDOT 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook.



Appendix: Detailed Funding Projection Tables

STBG Projections

Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG - SA
2023/24 - 2024/25

2025/26 - 2029/30

2030/31-2034/35

2035/36 - 2039/40

2040/41-2049/50

MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total

(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
MetroPlan Orlando 2,289,420 51.39%| $ 46.70 2,513,600 51.02%| $ 128.98 2,715,900 51.15%| $ 154.56 2,874,800 51.16%| $ 154.61 2,999,100 51.14%| $ 309.06 | $ 747.22
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 11.53%| $ 10.48 601,400 12.21%( $ 30.86 669,200 12.60%| $ 38.08 724,500 12.89%| $ 38.96 769,100 13.11%[ $ 79.26 | $ 187.17
Volusia-Flagler TPO 668,921 15.02%| $ 13.65 736,300 14.95%| $ 37.78 783,800 14.76%| $ 44.61 823,900 14.66%| $ 44.31 856,700 14.61%| $ 88.28 | $ 214.98
Space Coast TPO 606,612 13.62%| $ 12.37 658,300 13.36%| $ 33.78 694,600 13.08%| $ 39.53 724,600 12.90%| $ 38.97 748,300 12.76%| $ 77111 $ 189.39
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 8.44%| $ 7.67 417,100 8.47%| $ 21.40 446,400 8.41%| $ 25.40 471,100 8.38%| $ 25.34 491,700 8.38%| $ 50.67 | $ 122.81
District 5 Total 4,454,569 100%| $ 90.87 4,926,700 100%| $ 252.81 5,309,900 100%| $ 302.19 5,618,900 100%| $ 302.19 5,864,900 100%| $ 604.38 | $ 1,461.57

Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG - SN (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 -2024/25

2025/26 - 2029/30

2030/31-2034/35

2035/36 - 2039/40

2040/41-2049/50

MPO Population

% District 5

Proportionate

MPO Population

% District 5

Proportionate

MPO Population

% District 5

Proportionate

MPO Population

% District 5

Proportionate

MPO Population

% District 5

Proportionate

Total

(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 4.74 601,400 59.05%| $ 17.47 669,200 59.99%| $ 18.00 724,500 60.60%| $ 18.18 769,100 61.00%| $ 36.61 | $ 90.25
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 3.46 417,100 40.95%| $ 12.12 446,400 40.01%| $ 12.00 471,100 39.40%| $ 11.82 491,700 39.00%| $ 2340 | $ 59.35
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 8.20 1,018,500 100%| $ 29.59 1,115,600 100%| $ 30.00 1,195,600 100%| $ 30.00 1,260,800 100%| $ 60.01 | $ 149.60
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG - SM (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 _
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 1.70 601,400 59.05%| $ 3.25 669,200 59.99%| $ 3.34 724,500 60.60%| $ 3.37 769,100 61.00%| $ 6.78 | $ 16.74
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 1.24 417,100 40.95%]| $ 2.26 446,400 40.01%| $ 2.22 471,100 39.40%| $ 2.19 491,700 39.00%| $ 434 $ 11.01
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 2.94 1,018,500 100%| $ 5.51 1,115,600 100%| $ 5.56 1,195,600 100%| $ 5.56 1,260,800 100%| $ 1112 ( $ 27.75
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG - SL (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 _
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 9.14 601,400 59.05%| $ 32.16 669,200 59.99%| $ 33.57 724,500 60.60%| $ 33.91 769,100 61.00%| $ 68.27 | $ 167.91
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 6.68 417,100 40.95%| $ 22.30 446,400 40.01%( $ 22.39 471,100 39.40%( $ 22.05 491,700 39.00%( $ 4365 | $ 110.39
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 15.82 1,018,500 100%| $ 54.46 1,115,600 100%| $ 55.96 1,195,600 100%| $ 55.96 1,260,800 100%| $ 11192 | $ 278.30

Tech Memo: Agreement and Approach for Distributing Federal Districtwide Funding for 2050 Plans

10/1/2024
Page 7 of 9



TA Projections

Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TA - TAL-T

2023/24 -2024/25

2025/26 - 2029/30

2030/31-2034/35

2035/36 - 2039/40

2040/41-2049/50

MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
MetroPlan Orlando 2,289,420 51.39%| $ 7.22 2,513,600 51.02%| $ 17.80 2,715,900 51.15%| $ 18.82 2,874,800 51.16%| $ 18.82 2,999,100 51.14%| $ 3763 | $ 93.07
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 11.53%| $ 1.62 601,400 12.21%| $ 4.26 669,200 12.60%| $ 4.64 724,500 12.89%| $ 4.74 769,100 13.11%[ $ 9.65|$ 23.29
Volusia-Flagler TPO 668,921 15.02%| $ 211 736,300 14.95%| $ 5.21 783,800 14.76%| $ 5.43 823,900 14.66%| $ 5.39 856,700 14.61%| $ 10.75 | $ 26.79
Space Coast TPO 606,612 13.62%| $ 1.91 658,300 13.36%| $ 4.66 694,600 13.08%| $ 4.81 724,600 12.90%| $ 4.74 748,300 12.76%| $ 9391 % 23.61
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 8.44%| $ 1.18 417,100 8.47%| $ 2.95 446,400 8.41%| $ 3.09 471,100 8.38%| $ 3.08 491,700 8.38%| $ 6.17 | $ 15.30
District 5 Total 4,454,569 100%| $ 14.04 4,926,700 100%| $ 34.89 5,309,900 100%| $ 36.79 5,618,900 100%| $ 36.79 5,864,900 100%| $ 7358 | $ 182.05
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TAL-N (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 _
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 1.00 601,400 59.05%| $ 2.60 669,200 59.99%| $ 2.66 724,500 60.60%| $ 2.69 769,100 61.00%| $ 542 | $ 13.38
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 0.74 417,100 40.95%| $ 1.81 446,400 40.01%| $ 1.78 471,100 39.40%| $ 1.75 491,700 39.00%| $ 3471 $ 8.80
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 1.74 1,018,500 100%| $ 441 1,115,600 100%| $ 4.44 1,195,600 100%| $ 4.44 1,260,800 100%| $ 889 | $ 22.18
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TAL-M (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040741 - 2049/50 ]
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 0.18 601,400 59.05%| $ 0.48 669,200 59.99%| $ 0.49 724,500 60.60%| $ 0.50 769,100 61.00%| $ 1.011 % 2.48
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 0.14 417,100 40.95%| $ 0.34 446,400 40.01%| $ 0.33 471,100 39.40%| $ 0.32 491,700 39.00%| $ 064 (% 1.63
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 0.32 1,018,500 100%| $ 0.82 1,115,600 100%| $ 0.82 1,195,600 100%| $ 0.82 1,260,800 100%| $ 165 | $ 4.11
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TAL-L (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 _
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 1.87 601,400 59.05%| $ 4.30 669,200 59.99%| $ 4.97 724,500 60.60%| $ 5.02 769,100 61.00%| $ 10.11 | $ 24.41
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 1.37 417,100 40.95%| $ 2.98 446,400 40.01%| $ 3.32 471,100 39.40%| $ 3.27 491,700 39.00%| $ 6.47 | $ 16.03
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 3.24 1,018,500 100%| $ 7.28 1,115,600 100%| $ 8.29 1,195,600 100%| $ 8.29 1,260,800 100%| $ 16.58 | $ 40.44

Tech Memo: Agreement and Approach for Distributing Federal Districtwide Funding for 2050 Plans

10/1/2024
Page 8 of 9



CRP Projections

Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for CAR-B

2023/24 -2024/25

2025/26 - 2029/30

2030/31-2034/35

2035/36 - 2039/40

2040/41-2049/50

MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
MetroPlan Orlando 2,289,420 51.39%| $ - 2,513,600 51.02%| $ - 2,715,900 51.15%| $ - 2,874,800 51.16%| $ - 2,999,100 51.14%| $ - $ -
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 11.53%| $ - 601,400 12.21%| $ - 669,200 12.60%| $ - 724,500 12.89%| $ - 769,100 13.11%[ $ - $ -
Volusia-Flagler TPO 668,921 15.02%| $ - 736,300 14.95%| $ - 783,800 14.76%| $ - 823,900 14.66%| $ - 856,700 14.61%| $ - $ -
Space Coast TPO 606,612 13.62%| $ - 658,300 13.36%| $ - 694,600 13.08%| $ - 724,600 12.90%| $ - 748,300 12.76%| $ - $ -
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 8.44%| $ - 417,100 8.47%| $ - 446,400 8.41%| $ - 471,100 8.38%| $ - 491,700 8.38%| $ - $ -
District 5 Total 4,454,569 100%| $ - 4,926,700 100%| $ - 5,309,900 100%| $ - 5,618,900 100%| $ - 5,864,900 100%| $ - $ -
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for CAR-N (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 _
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 1.11 601,400 59.05%| $ 2.16 669,200 59.99%| $ 2.21 724,500 60.60%| $ 2.23 769,100 61.00%| $ 4.50 11.09
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 0.82 417,100 40.95%| $ 1.50 446,400 40.01%| $ 1.47 471,100 39.40%| $ 1.45 491,700 39.00%| $ 2.87 7.30
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 1.93 1,018,500 100%| $ 3.66 1,115,600 100%| $ 3.68 1,195,600 100%| $ 3.68 1,260,800 100%| $ 7.37 18.39
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for CAR-M (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 ]
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 0.28 601,400 59.05%| $ 0.40 669,200 59.99%| $ 0.41 724,500 60.60%| $ 0.41 769,100 61.00%| $ 0.84 2.06
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 0.21 417,100 40.95%| $ 0.28 446,400 40.01%| $ 0.27 471,100 39.40%| $ 0.27 491,700 39.00%| $ 0.53 1.35
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 0.49 1,018,500 100%| $ 0.68 1,115,600 100%| $ 0.68 1,195,600 100%| $ 0.68 1,260,800 100%| $ 1.37 3.41
Breakout - Districtwide Revenue Estimate for CAR-L (Lake-Sumter MPO & Ocala-Marion TPO only)
2023/24 - 2024/25 2025,/26 - 2029/30 2030/31 - 2034/35 2035/36 - 2039/40 2040/41 - 2049/50 _
MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate MPO Population % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate | MPO Population | % District 5 | Proportionate Total
(2020) Population Share (est 2025) Population Share (est 2030) Population Share (est 2035) Population Share (est 2040) Population Share 25/26 - 49/50
Lake-Sumter MPO 513,708 57.74%| $ 2.17 601,400 59.05%| $ 4.34 669,200 59.99%| $ 4.41 724,500 60.60%| $ 4.45 769,100 61.00%| $ 8.96 22.16
Ocala-Marion TPO 375,908 42.26%| $ 1.58 417,100 40.95%| $ 3.01 446,400 40.01%| $ 2.94 471,100 39.40%| $ 2.90 491,700 39.00%| $ 5.73 14.58
Pop Total 889,616 100%| $ 3.75 1,018,500 100%| $ 7.35 1,115,600 100%| $ 7.35 1,195,600 100%| $ 7.35 1,260,800 100%| $ 14.69 36.74

Tech Memo: Agreement and Approach for Distributing Federal Districtwide Funding for 2050 Plans

10/1/2024
Page 9 of 9



(Jraleglc:
evelopment

2050
REVENUE Z
FORECAST '
HANDBOOK

DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD



Table of Contents

INEFOTUCTION ... 1
Purpose, Basis, and Use Of the HaNADOOK...........cc.cccciiiiic st 2
PUIDIOSE. ... £ b5k R bR 2
BASIS ...ttt 2
HANADOOK USE ...ttt 3
Overview of Roles, Responsibilities, and COOrdINALION ... 4
ROIES aNA RESPONSIDIIITIES .......oveeiieieicisie sttt 4
(070 o o 110 -1 1 o] o 100U 6
Federal and State Revenue Forecast Process Methodology ... ssssssssnes 8
Preparing the REVENUE FOTECAST ...ttt bbbt 8
Conducting and Producing the REVENUE FOTFECAST ..ot ssssssesssens 15
Preparing, Delivering, and Using the MPO Revenue FOrecast REPOIt ........c.cccovnninnnsinsinineessenenenns 42
Appendix A: Revenue FOreCast TIMEINE ...ttt 43
Appendix B: Project FUNAING EHGIDIITY ........coooviiiririncs ettt 44
Funding Eligibility fOr Capacity PrOGQIamIS ...ttt sssessesssans 44
Funding Eligibility for NON-Capacity PrOgrams ... ssesesssss st sssssssssesssens 50
Appendix C: Other Transportation REVENUE SOUICES.........cccciriiieiiniirniessissssssssessssssessssssssssesessssssssssessesssssssassens 53
CUITENT REVENUE SOUITES ..ot 53
NEW REVENUE SOUICES ......oovrericiiseeeesessessse ettt s8££ 56
Development of Revenue Estimates for Other Transportation REVENUE SOUICES ... 56
Appendix D: Transportation FINANCE TOOIS ...ttt ens 58
Federal/State Transportation FINANCE TOOIS........cccorecrs ettt 58
State Transportation FINANCE TOOIS ..ottt sttt 59
Future Toll Facility Projects in MPO Long Range Transportation PIaNnS...........cconeens 60
Appendix E: Forecast Calculations for Growth and INfIatioN ... 61
GIOWEN RATES .......couiviiii 8 61

LRY i =0 T =11 0] £ TSPV 62



Relationship of Construction anNd ROW COSES.......c.ccciiiiicesiss ettt ssssssasse s, 65

APPENAIX Fi GIOSSAIY......coiiviiiiiiciiisiisis sttt s bbb 8 bbbttt ns 66
Appendix G: MPO ReVENUE FOFECASE REPOIT ..ottt ettt 70
2050 Revenue Forecast Florida-Alabama TPO ... ssssssss st ssssssssssessesssssssessessesees 71
2050 Revenue Forecast OKaloosa-Walton TPO ... ssssssssssessessssssssssssesees 76
2050 Revenue Forecast Bay COUNTY TPO ...ttt 81
2050 Revenue Forecast Capital REGION TPA ...ttt sttt 84
2050 Revenue Forecast GaiNESVIlle MTPO ... 89
2050 Revenue Forecast NOrth FIOrda TPO ... 94
2050 Revenue Forecast Ocala/Marion COUNLY TPO ... ssss st ssssessssssnes 99
2050 Revenue Forecast Hernando/Citrus MPO ... 102
2050 Revenue Forecast Lake-SUMEET IMPO ...t 105
2050 Revenue FOrecast RIVET 10 SEA TPO ... 108
2050 Revenue Forecast MetroPIan Orlando ... 113
2050 Revenue FOrecast SPace COASE TPO ... bbbt 118
2050 Revenue Forecast Pasco COUNTY IMPO ...t 123
2050 Revenue Forecast FOrWard PINEIIAS ..ot ssssessssns 128
2050 Revenue Forecast HillSDOrough MPO ... ssssssse s sssssssessns 133
2050 Revenue FOreCast POIK TPO ...t 138
2050 Revenue Forecast Indian RivEr COUNLY MPO ..ot sssns 143
2050 Revenue Forecast Sarasota/Manatee MPO ... s 146
2050 Revenue Forecast Heartland Regional TPO ... sesssssssssesssessseens 151
2050 Revenue FOreCast St. LUCIE TPO ... 154
2050 Revenue FOrecast Martin MPO ... 159
2050 Revenue Forecast Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO ... 164
2050 Revenue Forecast Lee COUNTY MPO ... 167

2050 ReVENUE FOTECASE COIEBE MPO ...ttt ettt sttt s et et et st et et et st an et st ster e st st s b erese st ararenenes 173



2050 Revenue Forecast Palm Beach TPA

2050 Revenue Forecast Broward MPO.....

2050 Revenue Forecast Miami=-Dade TPO ...ttt sttt sttt st b et st e b e e e st arere et arenes



List of Tables

Table 1. FDOT WOrKing GrOUP MEETINGS. ..ottt sttt st ntns 6
Table 2. MPO WOrKing GroUP MEELINGS ..ottt sttt bbbt 7
Table 3. MPOAC QUAIEITY MEETINGS......vcviiieieiriiriniinieissssies ettt s ettt 7
Table 4. Statewide Revenue Estimate for 27 Year Period 2024/25 — 2049/50 (Millions of $) ... 15
Table 5. Statewide Revenue Estimate for SIS — All Modes (MIllions Of ). 17
Table 6. Statewide Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS/Non-Highway Modes (Millions of $) ..., 18
Table 7. Statewide Revenue Estimate for Florida New Starts (Millions Of $)..........ccccouvnnnnnnnnnienn, 19
Table 8. Statewide Revenue Estimate for Non-Capacity Programs (Millions of $) ..., 21
Table 9. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG (MillioNS Of $) .......ccccovvivirininineineesssssss s 23
Table 10. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions Of $) ... 25
Table 11. Districtwide Revenue Estimate CRP (Millions Of $) ..o 27
Table 12. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) - non-TMA MPQOs (Millions of $)..........ccccceeun. 28
Table 13. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SHS/non-SIS)-not in an MPO (Millions of
) e eeeeeee e ee e ee e e e e ettt ettt 29
Table 14. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Discretionary (Millions of $) ..., 30
Table 15. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TRIP (MiIllions Of $) ... 32
Table 16. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for HSIP (MillioNs OF $)......cccoviiiniiccsssrissessss s 33
Table 17. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for Resurfacing, Bridge, and O&M (Millions of $) ... 34
Table 18. TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) — Example Table ..., 36
Table 19. TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) — Example Table ...........cccccoevvvvvcncninnns 37
Table 20. TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) — Example Table ..., 38
Table 21. TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $) — Example Table.................. 39
Table 22. MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of $) — Example
L2 01 TSR 40
Table 23. MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula (Millions of $) — Example Table........ 41
Table 24. Growth Rates for 2027/28 — 2049/50.........cccouieesss s 62
Table 25. Inflations FACtOrs BY TiME BANGS .......cc.cc.ociieiiiecssie ettt sse s ssssssns 63
Table 26. Multiplier By Inflation Factors FOr INdividual YEar ... 64
Table 27. Florida-Alabama TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) .........c.......... 73
Table 28. Florida-Alabama TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) ..., 73
Table 29. Florida-Alabama TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) ........ccccccvviviivcniieiiennnnn, 74



Table 30. Florida-Alabama TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $).... 74
Table 31. Florida-Alabama TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS)

(IMITIONS OF B) ..ot 75
Table 32. Florida-Alabama TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula....................... 75
Table 33. Okaloosa-Walton TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ................. 78
Table 34. Okaloosa-Walton TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)...........cccccevneee. 78
Table 35. Okaloosa-Walton TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) .........cccccvvvivvcviciininnnn, 79

Table 36. Okaloosa-Walton TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $).. 79
Table 37. Okaloosa-Walton TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS)

(IMHTIONS OF B) ..o 80
Table 38. Okaloosa-Walton TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..................... 80
Table 39. Bay County TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of
) OSSPSR 83
Table 40. Bay County TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..........c.cc.ccccocovvvnnnne. 83
Table 41. Capital Region TPA — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)...........cccccovven. 86
Table 42. Capital Region TPA — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).........cccccecvvrvinrien. 86
Table 43. Capital Region TPA — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $).......cccccccevvnvviviniciniiniinnienne, 87

Table 44. Capital Region TPA — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)........ 87
Table 45. Capital Region TPA — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

OF B iR 88
Table 46. Capital Region TPA — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..............c.co....... 88
Table 47. Gainesville MTPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $).........c.ccccecvvernnne, 91
Table 48. Gainesville MTPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) .......cccccvvveviniernne, 91
Table 49. Gainesville MTPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $).......ccccccovvvvrvivivinicniiciininnnn, 92
Table 50. Gainesville MTPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)............ 92
Table 51. Gainesville MTPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

0 ) ) OSSPSR 93
Table 52. Gainesville MTPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula............ccccccecevieneee. 93
Table 53. North Florida TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)............cc.cccoveunee. 96
Table 54. North Florida TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)........c..ccccocvvvivvvnnnnn. 96
Table 55. North Florida TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $)........ccccouvnnninnncininninnnnn. 97

Table 56. North Florida TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $) .......... 97
Table 57. North Florida TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions



Table 58. North Florida TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..........ccccvevviinnn. 98

Table 59. Ocala/Marion County TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS)
(MITHONS OF B) ..o 101

Table 60. Ocala/Marion County TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula........... 101
Table 61. Hernando/Citrus MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (hon-SIS/non-SHS)

(IMIITIONS OF B) ...t bbb bR s bbb A s bbbttt 104
Table 62. Hernando/Citrus MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.................. 104
Table 63. Lake-Sumter MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

OF ) iSRSt 107
Table 64. Lake-Sumter MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula ..., 107
Table 65. River to Sea TPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) .........ccccovvvvrne. 110
Table 66. River to Sea TPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) ..., 110
Table 67. River to Sea TPO - TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) ..., 111
Table 68. River to Sea TPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)............ 111
Table 69. River to Sea TPO - MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of
) OSSPSR 112
Table 70. River to Sea TPO - MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.............ccccevveenee. 112
Table 71. MetroPlan Orlando - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)...........ccccceev.ue 115
Table 72. MetroPlan Orlando — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)........c..cccccevvvvienne 115
Table 73. MetroPlan Orlando — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $)..........ccccouenninnneininninninnns 116

Table 74. MetroPlan Orlando — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)......116
Table 75. MetroPlan Orlando — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

OF $) eeveveeeeeeeseeese e eess s eeee sttt ettt 117
Table 76. MetroPlan Orlando — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula......................... 117
Table 77. Space Coast TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ..o 120
Table 78. Space Coast TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) ..o, 120
Table 79. Space Coast TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $) ..., 121

Table 80. Space Coast TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)........... 121
Table 81. Space Coast TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

OF ) oottt 122
Table 82. Space Coast TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..........ccccccoceviennan. 122
Table 83. Pasco County MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ...........cccceveene. 125
Table 84. Pasco County MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).........cccccccvvrnn. 125

Table 85. Pasco County MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) ......c.ccccccovvvvviniciniiniiniinnns 126



Table 86. Pasco County MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)......126
Table 87. Pasco County MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

OF ) RS 127
Table 88. Pasco County MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..............c........ 127
Table 89. Forward Pinellas — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ........cc.cccccovvvienna 130
Table 90. Forward Pinellas — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)........c.cccceevevivvicviinns 130
Table 91. Forward Pinellas — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) ... 131
Table 92. Forward Pinellas - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)............ 131
Table 93. Forward Pinellas — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of
) OO RRTRTR 132
Table 94. Forward Pinellas — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula ... 132
Table 95. Hillsborough MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)............c..cc........ 135
Table 96. Hillsborough MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).........cccccoovvvvviinnnnn 135
Table 97. Hillsborough MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $).......cccccovvnininnninsinennne, 136

Table 98. Hillsborough MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $) ....... 136
Table 99. Hillsborough MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (hon-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

OF ) 1ot 137
Table 100. Hillsborough MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.............c......... 137
Table 101. Polk TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ..., 140
Table 102. Polk TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)........ccccovvrivvivininrinnnniniennne, 140
Table 103. Polk TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $) ..o 141
Table 104. Polk TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)..........cccceeevnan 141
Table 105. Polk TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of $)142
Table 106. Polk TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.............cccccovivenicnininnnnns 142
Table 107. Indian River County MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS)

(MITHONS OF $) ..o 145
Table 108. Indian River County MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.......... 145
Table 109. Sarasota/Manatee MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)............ 148
Table 110. Sarasota/Manatee MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)................ 148
Table 111. Sarasota/Manatee MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $).........ccccouecvvnvinennne. 149
Table 112. Sarasota/Manatee MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)

............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 149

Table 113. Sarasota/Manatee MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS)
(IMITIONS OF B) ...t bbb bbb bbb AR b s bbb bbbttt 150



Table 114. Sarasota/Manatee MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula............. 150
Table 115. Heartland Regional TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS)

(MITHONS OF B) ..o 153
Table 116. Heartland Regional TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula............. 153
Table 117. St. Lucie TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ..o 156
Table 118. St. Lucie TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).......ccccccvvvvvcinivciicrienns 156
Table 119. St. Lucie TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $)........ccccccovvvivivinivicinccniniencneins 157
Table 120. St. Lucie TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)................ 157
Table 121. St. Lucie TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of
) Yo 158
Table 122. St. Lucie TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.............ccccocoviivinene. 158
Table 123. Martin MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ... 161
Table 124. Martin MPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) ..., 161
Table 125. Martin MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $) ..o, 162
Table 126. Martin MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $).................. 162
Table 127. Martin MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of $)
............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 163
Table 128. Martin MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..........ccccoevniinnnnne, 163
Table 129. Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-
SIS/NON-SHS) (MIllIONS OF $)....cvviiiiiriiieiisicc s 166
Table 130. Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit
FOIMMUIA ... 166
Table 131. Lee County MPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)..........ccccevvvennee 169
Table 132. Lee County MPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).......c..cccccooevvivriennnn 169
Table 133. Lee County MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $).........cccceevvivvinrviininicnennns 170
Table 134. Lee County MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $) ........ 170
Table 135. Lee County MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions
i) o 172
Table 136. Lee County MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula.............ccc.ccce...... 172
Table 137. Collier MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)........c.ccccovvvvivrivrinnnnn 175
Table 138. Collier MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).........ccccovvinnninniinnnnne. 175
Table 139. Collier MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $).......ccccccvvvvrivriviviinincnsnneisnennnn, 176

Table 140. Collier MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)................... 176



Table 141.

Table 142.
Table 143.
Table 144.
Table 145.
Table 146.
Table 147.

Table 148.
Table 149.
Table 150.
Table 151.
Table 152.
Table 153.

Table 154.
Table 155.
Table 156.
Table 157.
Table 158.
Table 159.

Table 160.

Collier MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of $)

....................................................................................................................................................................................... 177
Collier MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula...........ccccovvvvnicniinninn. 177
Palm Beach TPA — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) ..., 180
Palm Beach TPA — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)........cccccoevvviviennnn. 180
Palm Beach TPA — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) .......cccccevvvivivinicvcininrinnnn, 181
Palm Beach TPA — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $).......... 181
Palm Beach TPA — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions

....................................................................................................................................................................................... 182
Palm Beach TPA — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula...............ccccoceeee... 182
Broward MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $).......c.cccceevevevvnnnnn. 185
Broward MPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $).......cccccoeeveveiiiivinins 185
Broward MPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $).........ccccccvvvvvinrinininncnisninnn, 186
Broward MPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)............... 186
Broward MPO - MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of
....................................................................................................................................................................................... 187
Broward MPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula...........c.ccccocoveovnene. 187
Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $).........c..cccceuuneee. 190
Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) ..., 190
Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions Of $).......cccccccovvvivrinrnrrnininrnnnnn, 191
Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $)........ 191
Miami-Dade TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions
....................................................................................................................................................................................... 192
Miami-Dade TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula..................c....... 192

List of Figures

Figure 1. Revenue FOrecasting FrAMEWOTK .........cccoiiriinieiinieie sttt sssssssasse s sssssssessessessssnnes 9



INTRODUCTION

The need for the long-range revenue forecast began with federal
regulation originally required by the Intermodal Surface
Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA). All federal require MPOs to have a
transportation acts since have required Metropolitan Planning financial plan in their LRTP.
Organizations (MPOs?) to contain a financial plan in their Long
Range Transportation Plan (LRTP?). This requirement is codified in Title 23 United States Code (USC)
Section 134 and Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 450.324(f)(11). Florida law also requires
MPOQOs to have a financial plan in their LRTP (Section 339.175(7)(b), Florida Statutes.)

Federal and Florida law

The federal law and regulations specify that an MPQO's financial plan demonstrate how the adopted
transportation plan can be implemented, indicate resources from public and private sources that are
reasonably expected to be made available to carry out the plan, and recommend any additional financing
strategies for needed projects and programs. The financial plan must demonstrate fiscal constraint and
ensure that the LRTP reflects realistic assumptions about future revenues.

Additionally, the federal law indicates that the MPO, applicable transit operator, and State are to
cooperatively develop estimates of funds that will be available to support plan implementation. In
response, the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) prepares a long-range revenue forecast of
federal and state funds in consultation with the Florida MPO Advisory Council (MPOAC) that can be used
by all Florida’s MPOs. This forecast is prepared approximately every five years to align with the LRTP
update schedule for Florida’s MPOs.

A statewide revenue forecast developed cooperatively provides consistency in the assumptions and
approaches used when estimating future federal and state funding for both FDOT and MPO plan
development. This includes providing estimates through the agreed upon horizon year and serves as the
basis for financial planning for the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) Cost Feasible Plan (CFP) and for all
27 MPO LRTPs. Throughout the process, it is FDOT’s goal to provide transparency with communication
via working groups, regular updates to the MPOAC, and development of a handbook (this document) to
detail the process for producing the revenue forecast.

This 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook documents the purpose, basis, and use of the handbook; an
overview of roles, responsibilities, and coordination for the revenue forecast process; and the
methodology details of how the forecast is prepared, produced, and delivered to each MPO.

1 For this document, MPO refers to all forms of an MPO including Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), Transportation Planning
Organization (TPO), Transportation Planning Agency (TPA), and Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO).

2 For this document, LRTP is used generally to refer to a MPQO's long range transportation plan and encompasses other names that may be used
for this purpose (e.g., metropolitan transportation plan).



PURPOSE, BASIS, AND USE OF THE HANDBOOK

PURPOSE

The purpose of this handbook is to provide FDOT and MPO staff and consultants with the detailed
process for preparing, producing, reviewing, and delivering the long-range transportation revenue
forecast to the MPOs for use in their 2050 LRTP update process.

BASIS

THE OVERALL BASIS OF THE FORECAST IS SUMMARIZED IN THESE SIX POINTS:

Follows current federal and state laws, applicable regulations, and FDOT policies. For state funds, it is

based on assumptions concerning factors affecting state revenue sources such as population growth rates
and motor fuel consumption and tax rates.

Uses FDOT’s Program and Resource Plan (PRP) as the financial basis for the forecast. This is the financial
planning document used by FDOT for the 10-year period that includes the Five-Year Work Program.

Considers only federal and state funds that “pass through” the FDOT Five-Year Work Program. Federal
funds include all federal aid that passes through the FDOT budget. State funds include state revenues such
as motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle fees, tourism-based taxes, and other sources. Turnpike Enterprise
revenue estimates are not included in this revenue estimate. For Turnpike project information, refer to the

Turnpike Ten-Year Finance Plan.

Consolidates the program information in the PRP into three categories for how the estimates will be
provided: statewide estimates, districtwide estimates, and MPO estimates.

Does not include estimates for local governments, local/regional authorities, private sector, federal funds
that go directly to MPOs or transit operators, or other funding sources except as noted. While these other

fund sources are not part of the FDOT statewide revenue forecast, they should be considered as part of the
overall MPO forecast based on their information source.

Estimates the value of money at the time it will be collected and reflects future revenue. Future revenue is
often referred to as year of expenditure (YOE) dollars. Growth factors? are applied to revenue amounts
following the Five-Year Work Program. MPOs should adjust project costs to YOE dollars to ensure costs
and revenues are expressed using the same time frame. Appendix E provides detail for adjusting project
costs using agreed upon inflation factors* to convert present day project costs to project costs in YOE
dollars. Therefore, all amounts in the forecast are expressed in YOE dollars.

3 For this revenue forecast, growth factors are the rate used to grow present day revenues over multiple periods to the horizon year of 2050.

4 For this revenue forecast, inflation factors are the rate used to increase present day project costs over time to year of expenditure.


https://floridasturnpike.com/about/floridas-turnpike-financials/

HANDBOOK USE

Florida’s MPOs are advised to use the revenue estimates provided by FDOT along with this handbook to
assist in the update of their LRTPs. However, if an MPO does not use the FDOT revenue forecast, they are
required to develop their own independent forecast and document the methodology used to produce
their own revenue forecast.

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) recommends (based

on 23 CFR 450.324(f)(11)(ii)) that the FDOT 2050 Revenue FHWA recommends that the
Forecast be included in an appendix to the LRTP to FDOT 2050 Revenue Forecast
demonstrate cooperative development and provide . . .

L ) : be included in an appendix to
stakeholders with information and the analysis performed to
produce the anticipated revenues. This is also documented in the LRTP to demonstrate
the 2018 Federal Strategies for Implementation Requirements for cooperative development.

LRTP Updates for the Florida MPOs provided by the FHWA
Florida Division Office. In the case that an MPO develops their
own independent forecast, it is advised that documentation of the approved methodology and
assumptions be included in the LRTP.

The projected dollar values provided in this forecast should be used for planning purposes only during
the LRTP update process. There should be no expectation these specific estimates will be programmed
beyond what is in the 2023/24 - 2027/28 Five-Year Work Program and they do not represent a state
commitment for funding, either in total or in any 5-year time period.




OVERVIEW OF ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES,
AND COORDINATION

The creation of the revenue forecast is a collaborative effort between multiple FDOT Central and District
offices as well as the MPOAC and MPOs. Since 1994, FDOT has worked with the MPOAC to develop the
long-range revenue forecast to comply with federal requirements for developing cost feasible
transportation plans and to demonstrate coordinated planning for transportation facilities and services in
Florida. This section provides a brief description of the roles and responsibilities of FDOT, the MPOAC,
and the MPOs in developing the revenue forecast as well as the approach for coordination.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

FDOT CENTRAL OFFICE — FORECASTING AND TRENDS OFFICE AND OFFICE OF
POLICY PLANNING

The Forecasting and Trends Office (FTO) provides forecasting and analysis linking transportation planning
and implementation. The Office of Policy Planning (OPP) oversees a wide range of efforts and programs
that lay the groundwork for transportation programming and project development including
coordination with Florida’s metropolitan transportation planning processes. Together, they led the effort
for initiating, coordinating, producing, and delivering the revenue forecast. Responsibilities of FTO and
OPP related to the revenue forecast included:

Leading the Central Office (CO) Revenue Team
consisting of the FTO Manager, OPP Director,
and applicable staff;

Coordinating with the Finance, Program and
Resource Allocation staff in the Office of Work
Program and Budget (OWPB) to review and
understand applicable financial data for the
revenue forecast;

Leading the update of the Financial Guidelines
for Florida MPO 2050 LRTPs®:

~ Coordinating with the MPOAC and MPOs
regarding production and distribution of the
revenue forecast;

Working with the FDOT Systems Implementation
Office (SIO) to provide revenue forecasts for the
Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) Cost Feasible
Plan (CFP);

Briefing management on results as production of
the revenue forecast progresses;

Conducting working group meetings with
Districts and MPOs including preparation,
facilitation, and summary;

Providing updates to the MPOAC throughout
the update process; and

Collaborating with other FDOT offices as needed
to review and refine the final revenue forecast to
ensure consistency and transparency.

5 The purpose of the Financial Guidelines for Florida MPO 2050 LRTPs is to provide uniformity in financial reporting within the MPO LRTP and to

document the approach for FDOT, in cooperation with the MPOAC and Florida’s MPOs, to prepare a long-range revenue forecast of state and
federal transportation funds through 2050. It is prepared and agreed upon by both FDOT and MPOAC early in the update process.



FDOT CENTRAL OFFICE — OFFICE OF WORK PROGRAM AND BUDGET

The Office of Work Program and Budget (OWPB) has the responsibility of developing and managing
FDOT's Five-Year Adopted Work Program and providing financial planning services to FDOT
management. The responsibilities of the OWPB related to the revenue forecast include:

Determining the PRP and FDOT's Five-Year ~ Calculating growth rates based on
Work Program snapshot date and information from the latest state Revenue
providing the PRP snapshot built from Estimating Conference (REC);

FDOT's Five-Year Work Program that will ~
be used in developing the forecasts

including the extended forecast (through
the horizon year) using agreed upon ASSiSting with the review and feedback on

growth rates; draft forecast tables to ensure consistency
and transparency.

Discussing and finalizing growth rates with
the CO Revenue Team; and

FDOT WORKING GROUP (INCLUDING DISTRICTS)

To assist in the process of producing the revenue forecast, FDOT created an internal working group to
receive, review, and provide feedback on draft documents related to the revenue forecast. This internal
working group included Central Office staff from FTO, OPP, OWPB, and SIO as well as District MPO
Liaisons and their designees. The responsibilities of the FDOT Working Group related to the revenue
forecast include:

Reviewing and proposing revisions to draft ~  Assisting with review of the draft and final
documents; revenue forecast, and

Providing area/office specific input into the ~ Assisting with communication to MPOs
development of the revenue forecast regarding the revenue forecast.
methodology;

MPO WORKING GROUP

To assist with communication and coordination with the MPOAC and the MPOs, FDOT created an MPO
Working Group to provide input into the preparation of the revenue forecast used to develop the MPO
2050 LRTPs. This external working group included directors and/or staff from nine MPOs who
volunteered to review and comment on draft documents related to the revenue forecast. The
responsibilities of the MPO Working Group related to the revenue forecast include:

Providing input on the Financial Guidelines ~  Providing input into the approach for
for Florida MPO 2050 LRTPs and conducting the revenue forecast.



COORDINATION

Throughout the development process, FTO and OPP coordinated with applicable FDOT offices, MPOAC,
and the MPOs to ensure a timely, consistent, and transparent revenue forecast. Regular coordination
fosters a cooperative and collaborative environment to assist in reconciling long-range plans;
demonstrating coordinated planning for transportation facilities and services in Florida; and better
documenting long-range needs in the state. The CO Revenue Team coordinated both internally and
externally to ensure timeliness, consistency and transparency in the revenue forecast process.

INTERNAL

FTO and OPP engaged with OWPB early to review the FY 22/23 — 30/31 PRP (and later the FY 23/24 -
31/32 PRP). In addition, conversations with OWPB helped the team to understand the current trends
resulting from the state’s REC and its impact on growth rates for the forecast. Early conversations with
the SIO also allowed for coordination of the estimates used in the development of the 2050 SIS CFP.
Regular updates to District MPO Liaisons, via the FDOT Working Group, allowed them to be informed on
the progress so they could communicate information to their respective MPOs. Table 1 summarizes the
FDOT Working Group meetings throughout the process.

Table 1. FDOT Working Group Meetings

DATE TOPIC

November 16, 2021 Kick-off Meeting; discuss purpose and charge

December 14, 2021 Review previous forecast/discuss current approach

January 11, 2022 Discuss draft financial guidelines

February 8, 2022 Review draft financial guidelines

March 8, 2022 Finalize financial guidelines; discuss forecast table templates

April 5, 2022 Discuss changes to release schedule; finalize forecast table templates

June 7, 2022 Provide process update on forecast preparation; discuss boundary assumptions
October 6, 2022 Provide process update on forecast preparation

April 10, 2023 Provide process update on forecast preparation; discuss draft handbook

May 22, 2023 Review revenue forecast details with District Liaisons and MPO staff




EXTERNAL

FTO and OPP regularly met with and updated the MPO Working Group as well as the MPOAC on various
milestones throughout the process. These updates encouraged meaningful conversation about
comments or concerns involving the revenue forecast and allowed FDOT to understand and address the
concerns of the MPOAC. Table 2 summarizes the MPO Working Group meetings throughout the process.
Table 3 summarizes the touch points with the MPOAC throughout the process.

Table 2. MPO Working Group Meetings

DATE TOPIC

November 17, 2021 Kick-off Meeting; discuss purpose and charge

December 16, 2021 Review previous forecast/receive input on current approach

January 18, 2022 Discuss draft financial guidelines

April 7, 2022 Provide input on financial guidelines; provide update on release schedule
June 22, 2022 Provide update on boundary assumptions; discuss forecast table templates
October 14, 2022 Provide process update on forecast preparation

April 17, 2023 Provide process update on forecast preparation; discuss draft handbook
May 22, 2023 Review revenue forecast details with District Liaisons and MPO staff

Table 3. MPOAC Quarterly Meetings

DATE TOPIC

January 27, 2022 Review revenue forecast update process; creation of working groups
April 28, 2022 Review financial guidelines

July 28, 2022 Provide process update on release schedule and forecast assumptions
October 27, 2022 Provide process update on forecast preparation

January 31, 2023 Provide process update on continued forecast preparation

April 27, 2023 Provide 2050 Statewide Revenue Forecast




FEDERAL AND STATE REVENUE FORECAST
PROCESS METHODOLOGY

FDOT prepared the long-range revenue forecast for federal and state funds that “flow through” the FDOT
Five-Year Work Program. The steps involved in this extensive effort included close coordination with the
OWPB; regular updates with District and MPO staff; technical entry, analysis, and verification; quality
review of the estimates; and final release of a revenue forecast for each of Florida’s MPOs. In concert, the
FDOT SIO was provided the same revenue forecast to develop the 2050 SIS CFP.

PREPARING THE REVENUE FORECAST

This section details the preliminary steps to prepare for the analysis of the forecast numbers and tables.
The process for preparing the long-range revenue forecast is a collaborative effort among multiple FDOT
offices. It starts approximately 32-36 months prior to the due date of the first MPO in the LRTP update
cycle. This is to ensure that MPOs first in the update cycle have the forecast at least 15-18 months before
their due date. The cycle described in this handbook kicked off in November 2021, approximately 35
months prior to the first MPO LRTP due for the 2050 cycle.

EARLY STEPS

To initiate the process, the CO Revenue Team reviewed prior forecasts, considered current issues
impacting revenues, received and reviewed the February 2022 PRP snapshot® from the OWPB, and
briefed FDOT management so they could inform the MPOAC of FDOT's intent to begin the update
process. They also convened working groups, finalized the framework of the forecast, and documented
the time frame used in the revenue forecast.

WORKING GROUPS
To provide valuable input into the process, FDOT convened the two working groups.

~ The FDOT Working Group was an internal group consisting of District and Central Office staff
who work with MPOs via their LRTP update process and have an interest/need to understand and
use the revenue forecast, and

~  The MPO Working Group was a volunteer based group of MPO directors and staff that had a
desire to understand, provide input into, and will use the revenue forecast in the LRTP update
process.

These Working Groups helped draft and refine the Financial Guidelines for Florida MPO 2050 LRTPs

document. The guidelines document represented a collaborative effort to provide uniformity in financial

6 The February 2022 PRP snapshot was used in early steps of the process; however, the final forecast was based on the March 2023 PRP snapshot
as described later in this handbook.



reporting within the MPO LRTP update process and provided information for preparing the long-range
revenue forecast to be used by all MPOs for financial planning in their plan updates.

FRAMEWORK

With feedback from the Working Groups, FDOT finalized the Revenue Forecast framework. This
framework, shown in Figure 1, represents the organization of the revenue forecast beginning with
revenue tables at the statewide level largely for informational purposes, followed by revenue tables at the
districtwide level identifying revenues available to the Districts but programmed in consultation with the
MPQOs, and finally, revenue tables at the MPO level providing MPO-specific revenue estimates for
Transportation Management Area (TMA’) funds, transit formula funds, and other revenues that are
reasonably expected to be available in the MPO area through 2050. The Revenue Forecast framework is
also documented in the Financial Guidelines for Florida MPO 2050 LRTPs document.

Figure 1. Revenue Forecasting Framework

STATEWIDE -« DISTRICTWIDE R MPO
.~ ESTIMATES ESTIMATES ESTIMATES

Strategic Intermodal System STBG STBG, TMA MPO

SIS) — all modes
£ TA TA, TMA MPO

Non-SIS, non-highway CRP

CRP, TMA MPO
Qg SHS, non-SIS, non-TMA MPO

Florida New Starts SHS, non-SIS, TMA MPO

Other Roads (not in MPO)

Non-capacity programs Non-SIS Discretionary Transit

(such as Safety, Product TRIP Non-SIS Transit Formula
Support, Administration)

Other Roads, non-SIS, non-SHS

Non-capacity programs
(specifically Safety [HSIP] and
Resurfacing, Bridge, and O&M)

TIMEFRAME

The next step to the revenue forecast process was identifying the time frame that the forecast would
capture. The base year is the first year in the revenue forecast and the horizon year is the last year.
Syncing up the horizon year with the LRTP update cycle provides a seamless use of the revenue forecast
to the MPOs work on the Needs Plan and Cost Feasible Plan. The base and horizon years are for financial
reporting purposes only and do not impact individual MPO selection of alternative base and horizon
years for socio-economic data, modeling, and other purposes.

" Transportation Management Areas (TMA) are urban areas with a population over 200,000. All urban areas with less than 200,000 people are not
considered a TMA. For the purposes of this handbook, MPOs in a TMA are called TMA MPOs and those not in a TMA are called non-TMA MPOs.



Aggregate time bands are identified to simplify reporting. Five-year time bands are used 15 years into
the forecast. The final 10 years are shown as one time band. The individual time bands for this revenue
forecast are 2023/24-2024/25 (gap between Work Program and first time band); 2025/26-2029/30;
2030/31-2034/35; 2034/35-2039/40; and 2039/40-2049/50. The use of time bands increases flexibility,
reduces the need to “fine tune” project priorities, and decreases the number of LRTP amendments.

Revenue estimates provided to each MPO consist of the statewide, districtwide, and MPO level tables.
The tables identify whether the source is federal or state and provides a dollar total for each aggregate
time band.

INITIATING THE REVENUE FORECAST PROCESS

The starting point for preparing the revenue forecast is FDOT’s annual Program and Resource Plan (PRP),
a document providing planned commitment levels by year for all FDOT'’s programs. The PRP is essential
to understanding the major programs, their resource requirements, and the projects they deliver. The
program levels form the basis for FDOT’s Finance Plan, Five-Year Work Program, and Legislative Budget
Request (LBR). Annual estimates of funding levels through 2050 are based on federal and state laws and
regulations and FDOT policies at the time the forecast is prepared. For files related to the current PRP,
visit the Office of Work Program and Budget, Program and Resource Plan website.

Development of the PRP is guided in the broadest sense by FDOT’s mission statement:

The department will provide a safe statewide transportation system that

ensures the mobility of people and goods, enhances economic prosperity,
and preserves the quality of our environment and communities.

In addition, the Florida Transportation Plan (FTP), the state’s long-range transportation plan documenting
Florida’s transportation goals and objectives, provides the policy framework for the PRP, the Five-Year
Work Program, and the LBR.

Sound multimodal planning concepts and the best available forecasts of costs and funding are used in
preparing the PRP. However, the PRP is vulnerable to future circumstances and events which may have a
positive or negative impact on transportation resources such as variations in revenue projections,
changes in regulations and laws, fluctuations in construction costs, and extraordinary and unpredictable
changes in right-of-way land costs.

UNDERSTANDING THE FUNDING SOURCES

Chapter 334, Florida Statutes identifies FDOT as responsible for coordinating the planning of a safe,
viable, and balanced state transportation system serving all regions of the state, and assuring the
compatibility of all components, including multimodal facilities.


https://www.fdot.gov/workprogram/programresourceplan.shtm

In carrying out its duties, FDOT adopts a Five-Year Work Program, which is a list of transportation
projects planned for each fiscal year. State taxes and fees, along with federal aid, make up the primary
funding sources for the work program. Other funding sources include tolls collected for certain facilities,
proceeds from bond issuances, and local taxes and fees. These other funding sources are not considered
in this revenue forecast.

The State Transportation Trust Fund (STTF) is legislatively authorized and used by FDOT to account for the
administration of the maintenance and development of the state highway system and other transportation
related projects. Florida receives both federal and state funds. The Federal aid in this forecast incorporates
current federal legislation — the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) — for the federal fiscal years
2021/22 - 2025/26. Federal funds are obligated to states according to formulas determined by Congress.
All programs in IlJA, existing and new, were considered in this revenue forecast. Urban and non-urban
programs are distributed by population according to federal law.

The STTF's primary revenue sources are from state taxes and fees. The following state revenue sources are
considered in the revenue forecast.

HIGHWAY MOTOR FUEL TAXES

The collection of state fuel taxes is administered by the Florida Department of Revenue (DOR). While
most revenue from the Fuel Sales Tax is distributed to the STTF, set-asides are included for other funds.
Primary state fuel sales taxes include:

Highway Fuel Sales Tax (indexed annually by the Consumer Price Index);

Off-Highway Fuel Sales Tax; and

State Comprehensive Enhanced Transportation System Tax (indexed annually by the Consumer Price Index).
Historically, revenues from these taxes are affected by short-term population growth and automatic tax
rate increases (adjustments based on Consumer Price Index). They tend to grow at a faster pace than
those from other sources. Isolated increases or decreases in growth rates are usually the result of
external variables such as resulted from the COVID-19 pandemic.

TOURISM-BASED TAXES

Tourist-based taxes include those closely associated with tourism in the state. Florida DOR administers
the collection of both aviation fuel tax and the rental car surcharge. Eighty percent of the revenue from
the rental car surcharge is distributed to the STTF. The two tax sources are:

Aviation Fuel Tax and

Rental Car Surcharge.
Revenues from these taxes are heavily influenced by tourist activity. For example, higher growth rates in
recent years were primarily the result of a rebound in tourism from the negative impacts of COVID
limitations that impacted air travel and other travel restrictions.




MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSE RELATED FEES

These funds are primarily collected and administered by the Florida Department of Highway Safety and
Motor Vehicles (FLHSMV) and distributed to the STTF among other funds. Primary state motor vehicle
license related fees include:

Motor vehicle license fees;

Motor vehicle license surcharges;

Initial registration fees (also known as New Wheels on the Road); and

Motor vehicle title fees.

Revenues from these sources are mainly impacted by population growth and new car sales. For
example, the negative growth rates in the future would result in a projected decline in the initial
registration fees of new vehicles. Positive impacts to both of these variables are expected in the long
term given predicted population growth.

DOCUMENTARY STAMP TAXES

The documentary stamp tax is levied on documents that include, but are not limited to, deeds, stocks
and bonds, notes and written obligations to pay money, mortgages, liens, and other evidences of
indebtedness. They can fluctuate widely depending on the Florida real estate market and complex
provisions in the law governing this source of Florida revenue. Currently, state law allows distributions
to the STTF, not to exceed $466.75 million. FDOT programs that receive documentary stamp funding
include Florida New Starts Transit Program, Small County Outreach Program (SCOP), Strategic
Intermodal System (SIS), Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP), and the Florida Rail
Enterprise.

Revenues from this source are impacted largely by fluctuations in the real estate market among other
things. Revenue is first distributed from this tax source to fund debt service for environmental
programs and contributions to the land acquisition trust fund. Revenues are then distributed to the
STTF in an amount not to exceed $466.75 million. Due to the statutory limit, flat growth is assumed
once forecasted funds reach the cap and stays constant through the end of the forecast period. For this
revenue forecast, forecasted funds reached the cap in fiscal year 2029/30.




DETERMINING THE GROWTH RATES

As the update process continued, the CO Revenue Team met with the OWPB to discuss the growth rates
that were used to extrapolate the anticipated revenue from the last year of FDOT'’s Five-Year Work
Program to the horizon year. The process for determining growth rates for both federal and state funds is
described below.

GROWTH RATES FOR FEDERAL FUNDS
‘Q, Federal funds are not based on factors such as population and/or economic growth, a

common indicator of actual economic activity within a state. They are set through a
political process determined by Congress. Federal funds are obligated to states for a
Y et period of time. The current IIJA was passed for the federal fiscal years 2021/22 —
2025/26. The time period is certain unless the current act is extended or new federal legislation is
enacted. Given the uncertain nature of when or how federal funds will be available beyond the current
federal transportation act, FDOT uses a zero percent growth rate for federal funds past the timeframe of
the current federal legislation. The level of federal funding to states has often increased with subsequent
transportation acts, however, given the unpredictable nature of the congressional political process that
produces the state allocations, FDOT remains conservative in forecasting federal funds past the current
federal transportation act. This is a long standing practice and aligns with current FDOT financial policies.

GROWTH RATES FOR STATE FUNDS

FDOT calculates annual growth rates for state funds using information from the REC

which considers the current and anticipated state of the economy and population. The

REC is one of several conferences that are part of the statutorily required consensus

estimating conference process. The REC is required to develop official forecasts for
anticipated state and local government revenues as the conference determines the needs for the state
planning and budgeting process. The three areas within the REC that provide forecasts for
transportation-related funding flowing into the STTF include highway safety fees, transportation revenue,
and general revenue (specifically documentary stamp revenue). The growth rates used in this revenue
forecast are based on what is provided by the REC and are applied in fiscal years 2028/29 — 2049/50.
Information on the growth rates used in this revenue forecast and how they were calculated are included
in Appendix E.

OTHER FACTORS IMPACTING THE REVENUE FORECAST

Historically, the funding split for transportation funds in Florida has been approximately 25 percent
federal and 75 percent state. Given the higher proportional share of funds from state sources, changes in
the state’s economy have a greater impact on the revenue forecast. However, the revenue forecast can be
influenced by external factors at both the federal and state level.



FEDERAL
Q The federal forecast is completely dependent on transportation legislation passed by

Congress and signed into law by the President. Federal transportation law dictates what
each state receives. In 2021, the IlIJA allocated funding to each state through
L£=———" reauthorization of existing programs as well as the creation of new programs for all
modes of transportation. Florida is estimated to receive $13.5 billion in formula funds over the five-year
transportation act which is an increase of 35 percent over the previous Act. In addition to funding
historical programs like the Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) and Transportation Alternatives
(TA), IJA created new programs such as the Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) that is also reflected in the
revenue forecast.

STATE

The state forecast is impacted by external factors within the state’s economy such as

income, employment, visitors, GDP, and population among others. Depending on when

the revenue forecast is calculated, the estimate of future funds can look drastically

different. For example, in 2018, the date of the previous revenue forecast, the U.S. and
the state were in the middle of the longest period of economic growth that is over 10 years. This had an
impact on the growth rates and the estimates that were calculated. The economy began to shift in 2020
and in late 2022, the U.S. economic outlook looked much different with many economists expecting a
recession sometime in 2023. If economic growth declines as currently expected, this downturn will have
an impact on the amount of state tax receipts that will be available, which in turn will impact the amount
of expected state revenue.

RECONCILING THE DATA

Once the growth rates were obtained from OWPB, the CO Revenue Team worked with the OWPB to
download the March 2023 PRP snapshot file of the data submitted in the LBR for the fiscal year
2023/2024 state transportation budget. The PRP shapshot covered fiscal years 2023/24 — 2031/2032.

The first five years of the 10-year PRP, which is the Five-Year Work Program, is the starting point for the
2050 revenue forecast. This 5-year data set is used because while all revenue anticipated is included in the
10-year PRP, not all projects are programmed in the outer years (beyond the adopted Work Program).
Using the Five-Year Work Program as the basis ensures a comprehensive foundation for growing the funds
into the future. For this forecast, growth rates were used starting in 2028/29.

Once the database was received, the CO Revenue Team reconciled the data to the PRP to ensure the
extracted database was correct and complete. The CO Revenue Team met with the OWPB to address any
questions, concerns, or matters concerning the reconciliation. Once the data set was confirmed, the CO
Revenue Team conducted the forecast for statewide, districtwide, and MPO tables.



CONDUCTING AND PRODUCING THE REVENUE FORECAST

This section outlines the steps for producing the revenue forecast tables including details for conducting
and analyzing the revenue forecast. Individual MPO estimates are provided in a separate report prepared
for each MPO.

Review of the forecast numbers began with calculating a summary table of all federal and state funds
that pass through the Five-Year Work Program. Starting with the year following the Five-Year Work
Program, the federal funds were held constant from the end of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 -
2049/50 and state funds were grown based on the established growth rates to 2050 (see Appendix E).
The individual year amounts are summed within the established time bands and provided in Table 4
below. In this summary table, the percent of the total is also calculated for both federal and state funds.

Table 4. Statewide Revenue Estimate for 27 Year Period 2024/25 - 2049/50 (Millions of $)

TIME PERIOD (FISCAL YEARS)

MAJOR

REVENUE 27-YEAR TOTAL
SOURCES 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
(MILLIONS OF $) 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
FEDERAL

Amount $6,819 $14,503 $14,584 $14,584 $29,168 $79,658
Percent of Total 37% 33% 32% 31% 30% 32%

STATE

Amount $11,806 $29,288 $31,300 $32,720 $66,747 $171,862
Percent of Total 63% 67% 68% 69% 70% 68%

Statewide Total $18,624 $43,791 $45,884 $47,304 $95,915 $251,519

The remainder of this section details the approach for calculating the statewide, districtwide, and MPO
level forecasts through 2050.



REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED AT THE STATEWIDE LEVEL

The approach for statewide programs, both formula and discretionary, are provided in this section. For
the purposes of this revenue forecast, FDOT reports revenue estimates at the statewide level for

-

All modes on the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS);

-

Non-SIS/non-highway modes including aviation, rail, seaport development, intermodal access,
and Shared-Use Nonmotorized (SUN) Trail; and

-

Non-SIS transit.

In addition, FDOT provides statewide estimates for non-capacity programs designed to support and
maintain the State Highway System including:

Safety; resurfacing; bridge, product support; operations and maintenance; and administration.

These statewide estimates are funded with both federal and state funds. Because these programs are
administered at the statewide level, the statewide estimates are largely for informational purposes for the
MPOs.

FDOT takes the lead in identifying planned projects for statewide programs. None of these funds are
specifically allocated at the MPO level in the revenue forecast. Funds allocated to the SIS are identified by
FDOT Districts in coordination with the MPOs, regional planning councils, local governments and other
transportation providers and listed in the 2050 SIS CFP. These SIS projects must be included in the MPQO’s
LRTP to advance in the Work Program.

STRATEGIC INTERMODAL SYSTEM (SIS) ALL MODES

SIS revenue estimates consist of federal and state funds for all modes on the SIS. This category includes
construction, improvements, and associated right-of-way for highway and non-highway modes, as
applicable, for designated SIS hubs, corridors, and connectors. The 2050 SIS CFP revenue estimates are
provided for non-Turnpike facilities only. For Turnpike project information, refer to the Turnpike Ten-year
Finance Plan.

SIS revenues and projects are identified in the 2050 SIS Cost Feasible Plan and are provided to MPOs via

that plan. The 2050 SIS Cost Feasible Plan includes all roads on the SIS including connectors between SIS
corridors and SIS hubs. All projects identified in the 2050 SIS CFP are aligned with the SIS Policy Plan and
its implementation as well as follow SIS Funding Eligibility Guidance.

These estimates (outside the Five-Year Work Program) are for planning purposes and do not represent a
commitment of FDOT funding. The 2050 SIS Cost Feasible Plan does not provide specific projects for
modes other than highways (i.e., aviation, spaceports, seaport, rail, and transit). Funding for these modes,
however, is listed in the CFP under the designation of “modal reserves”. Modal reserves are identified
funding amounts assigned to the modes during the CFP planning period. The reserves are available for


https://floridasturnpike.com/about/floridas-turnpike-financials/
https://floridasturnpike.com/about/floridas-turnpike-financials/
https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/sis/policyplan/sis-policy-plan.pdf?sfvrsn=37cbc076_2
https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/systems/sis_fundingeligbility_2019_final.pdf?sfvrsn=d26cd28c_2

each mode for specific projects that will be identified and selected in the future. Table 5 provides the
statewide estimate for SIS — all modes.

Table 5. Statewide Revenue Estimate for SIS — All Modes (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

18-YEAR OVERALL
TOTAL 27-YEAR
FOR SIS TOTAL

2032/33- 2024/25-
2049/50 2049/50

2023/24-
2025/26-
2030/31~
2032/33-
2035/36-
2040/41-
2045/46-

PROGRAMS

Highway Share
Federal/State $3,409.88 $6,598.12 $254858 $3,710.00 $6,301.16 $6,376.18 $6,371.18 $22,758.53 $35,315.10

Modal Reserves
Federal/State $852.47 $1,649.53 $637.15 $92750 $1,57529 $1,594.05 $1,592.80 $5,689.63 $8,828.78

Statewide

Total $4,262.35 $8,247.65 $3,18573 $4,637.51 | $7,87645 $7,970.23 $7,963.98 $28,448.16 $44,143.88

NON-SIS/NON-HIGHWAY MODES

Estimates of available federal and state funds are provided for informational purposes in Table 6 for the
following non-SIS/non-highway modes.

-

Aviation — Primary use of the aviation program is financial and technical assistance to Florida’s
airports for airside improvements.

Rail — Primary use is for funding the acquisition of rail corridors and assistance in developing
intercity passenger and commuter rail services, fixed guideway system development,
rehabilitation of rail facilities, and high-speed transportation.

Intermodal Access — Primary use is to improve access to intermodal, seaport, and airport facilities
to enhance the movement of people and goods to and from airports and seaports.

Seaport Development - Florida Seaport Transportation Economic Development (FSTED) Council
identifies projects eligible for funding for the development of public deep-water seaports.

SUN Trail — Exclusive use is for eligible projects used to develop a statewide system of
nonmotorized, paved trails for bicyclists and pedestrians as a component of the Florida
Greenways and Trails System (FGTS) with a statutorily-defined $25 million annual allocation. This
statewide network is being constructed by FDOT, and they bear the primary responsibility for
planning the system. SUN Trail projects from the Five-Year Work Program need to be included in
MPQ’s TIPs to advance. As such, these TIP projects also need to be in the LRTP. MPOs may wish to



include proposed, but not programmed, SUN Trail projects among the illustrative projects
included in their LRTPs. MPOs also may wish to highlight planned connections with SUN Trail
stemming from other bicycle and pedestrian projects, or from projects of any mode.

Table 6. Statewide Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS/Non-Highway Modes (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

27-YEAR TOTAL

PROGRAMS 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FUNDING SOURCE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
Aviation $259.72 $702.40 $782.88 $818.26 $1,669.10 $4,232.36
Federal/State

Rail $282.69 $398.15 $415.91 $432.51 $880.30 $2,409.56
Federal/State

Intermodal Access $41.85 $144.66 $167.43 $172.27 $348.99 $875.18
Federal/State

Seaport $54.87 $213.67 $235.04 $245.71 $501.22 $1,250.51
Development

Federal/State

SUN Trail $50.00 $125.00 $125.00 $125.00 $250.00 $675.00
State

Statewide Total $689.13 $1,583.87 $1,726.26 $1,793.75 $3,649.61 $9,442.61

For the statewide estimate, FDOT identified federal and state funding that included aviation, rail,
intermodal access, and seaport development programmed funds that were not on the SIS. SUN Trail is
calculated independently because it is a legislatively set annual amount of $25 million a year®. Once
programmed funds were determined, the federal funds were held constant from the end of the current
federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50 and state funds are grown based on the established growth rates
(see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time
bands of 2023/24 - 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 -
2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

8 On April 11, 202, Senate Bill 106 was signed into law expanding SUN Trail and increasing funding to $50 million annually. As of the publication
of this revenue forecast, it has not been determine what programs will be reduced to accommodate the increase for SUN Trail.



FLORIDA NEW STARTS

Estimates of available federal and state funds are provided at the statewide level in Table 7 for the
Florida New Starts program. These are state funds that provide local governments and transit agencies
with up to a dollar-for-dollar match of the local (non-federal) share of project costs for transit fixed-
guideway projects and facilities that qualify under the FTA New Starts Program. The definition of
eligibility includes rail transit and bus rapid transit (BRT) systems. State funding is limited to up to 50
percent of the non-federal share and local funding is required to match state contributions. MPOs may
desire to include projects partially funded with Florida New Starts funds in their LRTPs. Any commitment
of these funds by FDOT should be documented in the LRTP. Otherwise, the MPO should identify such
projects as “illustrative.” Florida New Starts estimates are provided at the statewide level.

Table 7. Statewide Revenue Estimate for Florida New Starts (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36— 2040/41- 2024/25-
SOURCE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
Florida New Starts $173.50 $267.68 $287.56 $300.60 $613.21 $1,642.55
Program

State

For the statewide estimate, FDOT identified federal and state programmed transit funds that were not on
the SIS. All programmed transit funds were reviewed to determine whether they were discretionary or
formula from the state’s perspective. All discretionary funds were considered at the statewide level and
formula funds were considered at the MPO level (see pages 35-36). Once programmed funds were
determined, the federal funds were held constant from the end of the current federal legislation, 2025/26
- 2049/50 and state funds are grown based on the established growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050.
Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25;
2025/26 - 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands
were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

NON-CAPACITY PROGRAMS

These estimates are federal and state funds for programs to support, operate, and maintain the SHS
including safety, bridge, resurfacing, product support, operations and maintenance, and administration.
These are provided at the statewide level in Table 8.

Safety includes the FHWA engineering safety program and the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration (NHTSA) behavioral safety program. Both programs focus on reducing crashes,



fatalities, and serious injuries using the "4 E's" of safety: engineering, education (including public
information), enforcement, and emergency services.

Resurfacing includes resurfacing of all pavements on the State Highway System including
Florida’s Interstate, Turnpike, and other arterial highways.

Bridge includes repair and replacement of bridges in the Bridge Work Plan in accordance with
program objectives. This includes bridges on the State Highway System, off the State Highway
System, on the federal-aid highway system, and off the federal-aid highway system.

Product Support includes preliminary engineering®, construction engineering and inspection,
right-of-way support, environmental mitigation, materials, applied research, and planning and
environment.

Operations and Maintenance includes activities which support and maintain the transportation
infrastructure once it is constructed and operational. Activities include operations and
maintenance centers, toll operations and traffic engineering, and operations services.

Administration includes staff, equipment, and materials required to develop and implement the
budget, personnel, executive direction, reprographics, and contract functions. This also includes
the Fixed Capital Outlay Program.

Certain expenditures, such as debt service, reimbursements to local governments, and a few other minor
categories, are not described above but are included in the statewide totals under “Administration and
Other.”

® Preliminary Engineering (PE) Program represents the activities and resources related to the environmental concerns, corridor location, and other
project development issues, project surveying and mapping, roadway and structural design phases, traffic engineering, safety considerations,
pavement management, project estimating, project specifications development, project management including both in-house and consultant
development and support, and quality assurance in all of these areas as related to highway and bridge construction projects.



Table 8. Statewide Revenue Estimate for Non-Capacity Programs (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

27-YEAR TOTAL

PROGRAMS 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36—- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FUNDING SOURCE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
Safety $412.34 $997.74 $1,017.10 $1,017.78 $2,036.18 $5,481.13
Federal/State

Resurfacing* $3,034.12 $7,998.73 $8,034.39 $8,18454 $16,507.27 $43,759.05
Federal/State

Bridge* $522.15 $2,357.27 $1,954.68 $1,999.65 $4,040.69 $10,874.45
Federal/State

Product Support $3,352.75 $6,280.84 $6,346.05 $6,536.36 $13,247.86 $35,763.87
Federal/State

Operations and $2,465.76 $6,893.87 $7,525.73 $7,851.74 $16,003.51 $40,740.62
Maintenance*

Federal/State

Administration and $396.17 $919.48 $994.11 $1,039.02 $2,119.36 $5,468.14
Other Federal/State

Statewide Total $10,183.28  $2544794 $25872.07 $26,629.10 $53,954.88 $142,087.26

*A district breakdown of the total resurfacing, bridge, and operations & maintenance estimates is provided in the Districtwide section below.

For the statewide estimate, FDOT identified federal and state programmed non-capacity funds for
resurfacing, bridge, preliminary engineering, construction engineering and Inspections (CEl), ROW
support, environmental mitigation, material and research, planning and environment, operations &
maintenance, traffic engineering & operations, toll operations, and administration. Once programmed
funds were determined, the federal funds were held constant from the end of the current federal
legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50 and state funds are grown based on the established growth rates (see
Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of
2023/24 - 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50.
The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.



REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED AT THE DISTRICTWIDE LEVEL

The approach for districtwide programs is provided in this section. Revenue estimates for the following
programs are provided for each FDOT District. MPOs should work with their FDOT District liaison to
identify funding opportunities for these programs:

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG),

Transportation Alternatives (TA);

Carbon Reduction Program (CRP);

~  SHS (non-SIS) — non-TMA MPO;

~ Other Roads (non-SHS/non-SIS); and

Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP).

Some non-capacity programs will be reported, such as:

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), and
Resurfacing, Bridge, and Operations & Maintenance (O&M).

These programs can be used to identify funding opportunities for MPOs. MPOs should work with their
FDOT District Liaison to identify planned projects for these funding sources.

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT

These are federal funds from the Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) program to promote
flexibility in State and local transportation decisions and provide flexible funding to best address State
and local transportation needs. The sub-categories are shown in the list below.

-

For “any area”, may be used on any project in the state

For areas with a population less than 5,000;

For areas with a population from 5,000 to 49,999; and

For areas with a population from 50,000 to 200,000.

Estimates for these areas are provided at the FDOT Districtwide level in Table 9. MPOs should work with
their FDOT District Liaison to identify planned projects for this funding source. Funding for “any area” can
be used by both TMA and Non-TMA MPOs. Funding for the other areas listed above are for non-TMA

MPQOs as applicable to their population. This list excludes funding for areas with a population over
200,000 because they are shown in the MPO section later in the document.




Table 9. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)

Time Periods (Fiscal Years)

2030/31-
2034/35

27-YEAR
TOTAL

2024/25-

2049/50

Programs 2023/24- 2025/26—
Funding Source: Federal 2024/25 2029/30
District 1

SA (Any Area) $53.33 $248.58
SN (Population less than 5,000) $4.07 $22.42
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.33 $15.02
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $4.07 $17.21
Total District 1 $303.23
District 2

SA (Any Area) $47.39 $84.29
SN (Population less than 5,000) $16.15 $36.43
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $2.51 $2.58
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $7.33 $22.38
Total District 2 $145.68
District 3

SA (Any Area) $46.23 $78.63
SN (Population less than 5,000) $13.12 $31.73
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $1.34 $6.85
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $0.50 $28.49
Total District 3 $145.70
District 4

SA (Any Area) $61.20 $126.12
SN (Population less than 5,000) $2.64 $3.51
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $1.88 $4.77
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $5.29 $13.01
Total District 4 $147.41
District 5

SA (Any Area) $90.87 $252.81
SN (Population less than 5,000) $8.20 $29.59
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $2.94 $5.51
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $15.82 $54.46
Total District 5 $117.83 $342.36
District 6

SA (Any Area) $29.18 $119.79
SN (Population less than 5,000) $- $1.38
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.10 $5.81
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $0.71 $-
Total District 6 $126.98
District 7

SA (Any Area) $72.83 $183.05
SN (Population less than 5,000) $6.93 $20.00
SM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.55 $0.77
SL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $8.99 $25.76

Total District 7 $229.58

Statewide Total $504.49 $1,440.95

$260.34
$22.08
$15.98
$20.28
$318.67

$148.69

$90.34
$31.97
$6.91
$29.41
$158.62

$97.58
$3.61
$4.81
$13.11
$119.11

$302.19

$30.00
$5.56
$55.96
$393.71

$146.00
$1.39
$5.85
$-

$153.25

$163.17

$20.14
$0.77
$25.95
$210.03
$1,502.09

2035/36— 2040/41-

2039/40 2049/50
$260.34 $520.68
$22.08 $44.15
$15.98 $31.96
$20.28 $40.55
$318.67 $637.35
$91.62 $183.25
$34.52 $69.05
$- $-
$22.54 $45.09
$148.69 $297.39
$90.34 $180.67
$31.97 $63.94
$6.91 $13.81
$29.41 $58.82
$158.62 $317.24
$97.58 $195.17
$3.61 $7.21
$4.81 $9.62
$13.11 $26.22
$119.11 $238.22
$302.19 $604.38
$30.00 $60.01
$5.56 $11.12
$55.96 $111.92
$393.71 $787.41
$146.00 $292.01
$1.39 $2.78
$5.85 $11.71
$- $-
$153.25 $306.50
$163.17 $326.34
$20.14 $40.27
$0.77 $1.55
$25.95 $51.90

$210.03 $420.07
$1,502.09 $3,004.17

$1,343.27
$114.80
$79.28
$102.39
$1,639.73

$498.18
$190.68

$5.09
$119.89
$813.83

$486.20
$172.72

$35.82
$146.62
$841.37

$577.66
$20.56
$25.89
$70.74
$694.85

$1,552.42
$157.81
$30.68

$294.11
$2,035.02

$732.98
$6.95
$29.33
$0.71
$769.97

$908.57

$107.48
$4.41
$138.56
$1,159.01
$7,953.78




To calculate the districtwide estimate for STBG, FDOT identified the federal programmed funds for STBG
for non-TMA MPOs. Once programmed funds were determined by district, the federal funds were held
constant from the end of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50. Annual revenue estimate
amounts were summed into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30;
2030/31 - 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across
programs for the 27-year period.

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES SET-ASIDE

The Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside are federal funds used to assist MPOs with projects for
pedestrian and bicycle facilities, recreational trails, safe routes to school projects, community
improvements such as historic preservation and vegetation management, and environmental mitigation
related to stormwater and habitat connectivity. The sub-categories are shown in the list below.

For “any area” and may be used on any project within the state;

For areas with a population less than 5,000;

For areas with a population from 5,000 to 49,999; and

For areas with a population from 50,000 to 200,000.
Estimates for these areas are provided at the FDOT Districtwide level in Table 10. MPOs should work with
their FDOT District Liaison to identify planned projects for this funding source. Funding for “any area” can
be used by both TMA and Non-TMA MPOs. Funding for the other areas listed above are for non-TMA
MPOs as applicable to their population. If MPOs choose to include projects with these funds in their

LRTPs, they must be identified as “illustrative.” This list excludes funding for areas with a population over
200,000 because they are shown in the MPO section later in the document.




Table 10. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

27-YEAR
TOTAL

PROGRAMS 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FUNDING SOURCE: FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
TALT (Any Area) $8.49 $24.65 $25.07 $25.07 $50.13 $133.41
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $1.41 $3.66 $3.72 $3.72 $7.43 $19.93
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.92 $2.35 $2.37 $2.37 $4.74 $12.75
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $1.17 $2.97 $3.00 $3.00 $6.00 $16.14
Total District 1 $182.22
District 2
TALT (Any Area) $6.06 $19.18 $19.37 $19.37 $38.75 $102.74
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $2.38 $6.07 $6.14 $6.14 $12.28 $33.00
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $- $1.90 $1.92 $1.92 $3.84 $9.58
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $1.29 $3.30 $3.34 $3.34 $6.68 $17.95
Total District 2 $163.26
District 3
TALT (Any Area) $6.13 $12.50 $12.59 $12.59 $25.19 $69.00
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $2.53 $4.70 $4.74 $4.74 $9.47 $26.17
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.79 $1.02 $1.02 $1.02 $2.05 $5.90
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $2.37 $4.32 $4.36 $4.36 $8.71 $24.11
Total District 3 $125.18
District 4
TALT (Any Area) $11.70 $30.49 $30.75 $30.75 $61.50 $165.19
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $0.21 $0.53 $0.53 $0.53 $1.07 $2.87
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.28 $0.71 $0.71 $0.71 $1.42 $3.83
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $0.76 $1.93 $1.94 $1.94 $3.88 $10.45
Total District 4 $182.35
District 5
TALT (Any Area) $14.04 $34.89 $36.79 $36.79 $73.58 $196.10
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $1.74 $4.41 $4.44 $4.44 $8.89 $23.93
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.32 $0.82 $0.82 $0.82 $1.65 $4.43
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $3.24 $7.28 $8.29 $8.29 $16.58 $43.68
Total District 5 $100.69 $268.13
District 6
TALT (Any Area) $12.50 $19.97 $20.15 $20.15 $40.29 $113.06
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $0.13 $0.20 $0.21 $0.21 $0.41 $1.16
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.60 $0.86 $0.87 $0.87 $1.73 $4.92
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $- $- $- $- $- $-
Total District 6 $119.14
District 7
TALT (Any Area) $11.14 $24.80 $25.00 $25.00 $49.99 $135.94
TALN (Population less than 5,000) $2.27 $3.06 $3.08 $3.08 $6.16 $17.64
TALM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.09 $0.11 $0.11 $0.11 $0.23 $0.66
TALL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $2.16 $3.82 $3.84 $3.84 $7.69 $21.35

Total District 7 $175.59

Statewide Total $220.49 $225.17 $225.17 $450.34 $1,215.87




For the districtwide estimate, FDOT identified the federal programmed funds for TA for non-TMA MPOs.
Once programmed funds were determined by District, the federal funds were held constant from the end
of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed
into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 —
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

CARBON REDUCTION PROGRAM

Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) are federal funds to assist MPOs with projects designed to reduce
transportation emissions, defined as carbon dioxide (CO;) emissions from on-road highway sources. The
sub-categories are shown in the list below.

For “any area” and may be used on any project within the state;

For areas with a population less than 5,000;

For areas with a population from 5,000 to 49,999; and

For areas with a population from 50,000 to 200,000.
Estimates for these areas are provided at the Districtwide level in Table 11. MPOs should work with their
FDOT District Liaison to identify planned projects for this funding source. Funding for “any area” can be
used by both TMA and Non-TMA MPOs. Funding for the other areas listed above are for non-TMA MPOs
as applicable to their population. If MPOs choose to include projects with these funds in their LRTPs, they

must be identified as “illustrative.” This list excludes funding for areas with a population over 200,000
because they are shown in the MPO section later in the document.




Table 11. Districtwide Revenue Estimate CRP (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

27-YEAR
TOTAL

PROGRAMS 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FUNDING SOURCE: FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50
CARB (Any Area) $- $- $- $- $- $-
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $1.25 $3.06 $3.09 $3.09 $6.17 $16.65
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.77 $1.95 $1.96 $1.96 $3.93 $10.57
CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $2.49 $4.02 $4.92 $4.92 $9.84 $26.20
Total District 1
District 2
CARB (Any Area) $3.67 $- $- $- $- $3.67
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $1.99 $5.05 $5.09 $5.09 $10.18 $27.41
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.32 $1.58 $1.59 $1.59 $3.18 $8.26
CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $1.45 $2.96 $2.96 $2.96 $5.92 $16.25
Total District 2
District 3
CARB (Any Area) $- $- $- $- $- $-
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $1.77 $3.90 $3.93 $3.93 $7.85 $21.37
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.66 $0.84 $0.85 $0.85 $1.70 $4.90

CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $1.32 $3.86 $3.86 $3.86 $7.72 $20.62

Total District 3 $8.60 $8.64 $8.64 $17.27 $46.89
District 4

CARB (Any Area) $- $- $- $- $- $-
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $0.17 $0.44 $0.44 $0.44 $0.89 $2.38
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.23 $0.59 $0.59 $0.59 $1.18 $3.18
CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $1.31 $1.72 $1.72 $1.72 $3.44 $9.92
Total District 4

District 5

CARB (Any Area) $- $- $- $- $- $-
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $1.93 $3.66 $3.68 $3.68 $7.37 $20.33
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.49 $0.68 $0.68 $0.68 $1.37 $3.90
CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $7.35 $7.35 $7.35 $14.69 $40.48
Total District 5 $11.68 $11.71 $11.71 $23.43 $64.71
District 6

CARB (Any Area) $- $- $- $- $- $-
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $0.03 $0.17 $0.17 $0.17 $0.34 $0.89
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.51 $0.71 $0.72 $0.72 $1.44 $4.10
CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $- $- $- $- $- $-
Total District 6

District 7

CARB (Any Area) $- $- $- $- $- $-
CARN (Population less than 5,000) $1.29 $2.53 $2.55 $2.55 $5.11 $14.04
CARM (Population 5,000 to 49,999) $0.07 $0.09 $0.09 $0.09 $0.19 $0.55
CARL (Population 50,000 to 200,000) $2.59 $3.24 $3.41 $3.41 $6.81 $19.46

Total District 7

Statewide Total $28.07 $48.40 $49.66 $49.66 $99.33 $275.12



For the districtwide estimate, FDOT identified the federal programmed funds for CRP for non-TMA MPOs.
Once programmed funds were determined by district, the federal funds were held constant from the end
of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed

into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 —
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

SHS (NON-SIS) - NON-TMA MPOS

These are state funds to fund improvements on the State Highway System for facilities not on the SIS.
The approximately 8,000 miles of such highways represent about 64 percent of the centerline miles on
the SHS. These funds may not be used off the state system. Non-TMA MPOs should work with their FDOT
District Liaison to identify planned projects for this funding source. Estimates for SHS (non-SIS) for non-
TMA MPOs are provided at the FDOT Districtwide level in Table 12.

Table 12. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) - non-TMA MPOs (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-

SOURCE: STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

District 1 $2.46 $4.73 $5.36 $5.52 $11.19 $29.26
District 2 $- $- $- $- $- $-
District 3 $2.17 $0.89 $2.33 $2.43 $4.96 $12.78
District 4 $3.18 $1.30 $3.41 $3.56 $7.27 $18.72
District 5 $9.91 $76.25 $65.59 $68.56 $139.86 $360.16
District 6 $- $- $- $- $- $-
District 7 $- $31.43 $23.49 $24.26 $49.22 $128.40

Statewide Total $114.60 $100.17 $104.33 $212.50 $549.32




For the districtwide estimates, FDOT identified state programmed funds for SHS, non-SIS, not in a TMA.
Once programmed funds were determined by District, the state funds were grown based on the
established growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into
the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 —
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

OTHER ROADS (NON-SHS/NON-SIS) - NOT IN AN MPO

These are federal funds that may be used off-system which are roads that are not on the SIS or the State
Highway System (i.e., roads owned by counties and municipalities) and could include programs such as
Small County Outreach Program (SCOP) and County Incentive Grant Program (CIGP). Estimates for Other
Roads (non-SHS/non-SIS) are provided at the FDOT Districtwide level in Table 13 for informational
purposes only to the MPOs.

Table 13. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SHS/non-SIS)-not in an
MPO (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31-  2035/36-  2040/41- 2024/25-

SOURCE: STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

District 1 $- $- $- $- $- $-
District 2 $61.65 $71.88 $101.65 $106.26 $216.76 $558.19
District 3 $36.63 $43.40 $60.92 $63.69 $129.91 $334.55
District 4 $- $- $- $- $- $-
District 5 $- $- $- $- $- $-
District 6 $4.24 $8.34 $8.94 $9.35 $19.07 $49.94
District 7 $- $- $- $- $- $-

Statewide Total $102.51 $123.62 $17151 $179.29 $365.74 $942.68

For the districtwide estimates, FDOT identified programmed funds for Other Road, not in an MPO. Once
programmed funds were determined by District, the state funds were grown based on the established
growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the
established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 -
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.



NON-SIS TRANSIT DISCRETIONARY

These are federal and state funds awarded based on a competitive process, which may differ depending
on the grant. For the purpose of this revenue forecast, FTA transit funds treated as discretionary to MPOs
include Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities - Section 5310, Formula Grants for
Rural Areas — Section 5311, and Bus And Bus Facilities Section 5339. Distribution of these funds are
evaluated based on program criteria and selected at the districtwide level but are not guaranteed.

In previous revenue forecasts, transit estimates were provided for both discretionary and formula by
MPO. For this revenue forecast, transit estimates have been shown with discretionary funds at a
districtwide level and formula funds at the MPO level. This adjustment in classification better represents
how funds are distributed. Funds coming to FDOT via formula but distributed to transit agencies and
MPOs based on need are considered discretionary for this revenue forecast. All transit discretionary funds
are provided at the districtwide level and transit formula funds are provided at the MPO level (see pages
39-40). Estimates for Non-SIS Transit Discretionary are provided at the FDOT Districtwide level in Table
14.

Table 14. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Discretionary (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

S EERAE 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING 2023/24-  2025/26-  2030/31-  2035/36-  2040/41- 2024/25-

SOURCE: STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

District 1 $18.53 $30.59 $35.95 $36.59 $73.76 $195.41
District 2 $18.80 $36.23 $39.99 $40.49 $81.45 $216.95
District 3 $22.54 $26.38 $35.28 $35.52 $71.27 $191.00
District 4 $30.98 $110.40 $102.64 $103.85 $208.83 $556.70
District 5 $32.79 $32.30 $47.26 $47.83 $96.18 $256.37
District 6 $38.57 $30.10 $51.78 $53.79 $109.44 $283.68
District 7 $10.47 $37.79 $35.01 $35.41 $71.19 $189.87
Central Office $210.59 $499.93 $524.11 $536.31  $1,083.86 $2,854.81

Statewide Total $383.26 $803.73 $872.02 $889.80 $1,795.97 $4,744.78




For the districtwide estimates, FDOT identified programmed funds for Non-SIS Transit Discretionary.
Once programmed funds were determined by District, the state funds were grown based on the
established growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into
the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 -
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

TRANSPORTATION REGIONAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM

The Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP) encourages regional planning by providing state
matching funds for improvements to regionally significant transportation facilities in regional
transportation areas identified and prioritized by regional partners. TRIP funds are distributed to the
FDOT Districts based on a statutory formula of equal parts population and fuel tax collections. TRIP’s
funding source is a percentage of documentary stamp funds and a portion of the Motor Vehicle License
fees. It will fund up to 50 percent of the project cost. TRIP estimates are provided at the Districtwide level
in Table 15.

MPOs may desire to include projects partially funded with TRIP funds in the long range transportation
plan. If so, the MPO should identify such projects as “illustrative projects” in its plan along with, at a
minimum, the following information:

-

Status of regional transportation planning in the affected MPO area, including eligibility for TRIP
funding;

Description of the project and estimated costs;
Assumptions related to the share and amount of district TRIP funding for the project; and
Assumptions related to the share and amount of non-State matching funds for the project

(federal and/or local).

MPOs should work with their FDOT District Liaison in developing and documenting this information.



Table 15. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for TRIP (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

REETAE 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: ~ 2023/24-  2025/26-  2030/31-  2035/36-  2040/41- 2024/25-
STATE 2024/25 ~ 2029/30  2034/35  2039/40  2049/50 2049/50
District 1 $16.66 $34.52 $37.60 $39.30 $80.17 $208.26
District 2 $9.59 $26.66 $29.04 $30.35 $61.92 $157.56
District 3 $7.80 $17.33 $18.87 $19.73 $40.25 $103.98
District 4 $23.49 $42.35 $46.12 $48.22 $98.36 $258.55
District 5 $10.78 $41.12 $55.14 $57.64  $117.58 $282.27
District 6 $20.89 $27.76 $30.23 $31.60 $64.47 $174.95
District 7 $4.26 $31.52 $32.39 $33.86 $69.07 $171.10

Statewide Total $93.48 $221.27 $249.39 $260.70 $531.82 $1,356.66

For the districtwide estimates, FDOT identified state programmed funds for TRIP. Once programmed
funds were determined by District, the state funds were grown based on the established growth rates
(see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time
bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 -
2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

NON-CAPACITY PROGRAMS — HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

The FDOT Safety Office manages the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) engineering safety
program which is funded via the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). The HSIP addresses low
cost (typically $1,000,000 or less) short-term safety projects that correct specific traffic crash problems
involving fatal and serious injury crashes. This program is applicable to all public roads except Turnpike
Enterprise. In prior years, the total HSIP estimate was provided and administered at the statewide level.
Beginning in FY 2023/24, these safety allocations will be district managed and distributed based on
statutory formula. New projects will be reviewed in accordance with the funding approved eligibility
requirements and should be submitted to the State Safety Engineer. MPOs should work with their FDOT
District Liaison to identify planned projects for this funding source and document this information. The
HSIP estimate are provided at the Districtwide level in Table 16.



Table 16. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for HSIP (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

EROCRAME 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: ~ 2023/24-  2025/26-  2030/31-  2035/36-  2040/41- 2024/25-

FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 ~ 2029/30  2034/35  2039/40  2049/50 2049/50

District 1 $45.77 $78.09 $74.69 $7469  $149.39 $422.63
District 2 $43.87 $60.83 $58.99 $58.99  $117.98 $340.66
District 3 $32.20 $39.97 $38.46 $38.46 $76.91 $226.00
District 4 $53.85 $94.90 $91.03 $91.03  $18205 $512.86
District 5 $57.55  $113.26  $107.84  $107.84  $215.68 $602.18
District 6 $34.02 $63.86 $61.58 $6158  $123.16 $344.19
District 7 $38.73 $78.79 $75.49 $7549  $150.99 $419.50

Statewide Total $305.98 $529.70 $508.08 $508.08  $1,016.16 $2,868.01

For the districtwide estimate, FDOT identified the federal and state programmed funds for HSIP. Once
programmed funds were determined by district, the federal funds were held constant from the end of the
current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50 and the state funds were grown based on the established
growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the
established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 -
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

NON-CAPACITY PROGRAMS — RESURFACING, BRIDGE, AND OPERATIONS &
MAINTENANCE

A forecast for resurfacing, bridge, operations and maintenance is provided at the Districtwide level in
Table 17. Consistent with MPOAC Guidelines, FDOT and FHWA agreed the LRTP will meet FHWA
expectations if it contains planned FDOT expenditures to operate and maintain the State Highway System
at the District level. The statewide estimates for these non-capacity programs, which are sufficient for
meeting statewide objectives and program needs in all metropolitan and non-metropolitan areas,
accomplishes the goal of ensuring that sufficient funding will be available to operate and maintain the
overall state transportation system. FDOT provides these estimates in the Revenue Forecast. FDOT also
includes statewide funding for these which reconcile to the districtwide amounts.



Table 17. Districtwide Revenue Estimate for Resurfacing, Bridge, and O&M (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

27-YEAR
PROGRAMS TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE:  2023/24-  2025/26-  2030/31-  2035/36—  2040/41- 2024/25-
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25  2029/30 2034/35  2039/40  2049/50 2049/50
District 1 $767.92  $2,39568  $2,21585  $2,268.67  $4,585.95 $12,234.06
District 2 $93841  $2,721.01  $2581.38  $2,671.67  $5426.42 $14,338.89
District 3 $92387  $177458  $1,789057  $1,837.48  $3,719.07 $10,044.57
District 4 $640.42  $1,64568  $148340 $1,537.82  $3125.74 $8,433.06
District 5 $87149  $2,27807  $2,32250  $2,390.11  $4,842.43 $12,704.59
District 6 $44520  $1447.62  $1559.62  $1,61117  $3,269.79 $8,333.41
District 7 $54024  $1,30458  $126567  $1,30933  $2,658.83 $7,078.65
g?;:ir:t'somce $24560  $1,84681  $230419  $2,329.83  $4,683.27 $11,409.70
0&M Operating $648.87  $1,83585  $1992.64  $2,079.85  $4,239.96 $10,797.17

Statewide Total $6,022.03  $17,249.87 $17,514.80 $18,035.94 $36,551.47 $95,374.12

Note: Includes only resurfacing, bridge, and operations & maintenance programs.

For the districtwide estimate, FDOT identified the federal and state programmed funds for resurfacing,
bridge, operations and maintenance. Once programmed funds were determined by District, the federal
funds were held constant from the end of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50 and the state
funds were grown based on the established growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue
estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 —
2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed
across programs for the 27-year period.



REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED AT THE MPO LEVEL

The approach for MPO level estimates are provided in this section. Revenue estimates by certain federal
and state programs are reported for each MPO, as applicable, including:

~ STBG - TMA MPOs,

- TA-TMA MPOs,

- CRP-TMA MPOs,

~ State Highway System (non-SIS) - TMA MPOs,

~ Other Roads (non-SIS, non-SHS), and

Non-SIS Transit (excluding Florida New Starts and Transit discretionary)

The MPOs lead in the identification of planned projects funded by these programs. MPOs should use the
total funds estimated for these programs to plan for the mix of highway and public transportation
improvements that best meets the needs of their metropolitan areas. The boundary for five MPOs (Florida-
Alabama TPO, Okaloosa-Walton TPO, Gainesville MTPO, River to Sea TPO, and Indian River County MPO)
do not match to County boundaries, which is the lowest level of geography at the PRP level. These MPOs
should work with their FDOT District MPO Liaison to adjust the projected county level estimates to MPO
specific estimates.

Overall, MPO estimates are summarized into five year time bands and a final 10-year time band. For
planning purposes, there is some flexibility for the estimates in these time periods (e.g., within 10 percent
of the funds estimated for that period). However, for the LRTP to be fiscally constrained, it is required that
the total cost of all phases of planned projects for the entire forecast period not exceed the revenue
estimates for each element or component of the plan.

TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT AREAS

MPO level estimates for STBG, TA, and CRP are shown for MPO’s where all or part of their boundary
includes a federally designated TMA. TMAs are defined by USDOT as an urban area with a population of
over 200,000. MPOs that have a TMA within their boundary are provided with estimates of TMA funds. As
a result of the 2020 US Census, three additional areas in Florida have populations over 200,000 including
Navarre-Miramar Beach-Destin Urban Area, Gainesville Urban Area, and the Deltona Urban Area. As of
the date of this handbook, FHWA has not officially desighated these areas as TMAs however, in
anticipation of their likely designation, this revenue forecast provided estimates for these areas as TMAs
given their population amounts. Currently, 15 TMAs involving 18 of Florida’s MPOs qualify for these
funds. For the purposes of this revenue forecast, STBG, TA, and CRP have been distributed among 18
TMAs involving 20 MPOs.

Three TMAs (Miami-Ft. Lauderdale Urban Area, Tampa-St. Petersburg Urban Area, and Port St. Lucie
Urban Area) have more than one MPO in their boundary. These MPOs should consult with their FDOT



District to suballocate the funds accordingly. Two MPOs (MetroPlan Orlando and Polk TPO) have more
than one TMA in their boundary and will receive an allocation for each TMA area. A third MPO (River to
Sea TPO) has more than one TMA in their boundary when considering the inclusion of the new urban
areas based on the 2020 US Census and will also receive an allocation for each TMA.

MPOs should perform a thorough analysis of how TMA funds will be reflected in their long range plan.
They should consult with FDOT district staff to allocate the funds accordingly. Consideration should be
given to:

Programmed use of TMA funds among the various categories in the FDOT revenue forecast.
These include SIS-all modes, SHS (non-SIS), transit, and product support (e.g., planning, PD&E
studies, engineering, design, construction inspection).

Planned use of TMA funds based on current policies through the long range plan horizon year
with sufficient documentation.

Clear articulation in the long range plan documentation of the policies regarding the use of TMA
funds and estimates of TMA funds planned for each major program and time period.

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT - TMA MPO

These are federal funds from the Surface Transportation Block Grant program that are allocated to TMA
MPOs to promote flexibility in State and local transportation decisions and provide flexible funding to
best address State and local transportation needs. Estimates for areas with a population over 200,000 are
provided at the MPO level (example shown in Table 18). Areas under 200,000 are excluded because they
are shown in the Revenue Estimates Reported at the Districtwide Level earlier in the handbook. TMA MPQOs
should consult with their District Liaison for STBG funding that can be used in any area of the state which
is shown in the STBG Districtwide Tables on pages 22-23.

Table 18. TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $) — Example Table

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE:; 2023/24-  2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

STBG (SU, in TMA with

population > 200K) MPO estimates are provided in Appendix G.

For the MPO estimate, FDOT identified the federal programmed funds for STBG-TMA MPOs (also called
SU funds). The programmed funds were determined by TMA for FY 2023/24. Starting with 2024/25
through FY 2027/28, the annual total for SU funds was distributed by percent of 2020 US Census



population amounts for Florida’s TMAs (including the three new ones). For FY 2028/29 through 2049/50,
the federal funds were held constant from 2025/26 - 2049/50 following the current federal legislation.
Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25;
2025/26 - 2029/30; 2030/31 - 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands
were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES (TA) SET-ASIDE - TMA MPO

These are federal funds from the Transportation Alternatives set-aside that are allocated to TMAs. They
can be used to assist MPOs with projects for pedestrian and bicycle facilities, recreational trails, safe
routes to school projects, community improvements such as historic preservation and vegetation
management, and environmental mitigation related to stormwater and habitat connectivity. Estimates for
areas with a population over 200,000 are provided at the MPO level (example shown in Table 19). Areas
under 200,000 are excluded because they are shown in the Revenue Estimates Reported at the Districtwide
Level earlier in the handbook. TMA MPOs should consult with their District Liaison for TA funding that
can be used in any area of the state which is shown in the TA Districtwide Tables on pages 24-25.

Table 19. TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $) — Example Table

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24-  2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

TA (TALU, in TMA with

population > 200K) MPO estimates provided in Appendix G.

For the MPO estimate, FDOT identified the federal programmed funds for TA set aside-TMA MPOs (also
called TALU funds). The programmed funds were determined by TMA for FY 2023/24. Starting with
2024/25 through FY 2027/28, the annual total for TALU funds was distributed by percent of 2020 US
Census population amounts for Florida’'s TMAs (including the new ones). For FY 2028/29 through
2049/50, the federal funds were held constant from 2025/26 - 2049/50 following the current federal
legislation. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of 2023/24
—2045/25; 2025/26 - 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time
bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

CARBON REDUCTION PROGRAM - TMA MPO

These are federal funds from the Carbon Reduction Program that are allocated to TMA MPOs. They can
be used to assist MPOs with projects designed to reduce transportation emissions, defined as carbon
dioxide (CO-) emissions from on-road highway sources. Estimates for areas with a population over
200,000 are provided at the MPO level (example shown in Table 20). Areas under 200,000 are excluded



because they are shown in the Districtwide section earlier in the handbook. TMA MPOs should consult
with their District Liaison for CRP funding that can be used in any area of the state which is shown in the
CRP Districtwide Tables on pages 26-27.

Table 20. TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $) — Example Table

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24-  2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

CAR (CARU, in TMA with

population > 200K) MPO estimates provided in Appendix G.

For the MPO estimate, FDOT identified the federal programmed funds for CRP-TMA MPOQOs (also called
CARU funds). The programmed funds were determined by TMA for FY 2023/24. Starting with 2024/25
through FY 2027/28, the annual total for CARU funds was distributed by percent of 2020 US Census
population amounts for Florida’s TMAs (including the new ones). For FY 2028/29 through 2049/50, the
federal funds were held constant from 2025/26 - 2049/50 following the current federal legislation. Annual
revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26
—2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were
summed across programs for the 27-year period.

SHS (NON-SIS) - TMA MPO

These are state funds used for highway improvements on the SHS. By law, state funds can only be used
for highway improvements on the SHS, except to match federal aid, for SIS connectors owned by local
governments, or for other approved programs. These estimates are provided at the MPO level only for
MPOs in a federally designated TMA ((example shown in Table 21). Non-TMA MPOs should work with
their district to determine their share of these types of funds as described in the Revenue Estimates
Reported at the Districtwide Level earlier in the handbook.



Table 21. TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS) (Millions of $) — Example
Table

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24-  2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

SHS (non-SIS, in TMA) MPO estimates provided in Appendix G.

For the MPO estimate, FDOT identified the state programmed SHS/non-SIS funds for TMA MPO counties
(including the new TMAs). Once programmed funds were determined by county, they were grouped by
MPO. To grow the programmed funds starting in 2028/29, the average annual total for 2023/24 -
2027/28 was redistributed by percent of 2020 US Census population amounts for Florida’s TMAs
(including the new ones). The redistribution by population helps to smooth out the likely distribution of
funds to the horizon year. These state funds were grown based on the established growth rates (see
Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into the established time bands of
2023/24 - 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 — 2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50.
The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

OTHER ROADS (NON-SIS, NON-SHS)

These are federal and state funds that may be used off-system which are roads that are not on the SIS or
the State Highway System (i.e., roads owned by counties and municipalities) and could include programs
such as Small County Outreach Program (SCOP) and County Incentive Grant Program (CIGP). These
estimates are reported for each MPO as applicable (example shown in Table 22).



Table 22. MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of $)
— Example Table

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24-  2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

Other Roads

(non-SIS/non-SHS) MPO estimates provided in Appendix G.

For the MPO estimate, FDOT identified the federal and state programmed funds for Other Roads. Once
programmed funds were determined by county, they were grouped by MPO. To grow the programmed
funds starting in 2028/29, the average annual total for 2023/24 — 2027/28 was redistributed by percent of
2020 US Census population amounts for MPO counties. The redistribution by population helps to smooth
out the likely distribution of funds to the horizon year. The federal funds were held constant from the end
of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50 and the state funds were grown based on the
established growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed into
the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 -
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

NON-SIS TRANSIT FORMULA (EXCLUDING FLORIDA NEW STARTS AND TRANSIT
DISCRETIONARY)

These are state funds for technical and operating/capital assistance to transit, paratransit, and commuter
assistance programs. These estimates are reported for each MPO, as applicable (example shown in Table
23). These transit program estimates are determined based on formula according to county population.
MPOs should work with their District Liaison for agreement on how they will be incorporated in the
update of the MPQ’s LRTP. MPOs also should work with transit agencies and others that directly receive
federal transit funds to ensure all such funds are captured in their LRTPs.

MPOs should identify transit projects and programs and funding for local or regional bus systems and
related public transportation programs in the transit element in cooperation with transit providers.
Demand management programs, including ridesharing, bicycle and pedestrian projects can be included,
or can be identified separately. Potential funding sources include the “flexible” funds from FDOT
including SHS (non-SIS), Other Roads (non-SIS, non-SHS), and Transit programs; federal and local transit
operating assistance; and other funds from local or private sector sources that have been identified as
reasonably available.



Table 23. MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula (Millions of $) -
Example Table

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS 27-YEAR TOTAL
FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24-  2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 2024/25-
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2049/50

Transit Formula MPO estimates provided in Appendix G.

For the MPO estimate, FDOT identified the federal and state programmed funds for non-SIS Transit-
formula. Once programmed funds were determined by county, the federal funds were held constant from
the end of the current federal legislation, 2025/26 - 2049/50 and the state funds were grown based on
the established growth rates (see Appendix E) to 2050. Annual revenue estimate amounts were summed
into the established time bands of 2023/24 — 2045/25; 2025/26 — 2029/30; 2030/31 — 2034/35; 2034/35 -
2039/40; and 2040/41 — 2049/50. The time bands were summed across programs for the 27-year period.

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING (PE) ESTIMATES

MPQOs are encouraged to include estimates for key pre-construction phases in the LRTP, namely for
Project Development and Environmental (PD&E) studies and roadway and structures design.

FDOT has included sufficient funding for these and other Product Support activities to produce the
construction levels in the 2050 Revenue Forecast. Costs for these phases for SIS highways will be
provided to MPOs in the 2050 SIS CFP. For projects funded with the revenue estimates for SHS (non-SIS)
and Other Roads (non-SIS, non-SHS), MPOs can assume the equivalent of 22 percent of those estimated
funds will be available from the statewide Product Support estimates for PD&E and roadway and
structures design. These funds are in addition to the estimates for SHS (non-SIS) and Other Roads (non-
SIS, non-SHS) funds provided to MPOs. MPOs should document these assumptions.

For example, if the estimate for construction in a 5-year period is $10 million, the MPO can assume that
an additional $2.2 million will be available for PD&E and Design in the 5-year period from FDOT Product
Support estimates. However, surplus funds, which may not be needed for PD&E and Design, cannot be
transferred to other projects. If planned PD&E and Design phases use TMA funds, the amounts should be
part of (not in addition to) estimates of TMA funds provided to MPOs.

FDOT encourages MPOs to combine PD&E and Design phases into Preliminary Engineering in LRTP
documentation. Boxed funds can be used to finance Preliminary Engineering; however, the specific
projects using the boxed funds should be listed, or described in bulk in the LRTP (i.e., Preliminary
Engineering for projects in Fiscal Years 2027/28-2049/50).



PREPARING, DELIVERING, AND USING THE MPO REVENUE
FORECAST REPORT

An MPO specific forecast will be provided to each MPO for use in their 2050 LRTP.

PREPARING THE MPO REVENUE FORECAST REPORT

When the revenue forecast was complete, the CO Revenue Team prepared a report for each MPO
summarizing the statewide and districtwide tables and detailing the MPO specific tables. An individual
report was completed for all 27 MPOs. The brief report should be used in developing the MPOs financial
plan and documented in their LRTP.

DELIVERING THE MPO REVENUE FORECAST REPORT

The overall revenue forecast was presented to the MPOAC at the April 2023 Quarterly Meeting. At that
time, each MPO was provided a printed copy of their revenue forecast. An electronic version of the
revenue forecast was provided to each MPO following the MPOAC meeting.

USING THE MPO REVENUE FORECAST REPORT
The following points should be considered when using the revenue forecast:

-

It has not historically been, nor is it current, FDOT policy to forecast estimates for specific fund
codes in the Revenue Forecast given the long-range nature of the estimates.

When developing long range plans, MPOs are not legally required to use the same terminology
used by FDOT such as SHS/non-SIS or Other Roads. However, MPOs should identify the MPO
estimates used from the forecast, the source of the revenues, and how these revenues are used in
documentation of their plan updates.

The projected dollar values are for planning purposes only and do not represent a state
commitment for funding, either in total or in any 5-year time period.

The estimates can be used to fund planned capacity improvements to major elements of the
transportation system (most notably highways and transit). The reports include statewide funding
estimates and objectives for non-capacity programs.

The projected dollar values are for planning purposes only
and do not represent a state commitment for funding,

either in total or in any 5-year time period.




APPENDIX A: REVENUE FORECAST TIMELINE

INTERNAL COORDINATION

EXTERNAL COORDINATION

PROCESS

October - Kick off meeting
November - MPO Working Group Meeting - FDOT Working Group Meeting - Develop draft approach
202 1 and conceptual
December - MPO Working Group Meeting - FDOT Working Group Meeting framework for revenue
forecast
January - MPO Working Group Meeting - FDOT Working Group Meeting
- Draft goncepFuaI framework for - Develop financial
reporting estimates to MPOAC guidelines and table
February - FDOT Working Group Meeting ~ templates
March - FDOT Working Group Meeting
April - MPO Working Group Meeting - FDOT Working Group Meeting
- Draft financial guidelines and
table templates for estimates to
MPOAC
\YEVY
2022 sune - MPO Working Group Meeting - FDOT Working Group Meeting
Jul ) - Develop and test the
uly - fProvnde update on revenue processes and
orecast to MPOAC procedures for district
August and MPO level
September forecasts
October - MPO Working Group Meeting
- Provide update on revenue - FDOT Working Group Meeting
forecast to MPOAC
November
December
January - Provide update on revenue
forecast to MPOAC - Prepare final revenue
forecast using tested
February 9
processes and
March - Receive March 2023 financial procedures
snapshot
2023 April - MPO Working Group Meeting
- Present revenue forecast to - FDOT Working Group Meeting . Follow up, as needed,
MPOAC with Districts for
May - July - Distribute final revenue forecast clarifications,

to MPOs
- Ongoing coordination with FDOT
Districts and MPOs

information, questions,
and/or other assistance




APPENDIX B: PROJECT FUNDING ELIGIBILITY

This appendix provides guidelines for the types of planned projects and programs that are eligible for
funding with revenues estimated in the forecast. MPO plan updates that incorporate the information
from this revenue forecast should be consistent with these guidelines. FDOT’s Work Program Instructions

provide information regarding additional funding eligibility and state matching funds requirements.

The 2050 Revenue Forecast includes all state transportation activities funded by federal and state
revenues that “flow through” the Five-year Work Program. The starting point of this forecast is the PRP.
The PRP addresses over 60 programs or subprograms.

The following are explanations of the types of projects, programs, and activities that are eligible for state
and/or federal funding in each of the major categories contained in the 2050 Revenue Forecast.

FUNDING ELIGIBILITY FOR CAPACITY PROGRAMS

STATE HIGHWAY SYSTEM

The State Highway System (SHS) is a network of 12,121 centerline miles of highways owned and
maintained by the state or state-created authorities. Major elements of the SHS include the Interstate,
Arterial Highways, Florida’s Turnpike, and other toll facilities operated by transportation authorities.

Projects on the SHS include construction, addition or improvement of lanes, interchanges, entry/exit
ramps, feeder roads, toll collection facilities, and motorist service facilities which are on or planned to be
on the SHS. The SHS includes both Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) and non-SIS highways.

STRATEGIC INTERMODAL SYSTEM (SIS)

The SIS was created by the Florida Legislature in 2003 to enhance Florida’s economic prosperity and
competitiveness. The system encompasses transportation facilities of statewide and interregional
significance, and is focused on the efficient movement of passengers and freight. The SIS, including
Strategic Growth facilities, includes over 4,300 miles of Interstate, Turnpike, other expressways and major
arterial highways and connectors between those highways and SIS hubs (airports, seaports, etc.). The SIS
is the state’s highest priority for transportation capacity investments.

FDOT, in coordination with the Districts and MPOs, leads in the identification of planned projects and
programs that are associated with the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) and provides detailed
information to MPOs. The SIS 2" Five Year Plan, 2050 SIS CFP, Multimodal Unfunded Needs Plan, and
MPO LRTPs consider many types of transportation improvements to meet long range needs, constrained
by the funding expected to be available during the planning period.



MPO plans and programs for SIS highways should be consistent with the 2050 SIS CFP, as provided to
each MPO. Funding associated with aviation, rail, seaport development, and intermodal access is listed in
the CFP under the designation of “modal reserves”. Modal reserves are identified funding amounts
available for each mode for specific projects that will be identified and selected in the future. Capacity
improvement projects eligible for funding include:

-

Construction of additional lanes
The capacity improvement component of interchange modifications
New interchanges

Exclusive lanes for through traffic, public transportation vehicles, and other high occupancy
vehicles

Bridge replacement with increased capacity

Other construction to improve traffic flow, such as intelligent transportation systems (ITS),
incident management systems, and vehicle control and surveillance systems

The preferred alternative defined by an approved multi-modal interstate master plan
Weigh-in-motion stations

Acquisition of land which is acquired to support the SIS highway and bridge construction
programs, and land acquired in advance of construction to avoid escalating land costs and
prepare for long-range development

New weigh stations and rest areas on the interstate

OTHER ROADS

The primary purpose of this program is to fund improvements on facilities that are not part of the State

Highway System (SHS) and are not designated as SIS. Projects and programs eligible for funding include:

Construction and improvement projects that:
0 Add capacity;
o Improve highway geometry;
0 Provide grade separations; and

o0 Improve turning movements through signalization improvements and storage capacity
within turn lanes.

Acquisition of land which is acquired to support the SHS highway and bridge construction
programs, and land acquired in advance of construction to avoid escalating land costs and
prepare for long-range development;



Construction and traffic operations improvements on certain local government roads that add
capacity, reconstruct existing facilities, improve highway geometrics (e.g., curvature), provide
grade separations, and improve turning movements through signalization improvements and
adding storage capacity within turn lanes; and

-

Acquisition of land necessary to support the construction program for certain local government
roads, as discussed immediately above.

Separate estimates of funds from this program are prepared and may be used on local government roads
that meet federal eligibility criteria (i.e., off-state system). By law, state funds cannot be used on local
government roads except to match federal aid, for locally owned SIS connectors, and under certain
subprograms subject to annual legislative appropriations. Long range plans should not assume that state
funds will be appropriated for local government road improvements. Use of these funds for road projects
not on the SHS will effectively reduce the amount of funds planned for the SHS and public transportation
in the area, the District and the state.

The following activities are not eligible for funding from the Other Roads program estimates: planning
and engineering in SHS corridors (see Product Support below), highway/road construction and right-of-
way acquisition not listed above, support activities to acquire right-of-way (see Product Support below),
land acquisition for airports (see Aviation below), and land acquisition for railroad corridors (see Rail
below).

AVIATION

The aviation program provides assistance to Florida’s airports in the areas of development, improvement,
land acquisition, airport access, and economic enhancement. Matching funds assist local governments
and airport authorities in planning, designing, purchasing, constructing, and maintaining publicly owned
public use aviation facilities. All projects must be consistent with the role and function for each airport as
defined by the Florida Aviation System Plan and the current airport layout plan (ALP) approved by FDOT.
These types of projects include public transportation studies, safety, security, preservation, capacity,
environmental, revenue/operational improvement, and preliminary engineering. Projects related to SIS
airports must align with SIS Funding Eligibility Guidance.

SPACEPORTS

The spaceport program provides support in the development of spaceports and related transportation
facilities coordinating with airports and spaceports and fostering interagency efforts to improve space
transportation capacity and efficiency. Funding is used to assist Space Florida with projects that improve
aerospace transportation facilities in Florida. Florida Statutes specify funding to “investment projects” or
“spaceport discretionary capacity improvement projects” if important access and on-spaceport and
commercial launch facility capacity improvements are provided; capital improvements that strategically
position the state to maximize opportunities in international trade are achieved; goals of an integrated


https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/systems/sis_fundingeligbility_2019_final.pdf?sfvrsn=d26cd28c_2

intermodal transportation system for the state are achieved; and feasibility and availability of matching
funds through federal, local, or private partners are demonstrated. Projects related to SIS spaceports
must align with SIS Funding Eligibility Guidance.

RAIL

The rail program includes financial and technical assistance for intermodal projects, rail safety
inspections, regulation of railroad operations and rail/highway crossings, identification of abandoned rail
corridors, recommendations regarding the acquisition and rehabilitation of rail facilities, and assistance
for developing intercity rail passenger service or commuter rail service. Types of projects include
technical assistance, public transportation studies, safety, security, preservation, capacity, environmental,
revenue/operational improvement, and intermodal hub capacity. Projects and programs eligible for
funding include:

Financial and technical assistance for intermodal projects;

Rail safety inspections;

Regulation of railroad operations and rail/highway crossings;

Identification of abandoned rail corridors;

Recommendations regarding the acquisition and rehabilitation of rail facilities; and

Assistance for developing intercity rail passenger service or commuter rail service.

Projects related to SIS rail corridors must align with SIS Funding Eligibility Guidance.

INTERMODAL ACCESS

The Intermodal Access Program includes access to intermodal facilities, the acquisition of right-of-way,
and other capital improvements that enhance the movement of people and goods. It improves surface
transportation access to seaports and airports. Projects and programs eligible for funding include:

-

Intermodal studies (feasibility, preliminary design and engineering);
Fixed guide-way systems;

Capacity road and capacity rail projects that are designed to terminate at major modal facilities
(airports, seaports, railroad and transit terminals, etc.);

Intermodal and multi-modal transportation terminals;
Development of dedicated bus lanes;
Private or public projects facilitating the intermodal movement of people and goods; and

Joint projects involving private carriers or facility operators are eligible provided a demonstrable
public benefit will result from the intermodal project.


https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/systems/sis_fundingeligbility_2019_final.pdf?sfvrsn=d26cd28c_2
https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/systems/sis_fundingeligbility_2019_final.pdf?sfvrsn=d26cd28c_2

SEAPORT DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING WATERWAYS)

The Seaport Development Program provides funding for the development of public deep-water seaport
infrastructure to support the handling and processing of cargoes and passengers and the
accommodation of seagoing vessels. A variety of grant funding programs support a wide variety of
projects including waterway dredging, construction of storage facilities, wharves and terminals, and
acquisition of cranes and other equipment used in moving cargo and passengers. Some programs also
provide funding for such projects as security infrastructure and land acquisition. Projects related to SIS
seaports must align with SIS Funding Eligibility Guidance.

The state provides assistance with funding for the development of public deep water ports. This includes
support of bonds issued by the Florida Ports Financing Commission that finances eligible capital
improvements. Projects and programs eligible for funding and state matching funds requirements vary
among several programs.

SUN TRAIL

The Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized (SUN) Trail program authorizes FDOT to develop a statewide
system of nonmotorized, paved trails for bicyclists and pedestrians as a component of the Florida
Greenways and Trails System (FGTS) plan.

FDOT will advance the development of the SUN Trail network by programming funds through a two tier
funding structure. The first tier funds the top two regional trail systems identified by the Florida
Greenways and Trails Council. These are the Coast to Coast Trail and the St. Johns River-to-Sea Loop. The
second tier funds individual trail segments that close gaps in the SUN Trail network. FDOT will work with
partners to advance the SUN Trail network by improving interregional connectivity of the paved multi-
use trail system, for bicyclists and pedestrians physically separated from vehicular traffic to ensure the
network functions as a transportation system rather than standalone trails.

To receive consideration for SUN Trail funding FDOT must receive a completed “request for funding” with
applicable project information including required signatures by the announced deadline through the
Grant Application Program (GAP-online system). Projects must satisfy the following minimum eligibility
criteria requirements:

The project must be planned to be developed as a paved multi-use trail within the SUN Trail
network, which is aligned to the Florida Greenways and Trails System Plan (FGTS) priority land trail
network;

Documentation must be provided that the project is identified as a priority by the applicable
jurisdiction;

If the project is within a boundary of a Metropolitan/Transportation Planning Organization (MPO),
it must be an MPO priority.


https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/systems/sis_fundingeligbility_2019_final.pdf?sfvrsn=d26cd28c_2

For areas outside of MPO boundaries, the project must be identified as a priority of the county
(inclusive of their municipalities), tribal government, federal, or the state managing agency.

Documentation must be provided that a non-FDOT governmental agency is formally committed
to the operation and maintenance of the project (long-term trail manager).

Documentation must be provided that the project is consistent with the applicable
comprehensive plan(s), transportation plan(s) or the long-term management plan(s).

SUN Trail projects from the FDOT Work Program should be included in MPO TIPs to advance. As such,
these TIP projects would also need to be in the LRTP. MPOs may wish to include proposed, but not
programmed, SUN Trail projects among the illustrative projects included in their LRTPs. Finally, MPOs
may wish to highlight planned connections with SUN Trail stemming from other Bike/Ped projects, or
from projects of any mode.

TRANSIT

The state provides technical and operating/capital assistance to transit, paratransit, and ridesharing

systems. Projects and programs eligible for funding include:

Capital and operating assistance to public transit systems and Community Transportation
Coordinators, through the Public Transit Block Grant Program.

Note: For this program, state participation is limited to 50 percent of the non-federal share of capital
costs and up to 50 percent of eligible operating costs. The block grant can also be used for transit
service development and corridor projects. An individual block grant recipient’s allocation may be
supplemented by the State if (1) requested by the MPO, (2) concurrence by FDOT, and (3) funds are
available. The Transportation Disadvantaged Commission is allocated 15 percent of Block Grant
Program funds for distribution to Community Transportation Coordinators.

Service Development projects, which are demonstration projects that can receive initial funding
from the state.

Note: For these projects, Up to 50 percent of the net project cost can be provided by the state. Up to
100 percent can be provided for projects of statewide significance (requires FDOT concurrence).
Costs eligible for funding include operating and maintenance costs (limited to no more than three
years) and marketing and technology projects (limited to no more than two years)

Transit corridor projects that are shown to be the most cost effective method of relieving
congesting and improving congestion in the corridor.

Commuter assistance programs that encourage transportation demand management strategies,
ridesharing and public/private partnerships to provide services and systems designed to increase
vehicle occupancy.



Assistance with acquisition, construction, promotion and monitoring of park-and-ride lots.

Assistance to fixed-guideway rail transit systems or extensions, or bus rapid transit systems
operating primarily on dedicated transit right-of-way under the Florida New Starts Transit
Program.

FUNDING ELIGIBILITY FOR NON-CAPACITY PROGRAMS

Statewide estimates for all state non-capacity programs are an integral part of the 2050 Revenue
Forecast to ensure that statewide system preservation, maintenance, and support objectives will be met
through 2050. These objectives will be met in each area, so it was not necessary to develop MPO
estimates for these programs. Neither FDOT nor the MPOs need to identify projects for these programs.
However, pursuant to an agreement between FDOT and the FHWA Division Office, FDOT has provided
district-level estimates of existing facilities costs on the State Highway System to MPOs for inclusion in
the documentation of their long range transportation plans.

SAFETY

Safety issues touch every area of the state transportation program. Specific safety improvement projects
and sub-programs in this major program address mitigation of safety hazards that are not included in
other major programs. Projects and programs eligible for funding include:

Highway safety improvements at locations that have exhibited a history of high crash frequencies
or have been identified as having significant roadside hazards;

-

Grants to state and local agencies for traffic safety programs with the intent of achieving lower
levels and severity of traffic crashes; and

-

Promotion of bicycle and pedestrian safety and vulnerable road users, including programs for
public awareness, education and training.

RESURFACING

The state periodically resurfaces all pavements on the State Highway System (SHS) to preserve the
public’s investment in highways and to maintain smooth and safe pavement surfaces. Projects and
programs eligible for funding include:

Periodic resurfacing of the Interstate, Turnpike and other components of the SHS;

Resurfacing or reconstructing of county roads in counties eligible to participate in the Small
County Road Assistance Program; and

Periodic resurfacing of other public roads, consistent with federal funding criteria and FDOT and
MPO programming priorities.



BRIDGE

The state repairs and replaces deficient bridges on the SHS, or on other public roads as defined by
federal and state criteria. Projects and programs eligible for funding include:

-

Repairs of bridges and preventative maintenance activities on bridges on the SHS;

Replacement of structurally deficient bridges on the SHS (Note: The state Bridge Replacement
Program places primary emphasis on the replacement of structurally deficient or weight restricted
bridges. Planned capacity improvements for bridges that are to be widened or replaced to
address highway capacity issues must be funded from SIS, SHS (non-SIS), Other Roads (hon-SIS,
non-SHS), and/or right-of-way major programs);

Replacement of bridges which require structural repair but are more cost effective to replace;
Construction of new bridges on the SHS;

Replacement of structurally deficient bridges off the SHS but on the federal-aid highway system,
subject to federal and state policies and eligibility criteria; and

Replacement of structurally deficient bridges off the federal-aid highway system, subject to
federal and state policies and eligibility criteria.

PRODUCT SUPPORT

Planning and engineering activities are required to produce the products and services described in the
major programs discussed above. These are functions performed by FDOT staff and professional
consultants. Costs include salaries and benefits; professional fees; and administrative costs such as
utilities, telephone, travel, supplies, other capital outlay, and data processing. Functions eligible for
funding include:

Preliminary engineering (related to location engineering and design);
Construction engineering inspection for highway and bridge construction;

Right-of-way support necessary to acquire and manage right-of-way land for the construction of
transportation projects;

Environmental mitigation of impacts of transportation projects on wetlands;
Materials testing and research; and

Planning and Public Transportation Operations support activities.

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

Operations and maintenance activities support and maintain the transportation infrastructure once it is
constructed. Scheduled major repairs such as resurfacing and bridge replacement are not part of



operations and maintenance. They are included in the Resurfacing and Bridge programs, respectively.
Functions eligible for funding include:

Routine maintenance of the SHS travel lanes; roadside maintenance; inspections of state and local
bridges; and operation of state moveable bridges and tunnels;

Traffic engineering analyses, training and monitoring that focus on solutions to traffic problems
that do not require major structural alterations of existing or planned roadways;

Administration of and toll collections on bonded road projects such as toll expressways, bridges,
ferries, and the Turnpike; and

Enforcement of laws and FDOT rules which regulate the weight, size, safety, and registration
requirements of commercial vehicles operating on the highway system.

ADMINISTRATION

Administration includes the staff, equipment, and materials required to perform the fiscal, budget,
personnel, executive direction, document reproduction, and contract functions of carrying out the state
transportation program. It also includes the purchase of and improvements to non-highway fixed assets.
Eligible functions and programs are:

Resources necessary to manage FDOT in the attainment of goals and objectives;

Acquisition of resources for production, operation and planning units including personnel
resources; external production resources (consultants); financial resources; and materials,
equipment, and supplies;

Services related to eminent domain, construction letting and contracts, reprographics, and mail
service;

Costs for the Secretary, Assistant Secretaries, and immediate staffs; for the Florida Transportation
Commission and staff; and for the Transportation Disadvantaged Commission; and

Acquisition, construction and improvements of non-highway fixed assets such as offices,
maintenance yards, and construction field offices.



APPENDIX C: OTHER TRANSPORTATION
REVENUE SOURCES

Local government revenues such as taxes and fees; federal funds distributed directly to local
governments; and local or regional tolls play a critical role in providing transportation services and
facilities. FDOT does not have access to detailed information on local and regional revenue sources and
forecasts of revenues expected from them. Information on many of those sources can be found in
Florida’s Transportation Tax Sources: A Primer and the Local Government Financial Information Handbook.
The following is guidance to MPOs in the identification and forecasting of current revenue sources,
potential new sources, and the development of long range estimates.

CURRENT REVENUE SOURCES

MPOs should consider sources of local and regional revenues that have funded transportation
improvements and services in recent years and are expected to continue. The following is a summary of
sources potentially available to MPOs in the development of their LRTP.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT TAXES AND FEES

Local government sources include those that are dedicated for transportation purposes. In many areas
these are supplemented by general revenues allocated to specific transportation programs (e.g., transit
operating assistance may be provided from the general fund). Other sources are available for
transportation if enacted by one or more local governments in the metropolitan area. Local government
financial staff will have information on recent revenue levels, uses of funds, and trends.

STATE IMPOSED MOTOR FUEL TAXES

Florida law imposes per-gallon taxes on motor fuels and distributes the proceeds to local governments
as follows: Constitutional Fuel Tax (2 cents); County Fuel Tax (1 cent); and Municipal Fuel Tax (1 cent).
Constitutional Fuel Tax proceeds are first used to meet the debt service requirements on local bond
issues backed by tax proceeds. The remainder is credited to the counties’ transportation trust funds.
County Fuel Tax receipts are distributed directly to counties. Municipal Fuel Tax proceeds are transferred
to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for Municipalities, combined with other non-transportation revenues,
and distributed to municipalities by statutory criteria.

The Constitutional Fuel Tax may be used for the acquisition, construction, and maintenance of roads. The
County Fuel Tax and Municipal Fuel Tax may be used for any legitimate transportation purpose.
Estimated distributions of these sources can be found in the Local Government Financial Information
Handbook.



LOCAL OPTION MOTOR FUEL TAXES

Local governments may levy up to 12 cents of local option fuel taxes pursuant to three types of levies.
Recent proceeds from these optional motor fuel taxes for each county are contained in the Local
Government Financial Information Handbook.

First, a tax of 1 to 6 cents on every gallon of motor and diesel fuel may be imposed by an ordinance
adopted by the majority vote of the county commission or by countywide referendum for up to 30 years.
However, this tax is imposed on diesel fuel in every county at the rate of 6 cents per gallon. These funds
may be used for any legitimate county or municipal transportation purpose (e.g., public transportation
operations and maintenance, road construction or reconstruction). In addition, small counties (i.e., less
than 50,000 as of April 1, 1992) may use these funds for other infrastructure needs.

Second, a tax of 1 to 5 cents on every gallon of motor fuel sold may be imposed by a majority plus one
vote of the county commission or by countywide referendum. These funds may be used for
transportation purposes to meet the requirements of the capital improvement element of an adopted
comprehensive plan. This includes roadway construction, reconstruction, or resurfacing, but excludes
routine maintenance.

Third, a tax of 1 cent (often referred to as the Ninth-Cent Fuel Tax) on every gallon of motor and diesel
fuel sold may be imposed. A county can impose the tax on motor fuel by an extraordinary vote (majority
plus one) of its board of commissioners. These funds may be used for any legitimate county or municipal
transportation purpose (e.g., public transportation operations and maintenance, construction or
reconstruction of roads).

OTHER TRANSPORTATION-RELATED SOURCES

Examples of these sources include public transportation fares and other charges, toll revenues from local
or regional expressway and/or bridge authorities, transportation impact fees, and other exactions. The
use of, and levels of proceeds from, these sources varies significantly among MPO areas.

PROPERTY TAXES AND OTHER GENERAL REVENUE SOURCES

Most local governments finance some transportation facilities and/or services from their general fund.
These revenue sources include property taxes, franchise or business taxes, and local government fees.
Sources, funding process, and eligible services vary widely among local governments. Local government
financial staff have information on recent revenue levels, uses of funds, trends, and other information
needed by MPOs.

DISCRETIONARY SALES SURTAXES

A Charter County and Regional Transportation System Surtax of up to 1 percent may be levied by charter
counties, counties that are consolidated with one or more municipalities, and counties within or under an
interlocal agreement with a regional transportation or transit authority created under Chapter 343 or
Chapter 349, subject to a referendum. These funds may be used for fixed guideway rapid transit systems,



including the cost of a countywide bus system that services the fixed guideway system. Proceeds may
also be transferred to an expressway or transportation authority to operate and maintain a bus system, or
construct and maintain roads or service the debt on bonds issued for that purpose.

A Local Government Infrastructure Surtax of either 0.5 percent or 1 percent may be levied for
transportation and other purposes. The governing authority in each county may levy the tax by
ordinance, subject to a successful referendum. In lieu of county action, municipalities representing the
majority of the county population may adopt resolutions calling for countywide referendum on the issue
and it will take effect if the referendum passes. The total levy for the Local Government Infrastructure
Surtax and other discretionary surtaxes authorized by state law (for school construction, hospitals and
other public purposes) cannot exceed 1 percent. See section 212.055, Florida Statutes, for more
information on these discretionary sales surtaxes.

In addition, state and/or federal law has authorized several transportation finance tools that can make
additional funds available or accelerate the completion of needed projects. These tools are described in
Appendix D of this document, Transportation Finance Tools.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL REVENUES

These are revenues from federal sources that are not included in the 2050 Revenue Forecast. Examples
include federal assistance for aviation improvements and capital and operation assistance for transit
systems. Potential sources distributed directly to local governments or authorities include revenue from
the Federal Airport and Airway Trust Fund, the Federal Highway Trust Fund (Mass Transit Account), and
the Federal General Fund.

BOND PROCEEDS

Local governments may choose to finance transportation and other infrastructure improvements with
revenue or general obligation bonds. These types of local government bonds are often areawide and/or
designed to fund programs (e.g., transportation, stormwater) and/or specific projects. Primarily for this
reason, analyses of the potential use of this source should be undertaken separately from analyses of the
use of bonds for toll facilities.

OTHER CURRENT SOURCES

Other possible sources include private sector contributions or payments, such as proportionate share
contributions. Often, these will be sources for specific projects or programs.



NEW REVENUE SOURCES

Revenues from current sources have not been sufficient to meet transportation capacity, preservation,
and operational needs in Florida’s MPO areas. MPOs should examine the potential for new revenue
sources that could be obtained to supplement current sources to meet those needs. This examination of
each potential source should include analyses of:

Authority (how sources are authorized in current state and/or local laws and ordinances);
Estimates of proceeds through 2050;
Reliability of the estimates (e.g., amount, consistency); and

Likelihood that the source will become available (e.g., the probability that the proceeds will be
available to fund improvements, considering issues such as previous state and/or local
government legislative decisions, results of previous referenda, and commitments from decision
makers).

OPTIONAL SOURCES AUTHORIZED BY CURRENT STATE LAW

Communities in most MPO areas have not taken full advantage of some of the optional and discretionary
transportation revenue sources authorized by current state law. These include the Ninth-Cent Fuel Tax,
the full 11 cents available from the Local Option Fuel Tax, the Charter County and Regional
Transportation System Surtax, and the Local Government Infrastructure Surtax. Where authorized, these
sources are subject to either the approval of local governing bodies or referenda.

INNOVATIVE FINANCING SOURCES

Typically, these are other sources that are used in some local areas in Florida or other states, but are not
used in a specific MPO area (e.g., toll facilities). Most require state and/or local government legislative
authorization before they can be established.

In addition, state and/or federal law has authorized several transportation finance tools that can make
additional funds available or accelerate the completion of needed projects. These tools are described in
Appendix D of this document, Transportation Finance Tools.

DEVELOPMENT OF REVENUE ESTIMATES FOR OTHER
TRANSPORTATION REVENUE SOURCES

MPOs should develop annual estimates through 2050 for each current or new revenue source. These
annual estimates should be summarized into time bands similar to the state’s revenue forecasts (e.g., 5
years) for consistency in the plan development purposes. MPOs should consult with financial planning
staff from local governments and service providers and consider the following.



HISTORICAL DATA

Information should be obtained related to factors that may affect the revenue estimates, such as recent
annual proceeds and growth rates. MPOs should consider forecasting methodologies that include the
relationships of revenue growth rates to other factors (e.g., population growth, retail sales) to assist with
revenue projections, particularly if little historical data exist or annual proceeds fluctuate significantly
(e.g., proceeds from impact fees).

ADJUSTMENTS FOR GROWTH RATES AND INFLATION FACTORS

To be consistent with the FDOT revenue forecast, estimates of future revenue from other transportation
sources should calculate the value of money in the “year of expenditure”. Appendix E provides
information for adjusting revenue forecasts to “year of expenditure” dollars.

CONSTRAINTS ON THE USE OF REVENUES

MPOs should identify any constraints or restrictions that may apply to a revenue source for its use to
fund multimodal transportation improvements. For example, federal and local transit operating
assistance may be limited to transit services and cannot be used to fund highway improvements. Other
constraints include any time limitations on the funding source, such as the limitations on levies of
discretionary sales surtaxes.



APPENDIX D: TRANSPORTATION FINANCE
TOOLS

MPOs are encouraged to consider innovative or non-traditional sources of funding and financing
techniques in their long range plans. These may include optional revenue sources such as local option
motor fuel taxes or local option sales taxes that are not currently in place, toll facilities, public/private
partnerships, and debt financing. Debt financing and funds to be paid back from future revenues should
be analyzed carefully before deciding to use this type of funding for projects. There are tradeoffs
between building a project earlier with debt financing than would otherwise be the case and these
tradeoffs may come with increased costs from interest and other expenses required to finance projects
this way.

Several of the sources or techniques below are available because of state and federal laws. Concurrence
of FDOT, and in some cases the federal government, is required before projects or programs can be
funded through these sources. As a result, each MPO should coordinate with FDOT before including
these sources and techniques in its long range plan.

The following is general guidance for specific sources. More detailed guidance can be obtained from
FDOT staff. Guidance on planning for future toll facility projects is also included, although Turnpike
Enterprise revenue is not included in this revenue forecast.

FEDERAL/STATE TRANSPORTATION FINANCE TOOLS

Federal law allows several methods of transportation finance that provide opportunities to leverage
federal transportation funds. Most of the tools can be applied in more than one state program. These
tools are not identified separately in the Program and Resource Plan, but FDOT has established processes
and criteria for their use. MPOs should work closely with FDOT before including these and other federal
financing tools as part of their long range financial planning.

STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK (SIB)

The SIB was originally established by the National Highway System Act of 1995 to encourage state and
local governments to identify and develop innovative financing mechanisms that will more effectively use
federal financial resources.

Florida has two separate SIB accounts: the federal-funded SIB account (capitalized by federal money and
matched with appropriate state funds as required by law); and the state-funded SIB account (capitalized
with state funds and bond proceeds). The SIB can provide loans and other assistance to public and
private entities carrying out or proposing to carry out projects eligible for assistance under state and
federal law. Highway and transit projects are eligible for SIB participation. See FDOT Work Program
Instructions for more details.



SIB applications are accepted during the published advertisement period via the FDOT online application
process (See http://www.dot state.fl.us/officeofcomptroller/PFO/sib.shtm).

FLEXIBLE MATCH

Federal law allows private funds, materials or assets (e.g., right-of-way) donated to a specific federal-aid
project to be applied to the state’s matching share. The donated or acquired item must qualify as a
participating cost item meeting eligibility standards and be within the project’s scope. Such private
donations will effectively replace state funds that would have been used to match the federal aid, freeing
up the state funds for use on other projects.

TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE AND INNOVATION ACT (TIFIA)

Federal law authorizes the USDOT to provide three forms of credit assistance for surface transportation
projects of national or regional significance: secured (direct) loans, loan guarantees, and standby lines of
credit. USDOT awards assistance on a competitive basis to project sponsors (e.g., state departments of
transportation, transit operators, special authorities, local governments, and private consortia). Various
highway, transit, rail, and intermodal projects may receive credit assistance under TIFIA.

STATE TRANSPORTATION FINANCE TOOLS

Florida law establishes several programs that allow the state, local governments, and transportation
authorities to cooperatively fund transportation projects sooner than would be the case under traditional
state programs. In addition, state funds can be used to assist local governments and transportation
authorities with pre-construction activities on potential toll facilities and to assist with state economic
development.

LOCAL FUND REIMBURSEMENT

Local Fund Reimbursement (LFR) are local funds used to advance a project in the adopted Five-Year
Work Program. Section 339.12, F.S., authorizes the local government reimbursement program. It allows
projects in the adopted Five-Year Work Program to be advanced, subject to a statewide $250 million cap
on commitments. There are statutory exceptions to the $250 million cap as described in the referenced
statute.

Local entities provide the funding for specific projects in advance and will be reimbursed in the future.
The reimbursement will come in the year the project was initially funded in the adopted Five-Year Work
Program. Local governments can contribute cash, goods, and/or services to FDOT to initiate projects
sooner than scheduled in the Five-Year Work Program.


http://www.dot.state.fl.us/officeofcomptroller/PFO/sib.shtm

FUTURE TOLL FACILITY PROJECTS IN MPO LONG RANGE
TRANSPORTATION PLANS

FDOT and local expressway authorities engage in studies of the feasibility of new toll facilities or
extensions of existing facilities. If an MPO desires to include future toll facility projects in its long range
plan beyond those currently included in the 2050 SIS CFP, the MPO should coordinate with the District
and, as appropriate, local authority staff to determine if these facilities should be included in the plan
(possibly as illustrative projects). Iltems to be considered include:

-

Local/regional support of elected officials and the public for the project;
Environmental, socio-economic and related impacts of the project;
Consistency with affected local comprehensive plans; and

Economic feasibility of the project (costs, revenues, debt service coverage, value for money
analysis which compares public and privately financed alternatives side-by-side before a financing
option is selected. This analysis is a strong tool for informing the public and ensuring that public
funds have been protected.)

FDOT'’s experience with analyses of economic feasibility for such projects suggests that it is extremely
difficult to meet debt service requirements for a new toll facility or extension solely with toll revenues
generated by the project, particularly in early years of operation. Often, the difficulty varies depending
upon the location of the facility i.e., urban versus suburban versus rural. However, each project is different
based upon the location, competing roadways, and other factors. When little project information is
available, FDOT offers the following additional considerations to MPOs that are interested in including
future toll facility projects in their cost feasible long range plans:

For projects in suburban or emerging suburban areas, estimated toll revenues likely will cover
only a portion of the total project cost;

For projects in urban areas, estimated toll revenues may cover a somewhat higher portion of the
cost of the project. However, project costs usually are higher in urban areas;

For projects in rural areas, possibly associated with proposed new land development which will
take time to materialize, estimated toll revenues in the early years likely will be substantially lower
than necessary to eventually cover total project cost.

For the purposes of the MPO long range transportation plan, MPOs should document the amount and
availability of revenues from other sources expected to be available to finance the project cost. Other
sources may potentially include local revenue sources, Other Roads (non-SIS/non-SHS) funds from the
2050 Revenue Forecast, and private sector contributions. FDOT encourages MPOs to consult with their
District and, as appropriate, local authority for technical assistance in preparing early analyses for
possible toll facilities in the cost feasible long range transportation plan.



APPENDIX E: FORECAST CALCULATIONS FOR
GROWTH AND INFLATION

Consistent with federal planning regulations in 23 CFR 450.324(f)(11) and the Financial Guidelines for
MPO 2050 Long Range Plans dated May 2022, the 2050 Revenue Forecast is expressed in Year of
Expenditure (YOE) dollars. In this revenue forecast, growth rates and inflation factors are independent
calculations.

For revenues, FDOT applies growth factors to amounts following the 2023/24-2027/28 Five-Year
Work Program commitments to forecast a reasonable expectation of future revenues to the
horizon year. In this revenue forecast, growth factors are the rate used to grow present day
revenues over multiple periods to the horizon year of 2050. The approach for calculating growth
rates is described below.

For project costs, FDOT provides inflation factors for MPOs to use to adjust present day costs to
the anticipated future year of expenditure. In this revenue forecast, inflation factors are the rate
used to increase present day project costs over time to year of expenditure. MPOs should adjust
project costs to YOE dollars using inflation factors to ensure their costs are expressed in the same
time frame as the projected revenues.

All amounts (revenues and costs) in the forecast should be expressed in YOE dollars.

GROWTH RATES

current federal legislation. FDOT takes a conservative approach in forecasting federal
funds past the current federal transportation act. This is a long standing practice and
aligns with current FDOT financial policies. The zero percent growth rate is applied for all
I————\ federal funds starting in 2027/28, the first year after the Five-Year Work Program.

Q FDOT uses a zero percent growth rate for federal funds past the timeframe of the

FDOT calculates annual growth rates for state funds using information from the Revenue
Estimating Conference (REC). The Office of Work Program and Budget receives the REC
forecast for tax receipts and reviews it for use in the 10-year Program and Resource Plan
(PRP). This is accomplished by using the last complete fiscal year reflecting actual
amounts and the next nine fiscal year amounts based on the current REC (August 2022
for this revenue forecast). Beginning in the ‘tenth’ year of the PRP to the end of the forecast period,
growth rates are calculated based on a rolling eight year average for fuel-, tourism-, and vehicle-related
taxes as well as documentary stamp taxes. The August 2022 REC forecast projects a decline in forecast of
tax receipts starting in 2044/2045 so the growth rate reflects negative growth in 2045/46-2059/50. In the
case of the fuel taxes, an annual 0.5 percent reduction is applied to account for greater future fuel
efficiency. The amount determined for the fuel efficiency reduction is considered in connection with



current fuel efficient vehicles trends and the state of the economy as a whole. The growth rates are
applied starting in 2027/28, the first year after the Five-Year Work Program. Table 24 lists the growth
rates for state funds from 2027/28 — 2049/50.

Table 24. Growth Rates for 2027/28 — 2049/50

YEAR RATE YEAR RATE YEAR RATE YEAR VAN =
2027/28 1.74% 2033/34 1.04% 2039/40 0.49% 2045/46 -0.03%
2028/29 1.65% 2034/35 0.97% 2040/41 0.40% 2046/47 -0.11%
2029/30 1.45% 2035/36 0.89% 2041/42 0.31% 2047/48 -0.19%
2030/31 1.49% 2036/37 0.81% 2042/43 0.23% 2048/49 -0.26%
2031/32 1.51% 2037/38 0.72% 2043/44 0.14% 2049/50 -0.33%
2032/33 1.11% 2038/39 0.61% 2044/45 0.05%

INFLATION FACTORS

FDOT calculates cost inflation factors for the Work Program process considering a number of common
indices including the Consumer Price Index, the Chained Price Index for State and Local Gross Investment
in Highways and Streets, and the Producer Price Index. Consideration of these nationwide indices helps
ground the approach to inflating project costs to accommodate the impact to purchasing power in
transportation projects.

MPOs should use inflation factors to adjust project costs from “present day cost” dollars for recent years
(i.e., 2022/23, 2023/24) to future YOE dollars. Present day costs are based on the value of money in the
recent year and have not been adjusted for inflation. MPOs should also adjust any estimates of local
revenues that are not included in FDOT'’s forecast to YOE dollars. The inflation multipliers shown below
are based on FDOT’s inflation factors associated with the FY 2024-2028 Work Program and previous work
programs.



INFLATION FACTORS BY TIME BAND

Table 25 provides MPOs with the applicable factors by time bands to convert project costs to YOE
dollars for costs estimated in fiscal years 2022/23, 2023/24, and 2024/25.

Table 25. Inflations Factors By Time Bands

MULTIPLIERS TO CONVERT PROJECT COST ESTIMATES TO YOE DOLLARS

TIME BANDS FOR

PLANNED PROJECT OR PROJECT COST IN PROJECT COST IN PROJECT COST IN
PROJECT PHASE 2022/23 PDC $ 2023/24 PDC $ 2024/25 PDC $
2023/24-2024/25 1.04 1.03 NA
2025/26-2029/30 116 113 1.10
2030/31-2034/35 1.37 1.33 1.29
2035/36-2039/40 161 161 1.56
2040/41-2049/50 2.06 2.00 1.94

USING THE INFLATION FACTORS BY TIME BAND

If the cost estimate for a specific project, using funds estimated in this revenue forecast, was developed
in fiscal year 2022/23 dollars and the project is planned to be implemented in the 2025/26 — 2029/30
time period, the MPO should multiply the cost estimate by the applicable multiplier to convert the cost
estimate to YOE dollars.

2023 PDC multiplier for

YOE dollars .
2025/26-2029/30 time band

2022/23 dollars X

For example, the MPO calculated a 2022/23 cost estimate for an interchange improvement at
$30,000,000. The project is planned to be implemented in the 2025/26 — 2029/30 time period. The MPO
would multiply $30,000,000 by 1.16 for a YOE amount of $34,800,000 using the inflation factor for the
2025/26 — 2029/30 time band in Table 25.

$34,800,000 = $30,000,000 X 1.16



INFLATION FACTORS BY INDIVIDUAL YEAR

Table 26 provides MPOs with the annual multipliers to convert project costs to YOE dollars.

Table 26. Multiplier By Inflation Factors For Individual Year

FISCAL INFLATION FISCAL INFLATION
VEAR EACTOR MULTIPLIER VEAR EACTOR MULTIPLIER

2022/23 Base 1.000 2036/37 3.3 1.553
2023/24 2.8 1.028 2037/38 3.3 1.604
2024/25 29 1.058 2038/39 3.3 1.657
2025/26 3.0 1.090 2039/40 3.3 1.712
2026/27 3.1 1.123 2040/41 3.3 1.768
2027/28 3.2 1.159 2041/42 33 1.826
2028/29 3.3 1.198 2042/43 3.3 1.887
2029/30 3.3 1.237 2043/44 3.3 1.949
2030/31 3.3 1.278 2044/45 3.3 20.13
2031/32 3.3 1.320 2045/46 3.3 2.080
2032/33 33 1.364 2046/47 3.3 2.148
2033/34 3.3 1.409 2047/48 33 2.219
2034/35 3.3 1.455 2048/49 3.3 2.292
2035/36 3.3 1.503 2049/50 3.3 2.368

USING THE INFLATION FACTORS BY INDIVIDUAL YEAR

If the cost estimate for a project generated by a local government using their own estimate was
developed in FY 2022/23 and the project is planned to be implemented in 2026/27, the MPO can use the
following formula to convert the local government cost estimate prepared in present day dollars to YOE
dollars using the inflation factors in Table 26.

YOE dollars = 2022/23 PDC dollars X Multiplier for 2026/27 Fiscal Year

For example, a local government provided the MPO with a 2022/23 cost estimate for widening a road
from 2 lanes to 4 lanes at $20,100,000. The project is planned to be implemented in 2026/27. The MPO
would multiply $20,100,000 times 1.123 for a YOE amount of $22,572,300.

$22,572,300 = $20,100,000 X 1.123

For consistency with other estimates, FDOT recommends summarizing estimated local funds for each
year by the 5-year periods.



RELATIONSHIP OF CONSTRUCTION AND ROW COSTS

FDOT has experienced extreme variation in the costs of right-of-way for improvement projects. Since
fiscal year 1990/91-1991/92, District right-of-way programs have ranged from as low as 4 percent of
construction costs to more than 30 percent and, in rare instances, have exceeded construction costs.
MPOs should work with their District liaison for more information on right-of-way costs.

The 2050 Revenue Forecast contains estimates for combined construction and right-of-way funding. For
planned construction projects, MPOs are requested to work with District staff to develop right-of-way
estimates and right-of-way inflation estimates. If no project-specific estimate is available, MPOs should
use the right-of-way/construction ratio recommended by the District to estimate right-of-way costs. For
example, if the estimated construction cost of a project is $40 million and the District has established a
right-of-way/construction ratio of 25 percent, then the total cost for construction and right-of-way is $50
million ($40 million + $10 million).



APPENDIX F: GLOSSARY

Capacity Programs: Major FDOT programs that expand the throughput of people and freight on a
facility.

Carbon Reduction Program: Federal-aid funding program for projects designed to reduce
transportation emissions, defined as carbon dioxide (CO;) emissions from on-road highway sources.

Charter County and Regional Transportation Surtax: A local discretionary sales tax that allows each
charter county with an adopted charter, each county with consolidated government of one or more
municipalities, and each county that is within or under an interlocal agreement with a regional
transportation or transit authority created under Ch. 343 or 349, F.S,, to levy at a rate of up to 1 percent.
Generally, the tax proceeds are for the development, construction, operation, and maintenance of fixed
guideway rapid transit systems, bus systems, on-demand transportation services, and roads and bridges.

Constitutional Fuel Tax: A state tax of two cents per gallon of motor fuel. The first call on the proceeds
is to meet the debt service requirements, if any, on local bond issues backed by the tax proceeds. The
balance, called the 20 percent surplus and the 80 percent surplus, is credited to the counties’
transportation trust funds.

Cost Feasible Plan (CFP): A phased plan of transportation improvements that is based on (and
constrained by) estimates of future revenues. For this purpose, the CFPs are the projects that make up
the 2050 LRTP and the SIS plans.

County Fuel Tax: A county tax of 1 cent per gallon. The proceeds are to be used by counties for
transportation-related expenses, including the reduction of bonded indebtedness incurred for
transportation purposes.

Discretionary Sales Surtaxes: These taxes include eight separate surtaxes, also known as local option
sales taxes, are currently authorized in law and represent potential revenue sources for county
governments generally. These surtaxes apply to all transactions subject to the state tax imposed on sales,
use, services, rentals, admissions, and other authorized transactions authorized pursuant to Ch. 212,
Florida Statutes, and communications services as defined for purposes of Ch. 202, Florida Statutes. The
total potential surtax rate varies from county to county depending on the particular surtaxes that can be
levied in that jurisdiction.

Documentary Stamp Tax: This tax is levied on documents, as provided under Chapter 201, Florida
Statutes. Documents subject to this tax include, but are not limited to: deeds, stocks and bonds, notes
and written obligations to pay money, mortgages, liens, and other evidences of indebtedness.

Florida’s Turnpike Enterprise (FTE): Florida's Turnpike Enterprise, which is part of FDOT, oversees a
483-mile system of limited-access toll highways.

General Obligation Bonds: A municipal bond backed by the credit and taxing power of the issuing
jurisdiction rather than the revenue from a given project.



Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Action (I1JA): A reauthorization of federal legislation that provides
$973 billion in funding over five years from FFY 2022 through FFY 2026, including $550 billion for new
investments for all modes of transportation, water, power and energy, environmental remediation, public
lands, broadband, and resiliency.

Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA): Legislative initiative by U.S.
Congress that restructured funding for transportation programs. ISTEA authorized increased levels of
highway and transportation funding from FY92-97 and increased the role of regional planning
commissions/MPOs in funding decisions. The Act also required comprehensive regional and statewide
long-term transportation plans and placed an increased emphasis on public participation and
transportation alternatives.

Local Option Fuel Taxes: County governments are authorized to levy up to 12 cents of local option fuel
taxes in the form of three separate levies. The first is a tax of 1 cent on every net gallon of motor and
diesel fuel sold within a county known as the Ninth-Cent Fuel Tax. The second is a tax of 1 to 6 cents on
every net gallon of motor and diesel fuel sold within a county. The third tax is a 1 to 5 cents levy upon
every net gallon of motor fuel sold within a county, although diesel fuel is not subject to this tax. A local
government may pledge any of its revenues from the tax to repay state bonds issued on its behalf and, in
addition, may use these revenues to match state funds in a 50/50 ratio for projects on the State Highway
System, or for other road projects which would alleviate congestion on the State Highway System.

Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP): A long range, 20-year, strategy and capital improvement
program developed to guide the effective investment of public funds in transportation facilities. The plan
is updated every five years and may be amended as a result of changes in projected federal, state and
local funding, major improvement studies, congestion management system plans, interstate interchange
justification studies and environmental impact studies. For this document, LRTP is used generally to refer
to an MPO’s long range transportation plan and encompasses other names that may be used for this
purpose (e.g., metropolitan transportation plan).

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO): An organization made up of local elected and appointed
officials responsible for developing, in cooperation with the state, transportation plans and programs in
urban areas containing 50,000 or more residents. MPOs are responsible for the development of
transportation facilities that will function as an intermodal transportation system and the coordination of
transportation planning and funding decisions. For this document, MPO refers to all forms of an MPO
including Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), Transportation Planning Organization (TPO),
Transportation Planning Agency (TPA), and Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO).

Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council (MPOAC): A statewide organization created by
the Florida Legislature to augment the role of the individual MPOs in the cooperative transportation
planning process. The MPOAC assists the MPQOs in carrying out the urban area transportation planning
process by serving as the principal forum for collective policy decisions.



Municipal Fuel Tax: This one-cent fuel tax is one of the revenue sources that fund the Municipal
Revenue Sharing Program. Municipalities must use the funds derived from this tax for transportation-
related expenditures.

New Starts Transit Program (Federal): Federal-aid available for design and construction of new fixed-
guideway or extensions to fixed guideways (projects that operate on a separate right-of-way exclusively
for public transportation, or that include a rail or a catenary system).

New Starts Transit Program (Florida): Established by the 2005 Florida Legislature to assist local
governments in developing and constructing fixed-guideway and bus rapid transit projects to
accommodate and manage urban growth and development.

Ninth-cent Fuel Tax: A tax of 1 cent on every net gallon of motor and diesel fuel sold within a county.
The proceeds are used to fund specified transportation expenditures.

Non-capacity programs: FDOT programs designed to support, operate, and maintain the state
transportation system including safety; resurfacing; bridge; product support; operations and
maintenance; and administration.

Off-System Facilities: Facilities that are not on the State Highway System (SHS).

Program and Resource Plan (PRP): A 10-year plan that establishes financial and production targets for
FDOT programs, thereby guiding program funding decisions to carry out the goals and objectives of the
Florida Transportation Plan.

Revenue: Income received.

Revenue Estimating Conference (REC): The conference within Florida’s statutorily required consensus
estimating conference process that forecasts the classification of recurring and non-recurring revenues
on a “cash” basis where revenues are assigned to the fiscal year in which they are likely to be received.

Revenue Forecast: An estimate of the value of money at the time it will be collected, reflecting future
revenue. For this purpose, the revenue is forecast through 2050.

Small County Outreach Program (SCOP): A program to assist small county governments in repairing or
rehabilitating county bridges, paving unpaved roads, addressing road-related drainage improvements,
resurfacing or reconstructing county roads, or constructing capacity or safety improvements to county
roads (Section 339.2818, Florida Statutes).

State Highway System (SHS): A network of approximately 12,000 miles of highways owned and
maintained by the State of Florida or state-created authorities. Major elements include Interstate
highways, Florida’s Turnpike System, other toll facilities operated by transportation authorities, and
arterial highways.



State Imposed Motor Fuel Taxes: Florida law imposes per-gallon taxes on motor fuels and distributes
the proceeds to local governments as follows: the Constitutional Fuel Tax (2 cents); the County Fuel Tax
(1 cent); and the Municipal Fuel Tax (1 cent).

Statutory Formula: Calculated as equal parts of population and motor fuel tax collections, per Section
339.135(4)(a)1, Florida Statutes.

Strategic Intermodal System (SIS): Florida’s high priority transportation system composed of facilities
and services of statewide and interregional significance, including appropriate components of all modes.

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program: Federal-aid highway funding program with
flexible funding that may be used by States and localities for projects to preserve and improve the
conditions and performance on any Federal-aid highway, bridge and tunnel projects on any public road,
pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure, and transit capital projects, including intercity bus terminals.

Transportation Alternatives (TA) Set-Aside: Set-aside funds from STBG that provides funding for a
variety of generally smaller-scale transportation projects such as pedestrian and bicycle facilities;
construction of turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas; community improvements such as historic
preservation and vegetation management; environmental mitigation related to stormwater and habitat
connectivity; recreational trails; safe routes to school projects; and vulnerable road user safety
assessments.

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP): Short-term (four years per federal requirement and five
years per state requirement) plan of approved projects developed by an MPO for a jurisdiction that is
fiscally constrained.

Transportation Management Area (TMA): Urban areas with a population over 200,000 are designated
as Transportation Management Areas (TMAS). These areas are subject to special planning and
programming requirements.

Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP): Created to improve regionally significant
transportation facilities in "regional transportation areas." State funds are available throughout Florida to
provide incentives for local governments and the private sector to help pay for critically needed projects
that benefit regional travel and commerce.

Work Program (Adopted): The five-year listing of all transportation projects planned for each fiscal year
by FDOT. The draft file is labeled Tentative (which is developed by the central FDOT office based on the
District work programs) and the final file is labeled Adopted (adjusted for the legislatively approved
budget for the first year of the program).

Year of Expenditure Dollars: Dollars that are adjusted for inflation from the present time to the
expected year of construction.



APPENDIX G: MPO REVENUE FORECAST
REPORT

A 2050 Revenue Forecast report is provided for each MPO.

Florida-Alabama TPO ~ Hillsborough MPO
~ Okaloosa-Walton TPO ~ Polk TPO
~ Bay County TPO ~ Indian River County MPO
~ Capital Region TPA ~ Sarasota/Manatee MPO
~  Gainesville MTPO ~ Heartland Regional TPO
~ North Florida TPO ~  St. Lucie TPO
~ Ocala/Marion County TPO ~  Martin MPO
~ Hernando/Citrus MPO ~ Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO
~  Lake-Sumter MP ~ Lee County MPO
~ River to Sea TPO ~  Collier MPO
~ MetroPlan Orlando ~  Palm Beach TPA
~ Space Coast TPO ~ Broward MPO
~  Pasco County MPO ~ Miami-Dade TPO

Forward Pinellas



2050 REVENUE FORECAST
OCALA/MARION COUNTY TPO

The purpose of this revenue forecast is to provide the Ocala/Marion County TPO with a MPO-specific
forecasts for use in building their 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP). This same revenue
forecast is used by FDOT for the SIS 2050 SIS Cost Feasible Plan. Statewide and Districtwide revenue
forecasts, applicable to all MPOs, can be found in the 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook.

This document only provides forecasts for state and federal funds that “flow through” the FDOT Work
Program. Note: Turnpike Enterprise revenue estimates are not provided. For Turnpike project information,
refer to the Turnpike Ten-year Finance Plan. In addition, forecasts for local resources are not provided.
For local resource information, see Appendix C of the 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook.

This revenue forecast is for the entire LRTP planning horizon through state fiscal year 2049/50.

REVENUE FORECASTING FRAMEWORK

The framework for presenting the 2050 revenue estimates is shown in Figure 1 below.

Figure 1. Revenue Forecast Framework

STATEWIDE ). DISTRICTWIDE < MPO
- ESTIMATES ESTIMATES ESTIMATES

Strategic Intermodal System STBG STBG, TMA MPO

(SIS) - all modes
TA TA, TMA MPO

Non-SIS, non-highway
modes CRP CRP, TMA MPO

Non-SIS Transit (including TRIP SHS, non-SIS, TMA MPO

Florida New Starts & SHS, non-SIS, non-TMA MPO Other Roads, non-SIS, non-SHS
Discretionary)

. Non-capacity programs Non-SIS Transit Formula
Non-capacity programs (specifically Safety (HSIP) and (excluding Florida New Starts &

(such as Safet'y,_Prod.uct Resurfacing, Bridge, and O&M) Discretionary)
Support, Administration)



https://floridasturnpike.com/about/floridas-turnpike-financials/

STATEWIDE ESTIMATES — REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED AT A STATEWIDE LEVEL

For the purposes of this revenue forecast, FDOT reports revenue estimates at the statewide level for all
modes on the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS); non-SIS/non-highway modes including aviation, rail,
seaport development, intermodal access, and Shared-Use Nonmotorized (SUN) Trail; and non-SIS transit.
In addition, FDOT provides statewide estimates for non-capacity programs designed to support and
maintain the State Highway System (SHS) including safety; resurfacing; bridge, product support;
operations and maintenance; and administration. These statewide estimates are funded with both federal
and state funds. Because all of these programs are administered at the statewide level, the statewide
estimates are largely for informational purposes for the MPOs.

FDOT takes the lead in identifying planned projects for statewide programs. None of these funds are
specifically allocated at the MPO level in the revenue forecast. Funds allocated to the SIS are identified by
FDOT Districts in coordination with the MPOs, regional planning councils, local governments, and other
transportation providers and listed in the SIS 2050 CFP. These SIS projects must be included in the MPO'’s
LRTP to advance in the Work Program.

Refer to 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook for Statewide Estimate Tables 5-8.

DISTRICTWIDE ESTIMATES — REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED BY FDOT DISTRICT

Revenue estimates for the following programs are provided for each FDOT District. MPOs should work
with their FDOT District Liaison to identify funding opportunities for these programs including Surface
Transportation Block Grant (STBG), Transportation Alternatives (TA), Carbon Reduction Program (CRP),
Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP), SHS (non-SIS), and some non-capacity programs such
as Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), Resurfacing, Bridge, and Operations & Maintenance
(O&M). These programs can be used to identify funding opportunities for MPOs. MPOs should work with
their FDOT District Liaison to identify planned projects for these funding sources.

Refer to 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook for Districtwide Estimate Tables 9-17.



METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) ESTIMATES- REVENUE
ESTIMATES REPORTED FOR EACH MPO

Revenue estimates by certain federal and state programs including Other Roads (non-SIS, non-SHS) and
Non-SIS Transit (excluding Florida New Starts and Transit discretionary) are reported for each MPO, as
applicable.

OTHER ROADS (NON-SIS, NON-SHS)

These are federal and state funds that may be used off-system which are roads that are not on the SIS or
the State Highway System (i.e., roads owned by counties and municipalities) and could include programs
such as Small County Outreach Program (SCOP) and County Incentive Grant Program (CIGP). Table 59
provides the estimate for the Ocala/Marion County TPO.

Table 59. Ocala/Marion County TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-
SI1S/non-SHS) (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

Other Roads $- $2.80 $7.29 $7.58 $15.44 $33.10
(non-SIS/non-SHS)

NON-SIS TRANSIT FORMULA (EXCLUDING FLORIDA NEW STARTS AND TRANSIT
DISCRETIONARY)

These are federal and state funds for technical and operating/capital assistance to transit, paratransit, and
ridesharing systems. Transit program estimates are based on a formula between Districts and counties
according to population. MPOs should work with their District Liaison for agreement on how they will be
incorporated in the update of the MPO’s LRTP. MPOs also are encouraged to work with transit agencies
and others that directly receive federal transit funds to ensure all such funds are captured in their LRTPs.
Table 60 provides the estimate for the Ocala/Marion County TPO.

Table 60. Ocala/Marion County TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit
Formula

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

Transit Formula $1.56 $4.29 $4.64 $4.85 $9.89 $25.23




STATEWIDE ESTIMATES — REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED AT A STATEWIDE LEVEL

For the purposes of this revenue forecast, FDOT reports revenue estimates at the statewide level for all
modes on the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS); non-SIS/non-highway modes including aviation, rail,
seaport development, intermodal access, and Shared-Use Nonmotorized (SUN) Trail; and Florida New
Starts. In addition, FDOT provides statewide estimates for non-capacity programs designed to support
and maintain the State Highway System (SHS) including safety; resurfacing; bridge, product support;
operations and maintenance; and administration. These statewide estimates are funded with both federal
and state funds. Because all of these programs are administered at the statewide level, the statewide
estimates are largely for informational purposes for the MPOs.

FDOT takes the lead in identifying planned projects for statewide programs. None of these funds are
specifically allocated at the MPO level in the revenue forecast. Funds allocated to the SIS are identified by
FDOT Districts in coordination with the MPOs, regional planning councils, local governments, and other
transportation providers and listed in the SIS 2050 CFP. These SIS projects must be included in the MPO’s
LRTP to advance in the Work Program.

Refer to 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook for Statewide Estimate Tables 5-8.

DISTRICTWIDE ESTIMATES — REVENUE ESTIMATES REPORTED BY FDOT DISTRICT

Revenue estimates for the following programs are provided for each FDOT District. MPOs should work
with their FDOT District Liaison to identify funding opportunities for these programs including Surface
Transportation Block Grant (STBG), Transportation Alternatives (TA), Carbon Reduction Program (CRP),
SHS (non-SIS), Other Roads (non-SIS, non-SHS), Non-SIS Transit Discretionary, Transportation Regional
Incentive Program (TRIP), and some non-capacity programs such as Highway Safety Improvement
Program (HSIP), Resurfacing, Bridge, and Operations & Maintenance (O&M). These programs can be
used to identify funding opportunities for MPOs. MPOs should work with their FDOT District Liaison to
identify planned projects for these funding sources. A districtwide table for Other Roads for areas not in
an MPO is provided for informational purposes.

Refer to 2050 Revenue Forecast Handbook for Districtwide Estimate Tables 9-17.



METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) ESTIMATES- REVENUE
ESTIMATES REPORTED FOR EACH MPO

Revenue estimates by certain federal and state programs including STBG — TMA MPOs, TA - TMA MPOs,
CRP — TMA MPQOs, SHS (non-SIS) — TMA MPOs, Other Roads (non-SIS, non-SHS), and Non-SIS Transit
(excluding Florida New Starts and Transit discretionary) are reported for each MPO, as applicable.

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT - TMA MPO

These are federal funds from the Surface Transportation Block Grant program that are allocated to TMA
MPQOs, based on population, to promote flexibility in State and local transportation decisions and provide
flexible funding to best address State and local transportation needs. Table 155 provides the estimate for
the Miami-Dade TPO.

Table 155. Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for STBG (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

STBG (SU, in TMA with $65.81 $174.18 $170.34 $170.34 $340.69 $921.36
population > 200K)

TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES (TA) SET-ASIDE - TMA MPO

These are federal funds from the Transportation Alternatives set-aside that are allocated to TMAs. They
can be used to assist MPOs with projects for pedestrian and bicycle facilities, recreational trails, safe
routes to school projects, community improvements such as historic preservation and vegetation
management, and environmental mitigation related to stormwater and habitat connectivity. Table 156
provides the estimate for the Miami-Dade TPO.

Table 156. Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for TA (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

TA (TALU, in TMA with $16.20 $31.07 $31.12 $31.12 $62.24 $171.75
population > 200K)




CARBON REDUCTION PROGRAM - TMA MPO

These are federal funds from the Carbon Reduction Program that are allocated to TMA MPOs. They can
be used to assist MPOs with projects designed to reduce transportation emissions, defined as carbon
dioxide (CO2) emissions from on-road highway sources. Table 157 provides the estimate for the Miami-
Dade TPO.

Table 157. Miami-Dade TPO — TMA MPO Level Estimate for CRP (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

CRP (CARU, in TMA with $21.16 $25.84 $25.84 $25.84 $51.68 $150.37
population > 200K)

SHS (NON-SIS) - TMA MPO

These are state funds used for highway improvements on the SHS. By law, state funds can only be used
for highway improvements on the SHS, except to match federal aid, for SIS connectors owned by local
governments, or for other approved programs. Table 158 provides the estimate for the Miami-Dade
TPO.

Table 158. Miami-Dade TPO - TMA MPO Level Revenue Estimate for SHS (non-SIS)
(Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

SHS (non-SIS, in TMA) $22.02 $52.47 $107.50 $111.75 $227.48 $521.21

OTHER ROADS (NON-SIS, NON-SHS)
These are federal and state funds that may be used off-system which are roads that are not on the SIS or

the State Highway System (i.e., roads owned by counties and municipalities) and could include programs
such as Small County Outreach Program (SCOP) and County Incentive Grant Program (CIGP). Table 159
provides the estimate for the Miami-Dade TPO.



Table 159. Miami-Dade TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Other Roads (non-
SIS/non-SHS) (Millions of $)

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

Other Roads $13.38 $27.74 $52.38 $54.50 $110.96 $258.96
(non-SIS/non-SHS)

NON-SIS TRANSIT FORMULA (EXCLUDING FLORIDA NEW STARTS AND TRANSIT
DISCRETIONARY)

These are federal and state funds for technical and operating/capital assistance to transit, paratransit, and
ridesharing systems. Transit program estimates are based on a formula between Districts and counties
according to population. MPOs should work with their District Liaison for agreement on how they will be
incorporated in the update of the MPQO’s LRTP. MPOs also are encouraged to work with transit agencies
and others that directly receive federal transit funds to ensure all such funds are captured in their LRTPs.
Table 160 provides the estimate for the Miami-Dade TPO.

Table 160. Miami-Dade TPO — MPO Level Revenue Estimate for Non-SIS Transit Formula

TIME PERIODS (FISCAL YEARS)

PROGRAMS

FUNDING SOURCE: 2023/24- 2025/26- 2030/31- 2035/36- 2040/41- 27-YEAR TOTAL
FEDERAL/STATE 2024/25 2029/30 2034/35 2039/40 2049/50 2024/25- 2049/50

Transit Formula $50.23 $138.02 $149.25 $156.02 $318.28 $811.80




DRAFT APPENDIX - 120



?‘Jraiegic
evelopment

FOR MORE INFORMATION:

Florida Department Of Transportation

Forecasting And Trends Office
www.fdot.gov/planning/fto

Office Of Policy Planning
www.fdot.gov/planning/policy

DRAFT APPENDIX - 121


http://www.fdot.gov/planning/fto
http://www.fdot.gov/planning/policy

Appendix F

Selection from
FY 2025/2026-2029/2030
Transportation Improvement Program

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

DRAFT APPENDIX - 122



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Transportation Improvement Program

The Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) covers the first five years of the Long Range Transportation Plan. Federal
regulations require a TIP to include four years of improvements; however Florida requires that a TIP includes improvements
covering a five-year period. Major changes to the TIP go through a formal review process, including a public hearing.

Revenue sources for the TIP projects are listed below in Table 1. The full table can be found in the Ocala Marion TIP FY
2025/2026-2029/2030 available in Appendix E.

Table 1: TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Revenues in Year of Expenditure (YOE) Costs

Funding Source 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 All Years
Federal $34,325,023 $33,093,978 $62,111,813 $1,524,583 $61,553,727 $192,609,124
State $78,942,745 $37,264,929 $33,236,377 $12,453,930 $186,082,632 $347,980,613
Local $5,160,476 $3,850,840 $2,204,693 $1,027,258 $1,093,276 $13,336,543
Total $118,428,244 $74,209,747 $97,552,883 $15,005,771 $248,729,635 $553,926,280

Source: Ocala Marion TIP 2025/2026-2029/2030

The current TIP includes several projects which are scheduled to be at least partially funded, as listed below in Table 2 and

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 123



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 3. Additional project information including scheduled phases and costs can be found in the Ocala Marion TIP FY
2025/2026-2029/2030. Costs shown in the TIP five-year program are shown as year of expenditure (YOE), which are
considered equivalent to present day value (PDV). Additionally, the map on Figure1,Error! Reference source not found.

illustrates projects that are fully funded through construction by 2030, the final year of the TIP.

Table 2: TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Roadway Projects

[-75 at

NW 49t St End of 49t St
I-75 at SR 326

-75 at SR 326

-75 SR 200

Us 41 SW 110t St
US 441 at SR 464

s End of 4-Lanes
SR40 E of CR 314

End of NW 35t St Interchange
improvements
Interchange
modifications
Interchange
improvements
SR 326 Add auxiliary lanes
N of SR 40 Capacity
Operations
E of CR 314 Capacity
E of CR 314A Capacity

CST, ROW

PE

CST

CST, PE, ROW

CST

CST

CST

ROW

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

$21,318,210

$12,546,000

$1,055,000

$20,886,098

$112,358,984

$4,537,846

$129,751,356

$42,713,393

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 124



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

SR 40 at SW 27t Ave Safety $1,822,492

SR 40 US 441 251 Ave iETECEtn csT Yes $716,993
improvements

SW SR 200 at SW 60t Ave Safety CST Yes $1,161,885

SR 200 Citrus County Line CR 484 Capacity PE Yes $5,000,000

CR42at CR25 Intersection csT Yes $782,910
improvements

CR42at CR25 icErEeatin cST Yes $125,185
improvements

CR475A Paved shoulders PE, CST Yes $1,915,028

NE 8t Ave SR 40 SR 492 Roundabout CST Yes $5,222,469

SE 100t Ave Paved Shoulders PE, CST Yes $1,259,028

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 125



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 3: TIP FY 2025/2026-2029/2030 Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects

Belleview Greenway Trail Cie .Ilz.’g[:; i $868,700
Belleview Greenway Trail A6 _lF_’ra;iT e PE Yes $265,000
oS \f/';’;i%aa“ Baseline Road  Santos Paved Trall > -0 21 csT Yes $5,600,000
Pruitt Trail SR 200 Pruitt Trailhead Plke Fath and csT Yes $2,000,626
Pruitt Trail SR 200 Pruitt Trailhead ke et and csT Yes $203,007
US 441 SE 102 PL SR 200 Sidenaland csT Yes $5,040,567

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 126



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

N
L ) g ) =
o ALACHUA — % >
A 0 1 2 4 Miles BE A X, = <
h &\ =& & Sl
"y < S 35thiSt- |
b (e L8th st Eae=
‘ 24th.St
A Pl
g o
Hwy 318 ‘ < 53
= LE o
1 E = a4th St 3
Sl - = 308 |
RERDICH L o =S
Hwy 326 : ; : \ } 2
f C ® 3rd St
! . T - g = 140
LEVY T & '
Hwy 329 /L fa ISS: T == ;4 :'\}-'g B
| i - [ - == i iE=r3 3 |
- el = ; | = 2 i i st 3 |
27 3% N ANTHDNY e / L & H —
Tooth St ( j 7thst | °/1; 5 J
] Lo I
| 200

Burbank Rd 2 i

VOLUSIA
FEDARQW/SHIP | e 326}
f [ SILVER

SPRINGS,

L4th Ave

ol OCA}%\/ / ; |

W Silver Springs Blvd. |

J\L:"

Lt :

38th St

Wi

27th Ave

| NAVIGATING THE FUTURE |

2050

Long Range Transportation Plan

.

2030 Existing+Committed Roadways
—— 2Llane Committed
CITRUS 4Lane |;|':":| Intersections
w6 Lane
8 Lane

SUMTER LAKE

Figure 1: Existing and Committed Roadways (Constructed by 2030)

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 127




Appendix G

Roadway Cost Feasible Plan
(Present Day Value)




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2050 Revenue Forecast (PDV)

Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint (Present Day Value

SIS Revenue $38,495,349 $12,906,410 $55,150,000 $106,551,759
Federal/State Revenue for Capital $31,715,656 $27,054,725 $44,010,600 $102,780,981
Local Revenue for Capital $270,127,430 $264,291,115 $465,673,825 $1,000,092,370
Contingency for Capital* N/A $869,961 $800,585 N/A
Subtotal for Capital Projects $340,338,435 $305,122,211 $565,635,010 $1,211,095,657
Cpmtroe | | oaweawo| a0 260 Toa
Federally/State-Funded Capital Projects $69,341,044 $40,030,511 $99,961,185 $209,332,741
Locally-Funded Capital Projects $270,127,430 $264,291,115 $465,673,825 $1,000,092,370

Federal/State Revenue for O&M $48,082,211 $39,357,485 $62,916,296 $150,355,992
Local Revenue for O&M $110,085,500 $111,019,500 $224,843,000 $445,948,000
Subtotal for O&M Projects $158,167,711 $150,376,985 $287,759,296 $596,303,992

Expenditure Type | 20312035 2036-2040 2041-2050 2031-2050 Total

Federally/State-Funded O&M Projects $48,082,211 $39,357,485 $62,916,296 $150,355,992

Locally-Funded O&M Projects $110,085,500 $111,019,500 $224,843,000 $445,948,000

08M Revenue Balance ] ] ] —1
Plan Balance S ssoses| S0l S

* Contingencyfor Capitalis treated as a rollover reserve between time periods. The amountis carried forward and adjusted by inflation using the formula:
ContingencyT = ContingencyT-1 x (InflationT / InflationT-1).

Contingency balances are used to absorb available surplus and are not applied to cover deficits.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 129



Tier 2 & 3 - 2050 Cost Feasible Projects (2031 - 2050)

Present Day Value (PDV), 2025 Dollars

CR35 SR 40 NE 35 ST 0.42 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES c/ic $ 445,986 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,114,964 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 4,181,116 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 5,574,821 LOCAL
SHORES EAST EXT SE 156 PL RD MAPLE LN 0.60 NEW 2 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 502,745 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,256,864 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 4,713,238 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 6,284,318 LOCAL
SE 92 LP EXT SE 95 ST US 441 0.61 NEW 2 LANES c/ic $ 511,373 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,278,432 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 4,794,121 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 6,392,161 LOCAL
SW 20 ST I-75 SR 200 1.08 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 1,139,330 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,848,325 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 10,681,220 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 14,241,626 LOCAL
NE 35 ST NE 36 AV SR 40 257 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cIC cic 2031 - 2035 $ 25,486,485 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 33,981,981 LOCAL
SR 40 END OF FOUR LANES E OF CR 314 5.36 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic cic cic 2031 - 2035 $ 2,246,615 SIS

cre $ 126,849,867 sis
CR 475A SW 66 ST SW 42 ST 1.76 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cIC Committed $ 1,146,769 LOCAL Committed $ 939,600 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 23,272,537 LOCAL
CR 484 MARION OAKS BLVD CR 475A 1.80 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES cic Committed $ 2,500,000 LOCAL Committed $ 14,040,000 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 19,247,021 LOCAL
CR 42 SE 58 AV US 301 0.75 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 787,654 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,969,134 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 7,384,252 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 9,845,669 LOCAL
NW 37 AV SR 40 us 27 1.39 NEW 2 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 1,168,074 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,920,186 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 10,950,696 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 14,600,928 LOCAL
CR 42 SE 36 AV SE 58 AV 2.01 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 2,119,444 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 5,298,610 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 19,869,787 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 26,493,049 LOCAL
CR 475 SE 59 ST SE 32 ST 215 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 2,270,590 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 5,676,476 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 21,286,786 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 28,382,381 LOCAL
BANYAN RD EXT BANYAN RD PECAN PASS 0.53 NEW 2 LANES Completed $ 443,460 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 1,108,649 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 4,157,435 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 5,543,247 LOCAL
NE 36 AV NE 14 ST NE 21 ST 0.50 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 528,131 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 1,320,326 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 4,951,224 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 6,601,632 LOCAL
CR 484 MARION OAKS CRSE MARION OAKS BLVD 0.87 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES 2036 - 2040 $ 740,460 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 1,851,150 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 6,941,813 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 9,255,750 LOCAL
NE 36 AV NE 25 ST NE 35 ST 0.77 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 809,839 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 2,024,598 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 7,592,242 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 10,122,989 LOCAL
SW 66 ST SW 49 AV SW 27 AV 1.25 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 1,320,127 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 3,300,317 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 12,376,189 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 16,501,585 LOCAL
SW 80 ST SW 80 AV SR 200 154 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 1,627,342 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 4,068,356 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 15,256,335 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 20,341,780 LOCAL
CR 484 CR 475A CR 475 1.99 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES Completed $ 1,706,101 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 4,265,253 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 15,994,698 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 21,326,264 LOCAL
SE 92 PL RD US 441 SR 35 1.68 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 1,779,296 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 4,448,239 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 16,680,898 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 22,241,197 LOCAL
SR 464 SE31ST MIDWAY RD 4.41 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES Completed $ 3,284,212 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 8,210,531 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 32,842,125 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 41,052,656 LOCAL
MARION OAKS MANOR EXT SW 18 AV RD CR 475 215 NEW 4 LANES Completed $ 3,371,833 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 8,429,582 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 17,408,991 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 42,147,911 LOCAL
MARION OAKS MNR SW 49 AV MARION OAKS LN 3.22 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 3,399,298 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 8,498,246 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 18,330,686 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 42,491,228 LOCAL
SR 40 E OF CR 314A LEVY HAMMOCK RD 248 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cIC cIC 2041 - 2050 $ 28,494,477 SIS 2041 - 2050 $ 28,494,477 SIS
NW 60 AV us 27 NW 49 ST 0.98 NEW 4 LANES cIc cic $ 720,000 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 14,370,028 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 19,160,038 LOCAL
Note:

1. C/C = Completed/Committed



Present Day Value (PDV), 2025 Dollars

Tier 2 & 3 - Tentative 2050 Cost Feasible Projects (Intersections) (2031 - 2050)

SR/CR 464/MARICAMP RD AT SR 35 MODIFY INTERSECTION cic $ 124,603 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SW 42 ST AT CR 475A MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SW SR 200 AT SW 60 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
WEST OAK SPINE RD AT NW 35 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
WEST OAK SPINE RD AT NW 21 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
NW MLK AV AT NW 21 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SW 27 AV AT SW 19 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SE 31 ST AT SE 24 RD MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 311,508 LOCAL c/C $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SE 31 ST AT SE 19 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 311,508 LOCAL c/IC $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SR 35 AT SR 25 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 124,603 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 311,508 FED/STATE 2036 — 2040 $ 1,168,157 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 1,557,542 FED/STATE
SW 31 ST AT SW 7 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SW 32 ST AT CR 475 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2041 - 2050 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 1,557,542 LOCAL
SW 60 AV AT US 27 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2041 - 2050 $ 124,603 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 311,508 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,168,157 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 1,657,542 FED/STATE
SR 40 AT SW67 AV/INW 68 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2041 - 2050 $ 186,905 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 467,263 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,869,050 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 2,336,313 FED/STATE
SR 40 AT SR 35 MODIFY INTERSECTION c/IC $ 186,905 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 467,263 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,869,050 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 2,336,313 LOCAL
us 41 AT SR 40 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 186,905 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 467,263 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 1,869,050 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 2,336,313 FED/STATE
SW 95 ST AT I-75 FLYOVER 2041 — 2050 $ 400,000 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 1,000,000 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 3,750,000 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 5,000,000 LOCAL
Note:

1. C/C = Completed/Committed



Tier 4 - Tentative Partially Funded Projects (2031 - 2050)

Present Day Value (PDV), 2025 Dollars

SR 200 COUNTY LINE CR 484 6.00 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic cic 2036 — 2040 $ 5,000,000 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 fsf'g%'gg)o FED/STATE
US 41 SW 110 ST SR 40 3.40 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES c/ic $ 3,118,464 FED/STATE c/ic $ 7,796,161 FED/STATE Completed $ 31,184,644 FED/STATE $ 38,980,805
SR 35 AT ROBINSON RD MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 - 2040 $ 124,603 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 311,508 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,168,157 LOCAL $ 1,557,542
I-75 AT SR 200 MODIFY INTERCHANGE ciC ciC 2041 - 2050 $ 15,000,000 SIs $ 2,336,313
I-75 AT CR 318 MODIFY INTERCHANGE c/ic $ 233,631 SIs 2031 - 2035 $ 700,894 SIs 2041 - 2050 $ 2,336,313 SIs $ 2,336,313
US 301 CR 42 SE 147 ST 223 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 2,044,442 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 5,111,104 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,000,000 FED/STATE $ 25555521
US 301 SE 147 ST 143 PL 0.13 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 -2035 $ 118,643 FED/STATE 2031 -2035 $ 296,607 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,000,000 FED/STATE $ 1,483,035
SR 40 US 41 CR 328 9.73 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 8,932,672 FED/STATE 2036 — 2040 $ 17,195,394 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,000,000 FED/STATE $ 111,658,402
SR 40 EOF CR 314 E OF CR 314A 5.04 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 5,789,871 SIs 2036 — 2040 $ 17,369,612 SIs 2041 - 2050 $ 57,898,707 SIs $ 57,898,707
SR 40 LEVY HAMMOCK RD SR 19 12.78 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 14,675,289 SIs 2036 - 2040 $ 44,025,867 SIs 2041 - 2050 $ 146,752,891 SIs $ 146,752,891
US 441 COUNTY LINE (S) CR 42 2.02 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 1,504,220 FED/STATE 2036 - 2040 $ 3,760,550 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,000,000 FED/STATE $ 18,802,752
CR 42 CR 475 SE 36 AV 2.01 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic $ 2,119,115 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 5,297,789 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 19,866,708 LOCAL $ 26,488,943
SR 326 USs 441 SR 40 8.46 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 9,878,678 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 22,428,726 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 1,000,000 FED/STATE $ 97,094,051
CR 484 SW 180 AV RD SR 200 8.22 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2041 - 2050 $ 8,684,041 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 3,670,000 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 13,500,000 LOCAL $ 108,550,517
SW TO NE CORRIDOR (WEST BELTWAY) CORRIDOR STUDY 2041 - 2050 $ 7,000,000 LOCAL TBD 2041 - 2050 $ 30,000,000 LOCAL TBD

I-75 CR 318 COUNTY LINE (N) 5.94 AUX LANES cic $ 10,170,758 SIS 2036 - 2040 $ 7,619,000 SIS $ 101,707,577 $ 101,707,577
CR 484 SR 200 MARION OAKS PASS (E) 5.50 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES ciC 2036 - 2040 $ 14,515,432 LOCAL $ 54,432,869 $ 72,577,159
I-75 SR 326 CR 318 10.23 AUX LANES cic $ 3,000,000 SIS 2036 - 2040 $ 12,515,000 SIS $ 175,168,108 $ 175,168,108
I-75 AT SW 20 ST NEW INTERCHANGE 2036 - 2040 $ 233,631 SIS $ 700,894 $ 2,336,313 $ 2,336,313
EAST-WEST CORRIDOR CORRIDOR STUDY 2031 - 2035 $ 5,000,000 LOCAL TBD TBD TBD

Note:

1. C/C = Completed/Committed



Tier 5 - Unfunded Needs

Present Day Value (PDV), 2025 Dollars

CR 200A NE 35 ST SR 326 2.58 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 2,723,768 $ 6,809,421 $ 25,535,327 $ 34,047,103
CR 25 SR 35 SE 108 TER RD 4.47 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 4,720,969 $ 11,802,423 $ 44,259,085 $ 59,012,113
CR 316 NE 152 PL NE 152 ST 8.71 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 9,198,071 $ 22,995,177 $ 86,231,914 $ 114,975,885
CR 318 COUNTY LINE I1-75 10.01 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 10,571,099 $ 26,427,747 $ 99,104,053 $ 132,138,737
CR 42 US 441 CR 25 3.82 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 4,034,799 $ 10,086,997 $ 37,826,238 $ 50,434,984
CR 484 us 41 LAKE SHORE DR 0.24 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 252,642 $ 631,606 $ 2,368,523 $ 3,158,031
I-75 AT CR 484 MODIFY INTERCHANGE $ 233,631 $ 700,894 $ 2,336,313 $ 2,336,313
NE 25 AV SR 492 NE 35 ST 1.60 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,691,403 $ 4,228,506 $ 15,856,899 $ 21,142,532
NW 27 AV us 27 NW 35 ST 1.81 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,908,132 $ 4,770,330 $ 17,888,739 $ 23,851,652
NW 35 AV NW 49/35 ST NW 63 ST 1.11 NEW 4 LANES $ 1,734,286 $ 4,335,716 $ 16,258,936 $ 21,678,581
SE 110 ST SE 36 AV/CR 467 US 441 1.23 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,301,856 $ 3,254,640 $ 12,204,902 $ 16,273,202
SE 24 ST SE 36 AV SE 28 ST 1.34 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,410,454 $ 3,526,136 $ 13,223,010 $ 17,630,680
SE 44 AV SE 52 ST SE 38 ST 1.13 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,188,764 $ 2,971,911 $ 11,144,665 $ 14,859,553
SR 200 AT SW 43 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION $ 124,603 $ 311,508 $ 1,168,157 $ 1,557,542
SR 35 NE 35 ST SR 326 1.38 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,452,669 $ 3,631,672 $ 13,618,772 $ 18,158,362
SR 35 SR 25 SE 92 PLACE LP 1.77 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,626,360 $ 4,065,900 $ 16,263,601 $ 20,329,501
SW 66 ST SR 200 SW 49 AV 1.51 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 1,591,283 $ 3,978,207 $ 14,918,276 $ 19,891,034
us 27 NW 44 AV NW 27 AV 1.85 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES $ 1,721,236 $ 5,163,707 $ 17,212,356 $ 17,212,356
US 441 CR 42 SE 132 ST RD/SE 92 PLACE LP 3.99 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES $ 2,971,407 $ 7,428,516 $ 29,714,065 $ 37,142,582



Appendix H

Roadway Cost Feasible Plan
(Year of Expenditure)




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2050 Revenue Forecast (YOE)

Demonstration of Fiscal Constraint (Year of Expenditure

SIS Revenue $49,659,000 $20,134,000 $106,991,000 $176,784,000
Federal/State Revenue for Capital $40,913,196 $42,205,371 $85,380,564 $168,499,132
Local Revenue for Capital $348,464,385 $412,294,140 $903,407,220 $1,664,165,745
Contingency for Capital* N/A $94,094,589 $116,880,478 N/A
Subtotal for Capital Project Revenues $439,036,581 $568,728,101 $1,212,659,262 $2,220,423,944

Expenditure Type | 20312035 2036-2040 2041-2050 2031-2050 Total

Federally/State-Funded Capital Projects $12,763,209 $62,447 597 $193,924,699 $269,135,506
Locally-Funded Capital Projects $348,464,385 $412,294,140 $903,407,220 $1,664,165,745

Capital Revenue Balance* $77,808,087 $93,986,364 $115327342| 0|

ovnesaws | mwvams|  aweaom | aosanso | aosraon Tl
Federal/State Revenue for O&M $62,026,052 $61,397,676 $122,057,615 $245,481,343

Local Revenue for O&M $142,010,295 $173,190,420 $436,195,420 $751,396,135
Subtotal for O&M Project Revenues $204,036,347 $234,588,096 $558,253,035 $996,877,478

Expenditure Type | 20312035 2036-2040 2041-2050 2031-2050 Total

Federally/State-Funded O&M Projects $62,026,052 $61,397,676 $122,057,615 $245,481,343

Locally-Funded O&M Projects $142,010,295 $173,190,420 $436,195,420 $751,396,135

Plan Balance $77,808,987 $93,086,364 $115327342| 0|

* Contingency for Capitalis treated as a rollover reserve between time periods. The amountis carried forward and adjusted by inflation using the formula:
ContingencyT = ContingencyT-1 x (InflationT / InflationT-1).

Contingency balances are used to absorb available surplus and are not applied to cover deficits.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 135



Tier 2 & 3 - 2050 Cost Feasible Projects (2031
Year of Expenditure (YOE)

050)

CR35 SR 40 NE 35 ST WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 445,986 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,438,304 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 5,393,639 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 7,191,519 LOCAL
SHORES EAST EXT SE 156 PL RD MAPLE LN 0.60 NEW 2 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 648,542 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,621,354 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 6,080,078 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 8,106,770 LOCAL
SE 92 LP EXT SE 95 ST US 441 0.61 NEW 2 LANES Completed $ 511,373 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,649,177 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 6,184,416 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 8,245,887 LOCAL
SW 20 ST I-75 SR 200 1.08 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 1,469,736 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 3,674,340 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 13,778,773 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 18,371,698 LOCAL
NE 35 ST NE 36 AV SR 40 257 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES ciC cic 2031 - 2035 $ 32,877,566 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 43,836,755 LOCAL
SR 40 END OF FOUR LANES E OF CR 314 5.36 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic cic cic 2031 - 2035 $ 2,898,133 SIS

cic $ 126,849,867 sis
CR 475A SW 66 ST SW 42 ST 1.76 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic Committed $ 1,146,769 LOCAL Committed $ 939,600 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 30,021,572 LOCAL
CR 484 MARION OAKS BLVD CR 475A 1.80 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES c/ic Committed $ 2,500,000 LOCAL Committed $ 14,040,000 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 24,828,658 LOCAL
CR 42 SE 58 AV US 301 0.75 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 1,228,739 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 3,071,849 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 14,325,448 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 15,359,244 LOCAL
NW 37 AV SR 40 us 27 1.39 NEW 2 LANES 2031 - 2035 $ 1,506,816 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 3,767,039 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 17,083,086 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 22,777,448 LOCAL
CR 42 SE 36 AV SE 58 AV 2,01 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 2,119,444 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 6,835,207 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 25,632,025 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 41,329,156 LOCAL
CR 475 SE 59 ST SE 32 ST 215 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 2,270,590 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 7,322,654 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 33,207,386 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 44,276,514 LOCAL
BANYAN RD EXT BANYAN RD PECAN PASS 0.53 NEW 2 LANES Completed $ 443,460 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,729,493 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 8,065,424 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 10,753,898 LOCAL
NE 36 AV NE 14 ST NE 21 ST 0.50 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 823,884 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 2,561,433 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 9,605,374 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 12,807,166 LOCAL
CR 484 MARION OAKS CRSE MARION OAKS BLVD 0.87 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 1,155,118 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 2,887,794 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 10,829,228 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 17,956,155 LOCAL
NE 36 AV NE 25 ST NE 35 ST 0.77 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 — 2040 $ 1,263,349 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 3,927,720 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 14,728,949 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 19,638,599 LOCAL
SW 66 ST SW 49 AV SW 27 AV 125 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES 2036 - 2040 $ 2,059,398 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 5,148,494 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 19,306,854 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 32,013,074 LOCAL
SW 80 ST SW 80 AV SR 200 154 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 1,627,342 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 7,892,611 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 29,597,290 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 39,463,053 LOCAL
CR 484 CR 475A CR 475 1.99 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES Completed $ 1,706,101 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 5,502,176 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 24,951,729 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 41,372,953 LOCAL
SE 92 PL RD US 441 SR 35 1.68 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 1,779,296 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 6,939,254 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 26,022,201 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 43,147,923 LOCAL
SR 464 SE31ST MIDWAY RD 4.41 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES Completed $ 3,284,212 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 15,928,430 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 63,713,722 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 79,642,152 LOCAL
MARION OAKS MANOR EXT SW 18 AV RD CR 475 215 NEW 4 LANES Completed $ 3,371,833 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 10,874,161 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 27,158,027 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 81,766,947 LOCAL
MARION OAKS MNR SW 49 AV MARION OAKS LN 3.22 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES Completed $ 3,399,298 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 10,962,737 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 28,595,870 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 82,432,983 LOCAL
SR 40 E OF CR 314A LEVY HAMMOCK RD 248 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES ciC ciC 2041 - 2050 $ 55,279,285 SIS 2041 - 2050 $ 55,279,285 SIS
NW 60 AV us 27 NW 49 ST 0.98 NEW 4 LANES cic cic $ 720,000 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 22,417,244 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 37,170,473 LOCAL
Notes:

1. C/C = Completed/Committed
2. Unfunded phase costs assume inflation equivalent to the 2041 - 2050 timeband.



Tier 2 & 3 - Tentative 2050 Cost Feasible Projects (Intersections) (2031 - 2050)
Year of Expenditure (YOE)

SR/CR 464/MARICAMP RD AT SR 35 MODIFY INTERSECTION cic $ 124,603 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 401,846 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,506,922 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,009,229 LOCAL
SW 42 ST AT CR 475A MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 160,738 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 401,846 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,506,922 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,009,229 LOCAL
SW SR 200 AT SW 60 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 160,738 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 401,846 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,506,922 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,009,229 LOCAL
WEST OAK SPINE RD AT NW 35 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 160,738 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 401,846 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,506,922 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,009,229 LOCAL
WEST OAK SPINE RD AT NW 21 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 160,738 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 401,846 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 1,506,922 LOCAL 2031 - 2035 $ 2,009,229 LOCAL
NW MLK AV AT NW 21 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 194,381 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 485,953 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,822,324 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 2,429,766 LOCAL
SW 27 AV AT SW 19 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 194,381 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 485,953 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 1,822,324 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 2,429,766 LOCAL
SE 31ST AT SE 24 RD MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 194,381 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 485,953 LOCAL c/IC $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 3,021,632 LOCAL
SE 31ST AT SE 19 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 — 2040 $ 194,381 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 485,953 LOCAL c/IC $ 1,168,157 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 3,021,632 LOCAL
SR 35 AT SR 25 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 160,738 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 401,846 FED/STATE 2036 — 2040 $ 1,822,324 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 3,021,632 FED/STATE
SW 31 ST AT SW 7 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2036 - 2040 $ 194,381 LOCAL 2036 — 2040 $ 485,953 LOCAL 2036 - 2040 $ 1,822,324 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 3,021,632 LOCAL
SW 32 ST AT CR 475 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2041 - 2050 $ 241,731 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 604,326 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 2,266,224 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 3,021,632 LOCAL
SW 60 AV AT US 27 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2041 - 2050 $ 241,731 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 604,326 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 2,266,224 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 3,021,632 FED/STATE
SR 40 AT SW67 AV/INW 68 AV MODIFY INTERSECTION 2041 - 2050 $ 362,596 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 906,489 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 3,625,958 FED/STATE 2041 — 2050 $ 4,532,447 FED/STATE
SR 40 AT SR 35 MODIFY INTERSECTION c/IC $ 186,905 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 906,489 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 3,625,958 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 4,532,447 LOCAL
Us 41 AT SR 40 MODIFY INTERSECTION 2031 - 2035 $ 241,108 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 602,769 FED/STATE 2031 - 2035 $ 2,411,075 FED/STATE 2041 - 2050 $ 4,532,447 FED/STATE
SW 95 ST AT I-75 FLYOVER 2041 - 2050 $ 776,000 LOCAL 2041 — 2050 $ 1,940,000 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 7,275,000 LOCAL 2041 - 2050 $ 9,700,000 LOCAL
Notes:

1. C/C = Completed/Committed
2. Unfunded phase costs assume inflation equivalent to the 2041 - 2050 timeband.



Tier 4 - Partially Funded Projects (2031 - 2050)
Year of Expenditure (YOE)

ON STREET FROM STREET TO STREET LENGTH IMPROVEMENT PE TIME PECOST | PE SOURCE [ DESIGN TIME DES COST | DES SOURCE | ROW TIME ROW COST | ROW SOURCE CST TIME CST COST CST SOURCE

SR 200 COUNTY LINE CR484 6.00 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic cic 2036-2040 $ 7,800,000 FED/STATE  2041-2050 fs ZF:’%ADE;’ FED/STATE
Us 41 SW 110 ST SR 40 340 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES crc § 3118464 FED/STATE  Completed § 7,796,161 FED/STATE  Completed  § 31,184,644 FED/STATE § 75622762
SR35 AT ROBINSON RD MODIFY INTERSECTION = 2036-2040 § 194381  LOCAL 2036-2040 § 485953  LOCAL 2036-2040 § 1822324  LOCAL s 3021632
75 AT SR 200 MODIFY INTERCHANGE c/C c/Cc 2041 - 2050 $ 29,100,000 SIs $ 4,532,447
175 ATCR318 MODIFY INTERCHANGE crc s 233631 sis 2031-2035 § 904,153 sis 2041-2050 4,532,447 sis $ 4532447
Us 301 CR42 SE 147 ST 223 WIDEN2TO4LANES  2031-2035 § 2637330 FEDISTATE = 2031-2035 § 6593324 FEDISTATE  2041-2050 § 1940000 FEDISTATE § 49,577,710
Us 301 SE 147 ST 143PL 013 WIDEN2TO4LANES  2031-2035 § 153049 FEDISTATE = 2031-2035 § 382623 FEDISTATE = 2041-2050 § 1940000 FEDISTATE s 2,877,088
SR 40 Us 41 CR328 973 WIDEN2TOA4LANES  2031-2035 § 11523147 FEDISTATE = 2036-2040 $ 26824814 FEDISTATE ~ 2041-2050 § 1940000 FEDISTATE $ 216,617,300
SR 40 EOF CR314 E OF CR314A 504 WIDEN2TO4LANES  2031-2035 § 7468933 sis 2036-2040  § 27,096,595 sis 2041-2050 § 112,323,492 sis § 112323492
SR 40 LEVY HAMMOCK RD SR19 1278 WIDEN2TO4LANES  2031-2035 § 18,931,123 sis 2036-2040  § 68,680,353 sis 2041-2050  § 284,700,608 sis $ 284,700,608
Us 441 COUNTY LINE (S) CR42 202 WIDEN4TOGLANES  2031-2035 § 1940444 FED/STATE = 2036-2040 § 5866450 FED/STATE = 2041-2050 § 1940000 FED/STATE § 36477338
CR42 CR475 SE36AV 201 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES crc $ 2119115  LOCAL 2041-2050 § 10277710 LOCAL 2041-2050 § 38541413  LOCAL $ 51388550
SR 326 Us 441 SR 40 846 WIDEN2TO4LANES  2031-2035 § 12743494 FEDISTATE = 2041-2050 $ 43511728 FEDISTATE = 2041-2050 § 1940000 FEDISTATE $ 188,362,459
CR484 SW 180 AV RD SR 200 8.22 WIDEN2TO4LANES  2041-2050 § 16847040  LOCAL 2041-2050 §  7,119800  LOCAL 2041-2050 § 26190000  LOCAL $ 210,588,004
SW TO NE CORRIDOR (WEST BELTWAY) CORRIDOR STUDY 2041-2050 § 13580000  LOCAL 8D 2041-2050 § 58200000  LOCAL 8D

175 CR318 COUNTY LINE (N) 594 AUX LANES crc $ 10170758 sis 2036-2040  § 11,885,640 sis $ 197,312,698 $ 197,312,608
CR484 SR 200 MARION OAKS PASS () 550 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES cic 2036-2040 § 22644074  LOCAL $ 105,599,766 $ 140,799,688
175 SR 326 CR318 10.23 AUX LANES crc $ 3,000,000 sis 2036-2040  § 19,523,400 sis $ 339,826,129 $ 339,826,129
175 AT SW 20 ST NEW INTERCHANGE 2036-2040 § 364,465 sis $ 1359734 $ 4532447 § 4532447
EAST-WEST CORRIDOR CORRIDOR STUDY 2031-2035 5 6450000  LOCAL 8D 8D 8D
Notes:

1. C/C = Completed/Committed

2. Unfunded phase costs assume inflation equivalent to the 2041 - 2050 timeband.



Tier 5 - Unfunded Needs
Year of Expenditure (YOE)

CR 200A NE 35 ST SR 326 2.58 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 5,284,110 $ 13,210,276 $ 49,538,534 $ 66,051,379
CR 25 SR 35 SE 108 TER RD 4.47 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 9,158,680 $ 22,896,700 $ 85,862,625 $ 114,483,499
CR 316 NE 152 PL NE 152 ST 8.71 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 17,844,257 $ 44,610,644 $ 167,289,913 $ 223,053,218
CR 318 COUNTY LINE I-75 10.01 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 20,507,932 $ 51,269,830 $ 192,261,862 $ 256,349,150
CR 42 Us 441 CR 25 3.82 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 7,827,510 $ 19,568,774 $ 73,382,902 $ 97,843,870
CR 484 uUsS 41 LAKE SHORE DR 0.24 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 490,126 $ 1,225,316 $ 4,594,934 $ 6,126,579
1-75 AT CR 484 MODIFY INTERCHANGE $ 453,245 $ 1,359,734 $ 4,532,447 $ 4,532,447
NE 25 AV SR 492 NE 35 ST 1.60 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 3,281,321 $ 8,203,302 $ 30,762,384 $ 41,016,511
NW 27 AV us 27 NW 35 ST 1.81 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 3,701,776  $ 9,254,441 $ 34,704,153 $ 46,272,204
NW 35 AV NW 49/35 ST NW 63 ST 1.11 NEW 4 LANES $ 3,364,516 $ 8,411,289 $ 31,542,335 $ 42,056,447
SE 110 ST SE 36 AV/CR 467 US 441 1.23 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 2,525,601 $ 6,314,002 $ 23,677,509 $ 31,570,012
SE 24 ST SE 36 AV SE 28 ST 1.34 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 2,736,281 $ 6,840,704 $ 25,652,639 $ 34,203,518
SE 44 AV SE 52 ST SE 38 ST 1.13 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 2,306,203 $ 5,765,507 $ 21,620,650 $ 28,827,533
SR 200 AT SW 43 ST MODIFY INTERSECTION $ 241,731 $ 604,326 $ 2,266,224 $ 3,021,632
SR 35 NE 35 ST SR 326 1.38 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 2,818,178 $ 7,045,445 $ 26,420,417 $ 35,227,223
SR 35 SR 25 SE 92 PLACE LP 1.77 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 3,155,139 $ 7,887,846 $ 31,551,385 $ 39,439,232
SW 66 ST SR 200 SW 49 AV 1.51 WIDEN 2 TO 4 LANES $ 3,087,089 $ 7,717,721 $ 28,941,455 $ 38,588,606
us 27 NW 44 AV NW 27 AV 1.85 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES $ 3,339,197 $ 10,017,591 $ 33,391,970 $ 33,391,970
UsS 441 CR 42 SE 132 ST RD/SE 92 PLACE LP 3.99 WIDEN 4 TO 6 LANES $ 5,764,529 $ 14,411,322 $ 57,645,287 $ 72,056,609
Note:

1. Unfunded phase costs assume inflation equivalent to the 2041 - 2050 timeband.



Appendix |

Transit Needs




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Transit Needs

SunTran is the transit provider for Marion County. In 2023, the agency developed Riding into the Future, the 2023-2032
Transportation Development Plan (TDP) that evaluates the existing conditions of the operations and service and identifies
needs and improvements. In developing the LRTP, the transit needs and improvements identified in the adopted TDP
were carried forward as the foundation for the cost-feasible and needs assessment analyses. The TDP provides a 10-year
horizon of fiscally constrained and unconstrained projects that reflect operational, service coverage, and capital priorities
for the SunTran system. These improvements are incorporated into the LRTP to ensure consistency with FDOT and
federal requirements for transit planning.

Beyond the TDP horizon, additional aspirational improvements are identified and included in the later years of the LRTP.
These aspirational projects represent long-term service expansions and innovative mobility strategies that extend the
system vision beyond the constrained TDP, ensuring that the LRTP captures both immediate priorities and the region’s
broader transit mobility aspirations.

Short-term transit needs identified in the TDP are reflected in Table 1 and illustrated in Figure 1. It is anticipated that
some of these improvements are to be made, while others will roll over into the next five years or beyond. Figure 2
illustrates the identified long-term transit needs.

A 10-year revenue and cost forecast was completed as part of the TDP. The forecasted 10-year transit revenue is
provided in Table 2 and the forecasted 10-year transit cost is provided in Table 3.

A system-level estimate of revenues and costs were projected to year 2050. The summary of these projections are
provided in Table 4.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 141



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

OCALA

Find your pli

Sy Tron

OcalaMarion County, Flarida

P =

N
% I ) Miles
0 1.5 3

[Marion County|

Alachua Putnam County

Citrus
County

County

Mcintosh

NS
B\ 75 o/ 464

]
Belleview

\\ Sumter County 1 Lake County

Belleview

Short-term
Service Concept

&> Pink
= Blue
a= Green
@== Orange
= Purple
a=» Red
= Sijlver

Silver
Express

Yellow A
== Yellow B
" Microtransit

Figure 1:

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 142

SunTran TDP Short-Term Service Concept (from FY2023-2032 TDP)




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 1: SunTran TDP Short Term Alternatives (2023 — 2027)

NEED/ALTERNATIVE DESCRIPTION

Blue-Green-Orange-Purple interline Increase frequency to every 52 minutes; serve the Florida Center for the Blind;
improvements incorporate electric vehicles

Yellow Route improvements Increase peak frequency on the Yellow A route to 70 minutes; streamline route
Marion Oaks service Run a new route to Marion Oaks

Silver Route revamping with microtransit | Reroutings on Silver and Silver Express routes; northwest microtransit zone

Red Route streamlining Simplify route to focus on west part of route on SE 24th St
Belleview service Run a new route to Belleview

Microtransit — Sunday A Run microtransit in northeast part of Ocala on Sundays
Microtransit — Sunday B Run microtransit in western part of Ocala on Sundays
Microtransit — Sunday C Run microtransit in Downtown and southeast part of Ocala

Run microtransit along SR 200, in the vicinity of the Walmart near CR 484 and
neighborhoods to the east

Run microtransit along SR 200, in the vicinity of On Top of the World Communities and
west of SW 60th Ave

Run microtransit along SR 200, between SW 60th Ave and the College of Central Florida
/ Paddock Mall

Microtransit — SR 200 South

Microtransit — SR 200 Central

Microtransit — SR 200 North

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 143



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

OCALA \\ [Marion County Alachua Putnam County
A County

SO ITen \ = =

OcalaMarion County, Flarida L e

75
Levy

County Reddick &

Belleview
]

Sumter County \ Lake County

Long-term
Service Concept

— Pink
= Blue
= Green
&= Orange
= Purple
a=» Red
&= Silver
= Teal
Yellow A
== Yellow B
" Microtransit

Belleview

N
% I Miles
0 1.5 3

S /

Figure 2: SunTran TDP Long-Term Service Concept (from FY2023-2032 TDP)

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 144



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION
Table 2: SunTran 10-Year Revenue Forecast (From 2023 SunTran TDP)

Federal

FTA 5307 $1 891,824 $2 978,579 $3 067,936 $3 159,974 $3 254,773 $3 352,417 $3 452,989 $3 556,579 $3 663,276 $3,773,174
FTA 5339 (c) LoNo $0 $0 $0 $0  $1,275201  $1,313,458 $676,431 $0 $0 $0
Misc. Federal Capital Grant $2,690,770 $2,891,275 $1,082,479

_---------

State Block Grant $552,000  $755,610  $778,278 $801,626 $825,675 $850,445 $875,959 $902,237 $929,304 $957,184
FDOT Urban Corridor $0 $0 $0 $360,308 $381,926 $404,842 $429,132 $454,880 $482,173 $511,104
FDOT Service Development $133,560  $560,720 $1,702,590  $1,671,419  $1,245249 $770,653 $1,108,670 $1,753,094 $1,194,066 $1,135,223
DEP Electric Transit Bus Grant $300,000  $300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Misc. State. Capital Grant $2,690,770  $2,891,275 $1,082,479 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

- I N A N I N U N

Farebox Revenue (Maintain Existing $120,000  $120,600  $121,203 $121,809 $122,418 $123,030 $123,645 $124,264 $124,885 $125,509
?Zggg Revenue (Alternatives) $20,900 $20,900 $88,940 $110,513 $110,513 $21,573 $21,573 $21,573 $21,573 $21,573
Local Contribution - City of Ocala $414,000  $453,366  $466,967 $480,976 $495,405 $510,267 $525,575 $541,342 $557,583 $574,310
Local Contribution - Marion County $138,000  $302,244  $311,311 $320,650 $330,270 $340,178 $350,383 $360,895 $371,722 $382,873
Fuel Refund $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500
Carbon Reduction Program $333,970  $333,970 $333,970 $333,970

TOTAL REVENUE $7,497,129 $8,719,763 $7,956,174  $7,363,745  $8,377,901  $7,799,876 $7,677,370 $7,827,878 $7,457,595 $7,593,963
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $304,822  $333,970  $333,970 ($1,871,418) ($2,906,740) ($4,007,257) ($7,259,706)  ($5,843,431) ($13,112,446)  ($8,676,314)

CARRYOVER $304,822 | $638,792 | $972,762 | ($898,655) | ($3,805,395) | (§7,812,652) | ($15,072,358) | ($20,915,789) | ($34,028,235) | ($42,704,549)
SURPLUS/SHORTFALL

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 145




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 3: 10-Year Cost Forecast (From 2023 SunTran TDP)
Alternatives 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total

Maintain Existing Service ~ $4,753,195 $5,381,253 $3,803,356 $4,562,382  $4,263,174  $5,170,476  $6,328,840  $5,060,417 $11,008,009  $5,673,970 $56,005,072

Green (OB) (ST) $0  $602,583  $638,738  $677,062 $717,686 $760,747 $3,396,816
Blue (OB) (ST) $0  $602,583  $638,738  $677,062 $717,686 $760,747 $3,396,816
Purple (OB) (ST) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Orange (OB) (ST) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Green (ST) Bus $566,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $566,500
Blue (ST) Bus $566,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $566,500
Red (ST) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Silver A (ST) $0 $0  $332,442 $352,389 $373,532 $1,058,363
Silver Route (ST) Bus Stop $0 $7,638 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,638
Silver Route (ST) Bus Stop S0 $101,846 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $101,846
with Shelter
Yellow A (ST) $0  $169,146  $179,295  $190,052 $201,456 $213,543 $226,356 $239,937 $254,333 $1,674,118
Yellow (ST) Bus $566,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $566,500
Yellow Route A (ST) Bus $4,532 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,532
Sto
Yell’())w Route A (ST) Bus $65,920 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,920
Stop with Shelter
Yellow B (Marion Oaks) $0 $0 $0 $0 -$159,486 -$169,055 -$179,198 -$189,950 -$697,689
ST
s\llar)ion Oaks (ST) Bus $0 $0 $0 $16,207 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,207
Sto
MarFi)on Oaks (ST) Bus $0 $0 $0  $288,130 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $288,130
Stop with Shelter
Belleview (ST) $0 $0 $0 $360,308 $381,926 $404,842 $429,133 $454,881 $482,174 $511,104 $3,024,368
Belleview (ST) Bus Stop $0 $0 $2,623 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,623
Belleview (ST) Bus Stop $0 $0 $34,967 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $34,967
with Shelter
Microtransit (NW) (ST) $0 S0 952481  $55630  $58.968 $167,079
Microtransit (NW) (ST) Bus $0  $137,917 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $137,917
Microtransit (Sunday A) $0 $0 $70,746 $74,991 $79,491 $225,228
ST
s\nic)rotransit (Sunday A) $0  $275,834 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $275,834
(ST) Bus

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 146



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION
Table 3: 10-Year Cost Forecast (From 2023 SunTran TDP)

Alternatives 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Microtransit (Sunday B) $84,588 $89,663 $95,043  $100,746 $106,791 $476,831
(ST)

Microtransit (Sunday B) $267,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $267,800
(ST) Bus

Microtransit (Sunday C) $48,972 $51,910 $55,025 $58,327 $61,827 $276,061
(ST)

Microtransit (Sunday C) $267,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $267,800
(ST) Bus

Green (OB) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $806,302  $854775  $906,062  $960425  $3,527,654
Blue (OB) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $806,392 $854,775 $906,062 $960,425 $3,527,654
Purple (OB) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $806,392 $854,775 $906,062 $960,425 $3,527,654
Orange (OB) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $806,392 $854,775 $906,062 $960,425 $3,527,654
Orange (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0 S0 9$656,729 $656,729
Purple (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $656,729 $656,729
Silver (Alt)(LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $529,409 $561,173 $594,844 $630,534 $668,366 $2,984,326
Silver (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0 $637,601 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $637,601
Yellow A (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $730,148 $730,148
Yellow B (Marion Oaks) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $233,139 $247 127 $480,266
(LT)

Red (Alt) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70 $0 $0 $70
Red (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0 $637,601 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $637,601
Teal (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $797,290 $845,128 $895,835 $2,538,253
Teal (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $676,431 $0 $0 $0 $676,431
Microtransit (NW) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $67,714 $71,777 $76,084 $80,649 $85,488 $381,712
Microtransit (SE) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $437,539 $463,792 $491,619 $521,116 $552,383 $2,466,449
Microtransit (SE) (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0  $1,275,201 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,275,201
Microtransit (BV) (LT) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 S0 $122905  $130279  $138,096 $391,280
Microtransit (BV) (LT) Bus $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $676,431 $0 $0 $0 $676,431
Microtransit (Sunday A) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,813 $92,022 $97,544 $103,396 $109,600 $489,375
(LT)

Microtransit (Sunday B) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $116,602 $123,598 $131,014 $138,875 $147,208 $657,297
(LT)

Microtransit (Sunday C) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $67,238 $71,272 $75,548 $80,081 $84,886 $379,025
(LT)

Microtransit (SR200 1- $0 $0 $415,474 $440,402 $466,827 $494 836 $524,526 $555,998 $589,358 $624,719 $4,112,140
South)

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 147



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION
Table 3: 10-Year Cost Forecast (From 2023 SunTran TDP)

Alternatives 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 Total
Microtransit (ST) (SR200 1- $0  $275,834 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $275,834
South) Bus

Microtransit (SR200 1- $0 $0  $489,822 $519,211 $550,364 $583,386 $618,389 $655,492 $694,822 $736,511 $4,847,997
Central)

Microtransit (ST) (SR200 1- $0  $275,834 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $275,834
Central) Bus

Microtransit (SR200 1- $0 $0 $813,454 $862,262 $913,997 $968,837  $1,026,967  $1,088,585  $1,153,901  $1,223,135 $8,051,138
North)

Microtransit (ST) (SR200 1- $0  $413,751 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $413,751
North) Bus

TOTAL EXPENSES $7,192,307 | $8,385,792 | $7,622,204 | $9,235,161 | $11,284,642 | $11,807,132 | $14,937,077 | $13,671,378 | $20,570,042 | $16,270,276 | $120,976,011

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 148



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 4: Transit Fiscal Constraint Summary Table

Revenue Sources m 2036-2040 2041-2050

Federal $19,586,661 $27,784,850 $57,085,822 $104,457,333

$11,994,021 $14,274,733 $32,460,550  $58,729,304

Local $5,669,161 $6,287,207 $14,605,654  $26,562,022

Revenue $37,249,843 $48,346,790 $104,152,026  $189,748,659
Total Cost $67,335,906 $50,592,316 $134,163,945  $252,092,168
Surplus (Deficit) 2 ($30,086,062) ($2,245,526) ($30,011,920)  ($62,343,508)

1. Total cost assumes the projected costs of maintaining existing transit service.
2. Total surplus / deficit does not account for future discretionary grant opportunities.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 149



Appendix J

Active Transportation Needs




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Active Transportation Needs

The ATP identifies Tier 1 projects as the highest priorities for near-term investment. These include trail projects such as the SW
27th Avenue/SW 42nd Street corridor, connections between Ocala and Silver Springs, and the Pruitt Gap. Sidewalk and shared
use path projects were also prioritized to close major gaps along corridors like SR 40, SR 464, and US 301/441. Bicycle
improvements focused on buffered bike lanes and key north—-south connectors within Ocala to enhance citywide mobility.
Taken together, these priorities emphasize closing sidewalk gaps, addressing safety hotspots on major corridors, and
expanding regional trail connections, especially in areas with higher population density, greater need, and a history of crashes
involving people walking and biking.

Bicycle projectsincluded in the current draft of the ATP are shown in Figure 1 and listed in Table 1.

Selected Sidewalk and Shared-Use Path (SUP) projects included in the current draft of the ATP are shown in Figure 2 and the
full list of projects is provided in Table 2.

Trail projects included in the current draft of the ATP are shown in Figure 3 and listed in Table 3.

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 151



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

LS '\l L4
A AVEJUE G ¢ 1
B
C IM : : / :
entral Marion County 7 3 ‘ “ 7Y
% s 2 & [ -
5 5 = b e e § L
S s < Qe N A L
Z @0y ) CR-318 E CR-33%
% ‘% x b
O <
% lay &
£ o b,
S &
PA %
el e
NW 35 ST NE 35 ST ; w
>z © £ NE 55 AVE
5% g 2 27 W HWY 316 E HWY 316
2 s 5
% w NE28ST
NW 28 ST T z -
22 NE2asT NE 24 ST 2
*
&% Nesro 2 2y 3
N MAGNOLIA RD ES 2 3
3. Z{< S 2
2 2w L 3 z &
TR G s @9 H z &
faa) 2 w = ° A £
L He—HAS L z z aay) )
s o = @ NE7TH ST z S &
HY clasts = o E 2 3
Zs Ltz NE 3 ST = =
B NE 1 AVE N % ]
33 IN E FT KING ST 1 o T o C o %
Fes & @ E foy
5 WrrkinG sT fien L 3 fdmes o S
W6 SE8ST 7 2wy N/
st SWioTHST [ sE9 ST Lo NE WY 3L
st ST fs s
@ 9 se12 % > < G
< 2 s z Y b
z . TR 5 @ 2
= S X 2
> Qs SE17T = &
w 2 z
s wn g 5 E
z o ¢ % 3
2 o % b °% (¢33} b NE 55 AVERD
2 - 9 & & jooy
% i% o < NW 35 ST NE 35 ST NE 55 AVE
o L E33 % z N MAGNOLIA RD NE28ST &
o N 28 Nw 28 ST ME 8RD <
15\ o £ NW 20 NE24ST 2
o 2 S SE 38 ST i ol 3 W
2 £ NEraGNoLAAVE B F @) 2
S MAGNOLIA AVE %, o = = NE 7TH ST
= SF1AY 2 NE 3 ST
w Zw FriNG sSNAZ) A — 4
2 w el | y G o)
S S MAGNOLIA EXT sy 107H ST T \40/
- P i SE 17 ST
H — W
o % (@)
zl_\E)
% o 2. se3ssT
sw & @ kA
L @ CR-464A <
@y w % %
2 i3
7 E S
——— 2
~ I}
s 3
H @ sesosT
CR-312/swW 87 PL %
%
G %
@ &) s,
27 O
() o o
@3 &
SW 107 PL R
W HWY 40 o w SE 110 ST &
S 2 —~
~ W g5 EPENN AVE SW HWy 484 A 2 (25) eu 2 &
IPENN AVG: p‘musvaNlA AVE 2 w wra X
© 2 z SE 135 AVE
-~ 2 :
~ z - =
& i 3 B
‘ 7, SE HWY 484
. 5
‘ ) SW 145 ST
\e >

Figure 1: 2050 Bicycle Projects (from Draft 2025 ATP)

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 152



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 1: 2050 Bicycle Projects (from Draft ATP)

Facility Name

Improvement Type Tier

Bicycle E Fort King St SE 16th Ave SE 22nd Ave Potential buffered bike lane
Bicycle NE 1st Ave SE Broadway St NE 2nd St Potential Bike Lane
Bicycle S Magnolia Ave SW 10th St NE 2nd St Potential Bike Lane
Bicycle-Pedestrian
Bicycle SR 200 Bridge over Withlacoochee River Accommodations with
future bridge replacement
Bicycle SW 43rd Ct NW Blitchton Rd SR 200 Potential Bike Lane
Bicycle SW 20th St I-75 SR 200 Potential Bike Lane
Bicycle SW 66th St SR 200 SW 27th Ave Potential Bike Lane

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 153




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

s w\s2e
58
I o
> 7
w© 5 2
s5
256 57 e he
21 5
(53
=4 e
1
6
el
o 95 g
vy o] =
10, 3
ot
o
T
1
1 3
; G
4
k
1 0
< wawva o
1 s T e s s
Is "(.'PtrmA\.?;‘D\mwwlvAm.\A\"
~arvy, &
‘Q
»
ey
o
=
S
b
‘0
~

B2/ Y 2254

sw 50 ave

.
-
i
mr——— &
-
’
4
.’
~ s
R ‘
e ‘
| o
s
1 O A N Y] =
~ LT T°
~ et/ 4
b o
“
)
46
3
* g
— i
® =)
G2 3
s s ks e 53 VRO
n NeTE s ave
NomagnoLIA R B4W N ST
NE2R ST 74 o
o hugs Tasr  nessAve
3 .
e VT S~ PR ot
w7 avegy, w1 Br | 326315 Jesr=gg
21 30167 70,282 >
- srgnh ik g6, 09
0 me] & masnoun e g
9393 A o SE LAKE WEIR AVE 2
2 &
sw w’ " cnasn
» H e g
Lo S b "
44 = 3 SO\ o
; R
S sewsr %
ca312/sw 7 10 0
11 %,
&,
- B
33 @ o
o
w107 6L R Y %
5 o S semost
3 & ® e Engy 3
= i @ H
3 & o
- S . 5
o & SE HWY 484
swes st e

SEHwr az

W gy 315

w

s~

o5 as

w*e
5 < 33 H
< ~e st e L =
3 &, 2
g fRr H N
A NE 28 5T
s . 89 i
i3
5 2
) o
} @
b :
H ‘o
g L8
1) Hood 8-y -
427 P 5 e e1a 1370
£ i &
o LY @
B - 33 M0 %
3 ’ 39
@ KNG ST e st "
69 s R
wre 3
2 b .u: 82
71 e
T %
2 = e "
z 68
2 4 S H
S % %
% %
v
]
1
1
1
o ]
N 1
o 1
7 1
SE 135 AVE 1
NAVIGATING THE FUTURE
£

S pRaee
- .
(e

-

A

(B
0 2 £ Mios

Improvement Category
SeuakiShred Use Path

vasa

B R, S
8 i

Long Range Transportation Plan

Improvement Category
Sidewalk/Shared Use Path

Figure 2: 2050 Sidewalk and Shared Use Path Projects (from Draft 2025 ATP)

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 154




SW 103rd Street
Road

NE 55th Ave

SR 40/Silver
Springs Blvd

SR 464

US 301/441/27

SW 20th Street

SW 19th Avenue
Road

SR 40

NE 7th Street

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Note that Figure 2 presents only Tier 1 sidewalk/shared use path projects. A table of the full list is included in Table 2.

Table 2: 2050 Sidewalk and Shared Use Path Projects (from Draft ATP)

SR 200

NE 31st St

US 301/441 Pine

SRS 200

S/0 Rail Line Bridge
sidewalk ends

SW 34th Avenue

SR 464

north side of SR 40 to
south side

SR 35-Baseline

SW 38th

E Silver Springs Blvd

SW 7th Avenue

SW 12th Avenue

SE 3rd Avenue

SW 38th Avenue

Existing sidewalk

NE 30th Avenue

SE 36th Avenue

e

Multi-Use E-W Path connection

Sidewalk (on west side)

Sidewalks both sides of street to fill
gap.
Sidewalk to fill in gap - SR 200 to SW

12th south side; SW 18th Avenue
to SW 12th Avenue on north side

Sidewalk both sides under Rail
Bridge

Sidewalks both sides to fill in gap.

Sidewalk to fill in gap on north side of
road

Sidewalk connection across SR 40 to
connect to NE 30th

Sidewalks both side of street to
complete gap

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 155



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

e ——

SW 34th Street SW 27th Avenue SW 34th Circle Sidewalk to fill in gaps both side
11 SW 95th St SW 48th Ave SW 40th Ter Shared Use Path 1
12 NW 110th Ave SR 40 NW 21st St Shared Use Path 1
13 NE 7th St NE 36th Ave Baseline Rd Shared Use Path 1
14 NE 7th Street NE 36th Avenue NE 46th Court Sidewalk 1
15 NE 35th St NE 36th Ave NE 36th Ln Sidewalk (on North side) 2
16 SE Maricamp Rd East of SE 58th Ave SE 110th Ave Sidewalk 2
. N/O SE 62nd Avenue
17 US 301 both sides SE 115th Lane connect to existing Sidewalk both sides 2
of roadway .
sidewalk
Sidewalk to fill in gap for access
between north side of SR 40 to south
18 SR 40 E Silver Springs Blvd side and Sun Tran Bus Stop at 2
Marion County Veteran Services and
Public Library

connection from north .
19 SR 40 side to south side Sidewalk to connect north and south 5

at NE 40th Avenue side of SR 40

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 156



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

I T S R N

Sidewalk to fill in gap end of existing

SR 40 West of NE 49th Ter NE 49th Ter to NE 49th at Wal-Mart
21 SW 13th Street SW 37th Avenue SW 27th Avenue SlRERENR Il Sl Wil I CET Ll 2
serve elementary school
22 SW 32nd Avenue SW 34th St SW 33rd Rd Sidewalk to fill in gap 2
23 SW 80th Ave SR 40 SW 38th St Sidewalk 2
24 NE 25th Ave NE 28th St NE 49th St Sidewalk 2
25 NW 17th Avenue Sl e NW 4th Street Sidewalk 2
Boulevard
Silver Springs :
26 NW 16th Terrace NW 1st Street Sidewalk 2
Boulevard
27 NW 3rd Avenue NW 21st Street NW 28th Street Sidewalk 2
28 NE 4th Avenue NE 25th Street NE 28th Street Sidewalk 2
29 NW 4th Avenue NW 28th Street NW 31st Street Sidewalk 2
30 SW 7th St SW 24th Ave SW MLK Jr Ave Sidewalk (on both sides) 2

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 157



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

I T N N

NE 2nd St NE 15th Ave NE 19th Ave Sidewalk (on both sides)

32 NE 2nd St NE 11th Ave NE 12th Ter Sidewalk (on both sides) 2

Lindale Mobile H
33 NE 35th St PREDLIBIEND RO NE 55th Ave Sidewalk (on North side) 2
Park West Entrance

34 NE 8th Ave NE 10th St E Silver Springs Blvd Sidewalk 2

35 US 301 SE 120th Place SE 115th Lane Sidewalk both sides 2

36 SR 40 north to south s?de of Sidewalk at NE 42nd to connect 5
road connection across SR 40

37 NE 36th Avenue NE 14th St NE 19th Place Sidewalk to complete gap 2

38 SW 20th Street SW 60th Avenue SW 57th Avenue Sidewalk both sides to fill in gap. 2

39 Fort King Street SR 35-Baseline SE 36th Avenue Sidewalks both side of street to 2
complete gaps

40 SW 34th Street Sw 27th Avenue SW 26th Avenue Sidewalk to complete gap 2

41 SW 34th St East of SW 34th Cir East of SW 27th Ave Sidewalk gap 2

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 158



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

e —

SR 35/Baseline

Road SE 110th/Hames SE of 92nd Loop Sidewalk/Multi-Use Path
43 SW 27th Ave SW 42nd St SW 66th St Sidewalk 2
44 SW 66th St SR 200 SW 27th Ave Sidewalk 2
45 US 441 Avenue | Dollar General Sidewalk 2

Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Study

46 Town of Reddick 2
Area
47 Pine Road Spring Rd SE Maricamp Rd Sidewalk 2
48 Almond Rd SE 58th Ave SE 58th Ave Sidewalk 2
Southern intersection of
49 Oak Road Emerald Road Olive rd. and Emerald Sidewalk 2
rd.
50 NE 95 Street NE 16th Ter ik S'd;\‘/’\'; aclltle Shared Use Path 2
51 Dogwood Road SR 35 Pine Road Shared Use Path 2
52 SW 21st Avenue SW 7th Street SW 8th Place Sidewalk 2

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 159



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

I T S N

SW 20th Avenue SW 7th Street SW 8th Place Sidewalk
54 SW 19th Avenue SW 7th Street SW 8th Place Sidewalk 2
55 SW 5th Place SW 20th Avenue SW 24th Avenue Sidewalk 2
56 SW 6th Street SW 20th Avenue SW 24th Avenue Sidewalk 2
57 SW 6th Street SW MLK Avenue SW 19th Avenue Sidewalk 2
58 NW 2nd Street NW 24th Avenue NW 27th Avenue Sidewalk 2
59 SE 44th Avenue E Fort King Street SE 8th Avenue Sidewalk 2
60 SE 6th Street SE 32nd Avenue SE 36th Avenue Sidewalk 2
61 SE 32nd Avenue E Fort King Street SE 6th Street Sidewalk 2
62 NE 10th Avenue NE 3rd Street NE 5th Street Sidewalk 2
63 NW 5th Avenue NW 25th Street NW 28th Street Sidewalk 2

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 160



65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 161

NE 39th Avenue

NW 2nd Avenue

SE 17th Street

SE 9th Street

SE 22nd Street

SE 5th Street

SE 8th Street

SE 12th Street

SW 2nd Street

NE 14th Avenue

NE 24th Street

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

I T N N

NE 17th Place

NW 28th Street

SE 25th Avenue

SE 3rd Avenue

SE 4th Terrace

SE 11th Avenue

SE 11th Avenue

SE 9th Avenue

SW 24 Avenue

NE 35th Street

NE 19th Avenue

NE 21st Street

NW 31st Street

SE 29th Terrace

SE Alvarez Avenue

SE 8th Avenue

SE 15th Avenue

SE 17th Avenue

SE 11th Avenue

SW 23rd Avenue

NE 28th Street

NE 21st Terrace

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

I T S NN

NW Martin Luther King

NW 17th PI NW 21st Ave Sidewalk (on north side)
JrAve

76 NW 21st Avenue MLK Avenue Ocala Recharge Park Sidewalks ?Oth sides to connect MLK 3
sidewalks to Park

77 SW 80th Ave SW 90th St SW 80th St Shared Use Path

78 | SE 55th Avenue Rd US 441 CR 484 Sidewalk

Northern existing
79 Bahia Road Midway Road S'dewa!ski dog;t‘e west Shared Use Path
Bahia Road

80 SE 30th Avenue SE 14th Street SE 17th Street Sidewalk

81 SE 7th Street SE 36th Avenue SE 38th Avenue Sidewalk

82 SE 8th Street SE 36th Avenue SE 39th Avenue Sidewalk

83 NE 10th Avenue NE 10th Street NE 14th Street Sidewalk

84 NW 25th Street NW 1st Avenue NW 6th Avenue Sidewalk

85 NW 24th Place NW Magnolia Avenue NW 25th Street Sidewalk

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 162



87

88

89

90

91

92

93

93

95

96

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 163

NW 24th Road

NW 21st Court

NE 20th Avenue

NW 21st Street

NW 4th Avenue

SE 41st Avenue

SW 26th Avenue

SW 30th Street

SW 29th Avenue

SW 28th Place

SW 41st Court

OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

e

NW 21st Avenue

NW 24th Road

NE 10th Street

NW 24th Road

NW 8th Street

SE 8th Street

SW 34th Avenue

SW 38 Avenue

SW 38 Avenue

SW 38 Avenue

SW 29 Place

NW 21st Street

NW 23rd Road

NE 14th Street

NW 21st Avenue

NW 10th Street

SE 11th Place

SW 35th Avenue

2470 ft West

1777 ft West

986 ft West

SW 30th Street

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk

Sidewalk



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

T N N R

97 SW 39th Court SW 28 Place SW 30th Street Sidewalk
98 SE 39th Avenue SE 7th Street SE 3rd Street Sidewalk 3
99 SW 49th Ave Marion Oaks Trl SW 135th St SUP 3

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 164



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

L3 - ¥ L4
AVERUEG ¢ 1
- {4
Central Marion County ! s .
P s t 1
3 S ~
< S
7, & ~ L
%, b ~
% i N -
15 % & B
Z
3 z
o w
H
[
%
NW 35 ST NE 35 ST w‘ fm?
2z ¥ % 7
AT g 2 7 W HWY 316 EHWY 316
> & NE28ST T
'\}'\ NW 2B ST\ s e ¢ o
LEEE ER g NEzast NE 24 ST s
¥iaills! ° N
nwat Z e\ 2 o = w
5 sl
T ST 4% = NMAGNOLIARD > S @ <
5 S Py £ d S
jo £ A WHE ) ] z &
faal @ e - = = <
@ 2 Ja ] £ £ 3
L : E H
e iy s 53 G e NEZEHLST, z < =
> ot L Z % N
= & & 2 %
] o SN 2z z Z 3
s S p NE3 ST = 3
ZEWi til NELAVE % F]
—~\ 15 =0 EFTKING ST - N b
0) swast 2% 7 5
= WHING ST (o B2 1
W58 SIS 35)
2 Zswe SE8 ST, Z aw N2
Pl 5 5T | SW10TH'ST 4 & el NE WY 318
»e )3 E 12 ST > < -
02 ey : 1S = 2 G2o) \,
8 B = o
* S sewst A z G2 &
i Gep z 2
SN z H
3l w =
@ s st % g 15 &
3 : > 25 = 2‘_
a 5 o
£ = (27} b NE 55 AVE RD
s bW Z. 9, 175 NW 35 5T NE 35 ST
SW30 3o 28 pL S 7 A . NESSAVE. @ 4
ST “ L2z % N MANOLIA RD__ NE 28 ST L
%% < w 28 o NW28 ST =
e 0> z & frga= % NE2aST 2
- o o Ve s s avE (19 2 13 2.
SIMAGNOLIA AVE 15, z i 43
% 5
T 3 nmacnousfye NE3 ST 12 NE 7TH ST
GO e z Wht KNGS,
(a0 H H NEg P
1 2 SW 10THY! G 20 a0}
[] g ISRAGHDUINTEYY Sw:\ Rl SE 17 ST & e /—-—
Z R 5
1 A% )
SW7AVE ¥
1 2%
o ?. sE3ssT
1 Y & e B
feet sw ™ © CR-464A
1 G "
5
I <
<
1 z g
5 ~ s
- o g
] 3 - SE 80 ST
1 CR-312/5W 87 PL
: )
(:p —
k G
5 @
&
1 SW 107 PL Y- R
w; B0} se110sT <Y
2 X S
o SW HWY 484 2 N
WY 500wy g2 pEnnsYLVE@aVE ~ 1? o 2 €D ey z &
] WHRENN AVE Beenn avg Y ) v, s o Wy 54 2
‘\‘,!" 4 - e i z SE 135 AVE
H
2 3
= 2 senwvan
. &
L] 5\ SW 145 ST
v

Figure 3: 2050 Trail Needs (from Draft 2025 ATP)

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DRAFT APPENDIX - 165




OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Table 3: 2050 Trail Projects (from Draft ATP)

S S N i

SW 27th Ave / SW 42nd St / SW 43rd Street

Rd SW 19th Ave SW 40th Ave Trail
2 NE 8th Ave NE 10th St E Silver Springs Blvd Trail
3 Wataula and NE 8th Avenue Trail Tuscawilla Park CR 200A/S|:\I>Eoizckksonville New Trail
4 E Highway 40 / Black Bear Tralil Silver Springs State Park = West of NW 102nd Avenue Rd Trail
3 Pruitt Gap Pruitt Trailhead Dunnellon Trail Trail
6 Indian Lake Trail SR BT el Indian Lake Trail Park Trai
7 SE Maricamp Rd East of SW 58th Ave SE 110th Ave Trail
8 SR 40 NE 60th Ct East of NE 58th Ave Trail
9 Withlacochee Bay Tralil Dunnellon Levy County Trail
10 E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail SE 183rd Avenue Rd SR 19 Trail

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 166



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

S S N e

E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail e Nwégznd AR SE 183rd Avenue Rd Trai
12 Ocala to Silver Springs Trail SE Osceola Ave NE 58th Ave Trail 2

Marjorie Harris Carr Cross
13 Silver Springs Bikeway East Silver Springs Blvd Florida Trail 2
Greenway Park

Lake Wauburg to Price's Scrub State Park

14 Trail Lake Wauburg Price's Scrub State Park Trail 2
15 49th Ave NW Blichton Rd NW 44th Ave Trail 2
16 Nature Coast Trail (C|r|1iefland to Dunnellon) Dunnellon Levy County Line Trai 9
17 E Highway 40 / Black Bear Trail SR 19 Volusia County Line Trail 2
18 Chiefland to Dunnellon SW 215th Court Rd SW Highway 484 Trail 2
19 Ocala Rail Trail SE 3rd St Oak Rd Trail 2
20 Cross Florida Greenway Connection SE Highway 314 Marshall Greenway Trail 2
21 SR 200 Cross Florida Greenway Gra(i?:szri)r?éated 2

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 167



OCALA MARION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION

S S NN

Silver Springs Trail Lake County Silver Springs State Park Trail
23 Silver Springs to Hawthorne Trail Silver Springs State Park Alachua County Trail 3
24 Dunnellon Trail Connection St Patrick Dr Cross Florida Greenway Trail 3
25 NW 21st Ave NW 35th St NW 21st St Trail 3
26 ' Nature Coast Trail (Chiefland to Dunnellon) | SW Highway 484 S Bridges Rd Trail 3
27 North Lake Trail SR 40 Lake County Line Trail 3

Cross Florida Greenway Land Bridge

A Expansion

Over I-75 Trail 3

2050 LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
DRAFT APPENDIX - 168



Appendix K

Summary of Public and
Partner Engagement




March 22, 2024
April 23, 2024
May 21, 2024

May 30, 2024

April 23, 2024 - June 30, 2024

April 23, 2024 — September 2, 2024

August 23, 2024
August 26, 2024

August 29, 2024

September 11, 2024
September 12, 2024

September 18, 2024

November 5, 2024

January 15, 2025

February 18, 2025 to March 31, 2025
February 22, 2025

February 25, 2025

March 3, 2025

March 4, 2025

LRTP Steering Committee Meeting #1

2050 LRTP Kick Off Meeting

City of Belleview Commission Meeting

Ocala-Silver Springs Rotary Club Presentation

Public Survey #1

Public Comment Map

Florida Wildlife Corridor Workshop LRTP Presentation
Meeting with Marion County Schools Staff

Meeting with SunTran/City of Ocala Staff

Meeting with Chamber and Economic Partnership (CEP) Staff

Discussion of LRTP Workshop and project at Transportation Disadvantaged Local
Coordinating Board

2050 LRTP Community Workshop #1

2050 LRTP Workshop with Florida Center for the Blind and Marion Transit
LRTP Steering Committee #2

Public Survey #2

Run for the Springs Community Event — Booth/Table

2050 LRTP Community Workshop #2

Rotary Club of Ocala Presentation

Marion County Alumni Academy Workshop

15 Attendees
36 Attendees
15 Attendees
24 Attendees
250 Responses
300 Responses
52 Attendees
2 Attendees
4 Attendees

3 Attendees
20 Attendees

30 Attendees

15 Attendees

21 Attendees
129 Responses
125 Attendees
40 Attendees

25 Attendees

9 Attendees



March 11, 2025
March 13, 2025
March 29, 2025
May 5, 2025
May 8, 2025
June 4, 2025
July 28, 2025
August 20, 2025

August 28, 2025

September 25, 2025

September 30, 2025

TBD 2025

Marion Oaks Civic Association Presentation

Meeting with Lake-Sumter MPO for LRTP Coordination
Marion County Day

On Top of The World Community (OTOW) Meeting
LRTP Local Government Partner Meeting

Ocala Business Leaders Meeting

Local Government Coordination Meetings

LRTP Steering Committee Meeting

Ocala Lions Club Meeting

LRTP/ATP Presentation to Ocala/Marion Tourism Development Council (TDC)
LRTP, ATP Open House/Office Hours Public Event

Coordination Meeting with Lake-Sumter MPO

70 Attendees
2 Attendees
12,500 Attendees
12 Attendees
8 Attendees
32 Attendees
7 Attendees
8 Attendees
35 Attendees
TBD
TBD

TBD



Public Engagement Summary to be completed
after adoption of the plan



TRANSPORTATION

PLANNING
ORGANIZATION
TO: Committee Members
FROM: Rob Balmes, Director
RE: Marion County Public Schools Safety Planning

Casey Griffith, Director of Government and Community Relations of Marion County Public
Schools, has requested a school safety planning discussion at the TAC meeting.

If you have any questions, please contact me at: 352-438-2631.

A transportation system that supports growth, mobility, and safety through leadership and planning

2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd. « Ocala, Florida 34470
Telephone: (352) 438 - 2630 < www.ocalamariontpo.org



FDOT\

Five-Year Work Program
Public Hearing

Fiscal Year 2026/27 to Fiscal Year 2030/2031 =
(projects to be programmed July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2031) NASA Causeway Bridge, Brevard County

VIRTUAL PUBLIC HEARING
Oct. 20, 2025 - Oct. 24, 2025
Visit www.fdot.gov/WPPH/District5

IN-PERSON OPEN HOUSE
Tuesday, Oct. 21,2025 | 3:00 - 5:30 p.m.

FDOT District 5 Office
719 South Woodland Boulevard
Deland, FL 32720

Public Comments Due: Nov. 7, 2025

Public participation is solicited without regard to race,
color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or
family status. Persons who require special
accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities
Act or persons who require translation services (free of
charge) should contact Melissa McKinney by email at

Melissa.McKinney@dot.state.fl.us

Para preguntas en Espanol: Por favor comuniquese con
Katherine Alexander-Corbin al correo electréonico

D5-WPPH@dot.state.fl.us

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
DISTRICT FIVE

Katherine Alexander-Corbin

FDOT D5 Program Management Administrator
D5-WPPH@dot.statefLus | (386) 943-5168

www.fdot.gov/WPPH/Districts

Orlando International Airport, Orange County



Florida Department of Transportation
RON DESANTIS 719 S. Woodland Boulevard JARED W. PERDUE, P.E.
GOVERNOR DeLand, Florida 32720-6834 SECRETARY

Marion County Project Status Update
as of September 30, 2025

The following is a brief status update on major FDOT road construction projects in Marion County as of the
Sept. 30 cutoff date. Information is also available on www.cflroads.com. For questions, please contact
Jonathan Scarfe at 386-943-5791 or via email at D5-MPOLiaisons@dot.state.fl.us.

MARION COUNTY

NEW PROJECTS:
452074-1 | I-75 Improvements from S.R. 200 to S.R. 326
= e Zmathla ANLony
. ra
Map Satellite B b
. ENDRICK
Fellowship
it CONNER
ey Silver Springs
{301} A ; -~
Ocala Estates T @’ @ (10)= €7
() (30) (@r=Qcala
HUHTIF‘-QTOH -
Rainbow Park I
York e

ﬁ‘__'f {- Keyboard shortcuts  Map data ©2025 Google, INEGI  Terms  Report a map error

Contract: E54F5

Design /Build Team: RK&K / Lane Construction

Start Date: October — November 2025

Estimated Completion Date: Fall 2028

e Total Contract Amount: $238 million

Description:

The planned improvements to I-75 in Marion County involve the addition of auxiliary lanes in both
northbound and southbound directions between S.R. 200 and S.R. 326 to enhance traffic capacity and
operational efficiency. The project includes comprehensive interchange modifications, notably the
construction of a diverging diamond interchange (DDI) at NW 49th Street, and the implementation of a
displaced left turn (DLT) at the S.R. 326 interchange to optimize left-turn movements and reduce conflict
points. Milling and resurfacing activities will be conducted along the corridor to improve pavement
conditions. Upgrades to NW 44th Avenue will support the integration of the new diverging diamond
interchange and a new jug handle intersection at NW 44th Street, located north of NW 49th Street,
facilitating improved traffic distribution and access management. Collectively, these improvements aim to
mitigate congestion, enhance traffic flow, and improve safety on I-75 and its adjacent interchanges.
Moving Florida Forward Infrastructure Initiative.

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation
www.fdot.gov


http://www.cflroads.com/
mailto:D5-MPOLiaisons@dot.state.fl.us
https://www.cflroads.com/project/452074-1

Update: The pre-construction meeting was held on Wednesday, Sept. 24, and the utility coordination kick-

off meeting is scheduled for next month.

CURRENT PROJECTS:

433651-1 | C.R. 484 and I-75 Interchange Roadway Improvements
443170-1 | I-75 Resurfacing from Sumter County line to S.R. 200

Map Satellite
1 -
SW Hwy 484 184
AT
: Romeo
Map Satellite {4

York
AhE Bunnallon e
40 Ing & N

Citrus Springs

Dina Didna

Contract: T5597

Contractor: Anderson Columbia Co., Inc.
Start Date: January 4, 2023

Estimated Completion Date: Early 2026
e Construction Cost: $40 million

I: &
BAY YI9L MS

Ocala

Marion O

SW Hwy 484

SIIVer Springs

Huntington

135

Silver Springs
Shares

Belleview
e

Summerfield

Description: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) will be improving safety and traffic flow on
County Road (C.R.) 484, from west of S.W. 20th Avenue to east of County Road (C.R.) 475A and will also
be resurfacing I-75 from the Sumter County line to State Road (S.R.) 200 in Marion County.

Update: (433651-1) This project has encountered constraints that require redesign work. Construction will
resume once the redesign is complete. (443170-1) The contractor is working on punch list items.

438562-1 | I-75/S.R. 93 Northbound Rest Area north of S.R. 484 to south of S.R. 200

Map Satellite

e Contract: T5784
e Contractor: Commercial Industrial Corp.
o Start Date: August 26, 2023

Page 2 of 7


https://www.cflroads.com/project/433651-1
https://www.cflroads.com/project/443170-1
https://www.cflroads.com/project/438562-1

o Estimated Completion Date: Summer 2026

e Construction Cost: $31 million

Description: This project will renovate the northbound Interstate 75 (I-75) rest area between County Road
(C.R.) 484 and State Road (S.R.) 200 in Marion County. The project aims to reconstruct the facilities and
update amenities to meet current standards. Parking will be expanded for passenger vehicles, RVs, and
trucks. Work will include resurfacing the truck parking to become the car parking lot and constructing a new
truck parking and ramps. The rest area will be closed to the public until the project is complete.

Update: Additional improvements are required before the facility can reopen, which has extended the
project timeline.

439234-1 | S.R. 200 Resurfacing from east of I-75 to U.S. 301

AGNT .
Al BUSINESS 152
B S TRICT

Map  Satellite D 3 L
a0} {a Ocala oG

Huntington ':’|"

‘ork b~ +

Contract: E51F6

Contractor: Anderson Columbia Co., Inc.

Start Date: September 3, 2024

Estimated Completion Date: Late 2025

e Construction Cost: $16.6 million

Description: The purpose of this project is to provide safety and operational enhancements on State Road
200 (Southwest (SW) College Road) from east of Interstate 75 to U.S. 301 (South Pine Avenue) in Ocala.
To enhance safety, raised concrete medians will be constructed throughout the corridor to reduce vehicle
conflict points while encouraging safer driving speeds. Also, three Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons (PHBs) will
be constructed at the following locations: between SW 35th Terrace and SW 34th Avenue, between SW
32nd Avenue and SW 26th Street, and between SW 12th Avenue and SW 10th Avenue. A PHB provides
increased visibility and safer crossings for vulnerable road users at midblock locations. The corridor will be
milled and resurfaced to extend the life of the existing roadway. Sidewalk and pedestrian features will be
installed at intersections for added safety and to comply with ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act). Other
improvements include traffic signal and lighting upgrades, drainage enhancements, and new signs,
striping, pavement markings, and landscaping.

Update: The pedestrian hybrid beacons are currently scheduled to go live on Oct. 8. Additionally, the
contractor has been working on striping, lighting, punch list items, and permanent sign installations.

441141-1 | S.R. 464 Resurfacing from U.S. 301/U.S. 27 to S.R. 35

f
ST RICT

Map Satellite | @ FORT KING La
8 T LA STRICT

Page 3 of 7


https://www.cflroads.com/project/439234-1
https://www.cflroads.com/project/441141-1

Contract: T5782

Contractor: Anderson Columbia Co., Inc.

Start Date: August 23, 2023

Estimated Completion Date: Fall 2025

e Construction Cost: $26.1 million

Description: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is designing improvements along State
Road (S.R. 464) from east of U.S. 301/U.S. 27 to Baseline Road (S.R. 35). The purpose of the project is to
extend the life of the existing roadway by repaving this segment of S.R. 464. Various operational and
safety enhancements are also planned, including restriping a portion of the corridor to provide bicycle
lanes, reconstructing pedestrian curb ramps and constructing new sidewalks to fill gaps, and realigning
crosswalks at the signalized intersections to enhance pedestrian safety. Traffic signal adjustments and
drainage upgrades are also included.

Update: Contractor is working on punch list items.

448526-1 | U.S. 41 from north of Citrus County line to SW 110th Street

Map  Satellite i

Chatmire

PY anuaAy Yi0BL MS

Dunfellon SW Hwy 484

Contract: T5831

Contractor: Superior Asphalt, Inc.

Start Date: May 28, 2025

Estimated Completion Date: Early 2026

e Construction Cost: $3.9 million

Description: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is making improvements U.S. 41 (Williams
Street) from north of the Citrus County line to Southwest 110th Street in Dunnellon. The 1.41 miles project
includes resurfacing the roadway to extend its life and reconstructing the intersection of U.S. 41 and
Pennsylvania Avenue (County Road 484) to allow for a free-flowing right turn. A designated right turn lane
will be added, bringing all turning movements under signal control for improved safety. Other improvements
include traffic signal upgrades on U.S. 41 at Pennsylvania Avenue, Powell Road, Brooks Street, and
Southwest 110th Street. Pedestrian crosswalks and curb ramps will also be installed to enhance pedestrian
safety and meet current Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards.

Update: The contractor is working on drainage, concrete flatwork, lighting, and signalization.

448635-1 | U.S. 441 (S.R. 25) from north of C.R. 25A to Avenue |
445218-1 | U.S. 441 (S.R. 25) from Avenue | to the Alachua County Line

Page 4 of 7


https://www.cflroads.com/project/448526-1
https://mail.cflroads.com/project/448635-1
https://www.cflroads.com/project/445218-1

>,

1 ra
Map  Satellite = L
Melhtosh = Island Grove
Lz
Raleigh R
Orandk Lake
Flemington Irvine citra
<
{27 i "
23 Williston @j =
) | ' )
Fairfield Reddick J Fort McCoy
Sparr m
~Cpn.
A - [ o |
. 5 L]
Map  Satellite ] . “ -
Evinston Cross Creek 301
N
o
B <
! Island Gre v
Mclgtosh

ae

Contract: T5847

Contractor: Anderson Columbia Co., Inc.

Start Date: August 11, 2025

Estimated Completion Date: Summer 2026

e Construction Cost: $16.2 million

Description: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is resurfacing a 3.1-mile-long segment
U.S. 441 (State Road (S.R.) 25) from north of County Road (C.R.) 25A to Avenue | and from Avenue | to
the Alachua County line. This project is designed to help enhance safety by adding paved shoulders and
provide paved turnouts and aprons along the corridor.

Update: Contractor is performing drainage work, grading, signal work, shoulder reconstruction, milling, and
paving during the day.

445302-1 | U.S. 301 (S.R. 35) Resurfacing from north of C.R. 42 to north of SE 144" Place Road

441}

i r
Map Satellite i
s
BELLEVIEW o @ EAST LAKE
HEIGHTS 301) = WEIR
@
DANK'S CORNER r3
n Oaks SUMMERFIELD !
LAKE WEIR ~
1R <>
~

SUNSET HARBOR

@ Weirsdale

VILLAS OF

oot
GREENWOOD {41}

Contract: E51F7

Contractor: C.W. Roberts Contracting, Inc.

Start Date: August 28, 2024

Estimated Completion Date: Fall 2025

e Construction Cost: $5.6 million

Description: This Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) project will mill and resurface U.S. 301 (also
known as State Road 35) from north of County Road (C.R.) 42 to north of Southeast 144th Place Road to
extend the life of the existing roadway. Safety and operational improvements will be added, including
constructing a new traffic signal at the intersection of U.S. 301 and Southeast 147th Street. Additional
Page 5 of 7


https://www.cflroads.com/project/445302-1

improvements include widening shoulders at select locations, drainage upgrades, providing bicycle through
lanes (also known as keyholes) next to right turn lanes, guardrail reconstruction, and new lighting at the curve
from north of Southeast 147th Street to Southeast 144th Place Road. Audible and vibratory pavement
markings will be added along the shoulders in specific areas to enhance safety. New signs and pavement
markings will be placed throughout the corridor.

Update: The original contract work is complete. The contractor had been working on installing a new
drainage structure to enhance drainage in the project area. The project is currently estimated to be complete
by mid-October.

452074-2 | I-75 improvements from south of S.R. 44 to S.R. 200

Rainbow Hainbow, Fark A
] Woods rA

Map Satellite on Top of (200) S @s) and Lakes L
Hanoow the World Camp Ocala
Springs =
Chatmire Tl_rigﬁgrre gell b
elleview
Dunnellon e Ocklawaha
Marigm, Odgs
Citrus Springs ﬁ (Ay
fog e (5t e
) o k441 Altoona
Fine Ridge B
e N The villages Umatilla
{41 i )|
CrystalRiver — % 301} ar
Citrus Hills Grand Izland =

Wildwood Keyboard shortctts : Map dets ©2025 Godgle, INEG]  Terms  Report = map errar

Contractor: Anderson Columbia Co., Inc.

Start Date: February 19, 2025

Estimated Completion Date: Fall 2028

e Construction Cost: $230 million

Description: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is making improvements along Interstate
75 (I-75) from south of State Road (S.R.) 44 to S.R. 326 in Sumter and Marion counties. This first phase
will focus on |-75 from S.R. 44 to S.R. 200. A second project will focus on S.R. 200 to S.R. 326 (FPID No.
452074-1). Both projects include the addition of auxiliary lanes between interchanges. Improvements to
several interchanges are also proposed, including S.R. 326 and S.R. 40. The project is a Moving Florida
Forward Infrastructure Initiative.

Update: The SW 66th Street bridge is still down to one lane of operation at a time across |-75. Temporary
traffic signals allow both directions of traffic to use the bridge, alternating directions in a manner similar to a
flagging operation. Our team is actively working on next steps. The SW 66th Street bridge was already
slated for replacement as part of the 1-75 Moving Florida Forward project. In light of this, FDOT is in the
preliminary stages of evaluating the possibility of accelerating the replacement of the bridge, rather than
repairing a bridge that’s set to be reconstructed. Early Works Package #2 (ITS and preliminary site work)
and Early Works Package #3 (deep milling of the existing C.R. 475 shoulder) activities have started with
daytime northbound shoulder closures between County Road 484 and State Road 200 and nighttime
double lane closures on northbound I-75 between County Road 462 and County Road 484.

COMPLETED PROJECTS:

426179-1 | Silver Springs State Park Pedestrian Bridges

Map  Satellite =ty 5 @ . 0

T

_Silver Springs
: &

: £ A @ +

|

Page 6 of 7


https://www.cflroads.com/project/452074-2
https://www.cflroads.com/project/426179-1

Contract: T5796

Contractor: Lambert Bros., Inc.

Start Date: January 8, 2024

Estimated Completion Date: Summer 2025

e Construction Cost: $3.4 million

Description: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) will construct two 8-foot-wide boardwalks
within Silver Springs State Park, the Half Mile Creek boardwalk to the north and the Fort King Waterway
boardwalk to the south. The 748-foot Half Mile Creek boardwalk will connect to an existing path on the
west side of the park before stretching across the creek and meeting an underutilized trail to the east. The
other, a 550-foot boardwalk, will run south from the existing Ross Allen Island boardwalk before crossing
the Fort King Waterway with a 65-foot timber bridge. After the bridge, the boardwalk will continue for
approximately 120 feet south before meeting a 180-foot lime rock trail leading to an existing group
campsite. All boardwalks and trails associated with this project will comply with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA).

Update: The project was final accepted on 8/6/25.

Page 7 of 7



Proven Safety Solutions

LIGHTING

What about lighting?

Improving safety on our roads; it's as
simple as turning on the lights.

Across the country, LED lights are
replacing traditional sodium lights to
make our roads brighter.

t Fatalities are 3x likelier to occur at night than during the day.

& ﬂ 80% of pedestrian fatalities in Florida occur in dark conditions.

Higher speeds at night become dangerous when cars can't stop
/ within the distance illuminated by headlights

Did you know?

New lighting technology can be directed exactly
where it is needed and not more, so that:

Lighting can reduce
the crashes with fixed
objects, such as poles,
trees and barriers.

Lighting can be
precisely aimed,
protecting the night
sky and avoiding

' Office of
Poucvz
A PLANNING adjacent homes.

Florida Department of Transpol

Does better lighting even work?

Scan to read more
information on the
benefits of improved
lighting at https://tinyurl.
com/FHWASafetyLighting

Yes!  Improved lighting leads to fewer...
o pedestrian intersection
42 /0 ‘ crashes after dark
o crashes at rural and urban
L 33 38 /O ‘ intersections after dark
(o) rural and urban highway injury
28 /0 ‘ crashes after dark

Why LEDs?

Adaptive color temperature

COmpared to traditional lighting, LEDs... can maximize visibility and

Use 25-50% Last 10x increase safety
>| less energy 7' longer (traditional lights only have
one color temperature)

‘ LEDs have already saved lives in Florida

Statewide Lighting Retrofit on
2,500 intersections from 2015-2021

Improve lighting could cut
nighttime crashes by nearly 80%

Busch Blvd in Tampa
pedestrian crosswalk lighting

Reduced over 50% of nighttime
fatality and injuries

State Road 30 near Pensacola Bay
lighting retrofit

Reduced over 70% of bike/ped fatalities and
100% of vehicle fatalities over 6-year period


https://tinyurl.com/FHWASafetyLighting
https://tinyurl.com/FHWASafetyLighting

Proven Safety Solutions

LEADING PEDESTRIAN INTERVAL

What are leading
pedestrian intervals
(LPIs)?

A lot of people walking near schools, transit or busy areas
High volumes of vehicles turning at crosswalks
History of crashes between cars and people crossing

LPI, sometimes called “pedestrian
head start” or “"delayed vehicle green’,
is a simple signal timing change that
gives people walking 3 to 7 seconds
earlier to begin crossing the street
before cars get a green light.

How do LPIs improve safety?

Skewed intersections with poor visibility

Slower walkers or children ® ® °
NmArd
1. Pedestrians and vehicle H
enter the intersection \/
at the same time and

increase risk of conflict.

C

Reduces potential conflicts between
pedestrians and turning vehicles

B

= A

° Increases visibility of crossing

° ‘i_\ pedestrians, especially children or
)

people using wheelchairs, as they

With LPI

2a. Pedestrians enter
the crosswalk a few
seconds sooner

enter the intersection.

Increases chance of cars yielding
to pedestrians.

Tampa

LPIs were installed at two busy intersections.

2b. Drivers get green light

later and can see and yield
to crossing pedestrian

already in the intersection.

Low-Cost & ,
High-Impact Solution

LPIs are a low-cost safety
fix—just a quick signal
timing change that makes
streets safer without
building anything new.

Miami

LPIs were installed at two downtown intersections.
9-18% more left turning drivers stopped for pedestrians.

' Office of
Poucvz
A PLANNING

Florida Department of Transportation

During the LPI phase, 10% to 25% more drivers stopped for people crossing.
Overall 3 to 5% more drivers yielded during the full Walk signal.

Did you know?

LPI implementation has led to

e 13%
Reductionin

pedestrian
crashes

Do LPIs increase congestion?
No!

Even potential crashes can lead to delays.
Smooth pedestrian crossings offset
slightly shorter green lights for drivers.

How have LPIs changed Florida intersections?

Learn more
about LPlIs at:
https://tinyurl.
com/LPISafety

21-31% more pedestrians started crossing in the first 4 seconds of the Walk signal.



https://tinyurl.com/LPISafety
https://tinyurl.com/LPISafety

A

' Office of
Poucvz
PLANNING

Proven Safety Solutions

RAISED CROSSWALKS & INTERSECTIONS ~ F29™

What are raised &SSO (1 — : -

Iks and i TGP, Reised interscction How can raised crosswalks Did you
crosswa S an A sidewalks . - k ?
intersections? e g - and intersections MOW: S

Improve safEtY? Raised crosswalks

can cut pedestrian
crashes by 45%

« Raised crosswalks are built
higher than the roadway
surface, usually at the same level
as the sidewalks.

They slow drivers in areas of high
pedestrian activity.

Textured stamped concrete

ﬁ\/ raised corner islands to protect

- Raised Intersections are created by pedestrians and keep motorists
from crossing in to sidewalks

: o : They bring crossing pedestrians and wheelchair users
elevating the entire intersection, not %, Y g ap

closer to driver eye level, making them easier to see.

. C,
just the crosswalk. %
- Like a wide speed bump, drivers must 770 figure 202"
slow down to go over thém. . : They give everyone, especially people with mobility or vision
ﬁ challenges, a safer and more accessible way to cross.

Where are raised crosswalks and
Where has this been done in Florida?

Intersections most appropriate?

o o _ _ University Ave , Gainesville - Before installation of a raised Scan to ,
x Areas with high walking traffic. -

crosswalk, this street had over
100 crashes and two fatalities
in 2024 alone.

- Early results show slower
traffic, reduced crashes and no
new fatalities.

Learn more about
raised crosswalks
and intersections at:
https://tinyurl.com/
raisedcrosswalksafety

Roadways with low speeds and light to
AN \ moderate traffic (ex. State roads with 25 mph
design speeds).

(i.\ Places where many people use wheelchairs
\_" orstrollers, or need easier crossings.

- Before installation of 3 new Scan to
raised mid-block crossings,
55% of fatal and serious injury
crashes involved a pedestrian.

routes or bus corridors.

® Areas without truck routes, emergency

- Early results show zero reported
fatalities or serious injuries.

Florida Department of Transportation



https://tinyurl.com/raisedcrosswalksafety
https://tinyurl.com/raisedcrosswalksafety

A

' Office of
Poucvz
PLANNING

Proven Safety Solutions

ROUNDABOUTS

What is a roundabout?

Safer Intersections Save Lives

On Florida's roadways, crashes at intersections represent:

/’\ More than 1in 4 (28%) fatalities

é 9 More than 1in every 3 (36%) serious injuries
\‘, (Source: SHSP, 2020-2024 data)

A roundabout is a proven, modern

solution to make our roads safer,

smoother, and more cost-effective.
Vehicles flow in a counterclockwise direction
around a central island, with drivers yielding
on entry. Roundabouts can be an attractive
community focal point that lowers long-
term maintenance costs, enhances safety
and cuts congestion and delays.

Cars can have potential conflicts in 32 spots
at traditional four-way intersections and
crashes can be more severe.

At dangerous intersections where they can significantly reduce 16 Angle
. .y . ... Conflict Points ° °
crashes that result in fatalities and serious injuries. T 3
° 3 Vehicle-to-Vehicle o—<in ) :. -6’ .: .:. .
. . . . = () u
On roads where drivers speed, they can naturally slow traffic. Conflict Points S0 o2
o -0l o o% o ie.o
Vehicle-to- \e %/
- 2 Pedestrian o o

Wher? there is enough room to safely reach nearby driveways Conflict Poins
or buildings.

Where they can function as landmarks/gateways to create a
sense of identity for a community.

In locations with moderate, balanced traffic flow.

Yes!
Where intersections are close together, they keep traffic moving

and can reduce the need for extra lanes or road widening.

Because roundabouts slow vehicles, crashes that do occur are less severe.

If hit at 40 mph,
pedestrians have a chance

Florida Department of Transportation

20%

90% fewer fatalities

75% fewer injuries
Compared to traditional four-way signalized intersections

Are roundabouts safe for pedestrians?

of survival of
But at 20 mph, this
chance increases to

Are roundabouts safe for drivers?

N\
&\

Cars can have potential conflicts in 8 spots
at single-lane modern roundabouts and
crashes are typically less severe.

0

Angle
Conflict Points

Vehicle-to-Vehicle
Conflict Points

Vehicle-to- ° °

Pedestrian
Conflict Points

kS‘t o
e

n [ (6)
~Lane l'?our\da\o

Both drivers and pedestrians have improved views of one another, and islands
provide safe waiting areas for people crossing one direction of traffic at a time.

SPEED
LIMIT

95%

AN




Roundabouts

Geometry that guides

drivers throughout and Floridians already use roundabouts everyday.

forces slow speeds

No need to change lanes
within intersection

Are roundabouts : R e Florida leads the nation in number of roundabouts.
difficult to drive in? Al [ oo

N Ot at a I I ! :SS: X‘\X\T\ - / / — fEE

Once you know the rules,
roundabouts make driving
safer and smoother.

SR 17 and Hunt Brothers Rd
in Polk County

Scan to explore online
Drivers only have to

navigate and merge into one
conflicting traffic stream.

Do roundabouts cause congestion?

Well-designed roundabouts do not cause congestion.
Ponce de Leon Blvd, Greco Ave,
and Ruiz Ave in Coral Gables

All directions of traffic This increases traffic % Roundabouts are particularly Scan to explore online
e are kept open, rather than capacity by 30-50% beneficial at intersections

stopping two or more at compared to a signalized with similar cross traffic

a time like at a traditional intersection. and lots of left turns.

intersection.

Are roundabouts more expensive?

It depends!

Suburban Roundabout: 40th St and Riverhills Dr in Tampa
» B Scan to explore online
' i.‘

Roundabouts often end up being less expensive over a 2-year period
than traffic signals. Here'’s why:

m Roundabouts Traffic Signal

: Sometimes higher, depending on site conditions Can be high if turn lanes or
Construction Cost . .
and design features. signal are needed.

. Very low for sigle-lane roundabouts; no electronics Ongoing costs for electricity,
Maintenance Cost . - . )
or signal timing to maintain. repairs, and updates.

9 Roundabouts may need more space at corners, but Depends on size, turn lanes,
Land Aquisition they can reduce the need for extra lanes, helping signal poles, and equipment.
limit property impacts between intersections.
Lower due to minimal upkeep and fewer crashes.*  Higher due to maintenance
and crash severity.* Scan to learn more

* Indirectly, the cost associated with a fatal crash ($10,670,000), more common in traditional signalized about roundabouts
intersections, is over 100 times higher than one associated with a minor injury crash ($106,600). an d th e I s b en eflt S

[ Societal Costs
-




Proven Safety Solutions

RUMBLE STRIPS & STRIPES

Did you know?

Lane departure crashes, or when vehicles veer off the road, cause over 30% of Florida roadway

What a.re rl’,)lmble Strlps o i fatalities and serious injuries. Studies show that rumble strips can help prevent:
and stripes? e o 44% to 64% 13% to 51%

- S of fatal and injury head-on in single-vehicle, run-off-road

« Rumble strips are a simple, low-cost : II_N0C_W crashes on two-lane rural roads  crashes on two-lane rural roads  (Source:
safety feature with a powerful impact. e S
Installed along the centerline or edge
of a roadway, they create audible and
vibratory feedback when a driver drifts
from their lane. That instant alert helps prevent
crashes caused by drowsiness, distraction, or

Are they easy to install?

Yes, especially when bundled

with resurfacing projects. Rumble strips can also be

inattention. ! _
« Rumble strips save lives, cost little, and require . - InsiElEe € & stan_dalone project
almost no maintenance, making them one of the Adding r_u mble strips to planned e
most effective roadway sa%ety tools available resurfacing work makes ’Fhe.m : MR i eless
' affordable and easy by ellmlnatlng lane departure crashes.

How do they improve safety?

the need for separate crews or setup.

Are they expensive?

They are relatively low cost but _ _
have outsized benefits, with a Milled rumble strips

benefit-to-cost ratio of 100:1. & typically require little to

drift out of their lane.

Where are they used?

On the shoulder, along the edge line, or along
the center of undivided roads.

Grooves or raised elements on the road surface

create noise and vibration to alert drivers who \
no maintenance over

the life of the pavement.

Scan to learn about
Innovations in Rumble Strips Florida’s Rumble Strips

Newer “mumble strips” are designed with a
wavy pattern that reduces any noise outside
of the vehicle, minimizing unintended noise for
the surrounding community and environment.

Rumble strips are particularly
effective on rural roads with
high-speed limits and low visibility.

' Office of
Poucvz
A PLANNING

Florida Department of Transportation




TRANSPORTATION

PLANNING
ORGANIZATION
TO: Committee Members
FROM: Rob Balmes, Director
RE: November Committee Meetings

As a general reminder, the next Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) and Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) meetings will be held on November 4, 2025, at 1:00 pm and 2:30 pm. This
schedule revision was made in January due to the national Veterans holiday and adoption
schedule for the 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP).

If you have any questions, please contact me at: 352-438-2631.

A transportation system that supports growth, mobility, and safety through leadership and planning

2710 E. Silver Springs Blvd. « Ocala, Florida 34470
Telephone: (352) 438 - 2630 « www.ocalamariontpo.org



	October 14, 2025
	AGENDA

	September 9, 2025 TAC Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Members Present:
	Members Not Present:
	Others Present:
	Matthew Richardson, FDOT
	William Roll, Kimley-Horn
	Christopher Zeigler, Marion County
	Ken Odom, Marion County
	Item 1. Call to Order
	Item 2. Roll Call
	Item 3. Proof of Publication
	Item 4. Consent Agenda
	Mr. Titterington made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Mr. Varadin seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.
	Item 5a. Committee Rules and Procedures
	Item 6a. Fiscal Years (FY) 2026 to 2030 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment #1 with Roll Forward
	Mr. Cooper made a motion to approve the Roll Forward report.  Mr. Titterington seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.
	Item 7a. 2050 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) Cost Feasible Element
	Adoption Schedule
	Chairman Cohoon inquired about the SW 66th Street project, located east of I-75 and west of 27th Avenue, asking why the widening to four lanes appeared on the unfunded needs list and whether it was intended to be listed there.
	Mr. Roll clarified that the project had been included as a cost-feasible project. He explained that the maps functioned like an MRI, showing different layers of information: committed projects, cost-feasible projects, partially funded projects, and un...
	Mr. Roll inquired about the Marion Oaks extension, noting that it was currently shown as a committed project. He expressed concern that it did not appear to be fully funded and requested guidance from those with more knowledge regarding the project’s ...
	Chairman Cohoon explained that, in the currently adopted Marion County Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), the Marion Oaks project was not fully funded but was dependent on bond funding. He noted that it was included in the TIP and associated wi...
	Mr. Roll said that the change was going to be reflected on the maps. He explained that, before it went to the TPO Board, the project would be moved from being shown as a committed project to a cost-feasible project. He noted that this adjustment would...
	Chairman Cohoon inquired about the 49th Street interchange and the north-south extension of 35th Street. He noted that the extension was originally envisioned to continue all the way to SR 326, whereas the map showed its terminus and listed an unfunde...
	Item 7b. 2025 Commitment to Zero Safety Report
	Item 9. Comments by TPO Staff
	Mr. Balmes noted that the Active Transportation Plan was made available for public review on September 22nd, beginning a 30-day comment period. He explained that the plan would be highlighted at a public open house on September 30th, which would also ...
	The open house would run from 4:00 to 6:30 p.m. in an open-house style format at the Mary Sue Rich Center.
	Item 10. Comments by TAC Members
	There were no comments by TAC members.
	Item 11. Public Comment
	There was no public comment.
	Item 12. Adjournment


	ATP Draft Plan.pdf
	TO:  Board Members
	FROM: Rob Balmes, Director
	Draft Active Transportation Plan-reduced.pdf
	Table 1. Goals, Objectives and Performance Measures The development of the Active Transportation Plan involved the engagement of citizens, partner agencies, and community stakeholders. This process included the formation of an Active Transportation Plan S
	Table 2. ATP Roadway Network 
	Table 3. Posted Speed Limit Distribution
	Table 4. Number of Lanes Distribution 
	Table 5. Top 19 Bus Stop Ridership
	Table 6. Five-Year Pedestrian and Bicycle Fatalities and Serious Injuries
	Table 7. Accessibility Scoring Categories 
	Table 8. Accessibility of Key Destinations by Facility Types
	Table 9. Proposed Trail Projects
	Table 10. Proposed Bike Projects
	Table 11. Proposed Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Projects
	Introduction
	Vision, Goals, and Objectives
	Public and Partner Engagement
	Existing Conditions
	Bicycle and Pedestrian Level of Traffic Stress Analysis
	Bicycle and Pedestrian Accessibility Analysis
	Needs Assessment
	Proposed Improvements
	Project Prioritization
	Conclusion and Next Steps
	Figure 1. Population Density 
	Figure 2. ATP Roadway Network
	Figure 3. Transit Stops and Ridership in Marion County
	Figure 4.  Existing and Committed Sidewalks
	Figure 5. Existing and Committed Bicycle Lanes
	Figure 6. Existing and Committed Trails
	Figure 7. Fatal and Serious Injury Pedestrian Crashes 
	Figure 8. Fatal and Serious Injury Bicycle Crashes 
	Figure 9. Pedestrian LTS Definition 
	Figure 10. Bicyclist LTS Definition
	Figure 11. Pedestrian LTS
	Figure 12. Bicycle LTS 
	Figure 13. Pedestrian Low-Stress Roadway Buffer Area
	Figure 14. Pedestrian All-Roadway Buffer Area
	Figure 15. Pedestrian Buffer Areas Overlayed
	Figure 16. Job Accessibility via Biking
	Figure 17. Population Accessibility via Biking
	Figure 18. Job Accessibility via Walking
	Figure 19. Population Accessibility via Walking
	Figure 20. Proposed Trail Projects
	Figure 21. Proposed Bike Projects
	Figure 22. Proposed Sidewalk/Shared Use Path Projects


	Safety Memo.pdf
	TO:  Committee Members
	FROM: Rob Balmes, Director

	Draft 2050 LRTP Committees.pdf
	TO:  Committee Members
	FROM: Rob Balmes, Director
	Draft 2050 LRTP.pdf
	TO:  Committee Members
	FROM: Rob Balmes, Director
	Draft 2050 LRTP Document.pdf
	1 Introduction
	1.1 What is the Ocala-Marion TPO?
	1.2 About the LRTP

	2 Vision, Goals, Objectives, and Performance
	2.1 Vision, Goals, and Objectives
	2.1.1 Federal and State Goals and  Planning Factors
	2.1.1.1 Infrastructure Investment and Jobs (IIJA)
	2.1.1.2 IIJA (Federal) Goals
	2.1.1.3 IIJA Planning Factors
	2.1.1.4 State Goals – Florida Transportation Plan (FTP)

	2.1.2 Local Plans

	2.2 Performance-Based Planning

	3 Planning Assumptions
	3.1 Population Control Totals
	3.2 Employment Control Totals
	3.3 Growth Scenarios
	3.3.1 Trend Forecast (Scenario 1)
	3.3.2 Scenario 2
	3.3.3 Scenario 3


	4 The Transportation Plan - Needs & Cost Feasible
	4.1 Projected Revenues
	4.2 Transportation Improvement Program
	4.1  Roadway Plan
	4.1.1 Phasing of Projects
	4.1.2 Prioritization Considerations

	4.2 Public Transportation
	4.3 Active Transportation
	4.3.1 ATP Process
	4.3.2 ATP Key Considerations
	4.3.3 ATP Outreach and Stakeholder Efforts
	4.3.4 ATP Priorities

	4.4 Operations and Management Strategies
	4.5 Special Projects
	4.5.1 Moving I-75 Forward
	4.5.2 Western Beltway
	4.5.3 East-West Corridor Connection

	4.6 Safety
	4.6.1 Commitment to Zero  Safety Action Plan


	5 Public and Partner Engagement
	5.1 Introduction
	5.2 Public Participation Plan
	5.3 Summary of Public Comments
	5.4 Plan Successes and Unmet Aspirations
	5.5 Key Themes

	6 Environmental Consideration
	6.1 Resiliency

	7 Plan Implementation
	7.1 Amending the Plan
	7.2 The Next Five Years


	Draft LRTP Appendix.pdf
	Appendix G_CFP-YOE.pdf
	FiscalConstraint.16.pdf
	CF_16.pdf
	UN_16.pdf
	PF-INT_16.pdf
	CF-INT_16.pdf

	ATP_Projects_Table_for LRTP_Trail.pdf
	Trail

	ATP_Projects_Table_for LRTP_SidewalkSUP.pdf
	SidewalkSUP

	ATP_Projects_Table_for LRTP_Bike.pdf
	Bike



	TAC-CAC Presentation.pdf
	CAC & TAC Meetings�October 14, 2025
	Upcoming 2050 LRTPO Meetings & Events


	School Safety.pdf
	TO:  Committee Members
	FROM: Rob Balmes, Director

	Nov Meetings.pdf
	TO:  Committee Members
	FROM: Rob Balmes, Director




